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In a little more than five years, Klépierre has produced an exemplary real-estate business
growth model for its core shopping center markets in Continental Europe, where the
Group has become a player of the first rank. With more than 208 shopping malls and
leasable floor area totaling 1 375 000 square meters, Klépierre leads this market
segment in France, Spain and Italy, and has established operations in Portugal,
Greece, Belgium, the Czech Republic and Slovakia. Its holdings are currently valued
at €5.2 billion, of which 4.2 billion invested in shopping centers and the remaining

€1 billion invested in office properties.

The driving force behind Klépierre’s success in the shopping center segment is
Ségécé’s unrivaled management expertise in Europe. Ségécé, which is 75%
owned by Klépierre, manages nearly 320 shopping centers via a network 
of seven subsidiaries, the largest of which have been built through local
partnerships.

Klépierre’s positioning in markets with high growth potential – in terms
of both new developments and extensions of existing malls – as well
as the quality of its holdings and management capability support the
Group’s target of steady, double-digit growth in net current cash flow
over the medium term.

Thanks to the stability of its core business, which offers Klépierre
ongoing opportunities to reinvest regularly generated cash
flows, the Group is able to leverage its acquired expertise in
office real estate to take full advantage of this highly liquid
market during upside periods.

Since it opted for SIIC status (Sociétés d’Investissements
Immobiliers Cotées) in 2003, Klépierre has been able to
offer its shareholders a favorable tax environment as well.
Listed on the Paris Euronext stock exchange (Premier
Marché), and included in a number of benchmark
indices – SBF 120, Next 150 and DJ Stoxx 600 
– Klépierre’s market capitalization has nearly
doubled in five years to surpass the 2-billion euro
mark. Its primary shareholder, BNP Paribas,
owns 53.1% of Klépierre’s equity capital.
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First and foremost, 2003 offered us a chance to test the strength
of a business and economic model that was developed to com-

bine sustained revenue growth and predictable earnings. Business
conditions deteriorated throughout the eurozone last year, and 

consumer spending growth hit its lowest point in a decade. In spite
of this apparently non-supportive operating environment, Klépierre

managed to turn in a very good performance: revenues, current cash
flow and revalued net assets all provided double-digit growth.

This solid performance is due above all to our firm and expert focus on
the shopping center market, which offers the investor exceedingly 

rare qualities: high occupancy, low sensitivity to business cycles, regular
upside rental reversionary potential, and strong barriers to entry. This

combination naturally gives the competitive edge to established players.
Our success is also due to our unwavering focus on an ambitious develop-

ment agenda, for which Klépierre has a portfolio of European projects 
that is unmatched. Last but not least, Klépierre owes its achievements to a

conservative financing policy that protects earnings against exposure to
higher interest rates.
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In 2003, the Group opted for the new SIIC tax status
offered to eligible listed real-estate companies. In doing so,
Klépierre made a decision that is critical for the future.
The advantages of this status are numerous: not only will 
it facilitate future asset arbitrage policy; it has also already
increased the transparency of asset valuations and will,
going forward, give investors excellent visibility on earnings
distributions. The stock market reaction to the new tax 
status was immediate and positive, for real-estate stocks 
in general and for Klépierre’s stock price in particular.

Economic recovery is not expected to kick in until at least
the second half of 2004. Notwithstanding this delay,
Klépierre’s potential for organic growth is sufficiently intact
that the Executive Board is confident in the Group’s ability
to make further gains in its key performance indicators.
Hence, Klépierre can be expected to continue to combine
the strengths of growth and value. Michel Clair

Chairman of the Executive Board

2003:
a crucial year 
for Klépierre.
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Klépierre
and its strategy
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executive
board

Michel Clair
Chairman

(57) A graduate of ENA, Michel Clair worked in government until
1991, first as an auditor, then as a commissioner of the French 
government Audit Office. During this period, Mr. Clair held a variety
of positions with the French Planning Office and the Industrial Affairs
Office, and served as chief of staff for the Vice-Minister of Finance
and Economy in charge of Commerce, Crafts and Services from
1986 to 1988. In 1991, he joined Compagnie Bancaire, where he
was Corporate Secretary and member of the Executive Board. After
the Paribas-Compagnie Bancaire merger, Mr. Clair was appointed to
a seat on the Paribas Executive Committee as the senior executive
in charge of real estate and pooled corporate services. He became
Chairman and Chief Executive of Klépierre in 1997 and has been
Chairman of Klépierre’s Executive Board since 1998.
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Éric Ranjard
Vice Chairman

(58) An engineering graduate of ESTP, Mr. Ranjard has spent most of
his professional career with Ségécé. He was appointed Chairman of
Ségécé in 1999. Since 1998, he has been a member of the Klépierre
Executive Board, in charge of development and the Shopping Center
Division. He also holds a number of chairmanships or vice-chairman-
ships in Klépierre subsidiaries. An expert for the Administrative Court
of Paris, he was elected President of the Conseil National des Centres
Commerciaux in 2003.

Claude Lobjoie

(55) An engineering graduate from INSA LYON, Mr. Lobjoie
joined Compagnie Bancaire in 1970, where he served as
Corporate Secretary of UCB (1991-1996) and then Chief
Real Estate Officer (1996-1998). He has been a member of
the Klépierre Executive Board since 1998, and is head of the
Office Property Division and Corporate Secretary. He is also
President of Klégestion. Claude Lobjoie was appointed
Chairman of Klépierre Services on January 1, 2002.

Throughout 2003, Jean-Paul Sabet served as Klépierre Executive Board member in charge of
Finance and Development, a position he had held since 1998. Mr. Sabet joined BNP Paribas on
January 1, 2004, where he is head of retail banking operations for France. Following this change,
the distribution of responsibilities within the Klépierre Executive Board was redefined.
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corporate governance 

> Vivien Lévy-Garboua
(56) was elected Chairman 
of the Supervisory Board 
on April 12, 2000. He is also
member of the Executive
Committee of BNP Paribas.
> Christian Manset 
(62) has served as Vice
Chairman of the Supervisory
Board since July 21, 1998.
He is also Chairman of
Compagnie Financière
Ottomane.
> Bertrand de Feydeau* 
(55) was elected to the
Supervisory Board on 
July 21, 1998. He is also 
Senior Executive Vice
Chairman of Economic Affairs
for the Archdiocese of Paris.
> Bertrand Jacquillat* 
(59) was elected to the
Supervisory Board on 
April 12, 2001. He is also
Chairman and CEO of
Associés en Finance and 
a member of the faculty of 
the Institut d’études politiques
de Paris.
> Bertrand Letamendia* 
(56) was elected to the
Supervisory Board on 
July 21, 1998. He is Chief Real
Estate Officer of AGF Group.
> Jean Nunez 
(43) was elected to the
Supervisory Board on July 21,
1998. He is also head of

Finance and Control for the
Banque de Financement 
et d’Investissement of 
BNP Paribas.
> Laurent Treca
(56) was elected to the
Supervisory Board on 
April 12, 2001. He is also 
a member of the Executive
Committee of BNP Paribas,
where he is head of
Development.

The Executive Board will
recommend that the shareholders
appoint two additional members
to the Supervisory Board during
their annual meeting on April 8,
2004:
> Jérôme Bédier*
(48) Chairman of the
Fédération des Entreprises du
Commerce et de la Distribution.
> Dominique Hoenn
(63) Senior Advisor 
of BNP Paribas.

* Definition of independent director:
“A director is independent if he or she
has no relationship with the Company,
its Group or its officers that may
interfere with his or her exercise of
independent judgment.”

In accordance with its internal
policies and procedures, the
Supervisory Board meets at
least four times each year. The
Supervisory Board has granted
its Chairman the power to

independently authorize the
Executive Board to carry out
the following transactions,
provided that no single
transaction exceeds €46 million
or the equivalent amount in
another currency:

buy and sell any stake 
in any company (no restriction
applies to related party
transactions between group
affiliales),

acquire or dispose of any
properties (no restriction
applies to related party transac-
tions between group affiliates),

in the event of a dispute,
enter into agreements or
transactions and accept
compromise settlements.
As set forth in the Company
bylaws, only half of the annual
compensation of members of
the Supervisory Board is fixed.
The variable portion of their
compensation is contingent 
on attendance at Supervisory
Board meetings.

Independent Auditors –
Incumbents:
> Ernst & Young Audit
> Mazars et Guérard

Independent Auditors –
Alternates:
> Jean-Marc Montserrat
> José Marette

Initially set up in 1998,
Klépierre’s corporate governance
structures were designed 
to ensure that independent
specialists evaluate the merits 
of the company’s strategic
decisions.

Investment Committee:
Vivien Lévy-Garboua
Chairman
Bertrand de Feydeau
Christian Manset
Laurent Treca
(At his request, Mr. Treca 
is no longer a member 
of this committee, effective
November 3, 2003.)

The Investment Committee
studies the terms and conditions
of potential acquisitions to ensure
that they are aligned with invest-
ment strategy. Following a review
of investment criteria conducted
in early 2002, the Committee has
focused primarily on monitoring
the value creation of planned 
or completed investments.
This information is used to
support decisions relating to the
acquisition, disposal or retention
of all assets. In addition, financing
hypotheses have been developed
for all future investments. The
Committee met five times in 2003,
a year in which its focus shifted
from the acquisition of existing

supervisory board committees

shopping center properties to the
consideration of new development
projects. The Committee also
reviewed projected extensions 
to existing shopping centers,
including new projects developed
by Ségécé in France
(Valenciennes, Angoulême, 
Cité du meuble in Cesson,
Aubervilliers) and several projects
being designed or developed 
with partners in Spain, Italy and
Greece, for which the Group 
will make investment outlays 
in the coming years. In addition,
the Committee authorized 
the office property arbitrage
program for 2004.
The Supervisory Board may
delegate investment authority
as follows:

Executive Board, 
up to €8 million,

Chairman of the Supervisory
Board, acting on behalf of the
board, up to €46 million.

Audit Committee members:
Christian Manset
Chairman
Bertrand Jacquillat
Bertrand Letamendia
Jean Nunez
Vivien Lévy-Garboua
The Chairman of the Supervisory
Board is an at-large member of
this Committee.
The role of the Audit Committee



The most recent three-year term of
office to which the shareholders

appointed the Supervisory Board has
been one of substantial change for

Klépierre. In 2000, the Group was pre-
dominantly a French real-estate compa-

ny whose core holdings were office prop-
erties. Today, it is one of Europe’s most

active shopping center managers. The
Group’s real-estate assets and workforce

doubled over the period; and its subsidiary
Ségécé set up offices and began offering 

real-estate asset management services in
seven European countries.

But such a dramatic transformation is not risk-
free, and it is the Supervisory Board’s role 

– without infringing on the Executive Board’s
management discretion – to ensure shareholders

that business growth, although it may be spec-
tacular, is also reasonable and value creating.

The Supervisory Board focuses particular attention
on three areas:

Investment policy: all acquisitions or disposals
involving assets valued at more than €8 million are

subject to Supervisory Board review. Before giving its
go-ahead, the Board rates each contemplated trans-

action using a standardized scorecard.
Operational risk: In connection with its European

expansion, Klépierre has thoroughly revised its proce-
dures to meet local requirements.

is to evaluate major accounting
decisions, financial disclosures
and accounting procedures.
It met five times in 2003 
to discuss important events
involving or impacting Klépierre.
It also met with the independent
auditors to discuss the terms 
of their reappointment, subject
to shareholder approval on 
April 8, 2004.
The principal issues submitted
to the Audit Committee in 2003
are itemized below:

the new SIIC tax status, and
more particularly the method
used to revalue holdings;

the publication of revalued
net assets excluding transfer
duties and after deferred
taxation;

the decision to apply IFRS
and its consequences, in
particular with respect to
standards 32, 39 and 40.
With respect to the latter issue,
the Supervisory Board reached
a decision on valuation methods
for short-term real-estate
investments on 
December 18, 2003;

the Supervisory Board’s
internal control report, as
required under the French
Financial Security Act.

Compensation Committee
members:
Vivien Lévy-Garboua
Chairman
Philippe Dulac
(No longer a member of the
committee, having resigned
from the Supervisory Board 
on April 11, 2003)
Bertrand de Feydeau

The Compensation Committee
issues recommendations on 
the compensation of directors 
and officers of the Company
and stock option plans. It met
once in 2003.

The Supervisory Board
ensures reasonable 
business growth that 
creates value.

Financial control and equal access of all share-
holders to information: To gain the market’s
confidence, any business must provide clear
and comprehensible information. This is one of
the Supervisory Board’s critical tasks, made
possible by the work of the Audit Committee. In
2003, the Audit Committee played an instru-
mental role in adapting accounting rules to
Klépierre’s new SIIC status. Moreover, the
Supervisory Board draws on the Audit
Committee’s recommendations to improve the
transparency of financial statements and the
reliability of asset valuations.
The Supervisory Board cannot function without
the active participation of all of its members
and special-topic sub-committees. The share-
holders are being asked to approve the
appointment of two additional members, who
between them have considerable business and
financial expertise, so that the Board can fur-
ther improve its own performance.
Klépierre is now one of Europe’s top ten prop-
erty managers, and is the fourth largest player
within the euro zone. The Group’s sizeable
development portfolio should enable the pursuit
of its strategy of sustained growth that serves
the long-term interests of all its shareholders.

Vivien Lévy-Garboua
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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ability to increase net current
cash flow. The Group expects to
achieve a double-digit rise in this
key performance indicator over
the medium term, by leveraging a
combination of organic and exter-
nal sources of growth. The key
internal drivers are the quasi-
automatic impact of index-linked
adjustments, rental reversion on
leases that come up for renewal,
and the re-letting of vacated
space. The primary external
driver is new investments, princi-
pally financed out of free cash
flow, the proceeds of divestitures
and, to a lesser extent, reason-
able use of debt financing.

10

A European model
Klépierre’s business development
model primarily involves owning
and managing shopping centers.
Its principal sphere of operation
encompasses European coun-
tries with certain key characteris-
tics in common: strict legislation
that limits supply; identical con-
sumer spending patterns; and a
marked consumer preference for
combining shopping centers and
hypermarkets.

Sustained growth
For several years, Klépierre tested
the sustainability and quality of its
business development model in

France. In 2001, the Group inte-
grated the first 70 shopping malls
in France acquired under the
Carrefour agreement. With the
acquisition of 52 shopping malls
in Spain in 2000 and 2001, 
as well as a 50% interest in
Centros Shopping Gestion,
Ségécé became the leading
shopping manager in Spain. The
Group’s business model was also
rolled out on a large scale in Italy,
a country in which Klépierre made
its first foray in 1998 through a
partnership with Finim. In 2002, 
11 malls were acquired in Italy from
Carrefour, and 9 malls through
the partnership with Finiper.

In addition, Ségécé acquired 50%
of PSG (50% owned by Finim),
making the jointly owned sub-
sidiary the Italian leader in shop-
ping center management.

Confirmation in 2003
Klépierre’s business model incon-
testably proved its worth in 2003.
Overall, the Group acquired 28
shopping malls located within its
scope of operation: 6 in France,
10 in Spain, 5 in Italy, 3 in
Greece, 3 in Portugal and 1 mall
in the Czech Republic. The Group
also has 6 new projects under
construction: 2 in Italy, 1 in Spain,
1 in Greece, 1 in Belgium; and the

extension to the Dijon-Quétigny
shopping center in France.
More than 580 million euros were
invested in 2003. Over the same
period, Ségécé continued to
strengthen its European manage-
ment network with the establis-
hment of a new subsidiary in
Portugal.
At present, the Group is confident
in its ability to invest €2.3 billion
between 2004 and 2009, for a
full-year rental gain that is expect-
ed to reach €180 million.

Double-digit growth
The Group’s financial perform-
ance is primarily driven by its

targeting steady value creation

business development model

Klépierre and its strategy



Results attest to the strength
of the business model
In 2003, the internal increase in
rents was 4.4%, including office
properties. The impact of acquisi-
tions provided an additional 8.8%,
including the full-year effect of
acquisitions and disposals made in
2002. Overall, rents increased by
13.2%, compared with a rise in
revenues (excluding development
business) of 11.8%, ascribable to
a lower level of fee income from
third-party business. Minus man-
agement expenses, operating
cash flow increased by 11.7%. As
a result of the leverage procured
through debt financing, only the

Group share in increases is rele-
vant: on this basis, pre-tax current
cash flow increased by 15.1%.
In light of the change in tax sta-
tus, this key performance indica-
tor is to be compared with an ini-
tial target of double-digit growth.
Net current cash flow increased
by 21.1%, reflecting the tax sav-
ings generated by the adoption of
SIIC status.

Outlook for 2004
Klépierre recently announced an
investment objective for 2004 of
€400 to €500 million, and a target
increase in net current cash flow
of at least 10%.

11

+15.1%
increase in pre-tax 
current cash flow
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Klépierre and its strategy

In 2003, Klépierre pursued a
financing policy consistent with
the objectives pursued over the
past few years; namely, to
strengthen its financial structure
and minimize the cost of capital
while ensuring the continuity of
resources.
In 2003, the Group’s financing
requirements (in addition to the
free cash flow generated by
operations, investments and dis-
posals), were unchanged versus
2002 at approximately €330 mil-
lion. The stronger financial struc-
ture helped to maintain the key
financial ratios well within the
Group’s target ranges.

At year-end 2003, corporate debt
was equal to 44.7% of the fair
market value of real-estate hold-
ings (compared with an upper
limit of 50%); EBITDA was 2.8
times net interest expense (ver-
sus an objective of between 2.5
and 3); and net current cash flow
was 7.8% of debt (compared
with a minimum of 6%).

Diversified sources of debt
with longer maturities
New borrowings were structured
with the aim of diversifying coun-
terparties, sources of financing
(bank, mortgage and syndicated
loans) and debt maturities.

In early 2003, the Group con-
tracted a €770 million syndicated
loan to refinance existing lines of
credit as well as to finance new
investments. Established with a
syndicate of 6 lending institu-
tions, it includes a €270 million
back-up facility for the commer-
cial paper program and a medi-
um-term loan of €500 million –
amortizable in two equal install-
ments, in 2007 and 2009.
Four financing arrangements
totaling an estimated €200 mil-
lion were contracted by sub-
sidiaries in Italy, Portugal, and
Belgium. At the December 31,
2003 reporting date, the most

significant of these was Klecar
Italia’s 12-year, €126 million loan.
Undrawn credit lines totaled
approximately €450 million at the
December 31, 2003 reporting
date. The average due date on
outstanding debt was between
4.1 and 4.4 years.

Coverage optimized in the
favorable context
Klépierre took advantage of the
drop in interest rates in the first
half of 2003 to optimize its debt-
hedging program. With 90% of its
fixed-rate debt hedged over an
average remaining term exceed-
ing the due date on debt, average

a conservative but ambitious financing policy 

financing policy

A diversified financial structure
Drawn at 12/31/2003

Bonds fixed 600 july-08 yes
BNP Paribas bridge loan Floating 225 feb-07 yes
Syndicated loan 1 Floating 670 jan-06 yes
Syndicated loan 2 Floating 500 mar-09 yes
Mortgage loan – Italy Floating 126 june-15 yes
Back-up facility for commercial paper Floating 270 mar-04 yes
Overdrafts Floating 68 revolving no

(1) Assigned a fixed rate in 2000 and then immediately transformed into a variable-rate instrument upon issue in July 2001.
(2) Renewable in one year.

DESCRIPTION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCING INSTRUMENTS
authorizations at December 31, 2003 Hed
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� 27% Bond market � 10% Bridge loans
� 39% Syndicated loans � 4% Conventional bilateral 
� 9% Mortgage loans borrowings 
� 1% Capital leases � 10% Commercial paper

(2)

(1)
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interest on fixed-rate hedges
decreased from 4.7% to 4.4%
when the Euribor is below 6%.
The portfolio of interest-rate
swaps includes €1 294 million in
conventional swaps, €440 million
in collar swaps and €824 million
in structured products that are
automatically deactivated when
the Euribor rate exceeds 6%, at
which point Klépierre becomes
the payer of the Euribor rate less
60 basis points. These terms are
acceptable for Klépierre, since
periods during which short-term
interest rates remain durably
above 6.60% are often correlated
with periods of high inflation, the

impact of which is mostly passed
on to tenants via leases pegged
to the inflation index.

Gradual reduction 
of the global cost of debt 
In 2003, the global cost of debt
(ratio of interest expense to aver-
age outstanding debt) was 5.5%,
down from 5.6% in 2002.
Forecast on the basis of the
financial structure and interest
rates, the cost of debt was
around 5.25% at year-end 2003.
Interest-rate hedges reduced the
sensitivity of this cost to fluctua-
tions: a 100 basis point increase
in the Euribor would increase the

Consolidated balance sheet at 12/31/2003 (adjusted)

ASSETS LIABILITIES

4 214

458

1 009

64

UCG

UGC

NBV

NBV

NBV

UCG - Shareholders’ equity

NBV - minority interests
UCG - minority interests
Bridge loan

Bonds - July 2008

Other bank borrowings

Commercial paper

Net balance of
assets/liabilities

NBV: net book value; UCG: Unrealized capital gains

1 836

427
417

225

600

1 180

220

745

95

global cost of debt to 0.07%,
which translates into a decrease
of €1.6 million in pre-tax current
cash flow.

A stable credit rating
Standard and Poor’s credit rating 

Short Long Outlookterm term
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A BALANCED 
DEBT SCHEDULE
Authorizations at 
December 31, 2003 
(€ millions)

14 35

250
174

600

13

250

225

63

670

1118

270

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010+

� Borrowings contracted 
on behalf of subsidiaries

� Bond
� 2001 syndicated loan
� Commercial paper backup facility 
� 2003 syndicated loan
� BNP Paribas bridge loan





The introduction in 2003 of SIIC (Sociétés
d’Investissements Immobiliers Cotées) 

tax status in France revitalized 
real-estate stocks. This change 

is expected to lead to more
predictable dividend dis-
t r ibu t ion and higher

returns on equity invest-
ments. By eliminating a por-

tion of the tax expense, the
SIIC reform has improved the

transparency of revalued net assets.
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45,000 shares, an increase of
27% for the year. The stock split
effected in April 2003 seems to
have enhanced the liquidity and
appeal of the Klépierre share.

16

Gradual rebound 
in the equity markets
After beginning the year under a
cloud of global uncertainty – due,
among other things to the conflict
in Iraq and the risk of terrorism –
the equity markets began in the
second quarter of 2003 to respond
to encouraging signs of economic
recovery in the United States and
Europe. After falling to 2 401 points
in mid-March, the worst perform-
ance since January of 1997, 
the CAC 40 ended the year 16%
higher. This performance came
as good news after two straight
years of significant decline (-34%
and -22%, respectively, in 2002

and 2001). Nonetheless, the US
dollar’s weakness has prevented
this recovery from fully kicking in.

Real-estate stocks confirm
their safe haven status
As the 19% rise in the EPRA
EuroZone benchmark index in
2003 demonstrates, European
real-estate stocks outperformed
the CAC 40 as a whole. Offering a
safe haven for investors during the
first quarter, their capacity to pro-
vide recurring revenues ensured
ongoing interest throughout the
year in light of lingering uncertain-
ties about the recovery.
French real-estate stocks were a

standout, ending the year up by
21% (EPRA France).This outper-
formance is undoubtedly related
to the election by major players in
the industry of SIIC tax status,
even though the market began to
factor in the advantages as soon
as the draft legislation was made
public in November of 2002.

Klépierre stock repeats
double-digit price growth
After moving up 20.3% in 2002,
the Klépierre stock price contin-
ued its ascent in 2003, closing out
the year up 10.8%. Like other
publicly traded stocks, Klépierre
was hurt by shifts in asset alloca-

tions, out of equities and into
other securities, during the first
quarter.The stock price continued
on a downward path until March,
although the fall was somewhat
attenuated by its defensive
strengths: the 2003 price decline
peaked at minus 10.1%, versus
minus 21.6% for the CAC 40.
Including reinvestment of the divi-
dend, Klépierre’s average annual
performance was +14.1% in 2003.
Over the long term, the Klépierre
share compares favorably with
both the CAC 40 and the EPRA
indices. Klépierre’s liquidity was
further enhanced in 2003, with
average daily trading volume of

another year of growth for the Klépierre share

stock and share ownership

Closing price* 32.0 33.4 35.8 43.0 47.7
% change +10.5% +4.3% +7.2% +20.3% +10.8%
Change in CAC 40 +51.1% -0.7% -22.0% -33.7% +16.1%
* Adjusted to reflect the impact of the stock split in 2003.

KLÉPIERRE STOCK PERFORMANCE
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General characteristics of
the SIIC tax status  
Article 11 of the French Budget
Act for 2003 and the Decree of
July 11, 2003 offer special tax-
exempt status to real-estate
investment companies (Sociétés
d’Investissements Immobiliers
Cotées - SIIC) listed on a regulat-
ed market in France, provided
that they have minimum share
capital of €15 million and that
their principal corporate purpose
is to acquire and build properties
for rental or to directly or indirect-
ly own shares in companies hav-
ing this corporate purpose. The
option is irrevocable. Subsidiaries

subject to corporate income tax in
which the company holds at least
a 95% equity interest can also
elect the new status.
In exchange for electing SIIC sta-
tus, companies agree to distribute
85% of their rental income, 50%
of the proceeds from the sale of
their real-estate assets and all the
dividends they receive from tax-
exempt subsidiaries.
These companies are liable for an
up-front exit tax of 16.5% on unre-
alized capital gains derived from
property assets and securities in
corporate tax-exempt partner-
ships. The first 25% of the exit tax
is payable on December 15 of the

year in which the company opts
for SIIC status, and the balance is
payable over the next three years.

Klépierre’s option
At their meeting on September
26, 2003, the shareholders of
Klépierre moved to adopt the
new SIIC tax status, retroactive
from January 1, 2003. SIIC sta-
tus was approved for 33 sub-
sidiaries, generating an up-front
exit tax of €119.8 million.

Restructuring in connection
with the new SIIC tax status  
Klépierre began a restructuring
program in July of 2003 whose

aim was to optimize the positive
impacts of the new tax status.
The program primarily focused
on Klécentres, in which Klépierre
acquired full ownership in
exchange for granting exiting
minority shareholders full owner-
ship of Gonesses Usine Center
(Center Villepinte); 50% of
Bègles Arcins, owner of the
Rives d’Arcins center; and
11.24% of Solorec, owner of the
Créteil Soleil center. In sum,
Klépierre is now divided into
three distinct tax segments:

SIIC segment: Klépierre and
its eligible subsidiaries regis-
tered in France.

a new tax status that benefits shareholders

€119.8
million in exit taxes 
payable in connection 
with the SIIC tax status

economic performance

siic and dividends
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Non-SIIC companies in France:
Primarily Secmarne, Cécobil, and
management companies. The lat-
ter are not eligible for SIIC status.

Non-SIIC companies abroad:
By definition, these subsidiaries
are subject to the tax laws of
their country of incorporation.
In connection with its decision to
adopt SIIC tax status, Klépierre
revalued the fixed tangible and
financial assets in its consolidat-
ed balance sheets. The methods
used to estimate the ajusted
carrying values, as well as the
impact of the new carrying values
on long-term assets and related
depreciation and amortization,

are described in paragraph 3.1
of the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Impact on dividend 
distribution
As a result of its decision to elect
SIIC tax status, Klépierre is sub-
ject to new regulations pertaining
to dividend distribution policy
and practice. It is worth noting
that Klépierre’s dividend payout
in prior years exceeds the new
requirement. Since the tax sav-
ing procured by adopting SIIC
status automatically increases
distributable earnings, Klépierre
has expressed the desire to

adapt its distribution policy in
order to share the current tax
savings generated by the
change with its shareholders.
By recommending a dividend of
2 euros with an “avoir fiscal” tax
credit of 0.70 euros – an
increase of 54% compared with
the 2002 payout – Klépierre is in
fact pursuing two objectives.
First, all prior year earnings on
which no further tax is payable
are being distributed to share-
holders so that the latter may
take full advantage of the last tax
credit opportunity being made
available. Second, a new founda-
tion – reflecting the new tax 

status – is thereby set for
Klépierre’s traditional dividend
distribution policy.
Going forward, the increase in
the dividend will be measured
against the new foundation of 
2 euros per share, driven by
growth in Klépierre’s key per-
formance indicators (current
cash flow and revalued net
assets per share).
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economic performance

Revalued net assets per share
excluding transfer duties and
after tax on unrealized capital
gains appreciated by 12% in 2003,
to €46.9 on December 31, 2003
(versus €41.9 at the year-end
reporting date in 2002).

Including transfer duties, the
value of Klépierre’s holdings is
€5.2 billion (€4.6 billion group
share). On a constant portfolio
basis, the total value of Klépierre’s
office property holdings decreased
by 0.2% in 2003. The total value
of its shopping center holdings
rose by 5.9% over the same 
period.

Valuation of holdings
For several years now, Klépierre
has entrusted the task of assess-
ing the value of its holdings to
the same appraisers.
For office and warehouse hold-
ings, Foncier Expertise and
Coextim jointly perform this
task.
Retail Consulting Group values
shopping center holdings.
The terms of appointment for
these experts comply with rec-
ommendation issued by the
COB “Barthès de Ruyter”
Workgroup. Methodology is 
discussed in a note to the finan-
cial statements.

Analysis of holdings
At the December 31, 2003
reporting date, Klépierre’s real-
estate holdings encompassed
all or part of 255 real-estate
assets:
219 retail complexes, 34 office
buildings and 2 warehouses.
The total value (including trans-
fer duties) of these holdings was
€5,225.2 million (€4,569.5 mil-
lion group share).
The value of shopping center
holdings totaled €4,214.7 million
(€3,559.4 million group share).
Twelve have a unit value that is
greater than €75 million (they
account for 36% of the total 

enhanced visibility of revalued net assets

estimated value); 50 have values
ranging from €15 million to €75
million; and 157 have values
below €15 million.
Office properties in which
Klépierre has full ownership are
valued at €1,009.2 million.
Of this total, 4 have an esti-
mated unit value that is greater
than €75 million (they account
for 33.9% of the total estimated
value for this sector), while 
18 have values ranging from 
€15 million to €75 million; and
12 have values below €15 mil-
lion. None of the warehouse
properties is valued above €10
million.

€46.9
Revalued net assets 
per share 
at 12.31.2003
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Revalued net assets up
12% in 2003
At the December 31, 2003 report-
ing date, the revalued value of
Klépierre’s net assets (RNA) inclu-
sive of property transfer duties and
prior to the dividend distributed in
respect of 2003 is €2,307.8 million
(€51.6 per share).
RNA excluding transfer duties
totals €2,123.8 million (€47.4 per
share).
RNA excluding transfer duties
and after deferred taxation
amounted to €2,101.1 million
(€46.9 per share).
In light of the adoption of the SIIC
tax status and the resultant 

payment of an up-front exit tax,
the increase in RNA excluding
transfer duties on December 31,
2003 is not comparable with data
for December 31, 2002. In the
revaluation reflected in the open-
ing balance sheet on January 1,
2003 (calculated on the basis of
appraised values excluding
transfer duties at the December
31, 2002 reporting date), an exit
tax expense was recorded equal
to a 16.5% tax on differences
between pre-revaluation tax val-
ues and appraised values
excluding transfer duties at year-
end 2002. Consequently, this
year the increase in RNA can

only be assessed on the basis of
RNA excluding transfer duties
and after deferred taxation on
unrealized capital gains, provided
that the calculation is established
as at December 31, 2002 – since
this was not the case before.
This was done in practice on the
basis of the opening balance
sheet on January 1, 2003, after
revaluation.
On the basis of this calculation,
from which RNA of €41.9 per
share is derived, the year-over-
year increase in RNA excluding
transfer duties and after deferred
taxation as at January 1, 2003
was 12%.

Change
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capitalization
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properties in %
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Well aware of the importance of adopting an appro-
priate and relevant sustainable development policy,

Klépierre began to acquire the means to do so
in late 2002. At that time, a task force was

charged with completing an inventory
of the social and environmental

pract ices already in place
throughout the Group with 

impacts on key stakeholders:
employees and shareholders,

clients and suppliers, community
and civil society. This challenge is

facilitated by the social role that shop-
ping centers play in metropolitan areas.

responsible development
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Group’s financial statements are
fully and clearly explained.

Regular information 
meetings
Klépierre senior managers meet
with financial analysts and institu-
tional investors twice a year,
when its interim and annual earn-
ings are released. During annual
meetings, shareholders receive
detailed information on the Group’s
performance, strategy, and growth
outlook. Throughout the year,
Klépierre takes part in a number
of special-topic and regional
meetings that generally target
individual investors.

Press releases, reports 
and financial statements
available on the Web
The Klépierre corporate website
(www.klepierre.com) is frequently
updated. Visitors to the site may
view or download press releases,
visual aids for presentations to
financial analysts and institution-
al investors, annual reports, inter-
im financial statements and the
minutes of the most recent share-
holders’ meeting. The site also
publishes stock market informa-
tion that includes key share price
and performance information for
Klépierre stock. Contact informa-
tion is also provided to promote

The duty to continuously improve the sales
and purchasing experience for citizens,
shoppers and venders provides the
foundation of Klépierre’s shopping center
business. That is why the Group’s strategy is
based on a conception of sustainable
development that also benefits its employees
and shareholders.

As Klépierre has grown in size and diversified
culturally, it has gradually moved from a natural,
intuitive vision of sustainable development to a
more structured policy that underpins key messages
conveyed to internal as well as external targets.

The Executive Board spearheaded a process that
involves using the Group’s strategy and cultural vision
as the building blocks for a set of sustainable
development guidelines that will serve as the foundation
for establishing operational objectives. The process,
which was set in motion several months ago and involves
working with sustainable development consultants and all
of Klépierre’s operating departments, is expected to
culminate in the publication of formal sustainable
development guidelines sometime in 2004.
Shortly thereafter, the guidelines will be disseminated
throughout the Group, to be followed by tools designed to
measure their impact.

Devoted to transparency
and clarity
Klépierre seeks to provide its
investors with clear, complete
and reliable information that
meets the highest industry stan-
dards and best practices and is
compliant with regulations in
force. Klépierre is also commit-
ted to publishing indicators
established using stable meth-
ods, so that investors may easily
understand and assess its per-
formance. This annual report has
been prepared with particular
care to ensure that the new tax
status adopted by Klépierre in
2003 and its impact, on the

promoting clear and complete financial

Developing 
sustainable 
development 
guidelines
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communications between the
Group and its shareholders.

Steady value creation
Creating value is one of the pri-
mary objectives of management.
Consequently, steady stock price
appreciation is one of benefits
that Klépierre seeks to offer its
shareholders. While it is often
perceived as a listed real-estate
company with significant growth
potential, Klépierre sees its stock
as more of a value than a growth
stock. On this view, value cre-
ation is more adequately reflect-
ed in terms of total profitability 
for the shareholder.

2004 EARNINGS AND REVENUE DISCLOSURES

January 28, 2004 2003 annual revenues*
February 16, 2004 2003 annual earnings*
February 17, 2004 Presentation of annual results 

and press conference   
April 8, 2004 2003 annual general meeting 

of shareholders
April 28, 2004 First quarter revenues*
May 6, 2004 Dividend payout
July 27, 2004 2004 interim earnings*
July 28, 2004 Presentation of interim results 

and press conference  
October 27, 2004 Fourth quarter revenues*
* Press release available after the close of stock market business.

Over the last five years, and
assuming reinvestment of the
dividend, the Klépierre stock
price gained an average of
13.5% per year.

Three-for-one stock 
price split
To encourage individual share
ownership and increase the liq-
uidity of the Klépierre share, the
Supervisory Board recommended
in April of 2003 that shareholders
move to cut par value in half and
freely allot one new share for
every two shares, resulting in a
three-for-one split of the unit
share price.

In 2003, Klépierre received its
first CSR rating from Vigeo on the
basis of social and environmental
criteria. The table on the left sum-
marizes the results.

Employees +
Environment =
Clients and Suppliers +
Shareholders =
Community and Civil society =
On a scale of  – –  to ++

VIGEO SOCIAL RATING
2003 ra

tin
g

disclosure
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responsible development

Klépierre’s human resources
policy is guided by three values:
creativity, commitment and
responsiveness.
These values guide employee
career management and indus-
trial relations within each sub-
sidiary, as well as the Group’s
policy on sustainable develop-
ment, which includes the man-
agement of human resources.

Shared management
resources
Klépierre hired 32 new employ-
ees for its French-based opera-
tions in 2003, including 13
advanced-degree holders. In

addition, 29 Ségécar employ-
ees previously based in Evry
(near Paris) joined Ségécé staff
based in the French capital.

The Group also introduced a
program intended to rapidly
harmonize the methods and
tools used to process rental and
property management transac-
tions involving both Immobilière
Carrefour and Ségécé shopping
center properties.

Klépierre published a Business
Reference Guide in 2003 at 
the request of employees and 
in response to the Group’s sig-

nificant increase in scale over
the last few years. This Intranet
resource, which is shared by
several companies, provides
descriptions of workplace pro-
cedures and best practices
applicable to each occupation
and business area. Initially
rolled out in France, it is 
gradually being introduced in
Portugal and will be extended
to Italy in 2004.

Support for mobility
The integration of the two shop-
ping center networks, combined
with the establishment of four
regional operating departments,

has led to changes in the role
and responsibilities of shopping
center managers. To meet this
challenge, Klépierre has supple-
mented its geographic mobility
support measures and policies,
which now take into account the
possible job loss for the spouse
accompanying the transferred
employee.

Training and development
In France, 224 Klépierre employ-
ees completed 3,450 hours of
training. Based on an average
workforce of 404 people, more
than 50% of employees had
access to training in 2003.

attentive management of human resources

Ségécé 199 116 315 179 117 296 177 120 297
Klégestion 34 9 43   13 4 17 11 5 16
CB Pierre 5 1 6 3 1 4 1 2 3
Klépierre Services 0 0 0 59 24 83 62 28 90
TOTAL 238 126 364 254 146 400 251 155 406

KLEPIERRE GROUP WORKFORCE FRANCE
(INCLUDING FIXED-TERM EMPLOYMENT)
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Close to its subsidiaries
On January 1, 2003, the number
of foreign employees increased
from 237 to 301, with the rise
primarily attributable to higher
staffing levels at Eurocenter and
Effe Kappa in Italy, Devimo in
Belgium and the establishment
of Sogecaec in Portugal.
Employees of foreign sub-
sidiaries received training and
support from the Paris-based
teams on the use of rental man-
agement software. In addition,
the Group head of human
resources initiated a program of
onsite visits, and managers from
the largest Group subsidiaries

took part in the annual Ségécé
seminar.

Productive labor-
management dialogue
The year 2002 was devoted to
intensive labor-management dia-
logue that resulted in the estab-
lishment of formal personnel 
representation and the negotia-
tion of agreements on employee
profit sharing and the reduced
workweek. In 2003, the focus was
on transition and consolidation:
the Group introduced guidelines
on the use of IT resources, and
also harmonized the various inter-
nal guidelines and agreements 

on the reduced workweek in
place throughout the Group.
These efforts helped to strengthen
Klépierre’s corporate identity.
Personnel representative bodies:

Ségécé: Works council, em-
ployee representatives and
occupational health and safety
committee

Klépierre Services, Klégestion
and CB Pierre: employee repre-
sentatives and occupational
health and safety committee.
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QUALITÉ SYNDIC: THE QUALITY
CERTIFICATION FOR PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT 

The French National Quality Control
Association delivers the annual
Qualité syndic certification each year
for quality building management
services. Created on the basis of
benchmarks developed by industry
professionals, the label sets high
quality standards for all property
assets under management. Ségécé
has been certified every year since
1999. In November of 2003, the
company once again received the
quality label, with special mentions for
Créteil Soleil and Nantes Beaulieu.
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Customer care
Every one of Klépierre’s office
tenants receives a visit from a
representative of the Group at
least once a year. In addition,
real-estate assets are inspect-
ed on a quarterly basis and
undergo a technical audit once 
a year.

Quality control 
and guidelines
Ségécé has established general
customer care and service
guidelines for its shopping cen-
ter clients that are applicable to
suppliers, service providers,
shopping center employees and

vendors. The guidelines are sub-
sequently adapted to meet the
needs of each shopping center.
In 2003 the Val d’Europe center
in Marne-la-Vallée (outside
Paris) was chosen as the pilot
for the development of a method
for evaluating compliance with
the guidelines.
The resulting method calls for
five unannounced customer vis-
its a year, after which the “mys-
tery shopper” submits a report
describing the perceived level of
care and service quality.
A total of 40 shopping centers
will be monitored using the
method in 2004.

Ségécé also conducts regular
reviews to assess how the vari-
ous aspects of its centers are
perceived subjectively – in
terms of history, architecture,
market positioning and retail
mix.
The findings are then used in
connection with lease renewals
and shopping center renovation
or extension planning.
Ségécé also intends to conduct
behavioral studies based on the
observation of consumer reac-
tions.
The aim of such research is to
enhance customer care in shop-
ping malls.

a responsible corporate citizen, committed to service



La Lampe Magique is a charitable association
governed by the Act of 1901 dedicated to helping

hospital ized children. It provides musical
instruments, toys and books to distract, entertain

and instruct these special patients and improve the
quality of their hospital stay.

In support of this worthy cause, Klépierre and Ségécé
offered to donate 2 euros for every greeting card sent

by its employees in 2003. La Lampe Magique used the
proceeds to purchase television sets, game consoles

and children’s comic book collections, which young
patients may use free of charge. These donations

supplement the entertainment provided by association.
www.lalampemagique.fr.st

Bringing 
joy to sick children
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40
shopping centers 
will be paid a visit 
by the “mystery shopper”
in 2004

this page). Also in 2003, a new
toy drive was held in December
at the Créteil Soleil shopping
center.
In Spain, Centros Shopping
Gestion regularly donates mall
space for events sponsored by
local charitable organizations. In
2003, a total of 31 volunteer ini-
tiatives of this type were held,
including a marathon for the
Down’s Syndrome Foundation
whose focal point was the central
square of the Augusta center in
Saragossa.

quality and local development

A veritable presence 
in community life
A shopping center owner and
manager, Klépierre is an integral
part of the local economic fabric.
Naturally, it is interested and
involved in the surrounding local
community. Leveraging this role,
Ségécé runs a number of pro-
grams aimed at raising con-
sumer awareness of the key
facets of living in the community.
In 2003, the Group focused on
local initiatives, and made its first
official foray into corporate phi-
lanthropy when Klépierre and
Ségécé teamed up with La
Lampe Magique (see inset on
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Vigilance and determination
Committed to compliance with
European environmental regula-
tions, Klépierre pursued efforts
in this area throughout 2003.

Properties with a clean 
bill of health
Each year, Klépierre updates 
the “health and safety scorecard”
of every office property under 
the direct management of
Klégestion on the basis of audits
conducted by Astrim, an inde-
pendent organization. These
scorecards provide an early
warning of possible risks and
suggest measures needed to

remedy shortcomings. The audits
and scorecards also ensure 
that Group holdings comply with
technical design recommenda-
tions and new building code 
regulations.
Two of the key assessments in
the health and safety scorecard
concern efforts to monitor
legionella and locate asbestos.
Only five of Klépierre’s proper-
ties use air conditioning systems
that expose users to the risk 
of legionella. All five were
inspected at least once in 2003.
In addition, whenever renovation
work is carried out on air 
conditioning systems, Klépierre

installs no-risk closed-circuit 
systems.
With regard to asbestos, supple-
mental testing is done when prop-
erties are sold, in compliance 
with French decree no. 2002-839
dated May 3, 2002, which requires
that comprehensive asbestos
searches be conducted.

Soil decontamination
efforts
When the Camille-Desmoulins
property in Issy-les-Moulineaux
was acquired, Klépierre arranged
for the removal of contaminat-
ed soil 12-meters deep. This
soil decontamination effort was

repeated in the first quarter of
2003, when work commenced
on the extension now under way.
These soil clean-up projects go
beyond mandatory regulations 
in force.

Reducing shopping center
and electricity consump-
tion and waste
Klépierre monitors and analyzes
water and energy consumption
and waste production in 30% of
its French shopping centers. This
initiative has led to a 42% reduc-
tion in water consumption at the
Melun-Boissénart and Marché
Saint-Germain malls in Paris, as

initiatives aimed at reducing environmental risks and

30%
of Klépierre’s 
shopping centers 
in France are 
monitored for 
consumption patterns

responsible development



well as to the identification of
leaks and other anomalies,
which often cause waste.
Corrective measures have also
been taken to reduce the use of
electricity, including timely equip-
ment replacement and adjust-
ments to automatic switches and
programming. In 2004, more
than half of the shopping centers
in France will be audited for con-
sumption levels.
In addition, improved methods
for selective waste sorting led to
a 17% reduction in waste pro-
duction and to a 15% increase in
the recycling of used packaging.

Scorecards for fixtures
The use of regularly updated
scorecards for shopping center
fixtures to ensure traceability is
ongoing. For five years now,
Klépierre has conducted a pro-
gram to identify and monitor cir-
cuits that present the risk of
legionella.

The Bègles Rives d’Arcins shopping
center, renowned as the pilot site for the

creation of Aquaforum and committed to
continuous improvement in environmental

performance, continues to play a leading
role in the area of environmental protection.

Recently, the decision was made to roll out
an environmental management system

based on the ISO 14001 standard widely
used in industry. The program covers five

central aspects of responsible environmental
impact management: selective waste sorting;

runoff and rain water management (including
airborne emissions); energy conservation; efforts

to reduce noise pollution; and the fight against
urban blight.

This year, the site’s full-time environmental officer
is working with a committee comprised of retailers,

technicians and the shopping center’s executive
director (representing the owner and its mandated

manager) to establish an environmental scorecard
for 2004 and a targeted action plan for 2005. For a

copy of the environmental guidelines adopted by the
pilot site and a description of the commitments made

by Bègles Rives d’Arcins, visit the shopping center’s
website at www.rivesdarcins.com.

The Rives d’Arcins pilot will subsequently be tested at
other shopping centers.

An ISO 14 001 
environmental 
management system

ensuring compliance with standards

-17%
of waste generated 
by shopping centers 
in 2003
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and expertise



Klépierre has faithfully executed its strategy of investing in shopping centers – assets
that are sheltered from the peaks and troughs of the real-estate cycle – for the last
seven years, becoming Europe’s leader in shopping center development and 
management in the process. Today, Klépierre’s value-building strategy entails pursuing 
growth opportunities and leveraging the real-estate portfolio.

A very active business development strategy
Demand for shopping center properties far exceeds available supply. Consequently,
the challenge lies in finding high potential assets in which to invest.

Partnerships are one of Klépierre’s key strengths, both in France and abroad.
Agreements forged with major retailers such as Carrefour and Finiper, and with
real-estate developers including Finim, Eiffage and Nexity, provide new projects
that enhance portfolio growth. Abroad, Klépierre avoids exposure to the risks
related to real-estate development. However, Klépierre and its subsidiary
Ségécé seek to play an upstream role in project development, actively 
participating in the planning, lease-up and other phases.

Klépierre’s policy is to diversify the types of centers it acquires as well as
their geographic location. International holdings have become the principal
force driving growth. Today, more than half of the shopping centers 
in Klépierre’s portfolio are located outside of France. Investments are 
concentrated in countries where household spending is high and the
shopping center/per capita ratio shows strong potential for growth.
This is the case in Southern Europe – not only in Italy and Spain, 
but also and to a lesser extent in Portugal and Greece.

At the same time, Klépierre and Ségécé remain the leading developers
of shopping centers in France. In contrast to the strategy it has
adopted abroad, Klépierre continues to act as developer on new 

shopping centers,
Klépierre’s major avenue for growth
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projects in France. In addition to city center operations, which 
have been Ségécé’s specialty for 30 years, Klépierre operates a
major program involving extensions of existing centers and 
assembly projects within larger real-estate operations, such as 
the Porte d’Aubervilliers or the city of Nancy projects. In order to
better control the environment of existing centers it owns, Klépierre
acquires or builds mid-size units in the immediate vicinity. In 2003,
Klépierre bid on and won three new projects.

Constant enhancement of asset value 
through dynamic management 
Thanks to the vast management network it has created – the
Ségécé subsidiaries – Klépierre is able to control the management
of assets acquired, and ensure that Group methods are applied in
every country in which it invests, while tapping into the experience
and skills of local management specialists. Ségécé’s Portuguese
subsidiary was established on this basis in 2003.

Ségécé and its subsidiaries strive to constantly enhance asset 
values using a variety of rental and property management tech-
niques that encompass marketing, leasing, renovations and 
extensions of existing centers. Ongoing research is conducted 
with the aim of integrating new merchandising concepts into an 
effective retail mix that constantly enhances rental income.
In 2003, more than 10% of the leases in the portfolio were
renewed.

In 2004, Klépierre intends to continue in this direction by drawing
on the strengths of its partnerships and the management expertise
provided by Ségécé.

Éric Ranjard
Vice-Chairman

Pursuing growth opportunities
and leveraging the real-
estate portfolio.
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key figures

revalued net assets 
excluding transfer duties and after
taxation of unrealized capital gains 
in €/share1

1. Data adjusted to reflect the tripling of stock float
in April 2003.

lease income
in € millions, total share

Shopping centers
Office properties

Appraised value incl. transfer duties at 12/31 (total share) 1967.8 2645.4 4123.3 4708.7 5225.2
Lease income (group share) 124.4 133.9 233.7 267.8 309.4
Revenues (total share) of which: 157.5 248.3 326.0 345.0 386.2
- Shopping centers 76 163.5 236.9 262.7 311.9
- Office properties 81.5 84.8 89.1 82.3 74.3

in € millions

Real-estate holdings and business
1999

2000
2001

2002
2003

32%
87.1

26%
81.2

21%
74.2

41.9 46.9

68%
184.3

74%
230.7

79%
279.0

2001 01.01.2003 12.31.20032002 2003
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appraised value
total share including transfer duties

change in cash flow 
net current cash flow excl. development  
in €/share1

2. Assuming a 50% “avoir fiscal” tax credit.1. Data adjusted to reflect the tripling of stock float
in April 2003.

change in dividend 
in €/share1

Gross dividend2

Net dividend

workforce

2.3 2.7 3.4 1.55
1.75

2.70

1.03 1.17 2.00

530 637 707

32%
1340.3 M€

25%
1174.3 M€

19%
1009.2 M€

68%
2783.0 M€

75%
3534.4 M€

81%
4216.0 M€

2001 2002 2003 2001 2002 2003 2001 2002 2003

TOTAL 2001:

4123.3 M€

TOTAL 2002:

4708.7 M€

TOTAL 2003:

5225.2 M€
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january
Acquisition of 3 French

shopping centers from
Carrefour, in Beaune,
Bourg-en-Bresse and 
Le Mans.

march
Disposal of the office

building located at 
127 rue d’Aguesseau,
Boulogne-Billancourt, 
and a warehouse in
Saint-Denis.

april
Establishment of

Sogecaec, a Portuguese
company and the fifth
Ségécé management
subsidiary located outside 
of France.

june
Acquisition of the Novy

Smichov mall in Prague
and the Meridiano and
Lucena malls in Spain.

Sale of the office
building located at
100/102 Avenue de
Suffren, Paris, bringing
first half disposals 
to €98 million.

july
Acquisition of 

the Acquario shopping
center, in Vignate, 
near Milan, from Finim.

Disposal of the office
property at 20 rue
Jacques-Daguerre, 
in Rueil-Malmaison.

september
Disposal of the 

Le Sémaphone office
property in Levallois-
Perret (more than 
11,400 sq.m of floor area).

Agreement to purchase
the Quétigny shopping
center extension under
construction by Carrefour,
scheduled to open 
in 2005.

october
First stones laid of 

the Esplanade shopping
malls in Louvain-la-
Neuve, Belgium, and
downtown Valenciennes.

Ségécé is selected with
Immochan to develop the
“Cité du Meuble et de la
Maison” home furnishings
center in Cesson.

november
Ségécé wins the

downtown development
project from the city of
Angoulême, involving the
creation of a shopping
mall measuring more
than 12,000 sq.m of GLA.

In partnership with
Eiffage, Ségécé is
selected by the city 
of Vannes to build a
downtown shopping mall
with a GLA of 14,000 sq.m.

december
Acquisition of 

3 Carrefour shopping
malls in France, 
8 in Spain, 3 in Italy, 
3 in Greece and 
2 in Portugal.

50/50 joint acquisition
with Prédica of the
Parque Nascente
shopping center located
in Gondomar, near Porto.

Sale of the Le
Brochant building located
at 141 avenue de Clichy,
Paris, bringing the total
amount of office property
divestiture in 2003 
to €176 million.
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A major source of growth for Klépierre, the shopping center
business has been expanding rapidly for more than three

years. The July 2000 agreement with Carrefour to
acquire over 160 shopping malls, for the most

part located in France and Spain, has been
a key driver of Klépierre’s performance.

Leveraging Ségécé’s peerless
real-estate development and

management skills, Klépierre has
focused its investments on shopping

center properties, which combine recur-
ring revenue and strong pan-European 

visibility in a limited-supply market that
places a high premium on expertise.

shopping centers
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shopping centers

Slowdown in France and
uneven growth in Europe
The economic environment was
par ticularly gloomy in 2003
throughout Europe, especially 
in France. French GDP growth 
fell short of forecasts, increasing
by a mere 0.1% last year, making
2003 one of the worst years of the
last half century. The Banque de
France retail activity index showed
global retail growth of just 0.4%, a
counter-performance that is main-
ly attributable to weakness in the
textile/apparel sector (-2.3%).
In the rest of Europe, economic
performance was mixed: solid 
in Greece (+4%), Spain (+2.3%),

Slovakia and the Czech Republic;
less impressive in Belgium (+ 0.7%)
and Italy (+0.5%). Portugal, which
took steps to reduce its budget
deficit, saw GDP decline by 0.8%
in 2003.

Recovery expected in 2004
In 2004, the economies of Europe
should at last get a boost from 
the economic recovery, which has
been particularly notable in United
States. Current estimates put
GDP growth for 2004 at 2% in
France, 2.9% in Spain, 4.1% in
Greece, 1.6% in Italy, 1.9% in
Belgium and 1.5% in Portugal.
The Czech and Slovakian eco-

nomies are expected to expand 
by 2.9% and 4.2%, respectively.

Few transactions in France,
but many deals in Southern
Europe
In 2003 as in the previous year,
shopping center transactions 
in France were limited by lack of
supply. The largest transactions
were comp le ted by AXA,
Rodamco, Klépierre, AIG Global
Fund and CDC Ixis, involving a
total investment of nearly €500
million. The Spanish, Italian and
Portuguese markets, where new
projects outnumbered those in
France, reported higher transac-

tion volumes. Moreover, capitaliza-
tion rates of the best performing
centers in these markets range
from 6 to 6.50%.
In Spain, around 15 deals 
were concluded for close to
€800 million (compared with 
€1 billion in 2002). Sonae, CGI,
Metrovacesa, Klépierre, ING and
Foram were the most active
investors.
With its high consumer spending
level and low centers per capita
density, Italy attracts investors
from around the globe (Nether-
lands, Germany, US, France, UK,
and Italy). Now a favorite target
of investors, Italy reported trans-

a mixed economic environment 

500
million euros invested 
in shopping centers 
in France in 2003, 
800 million euros 
in Spain, 1 billion euros 
in Italy



actions totaling over 1 billion
euros in 2003. The most note-
worthy of the approximately ten
deals closed is the joint venture
between the Auchan-Rinascente
Group and the Simon Property
Group involving 51 centers, of
which 13 are new projects (€860
million).

French revenues 
remain stable
In spite of the generally sluggish
economic backdrop, revenues
generated by Klépierre’s shop-
ping centers in France rose by
0.6% in 2003. If the impact of the 
major restructuring undertaken 

on Bordeaux Saint-Christoly 
is neutralized, the increase is
1.5%. Retailers in the Health/
Beauty and Entertainment seg-
ments reported satisfactory sales
growth (+5.6% and 3.5%, respec-
tively), offset by the counter-per-
formance in Personal product
sales, where retail revenues fell
by 0.4%.
Downtown shopping center 
business was strong in 2003
(+5.8%), reflecting solid perform-
ances by Passages in Boulogne-
Billancourt, Courier in Annecy,
and Cordeliers in Poitiers, as well
as the vitality of their retail
anchors (Fnac, H & M, Zara and

+1.5%
increase in shopping 
center revenues 
in France

Change in revenues of Klépierre 
shopping malls in France in 2003 by sector 

+5.6%

+3.5%

+0.3%

-0.4%

+1.1%

Health/
Beauty

Entertainment
(Books/Music/

Video/
Recreation)

Home 
furnishings

Personal
products

Restaurants/
Food
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Source:
Retail

Consulting
Group.



reporting revenue growth of 6.4%.
In Italy, revenue growth was less
robust (+0.6% over 10 months).
Personal product retail sales were
down by 2.5%, while Entertain-
ment and Health/Beauty retailers
reported increases of 1.2% and
1.3%, respectively.
Klépierre’s presence in other
countries is too limited to draw
significant conclusions. However,
certain trends can be observed.
Revenue growth reported by
Central European holdings was
mixed in 2003: +7.2% for Novy
Smichov in the Czech Republic;
down sharply for Danubia 
(-12.9%) in Slovakia. The recently

launched Loures and Porto
Gondomar centers reported satis-
factory performance. The growing
popularity of the Makédonia cen-
ter pushed revenues up by more
than 20% in 2003.

Gap, among others). Regional
shopping centers (+0.7%) and
inter-municipal centers (+0.6%)
showed resilience in the face 
of flat sales growth for hyper-
markets.

Satisfactory results 
in Europe
Revenues increased by 5.9% 
for holdings in Spain over the first
11 months of the year, attributable
to particularly sustained growth
in the Entertainment and Personal
product retail segments (+4.8%
and +3.2%, respectively). Mid-
sized malls turned in an even
more impressive performance,

44

+5.9%
increase 
in shopping 
center revenues 
in Spain, 
+0.6% in Italy

shopping centers
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584 million euros 
invested in 2003
In 2003, Klépierre acquired 
28 shopping centers. All meet the
same criteria: they are located 
in countries where household
spending is high, but the shop-
ping center/per capita ratio offers
strong growth potential. This
potential can be exploited by local
partners, mostly subsidiaries of
Ségécé, who apply the Group’s
own management methods.
Seven of the 28 malls acquired,
which represent 70% of the total
amount invested, offer more than
10,000 square meters of gross
leasable area (GLA1).

Geographic diversification
focused on Southern
Europe
The most recent acquisitions
have increased the geographic
diversity of Klépierre’s holdings,
since 22 of the 28 shopping cen-
ters acquired in 2003 are located
outside France. Holdings situated
abroad now account for more
than 50% of the portfolio in terms
of the number of malls, and 44%
in terms of GLA.
In line with Klépierre’s business
strategy, the primary focus of
these investments was Southern
Europe. Klépierre strengthened
its leading position in Italy last

year, attesting to that country’s
potential as a major growth mar-
ket. In Spain, the partnership with
Carrefour continues to bear fruit.
The Group also acquired 3 new
properties in Portugal, strength-
ening the foothold gained through
the acquisition of the Loures 
center in late 2002.
Ségéce also set up a local man-
agement subsidiary in Portugal.
Klépierre completed the acquisi-
tion in France of shopping malls
provided for under the 2000
agreement entered into with
Carrefour, and took advantage of
opportunities to extend its hold-
ings in Greece.

Rewarding 
partnerships in Europe
Klépierre ’s par tnership with
Carrefour continued in 2003. In
addition to the Carrefour agree-
ment, which primarily pertains to
properties in France and Spain,
Klépierre took advantage of
agreements negotiated in Italy 
to acquire 3 new malls. The
Group also concluded agree-
ments to acquire projects under
development, and new shopping
centers or extensions in France,
Spain and Greece.
The Finim and Finiper groups,
both of which figure among
Klépierre’s partners in Italy, each

sourced one acquisition in 2003.
In Portugal, Klépierre and Prédica
jointly purchased the Gondomar
(Porto) center from Eiffage.
In the center of Prague, Klépierre
now owns the Novy Smichov mall
developed by Nexity. Last but 
not least, a 2001 agreement with
the Belgian real-estate developer
Wilhelm & Co enabled Klépierre
to land Belgium’s biggest shop-
ping center project. The Louvain-
la-Neuve center will open its
doors at the end of 2005.

(1) GLA: gross leasable area, i.e. the sum
total of retail sales and storage footage,
excluding traffic/circulation footage and
other common areas.

an active investment policy
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mine of potential growth repre-
senting over 1 million square
meters. This source of growth 
is fueled by partnerships with
retailers and developers and 
the leadership position that
Klépierre has acquired in the
Continental European shopping
center market.
Operations identified to date call
for a total investment of €2.3 bil-
lion for Klépierre by the end of
2009. An estimated €180 million
of additional lease income will be
generated by this input.
As the period of acquiring existing
centers in France and, to a lesser
extent, in Spain comes to a close,

Based on the number of pro-
jects currently under construction
abroad, in addition to planned
extensions for centers in opera-
tion and development projects in
France initiated by Ségécé, the
outlook for 2004 can be described
as positive.

Significant sources of
growth identified and, for
the most part, programmed

One million square meters
of potential growth
After an intensive investment
phase lasting two years, Klépierre
and Ségécé are now sitting on a

the first phase of the agreement
with Carrefour will account for a
much smaller percentage of 
future investments. As a result,
Klépierre’s core business holdings
will be primarily enhanced through
new projects going forward.

Investing in new and
diverse projects
Further growth in France will be

primarily fueled by new projects
(Aubervilliers, Besançon, Nancy,
Saint-Lazare train stat ion,
Valenciennes) and extensions
developed by Ségécé (Caen
Paul-Doumer, Clermont-Jaude,
Marseille Bourse, Melun-Bois-
sénart, Pontault-Combault, Val
d’Europe).
In fact, the year 2003 was partic-
ularly fruitful in terms of new 

2.3
billion euros 
of identified 
investments

Developed by Ségécé (France)
New shopping centers  211500 600
Extensions 65580 150

TOTAL 277080 750

Developed in partnership with an outside developer
Existing centers (Carrefour agreement)
France 22040 50
Spain 10020 20
TOTAL 32060 70

Projects
Spain 88740 300
Italy 180460 600
Belgium 37350 110
Portugal 5100 10
Greece 21000 70
Czech Republic 16800 30
Slovakia 10410 10
TOTAL 359860 1130

Extensions
France 19500 50
Spain 148840 270
Italy 18540 30
TOTAL 186880 350

TOTAL 578 800 1 550

GRAND TOTAL 855 880 2 300

ESTIMATED INVESTMENT BUDGET
FROM 2004 TO 2009



projects: the municipalities of
Valenciennes, Angoulême and
Vannes selected Ségécé to con-
duct city center projects that will
generate approximately 45,000
square meters of gross leasable
area (GLA) by 2006-2007. The
“Cité du Meuble” project in
Cesson, which measures 35,000
square meters (GLA), is sched-
uled to open in 2007.

Extensions on the agenda in
France and Spain
The Group is already working
with Carrefour to capitalize on the
potential for extension to malls
acquired from the retail distribu-

tor. The first project, to be under-
taken by Carrefour, will add 
8,500 square meters in GLA to
the Quétigny mall near Dijon,
France. It is scheduled to open for
business in 2005. Six additional
extension projects have already
received the required zoning and
administrative approvals.
In Spain, a total 150,000 square
meters in GLA will be added to
malls over the next three years.
Extension projects undertaken by
the Group’s 3 partners in Italy
involve less leasable area, as the
Italian portfolio is smaller and
comprised of more recently built
properties.

Growth opportunities across
Europe
Nearly half of Klépierre’s invest-
ment budget is devoted to new
shopping center projects.
Klépierre will primarily work
through its partnership with
Carrefour on the development of
these centers.
The portion of investments made
in Spain is an estimated €320
million for 2004. In Italy, invest-
ments will total nearly €600 mil-
lion for about ten projects, most
of which are scheduled for com-
pletion in 2005-2006. Carrefour
and Finiper will be the main
developers on these projects.

Finally, Klépierre will continue
development in Belgium, where
the Louvain-la-Neuve shopping
center is expected to open in late
2005, and to a lesser extent in
Greece, where the City Gate
development project committed
in 2003 is scheduled to open for
business in late 2004. New prop-
erties will also be acquired in
Central Europe and Portugal.

180
million euros 
of estimated lease
income generated 
from the investment 
program
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168 changes in tenant mix,
205 lease renewals (+30% and
+19% respectively, compared
with prior lease terms) and 9
lease-ups of vacant premises;

the 2.1% rise in the Insee cost
of construction index (ICC) for
the first two quarters, impacting
72% and 25% of guaranteed
rents, respectively.

The gap between lease income
growth for all properties com-
bined and that for a comparable
portfolio only primarily reflects
the 2003 divestiture of the Usine
Center mall in Gonesse and 50%
of the Rives d’Arcins shopping

center in Bègles. Unpaid rent
accounted for only 1.1% of total
rents invoiced. The financial
occupancy rate was 98.2%, ver-
sus 99.3% in 2002. The slight
decrease in financial occupancy
was attributable to reconstruc-
tion projects under way on the
Bordeaux Saint-Christoly and
Noisy-le-Grand centers.
Adjusted for the impact of this
work, the occupancy rate was
98.9%.
Sources of rent remain diversi-
fied, helping to minimize the
rental portfolio’s exposure. The
retail anchor Fnac accounts for
3.0%, followed by the Auchan
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Solid lease income growth
The rental management business
in Europe is on the growth track:
lease income totaled €279 mil-
lion, up 21% (from €230.7 million
in 2002). Variable rents account
for €12.3 million (+12%) of total
lease income. On a constant
structural basis, lease income
jumped 4.8%.

Steady uptick in France
Lease income totaled €179.2 mil-
lion (of which €9.5 million from
variable rents), up 3.7% compared
with 2002 (4.8% on a compara-
ble basis). This increase primarily
reflects:

steady rent progression 

shopping centers



group excluding hypermarkets
(3%), Etam (2.7%), Go Sport
(2.4%), Camaieu (1.8%) and
Vivarte (1.8%). Figures for Eram,
Afflelou, Celio and Carrefour
range from 1.3% to 1.6%.

New surge in lease income
from Italy
In Italy, lease income totaled
€41.1 million (+79.3% compared
with 2002). Two factors have
been identified: the 2003 contri-
bution of a full year of rents for
the malls acquired in July 2002,
and the acquisition of the Milan-
Vignate center during the year.
115 lease modifications were

recorded, including 11 lease-ups
of vacant premises (+€0.6 mil-
lion in rents). Overall, changes 
in tenant mix and lease renewals
generated a rental gain of 
€1 mil l ion, an increase of 
25.3% compared with prior lease
terms. For all Italian holdings
overall, the financial occupancy
rate was 97.8%, unpaid rents
represented 4.2% of total rents
invoiced (down from 2002), and
price index hikes raised rents 
by an average of +2.9%.

Continued growth in Spain
Lease income from Spanish
holdings totaled €39.9 million,

up 32.5%. On a comparable
basis, rents grew 5% from 2002.
Overall, shopping centers gener-
ated 152 lease renewals (+8% of
rents), 101 changes in tenant
mix (+4.5% compared with prior
lease terms) and 39 lease-ups of
vacant premises (+€0.7 million
in rents).
The rise of the consumer price
index triggered a 4% uptick in
guaranteed rents, which are
pegged to the index. Unpaid
rents accounted for 1.3% of total
rents invoiced. The financial
occupancy rate for all holdings
was 96.8%.
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279
million euros 
of lease income 
from shopping 
centers, up 21%
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New contributions 
from Portugal and Belgium
In Portugal, lease income 
from the Loures and Gondomar
shopping malls (as of Septem-
ber 16, 2003) totaled €4.6 mil-
lion. The Loures mall experi-
enced lease-ups and changes
in tenant mix (+4.1% compared
with prior lease terms). The
financial occupancy rate for
both malls is 99.5%.
Invoiced since July of 2003,
rents from the cinema-restau-
rant complex of the future
“L’Esplanade” center in Louvain-
la-Neuve totaled €0.6 million.
In Greece, rental income from

the Makédonia center rose 
6%, due to index-linked adjust-
ments (+3.9%) and lease 
modifications.

Market breakthrough 
in Central Europe
The acquisition of Novy Smichov
(Prague) in June, with full-year
impact for 2003, contributed an
additional €8.4 million in rents.
The index-linked rent adjust-
ment was 1.3%. Including 
the Danubia center in Bratis-
lava, 2003 rents amounted to
€9.8 million.
Lease-ups generated a full-year
rental gain of €0.3 million. The

financial occupancy rates for
Novy Smichov and Danubia were
97.8% and 96.8%, respectively. 98.3%

overall financial 
occupancy rate 
for Europe

750
leases renewed 
in 2003, 
up almost 20%

A complete schedule of lease
renewals is available on the Klépierre
website (Shopping centers>Activity).
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sidiaries now employ a work-
force of 592 people in 8 coun-
tries of Continental Europe.

Position reinforced 
in France
The property management busi-
ness was stable between 2002
and 2003, generating more 
than €32 million in fee income.
The development business also
had an excellent year, billing
€8.2 million in fees. The improve-
ment over the prior year was 
primarily attributable to advan-
ces made on projects initiated 
in earlier years, which include
both construction (Valenciennes,

A network with 
solid roots in Europe
Since the buyout of minority
interests in Klécentres in Sep-
tember 2003, Klépierre owns
75% of Ségécé, versus 70.6%
previously.
In 2003, Ségécé continued to
strengthen its presence in Europe
through its subsidiaries. At the
end of 2003, the Ségécé network
managed 317 shopping centers,
200 of which are owned by
Klépierre.
Ségécé also extended the scope
of its operations by creating a
new subsidiary in Portugal,
Sogecaec. Ségécé and its sub-

Louvain-la-Neuve) and operation
(Novy Smichov).

Two French subsidiaries
with strong identities
Previously a 50/50 joint venture
between by Ségécé and Carrefour,
Ségécar became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Ségécé at the end
of 2003. As a result of this
change in ownership, Ségécé
has established its position as a
major player in the French prop-
erty management market.
Galaé was established in January
of 2001 to provide multimedia
and information technologies to
the Group’s shopping centers.

By year-end 2003, Galaé had
installed more than 1,000 plas-
ma screens in 65 French shop-
ping centers. Galaé extended its
activities beyond France last
year with the rollout of the web-
site for the Gondomar shopping
center.

PSG develops in Croatia
Under 50/50 joint ownership by
Ségécé and Finim, PSG provides
rental and property management
services for 58 shopping centers,
including 3 located in Croatia.
For the latter, a lean organization
– SCM (Shopping Center Manage-
ment) – was set up locally.

quality management guaranteed by Ségécé
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PSG uses a management system
that is identical to that employed
by Ségécé in France.

Centros Shopping Gestion, 
a Spanish subsidiary
Founded in July of 2001, Centros
Shopping Gestion is 50/50 jointly
owned by Ségécé and Carrefour.
It provides rental and prop-
erty management services for 
87 shopping centers (67 for
Klépierre).
The Company manages a total
GLA of 1.8 million square
meters. At December 31, 2003,
Centros Shopping Gest ion
employed a staff of 109.

Devimo, leader in Belgium
The market leader in shopping
center management in Belgium,
Devimo is 35% owned by Ségécé.
In 2003, Devimo obtained two
new management mandates, for
the City 2 (second largest in
Belgium) and Waasland shopping
centers. In addition, Devimo is
leasing up the Louvain-la-Neuve
center (inauguration in 2005),
whose movie theater complex is
already owned by Klépierre.

Establishment of Sogecaec
in Portugal
Building on its expanding Euro-
pean management network,

317
centers under 
management 
in Continental 
Europe

France Ségécé 197 40.7 9.2 151 5 160 75%
Ségécar 87 8.9 0.3 - - 100%

Galaé 12 -* -1.2 - - 100%
Ségécé LT 1 0.5 0.1 - - 100%

Portugal Sogecaec 9 0.5 0.1 3 230 100%
Spain Centros Shopping Gestion 109 10.2 2.6 87 3 024 50%
Italy PSG 80 8.5 1.0 58 1 400 50%
Czech Republic and Slovakia FMC 21 1.1 -0.3 2 193 75%
Belgium Devimo 76 6.6 1.1 16 960 35%
TOTAL 592 77.0 12.9 317 10 967
(*) revenues excluding management fees = €0.3 million. (**) including 3 centers in Croatia. (***) excluding Louvain-La-Neuve.
Note: number of centers under management at 12/31/03. Centers acquired on 12/31/03 for which management commenced
on 01/01/04 are not included (concerns 5 centers).
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Ségécé established Sogecaec in
Portugal in April 2003.
This wholly-owned subsidiary
staffed by 9 employees had three
shopping centers under man-
agement by year-end 2003,
including one owned by an out-
side party. The 2 centers recent-
ly acquired by Klépierre in
Portugal will join this portfolio of
business in 2004.

FMC for Central European
shopping centers
Based in Prague, First Mana-
gement Company (FMC) man-
ages the Novy Smichov (Prague)
and Danubia (Bratislava) shop-

ping centers. It is jointly owned
by Ségécé (75%) and Finim
(25%).

A European 
management network

Slovakia

Czech
Republic

Italy

Belgium

Spain

21*� 16

76*
� 1

� 1

France
� 151

297

� 87

109

Portugal
� 3

9

� 58

80

53

Workforce at 12/31/03 

* Including technical and 
reception staff in shopping 
centers.

� Number of centers 
under management
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shopping center locations

77
91

93

95

78
92

94

Haute-
Normandie

Basse-
Normandie

Nord-Pas-de-Calais

Alsace

Franche- 
Comté

Rhône-Alpes
Auvergne

Lorraine
Champagne-

Ardenne

Bourgogne

Centre

Picardie

Bretagne
Pays-

de-la-Loire

Poitou-
Charentes

Limousin

Aquitaine

Midi-Pyrénées

Languedoc-
Roussillon
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Castille-La Manche

Estrémadure
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La Rioja
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Iles Baléares

Iles Canaries

Tenerife
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Asturies

Klépierre holdings end 2002
holdings acquired in 2003



Properties of varying 
characteristics and types, 
located in 8 Continental
European countries
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France

Paris and 
greater Paris Area
PARIS [6e]
Marché Saint-Germain - 1995
GAP, 23 retail units, 
430 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 3,164 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,164 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

CHAMPS-SUR-MARNE [77]
Champs-sur-Marne - 1981
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 16 units, 
765 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:14,748 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,753 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CLAYE-SOUILLY [77]
Claye-Souilly - 1992 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 84 units, 
4,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:48,152 sq.m
GLA acquired: 17,078 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MARNE-LA-VALLÉE [77]
Val d’Europe - 2000
Regional shopping center
inaugurated in October 2000,
Jardinerie Delbard, 
130 units, 5,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:64,046 sq.m
GLA acquired: 54,418 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 40%

MELUN [77]
Boissénart - 1977 
renovated in 1996
Auchan, 36 units, 
2,450 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:22,331 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,391 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

PONTAULT-COMBAULT [77]
Pontault-Combault - 1978
Extension-renovation in 1993.
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 75 units, 
3,250 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:38,774 sq.m
GLA acquired: 14,836 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VILLIERS-EN-BIÈRE [77]
Villiers-en-Bière - 1990
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 84 units, 
765 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:65,849 sq.m
GLA acquired: 24,951 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

FLINS [78]
Flins - 1973
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 80 units, 
2,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:41,200 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,646 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MONTESSON [78]
Montesson - 1973 
Extension and rénovation in 1985
and 1999. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 55 units, 
3,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:40,276 sq.m
GLA acquired: 8,468 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

RAMBOUILLET [78]
Rambouillet - 1976 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 26 units, 
1,527 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,431 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,566 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SARTROUVILLE [78]
Sartrouville - 1976. Extension
in 1999. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 38 units, 
1,660 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
25,300 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,671 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ATHIS-MONS [91]
Athis-Mons - 1971. Renovation
in 1999. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 24 units, 
2,258 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:26,500 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,628 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

BOULOGNE-BILLANCOURT
[92]
Les Passages de l’Hôtel de Ville
City center, Inno, Fnac, Zara
and Go Sport, 38 stores, 
7 ground-floor storefront shops,
4 restaurants, 
600 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:22,996 sq.m
GLA acquired: 22,996 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 50%

AULNAY-SOUS-BOIS [93]
Parinor - 1974. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 133 units, 
4,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:67,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,984 sqm
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

NOISY-LE-GRAND [93]
Arcades - 1978. Renovated in
1992, acquired in Centrally
located regional shopping center,
Carrefour, 138 units, 
5,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:53,346 sq.m
GLA acquired: 38,710 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 55,7%

SEVRAN [93]
Beau Sevran - 1973 
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 80 units, 
2,700 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:30,800 sq.m
GLA acquired: 17,606 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

STAINS [93]
Carrefour - 1972
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 22 units, 
1200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 20,120 sqm
GLA acquired: 1,897 sqm
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CRÉTEIL [94]
Créteil Soleil - 1974
Renovated-extended, opened
in October 2000
Centrally located regional shopping
center, Carrefour, BHV, 
FNAC Junior, 209 units 
and 3 levels of parking
Total usable floor area:
121,563 sq.m
GLA acquired: 64,246 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 87,9%

VILLEJUIF [94]
Villejuif - 1988. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 21 units, 
700 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:12,862 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,534 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Alsace
ILLZACH (MULHOUSE) [68]
Ile Napoléon - 1973
Extended-renoved in 1999.
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 58 units, 
661 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:31,852 sq.m
GLA acquired: 10,192 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

STRASBOURG [67]
La Vigie - 1989 
Restructured in 1996
5 units, including Conforama,
Décathlon, Maxitoys, 
1,100 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:16,205 sq.m
GLA acquired: 16,205 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 37.5%

Aquitaine
BÈGLES [33]
Rives d’Arcins - 1995
Regional shopping center,
Carrefour, 82 units, 
3,800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:64,786 sq.m
GLA acquired: 40,748 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 50%

BORDEAUX [33]
Saint-Christoly - 1985 
renovated in 1989
City center, 37 units, 
600 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 9,068 sq.m
GLA acquired: 9,068 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

LIBOURNE [33]
Libourne - 1974.Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 34 units, 
1,138 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,200 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,648 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LORMONT [33]
Lormont - 1974. Renovated in
1997, acquired in 2002
Carrefour, Crescendo, Intersport,
76 unités, 2,320 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
29,851 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,835 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Auvergne
CLERMONT-FERRAND [63]
Jaude - 1980. Renoved in 1990
City center, C&A, Habitat, Fnac,
75 units, 780 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:23,860 sq.m
GLA acquired: 19,223 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

MOULINS [03]
Moulins - 1978
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 19 units, 
849 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:14,515 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,340 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

shopping center holdings



Lower Normandy
CAEN [14]
Paul Doumer - 1988
City center, Fnac, 18 units,
212 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 4,666 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,666 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

CONDÉ-SUR-SARTHE 
(ALENÇON) [61]
Condé-sur-Sarthe - 1972 
Renovated in 1999, acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 25 units, 
1,284 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:15,300 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,917 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

HÉROUVILLE [14]
Saint-Clair - 1976 
Renovation-extension in 1995.
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 74 units, 
1,513 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:40,500 sq.m
GLA acquired: 10,182 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Bourgogne
BEAUNE [21]
Saint-Jacques - 1975
Renovation-extension in 2000.
Acquired in 2003
Champion, 22 units, 
342 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 9,872 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,762 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MARZY (NEVERS) [58]
Marzy - 1969.
Renovated in 1999.
Acquis en 2001
Carrefour, 38 units, 
942 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:24,200 sq.m
GLA acquired: 7,231 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

QUÉTIGNY [21]
Grand marché - 1968 
Extension in 1992.
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 22 units 
and 2,585 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:28,700 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,627 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Brittany
BREST [29]
Iroise - 1978. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 19 units, 
849 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:33,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 7,957 sq.m
Participation Klépierre: 83%

GUINGAMP [22]
Guingamp - 1974
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 11 units, 
960 parking spaces
Usable retail floor area:11,836 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1.532 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LANGUEUX 
(SAINT-BRIEUC) [22]
Langueux - 1973 
Renovation-extension in 1998.
Acquired en 2001
Carrefour, 34 units, 
1,443 parking spaces
Usable retail floor area:24,128 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,116 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LORIENT [56]
K2 - 1981. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 26 units, 
1,042 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:17,007 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,338 sq.m
Participation Klépierre: 83%

PAIMPOL [22]
Paimpol - 1964. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 6 units, 
670 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 8,500 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,166 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

QUIMPER [29]
Quimper - 1978 
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 34 units, 
1,160 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:21,026 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,085 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VANNES [56]
La Fourchêne - 1978 
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 34 unités, 
1,160 places de parking
Total usable floor area:21,834 sq.m
GLA acquired: 11,309 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Centre
BOURGES [18]
Bourges - 1969
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 20 units, 
1,598 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:21,834 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,672 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CHARTRES [28]
Chartres - 1967
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 12 units, 
2,166 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:22,170 sq.m
GLA acquired: 6,207 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CHÂTEAUROUX [36]
Châteauroux - 1969 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 17 units, 
920 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:8,900 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,470 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SARAN (ORLÉANS) [45]
Saran - 1968
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 15 units, 
2,300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:26,600 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,315 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

TOURS [37]
Galerie Nationale - 1990
City center, Fnac, 38 units, 
300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 8,273 sq.m
GLA acquired: 8,273 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 75%

Champagne-
Ardenne
CERNAY (REIMS) [51]
Cernay - 1981
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 26 units, 
1,300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:18,100 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,400 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CHARLEVILLE-MÉZIÈRES
[08]
La Croisette - 1985 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 20 units, 
1,383 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:18,700 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,599 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SAINT-ANDRÉ-
LES-VERGERS (TROYES) [10]
Saint-André-les-Vergers - 1975
Acquired in 2001,
Carrefour, 25 units, 
1,383 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:13,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 890 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Upper Normandy
ÉVREUX [27]
Évreux - 1970
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 18 units, 
1,603 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:20,853 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,956 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LE HAVRE [76]
René Coty - 1999
City center, Monoprix, Fnac,
Go sport, C&A and 76 units
Total usable floor area:
27,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 18,081 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 50%

ROUEN [76]
Rue de la Champsmeslé - 1999
City center, Eurodif and 
7 ground-floor storefront shops
Total usable floor area: 2,848 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,848 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

Languedoc-
Roussillon
CLAIRA [66]
Claira - 1983. Renovated-
extended in 1997, acquired in 2002
Carrefour, Eris, 30 units, 
1,800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:24,985 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,866 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LATTES [34]
Lattes - 1986
Extension-renovation in 1993,
acquired in 2002
Carrefour, Toys’r’us, Go Sport,
Eris, 66 unités, 2,120 parking
spaces
Total usable floor area:
37,650 sq.m
GLA acquired: 14,077 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

NÎMES [30]
Grand Nîmes - 1981 
Renovated in 1997.
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 29 units, 
1,555 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:22,305 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,843 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

NÎMES [30]
Nîmes sud - 1980
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, Eris, 20 unités, 
920 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
19,655 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,773 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%



SAINT-JEAN-DE-VÉDAS
(MONTPELLIER) [34]
Saint-Jean-de-Védas - 1980
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 20 units, 
920 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:16,442 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,303 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Lorraine
JEUXEY (ÉPINAL) [88]
Jeuxey - 1983
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 16 units, 
1,607 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:21,209 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,917 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Midi-Pyrénées
PORTET-SUR-GARONNE [31]
Portet-sur-Garonne - 1972
Renovation-extension in 1997
Carrefour, 108 units, 
4,100 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:60,611 sq.m
GLA acquired: 22,636 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Nord-Pas-de-Calais
AIRE-SUR-LA-LYS [62]
Aire-sur-la-Lys - 1977 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 20 units, 
386 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:11,029 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,491 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

AUCHY-LES-MINES [62]
Auchy-les-Mines - 1993 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 18 units, 
414 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 8,681 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,383 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

AULNOY-LES-VALENCIENNES
[59]
La Briquette - 1972 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 25 units, 
1,048 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:20,500 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,731 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CALAIS [62]
Calais - 1986. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 24 units, 
940 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:17,576 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,311 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

DENAIN [59]
Jean Bart - 1979.Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 22 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:14,037 sq.m
GLA acquired: 345 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

DOUAI [59]
Flers-en-Escrebieux -1983
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, Darty, 43 units,
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:27,606 sq.m
GLA acquired: 6,537 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

FOURMIES [59]
Fourmies - 1985.Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 17 units, 
624 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:11,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,878 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

HAZEBROUCK [59]
Hazebrouck - 1983 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 17 units, 
420 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 8,800 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,306 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LILLE [59]
Lille - 1996
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 14 units
Total usable floor area: 6,700 sq.m
GLA acquired: 859 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LOMME [59]
Lomme - 1984
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 36 units, 
2,400 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:30,204 sq.m
GLA acquired: 7,429 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SAINT-MARTIN-AU-LAËRT
[62]
Saint-Martin-au-Laërt
1991. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 12 units, 
453 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 8,492 sq.m
GLA acquired: 891 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Pays-de-la-Loire
ANGERS [49]
Saint-Serge - 1969 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 22 units, 
1,467 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,319 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,574 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

BEAUJOIRE (NANTES) [44]
Beaujoire - 1972 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 33 units, 
1,467 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:28,662 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,464 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CHOLET [49]
Cholet - 1970
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 25 units, 
1,035 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:11,406 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,933 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LA-ROCHE-SUR-YON [85]
La-Roche-sur-Yon - 1973
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 7 units, 
595 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 9,114 sq.m
GLA acquired: 476 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LE MANS [72]
Centre Sud - 1968
Renovation-extension in 2000.
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 71 units, 
1,800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:25,659 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,924 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SAINT-HERBLAIN
(NANTES) [44]
Saint-Herblain - 1969 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 10 units, 
643 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:15,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 641 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Picardie
AMIENS [80]
Amiens - 1973
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 21 units, 
1,340 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:20,434 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,193 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CHÂTEAU-THIERRY [02]
Château-Thierry - 1972 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 13 units, 
2,185 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:11,102 sq.m
GLA acquired: 644 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LAON [02]
Laon - 1990
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 33 units, 620
parking spaces
Total usable floor area:15,136 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,056 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VENETTE (COMPIÈGNE) [60]
Venette - 1974. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 39 units, 
2,185 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:28,476 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,033 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Poitou-Charentes
ANGOULINS [17]
Angoulins - 1973.Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, Royaldine, 31 units,
1,789 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:23,679 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,009 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

POITIERS [86]
Cordeliers
Inaugurated in October 2001
Monoprix, Fnac and 37 stores,
300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:13,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 8,852 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 50%

Provence-Alpes-
Côte d’Azur
AIX-LES-MILLES [13]
La Pioline - 1971. Renovated
in 1997. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 31 units, 
1,950 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:29,617 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,713 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ANTIBES [06]
Antibes - 1973
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 32 units, 
2,252 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:28,949 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,092 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CHÂTEAUNEUF-
LES-MARTIGUES [13]
Châteauneuf-les-Martigues
1973. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 17 units, 
1,020 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:20,831 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,892 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

shopping center holdings



MARSEILLE [13]
Bourse - 1977. Restructured 
in 1991, renovated in 1997
City center, Nouvelles Galeries,
Fnac, 57 units, 1,850 parking
spaces
Total usable floor area:29,245 sq.m
GLA acquired: 17,275 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

MARSEILLE [13]
Le Merlan - 1976.Acquis en 2003
Carrefour, 53 units, 
2,250 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:28,977 sq.m
GLA acquired: 7,317 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

NICE [06]
Lingostière - 1978. Renovated
in 1998. Acquired en 2001
Carrefour, 49 units, 
2,784 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:37,133 sq.m
GLA acquired: 6,909 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ORANGE [84]
Orange - 1986. Renovated 
in 1996. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 36 units, 
1,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:13,886 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,728 sq.
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

PUGET-SUR-ARGENS [83]
Puget-sur-Argens - 1991 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 41 units, 
1,800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:20,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 738 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

TRANS-EN-PROVENCE [83]
Trans-en-Provence - 1970
Renovated in 1997.
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 24 units, 
1,010 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:15,926 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,771 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VITROLLES [13]
Vitrolles - 1970
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 76 units, 
4,450 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:61,111 sq.m
GLA acquired: 21,932 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Rhône-Alpes
ANNECY - BROGNY [74]
Annecy - 1968
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 13 units, 
1,550 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:18,045 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,022 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ANNECY [74]
Annecy - Inaugurated 
in March 2001
Inno, Fnac, 750 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,098 sq.m
GLA acquired: 13,581 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

BASSENS (CHAMBÉRY) [73]
Bassens - 1969
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 22 units, 
1,096 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,749 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,451 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

BOURG-EN-BRESSE [01]
Site de Brou - 1977 
Renovation-extension in 1986
and 1990. Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 26 units, 
970 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:15,725 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,293 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ÉCHIROLLES 
(GRENOBLE) [38]
Grand Place - 1975 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 34 units, 
1,918 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:28,025 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,923 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ÉCULLY [69]
Grand Ouest - 1972
Extension-renovation in 1997.
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 74 units, 
3,400 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:46,078 sq.m
GLA acquired: 11,627 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

GIVORS [69]
Deux Vallées - 1976
Renovated in 1997.
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 39 units, 
2,154 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:32,528 sq.m
GLA acquired: 14,831 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MEYLAN (GRENOBLE) [38]
Meylan - 1976. Renovated in
1997. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 39 units, 
2,154 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,751 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,417 s.qm
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SAINT-EGRÈVE [38]
Saint-Egrève - 1986
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 32 units, 
1,250 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,260 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,889 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VAULX-EN-VELIN [69]
7 Chemins - 1988
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 37 units, 
1,675 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:22,772 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,730 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VÉNISSIEUX [69]
Vénissieux - 1966 
Extension-renovation in 2000.
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 24 units, 
1,956 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:35,913 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,985 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

total France:
761,734 sq.m

Spain

Andalusia
ALGECIRAS I
Los Barrios - 1980 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 31 units, 
1,300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:16,852 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,746 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ALMÉRIA
Alméria - 1987 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 26 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:15,346 sq.m
GLA acquired: 979 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CORDOUE
Zahira - 1977
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 20 units, 
1,400 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:10,608 sq.m
GLA acquired: 934 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

GRANADA
Granada - 1990 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 33 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,642 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,030 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

HUELVA
Huelva - 1985
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 24 units, 
1,800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:16,490 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,600 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

JEREZ DE LA FRONTERA
Jerez Norte - 1997
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 47 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:23,886 sq.m
GLA acquired: 6,953 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Jerez Sur - 1989 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 35 units, 
1,400 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:24,169 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,284 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LA LINEE DE LA
CONCEPCION (NORTHERN
GIBRALTAR)
Gran Sur - 1991
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 68 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:31,530 sq.m
GLA acquired: 6,540 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LUCENA
Lucena - 2002. Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 9 units
Total usable floor area:10,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 780 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MALAGA
Malaga I - Alameda - 1987
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 41 units, 
1,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:22,171 sq.m
GLA acquired: 7,459 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Malaga II - Los Patios - 1975
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 57 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:28,302 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,344 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SEVILLE
Seville I - San Pablo - 1979
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 35 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:21,180 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,403 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Seville II - Aljarafe - 1985
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 45 units, 
1,400 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:16,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,223 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%



Seville III - Macarena - 1992
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 30 units, 
1,400 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:18,363 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,883 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Seville IV - Dos Hermanas
1993. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 23 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:15,744 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,464 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Seville V - Montequinto
1999. Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 15 units, 
1,600 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:11,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,370 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Aragon
SARAGOSSA
Saragossa I - Augusta - 1995
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 114 units, 
2,750 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:54,501 sq.m
GLA acquired: 24,427 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Saragossa II - Actur - 1990
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 32 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:27,192 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,071 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Asturias
ALBACETE
Los Llanos - 1990 
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 36 units, 
1,900 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,724 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,376 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LUGONES-ASTURIAS
Azabache - 1977 
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 34 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:16,600 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,445 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

OVIEDO
Los Prados - 2002
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 88 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:39,200 sq.m
GLA acquired: 24,811 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Baleares
PALMA DE MAJORQUE
Palma II - General Riera - 1977
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 26 units, 
1,300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:15,134 sq.m
GLA acquired: 595 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Tenerife
SANTA CRUZ DE TENERIFE
Méridiano - 2003
Acquired en 2003
Carrefour, 119 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:44,650 sq.m
GLA acquired: 27,312 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Cantabria
SANTANDER
Peñacastillo - 1982 
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 60 units, 
1,300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 10,205 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Santader II - Torrelavega
1996. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 18 units, 
1,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:18,697 sq.m
GLA acquired: 903 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Castilla-Leon
LEON
Leon - 1990
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 23 units, 
1,555 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:13,012 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,451 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SALAMANQUE
Salamanque - 1989 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 16 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:16,534 sq.m
GLA acquired: 793 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VALLADOLID
Parquesol - 1981
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 35 units, 
1,700 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:20,200 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,138 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Valladolid II - 1995 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 22 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:24,133 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,405 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Cataluña
CABRERA DEL MAR
(NORTHERN BARCELONE)
Cabrera - 1980. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 335 units, 
1,360 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:27,582 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,911 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

LERIDA
Lerida - 1986. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 18 units, 
1,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:12,935 sq.m
GLA acquired: 375 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

REUS (EAST TARRAGONE)
Reus - 1991. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 30 units, 
1,250 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,315 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,960 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

TARRAGONE
Tarragone - 1975 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 23 units, 
1,700 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:22,661 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,059 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Extramadura
BADAJOZ
Badajoz I - Carretera 
de Valverde - 1996
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 32 units, 
1,519 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:17,599 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,097 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Badajoz II - La Granadilla
1990. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 19 units, 
1,217 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,386 sq.m
GLA acquired: 886 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CACERES
Caceres - 1993. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 17 units, 
1,150 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:18,967 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,394 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MÉERIDA-BADAJOZ
Mérida - 1992. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 23 units, 
1,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
13,927sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,051 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

PLASENCIA-CACERES
Plasencia - 1998.Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 16 units, 
750 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:10,979 sq.m
GLA acquired: 822 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VILLANUEVA DE LA SERENA
Villanueva de la Serena - 1995
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 15 units, 
730 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 9,095 sq.m
GLA acquired: 653 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Galicia
LUGO
Lugo - 1993. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 25 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,874 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,412 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ORENSE
Orense - 1995. Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 19 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:10,539 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,508 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

PONTEVEDRA
Pöntevedra - 1998 
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 17 units, 
1,150 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:10,600 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,684 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

shopping center holdings



Madrid
EL PINAR DE LAS ROZAS
(NORTH-WEST MADRID)
El Pinar - 1981. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 41 units, 
1,370 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:24,779 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,177 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MADRID NORTH
San Sebastian de los Reyes
2001. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 26 units,
Total usable floor area:
12,600 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,453 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MADRID SOUTH-EAST
Alcala de Henares - 2001
Acquis en 2001
Carrefour, 26 units
Total usable floor area: 9,600 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,665 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MADRID
Alcobendas - 1982
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 52 unist, 
3,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:25,632 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,569 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MOSTOCOLES 
(SOUTH-WEST MADRID)
Móstoles - 1992
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 36 units, 
2,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,552 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,602 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

POZUELO
Ciudad de la Imagen - 1995
Acquied in 2000
Carrefour, 29 units, 
1,300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
20,278 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,955 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

RIVAS VACIAMADRID
Parque Rivas - 1999.
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 57 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 31,744 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,517 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Murcia
CARTHAGÈNE
Alfonso XIII - 1988. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 24 units, 
1,100 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 25,665 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,127 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

MURCIA
Murcia II - Zaraiche - 1985 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 30 units, 
1,500 spaces parking
Total usable floor area: 22,400 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,639 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Basque Country
RENTERIA (SAN SEBASTIAN
EAST)
San Sebastian-Oyarzun - 1979
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 20 units, 
1,725 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 10,132 sq.m
GLA acquired: 743 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SESTAO (NORD OUEST BILBAO)
Bilbao II - Sestaõ - 1994 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 1,900 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 24,738 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,321 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Valencia
ALICANTE
Puerta de Alicante - 2002 
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 83 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 34,500 sq.m
GLA acquired: 20,828 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ALZIRA (VALENCE SOUTH)
Alzira - 1991. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 28 units, 
1,800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
30,232 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,022 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

BENIDORM - COSTA BLANCA
Benidorm - 1989
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 25 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:17,979 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,632 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

CASTELLON
Castellon - 1985 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 26 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:15,356 sq.m
GLA acquired: 820 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ELCHE
Elche - 1983. Acquis en 2000
Carrefour, 21 units, 
1,550 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:14,167 sq.m
GLA acquired: 795 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ELDA PETRER
Petrer - 1989. Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 36 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:13,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,427 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

GANDIA-VALENCIA
Gandia - 1994. Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 27 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:17,594 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,461 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SAGUNTO
Sagunto Continente - 1989 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 15 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:12,130 sq.m
GLA acquired: 980 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

TORREVIEJA
Torrevieja - 1994.Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 23 units, 
1,550 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:16,129 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,091 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VALENCIA
Paterna-Valencia III - 1979 
Acquired in 2002, extended-
renovated in 92 and 97
Carrefour, 22 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:11,486 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,672 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Valencia I - Alfafar - 1989 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 40 units, 
1,976 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:32,070 sq.m
GLA acquired: 7,025 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Valencia II - Campanar - 1987 
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 36 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:23,979 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,500 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VILLARREAL (CASTELLON
DE LA PLANA WEST)
Villarreal - 1995
Acquired in 2000
Carrefour, 18 units, 
800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:14,800 sq.m
GLA acquired: 905 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VINAROZ
Vinaroz - 2003. Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 12 units, 
670 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:10,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 864 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

total Spain:
248,526 sq.m

Italy

Abruzzi
PESCARA
Pescara Nord - 1995 
Acquired in 2002
Iper, 41 units, 
2,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:26,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 9,948 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Basilica
MATERA
Matera Carrefour - 1999
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 8 units, 
920 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:10,600 sq.m
GLA acquired: 9,948 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

Campania
CASERTA
Caserta - I Giardini de l Solé
1992. Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 21 units, 
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:22,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 6,046 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Emilia-Romagna
SAVIGNANO
Romagna Center - 1992
Acquired in 2002
Iper, 57 units, 
4,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:32,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 12,342 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 40%

Lazio
ROME
La Romanina - 1992 
acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 89 units, 
1,800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:32,700 sq.m
GLA acquired: 13,683 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%



Lombardy
BREMBATE
Brembate - 1977
Acquired in 2002
Iper, 15 units, 
2,170 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:12,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,226 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 40%

BRESCIA
Le Rondinelle - 1996 
Acquired in 1998
Auchan, 77 units, 
3,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:34,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 13,644 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 85%

CREMONA
Cremona 2 - 1985 
Acquired in 2002
Iper, 59 units, 
2,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:24,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 6,421 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 40%

GIUSSANO
Giussano - 1997 
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 26 units, 
1,860 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:17,600 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,846 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

GRANDATE
Grandate - 1999 
Acquired in 2002
Iper, 14 units, 
800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:14,600 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,207 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 40%

MONTEBELLO
Montebello - 1974 
Extension/renovation in 2000,
acquired in 2002
Iper, 32 units, 
2,600 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:24,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 8,079 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 40%

NOVATE
Metropoli - 1999.Acquired in 1999
Coop, 79 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:31,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 16,612 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 85%

PADERNO
Brianza - 1975 
Extension/renovation in 1995,
acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 66 units, 
2,760 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:39,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 12,825 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

SERIATE
Seriate- Alle Valli - 1990
Extension/renovation in 2001,
acquired in 2002
Iper, 38 units, 
2,800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:21,900 sq.m
GLA acquired: 7,398 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 40%

SETTIMO
Settimo - 1995. Acquired in 1999
Coop, 30 units, 
500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:11,266 sq.m
GLA acquired: 9,727 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 85%

SOLBIATE
Le Betulle - 2002.Acquired in 2003
Iper, 21 units, 
1,250 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:17,200 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,800 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

VARESE
Varese - 1988. Acquired in 2002
Iper, 20 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:24,800 sq.m
GLA acquired: 4,789 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 40%

VIGNATE
Acquario center - 2002
Acquired in 2003
Ipercoop, Media World, Brico,
Benetton, 56 units, 
2,300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:32,400 sq.m
GLA acquired: 20,030 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 85%

Marches
PESARO
Rossini Center - 2000 
Acquired in 2002
Iper, 34 units, 
2,700 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,800 sq.m
GLA acquired: 8,597 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 40%

VAL VIBRATA
Val Vibrata - 2000 
Acquired in 2002
Iper, 34 units, 1,550 parking
spaces
Total usable floor area:30,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 15,653 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 40%

Piedmont
BUROLO
Burolo - 1995. Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 13 units, 
1,500 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:10,800 sq.m
GLA acquired: 954 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

COLLEGNO (TURIN)
Collegno - 2003
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 42 units, 
1,900 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:20,900 sq.m
GLA acquired: 6,800 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

MONCALIERI
Moncalieri - 1998 
Extension/renovation in 2000,
acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 25 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:11,855 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,948 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

TURIN
Montecucco - 1980
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 11 units, 
800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area: 7,611 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,132 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

VERCELLI
Carrefour Vercelli - 1987
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 23 units, 
1,050 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:12,700 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,738 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Pouilles
BARI
Bari Carrefour - 1997 
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, 22 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:17,500 sq.m
GLA acquired: 2,823 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

Tuscany
MASSA
Massa - 1995 
Acquired in 2002
Carrefour, 38 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:19,521 sq.m
GLA acquired: 7,236 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

Veneto
THIENE
Thiene - 1993
Acquired en 2002
Carrefour, 38 units, 
1,370 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:21,800 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,660 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

total Italy:
211,700 sq.m

Greece

THESSALONICA
Makédonia - 2000 
Acquired 2001
Carrefour, 27 retail units, 
-11 screen multiplex cinema,
bowling alley (2,219 sq.m),
2,400 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
29,000 sq.m
Shopping mall GLA +
recreation center: 11,867 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

EFKARPIA
Efkarpia - 1995 
Acquired 2003
Carrefour, 16 retail units,
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
12,200 sq.m
GLA acquired: 813 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

PATRAS
Patras - 2002 
Acquired 2003
Carrefour, 28 retail units,
1,200 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
16,400 sq.m
GLA acquired: 8,000 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

ATHENS
Athinon - 2002
Acquired 2003
Carrefour, 14 retail units, 
800 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
13,600 sq.m
GLA acquired: 1,600 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

total Greece:
22,280 sq.m

shopping center holdings



Portugal

LOURES
Loures - 2002
Acquired 2002
Carrefour, 71 retail units,
2,150 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
36,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 17,368 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

GONDOMAR
Parque Nascente - 2003
Acquired 2003
Jumbo, 150 retail units, 
3,400 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
63,500 sq.m
GLA acquired: 47,000 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 50%

TEILHEIRAS
Teilheiras Carrefour - 1990
Acquired 2003
Carrefour, 34 retail units,
1,950 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
40,900 sq.m
GLA acquired: 11,145 sq.m
Klépierre interest equity: 100%

VILLA NOVA DE GAÏA
Villa nova de Gaïa - 1990
Acquired 2003
Carrefour, 31 retail units,
1,300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
24,600 sq.m
GLA acquired: 5,221 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

total Portugal:
80,735 sq.m

CENTRAL
EUROPE 

Czech Republic

PRAGUE
Novy Smichov - 2001 
Acquired in 2003
Carrefour, Palace movie
theater, C&A, Drapa Sport,
H&M, Datart, La Halle aux
Vêtements, 154 units, 
2,000 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
60,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 38,077 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

total Czech
Republic
38,077 sq.m

Slovakia

BRATISLAVA
Danubia - 2000
Acquired in 2001
Carrefour, 40 units, 
1,300 parking spaces
Total usable floor area:
30,000 sq.m
GLA acquired: 12,312 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

total Slovakia:
12,312 sq.m

OTHER 
COMMERCIAL
ASSETS

Belgium

LOUVAIN
Louvain-la-Neuve
13 screen-movie theater
Total usable floor area:
14,633 sq.m
GLA acquired: 14,633 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

France

BORDEAUX [33]
Mérignac
3 units 
Total usable floor area:
7,591 sq.m 
GLA acquired: 7,591 sq.m 
Klépierre equity interest: 83%

PARIS [13th]
Truffaut
Total usable floor area:
3,606 sq.m
GLA acquired: 3,606 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%

PARIS [19th]
BHV - Rue des Flandres
Total usable floor area:
7,725 sq.m
GLA acquired: 7,725 sq.m
Klépierre equity interest: 100%



Toscane

VénétieLombardie
Piémont

Ligurie

Abruzzes

Aoste

Basilicate

Calabre

Campanie

Émilie-Romagne

Molise

Ombrie

Pouille

Trentin-
Haut-Adige

Sardaigne

Sicile

Marches

Lazio

Frioul 

Italy

211,700 sq.m

other Europe

72,669 sq.m

TOTAL(1):
1,375,364 sq.m GLA
at 12.31.2003
(1) Excluding other commercial assets.

shopping center holdings

shopping center locations

Klépierre holdings end 2002
holdings acquired in 2003



Bratislava 
Danubia center

Prague
Novy Smichov

MakédoniaEfkarpia

Patras
Athinon

Slovakia

Greece

Czech
Republic
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Since 1998, Klépierre has taken a pro-active approach to its
office property holdings, which are mainly located in

Paris. In recent years this strategy of timing trans-
actions with the real-estate cycle has paid off, 

resulting in large disposals and comfortable 
profits. Although it is the Group’s second

line of business, the office property
portfolio will remain relatively

minor: even in a buyer’s market,
these assets do not exceed one-

third of Klépierre’s total holdings.Within
the office property market, Klépierre’s

focus is on high quality properties in prime
locations that combine rental upside potential

with the capacity to weather cyclical downturns.

office properties



An opportunistic office property 
strategy timed to the real-estate cycle

Thanks to the dynamic and discerning management of its office property holdings,
Klépierre has proven its ability to create value since 1998. The internal yield calculated
for assets sold during the past five years (€596 million) is 12.6%, while the return on
equity invested reached 19%.
Appraised at one billion euros at the end of 2003, the office property portfolio repre-
sents approximately one-fifth of Klépierre’s total assets. It comprises 34 office build-
ings, concentrated in the central and core business districts of Paris.

In the future, the Group intends to continue to exploit this type of asset by timing invest-
ments with the real-estate cycle. During peak periods cycle, income from disposals –
facilitated by Klépierre’s SIIC status – are strategically reinvested in shopping centers.

We will continue to divest of mature real-estate assets in 2004, but at a more
moderate pace. Klépierre’s major focus this year will be lease renewals and
changes in tenant mix, the dual foundation of strong future performance.

Furthermore, the Group will keep an active watch over the rental and invest-
ment markets to anticipate new opportunities for acquisition.

Claude Lobjoie
Member of the Executive Board and head of Office Properties division
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Actively watch the market 
to time new property 
acquisitions to cyclical 
upturns.
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A resilient Parisian market
In 2003, against the backdrop of
an unfavorable economic cli-
mate, the Greater Paris rental
real-estate market surpassed
expectations. The office property
investment market remained
extremely active.
Sa t i s f i ed demand to ta led
1,708,600 square meters, up
11% compared with 2002 and
close to the level reached in
2001. This strong performance
can be attributed to the flurry of
activity in the last quarter, when
more than 500,000 square
meters were taken up.
Lower rental prices and the qual-

ity of the available supply helped
bring clients back to traditional
business districts.
Larger spaces with a floor area
of more than 3,000 square
meters accounted for 53% of sat-
isfied demand.

A moderate rise in supply 
At the end of 2003, approxi-
mately 2,960,000 square meters
were immediately available, a
12% increase compared with
2002. The vacancy rate reached
5.5% in central and western
Paris and an average of 6.5%
throughout Ile-de-France (versus
5% at the end of 2002).

Future supply fell significantly,
with the estimated need for new
structured projects for 2004 and
2005 barely matching that for the
year 2003 alone (roughly 1 mil-
lion sq.m).

Continued decline 
in rental prices
Rental prices for prime proper-
ties fell by approximately 7% 
in the Paris CBD (€675/sq.m)
and 10% in La Défense
(€450/sq.m). Lessors granted
more rent exemptions and
stepped up their contributions 
to improvement and mainte-
nance work.

The investment market
remains dynamic
With €9.5 billion invested, the
market remains highly active.
Although this dynamic perform-
ance may be partly ascribable 
to the abundance of liquidity, 
the arbitrage programs of French
institutional investors and US
players are also key factors.
Once again, German investors
were the most active.
Furthermore, yields from office
property investments vary signif-
icantly, with a very slight decline
in yields from the most sought-
after assets.

the market

98.0%
average annual 
financial occupancy rate 

Source:
CB Richard
Ellis Bourdais
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Arbitrage objectives met
In 2003, Klépierre continued its
arbitrage program, targeting the
divestiture of buildings that had
been recently re-let at prevailing
market prices. Six buildings, 
representing a total of 44,544
square meters of weighted usable
floor area(1), were sold for a total
of €175.9 million (versus €150.1
million in 2002). On average, sell-
ing prices were 6% higher than
appraised values with an average
investor’s rate of return of 6.9%.
Over the same period, Klépierre
invested €12.9 million to extend
the Camille Desmoulins property
in Issy-les-Moulineaux. These

additional 4,665 square meters of
weighted usable floor area will be
delivered in June 2004, for a total
cost of €22.3 million. The exten-
sion will generate an additional
€0.8 million of lease income in
2004, representing €1.6 million
on a full-year basis.
Klépierre will pursue its arbitrage
policy in 2004, but at a more mod-
erate pace.

High quality holdings
in prime locations
Klépierre possesses two major
assets: the quality of its buildings,
of which more than two-thirds
were built within the last fifteen

years, and prime locations, pri-
marily in Paris and its first outlying
area (over 94%).
For these reasons, Klépierre
attracts prestigious tenants, inclu-
ding Alstom, Stéria, Hachette
Livre, Linklater’s & Paines, EDF,
Lever, Société Générale, Arts &
Technique du Progrès, Juris
Classeur and the French Ministry
of Finance. These 10 clients
account for close to 46% of lease
income (the top five produced
over 30% of total rents).
The 10 principal buildings in
Klépierre’s office property portfo-
lio (comprising 36 buildings in all)
generate more than 60% of lease

income. Six of these are located
in Paris itself and account for over
54% of rents.
Given the good state of repair of
Klépierre’s holdings, limited work
was undertaken in 2003. General
maintenance and improvement
work totaled €2.1 million, of
which 72% of which was rein-
voiced to tenants.

Excellent rent enhancement
Despite a difficult economic envi-
ronment, the quality of its office
properties enabled Klégestion to
actively pursue its rent enhance-
ment policy. In 2003, 38 leases
were signed (including 18 new

94%
of office properties 
are located 
in Paris and 
the first outlying 
area

175.9
million euros 
of divestitures 
completed in 2003

arbitrage program



Klégestion 
in 2003

Building management 
income

Commissions on sales 
and/or acquisitions

An office asset and property 
management specialist, Klégestion

is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Klépierre.

Despite the unfavorable economic
environment that prevailed throughout

2003, Klégestion’s teams successfully
surpassed arbitrage program objectives

(+17%) and optimized lease management.

Revenues totaled €4.6 million, down
24% from the previous year, due to a

reduction in assets under management.

Management fees reached €2.6 million
and commissions on sales and acquisitions 
of €2 million were recorded.

Commissions on sales, net of fees paid to third
parties, remained unchanged from 2002 at 

€1.8 million.

Personnel costs in 2003 totaled €1.2 million for
a workforce of 16 employees.

Net earnings: €1.8 million.

leases) for a total of 62,382
square meters of weighted usable
floor area, generating €14.8 mil-
lion in income.
Rents brought in €9.7 million, up
13% compared with prior lease
terms on a constant structural
basis.
At December 31, 2003, the
weighted average term of new
leases negotiated over a firm let-
ting period is 4.1 years.
Compared to market rates, the
financial occupancy rate of
Klépierre’s office properties
remains high: at December 31,
2003, it was 97.3% versus 99.1%
in 2002. During the year, the aver-

age financial occupancy rate was
98% versus 98.9% in 2002.

An undervalued portfolio
Overall, although Klépierre’s port-
folio of leases offers rental upside
potential exceeding 5%, the rever-
sionary capacity declined in 2003
compared with the previous year.
This decline is attributable to two
factors: an increase in rents linked
to the Insee cost of construction
index(2) (+2.5% overall in 2003) and
a decrease in prevailing market
rates (more than 4% in 2003).
According to contractual lease
terms, 83 leases accounting for
over 42% of rents will come up for

35%
of rents 
to be revised 
in 2004

56%

44%

38
leases signed 
in 2003, generating 
a rental gain of 
almost €2 million
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A complete schedule of lease
renewals is available on the Klépierre
website (Offices>Activity).
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renewal by the end of 2006, 35%
of which in 2004. These renewals
offer rental reversionary potential
of nearly 14%, creating rental
upside potential of more than 5%
of total rents, excluding the
impact of future disposals.

Like-for-like rise in rents
Rents rose by 3.1% year-over-
year in 2003 on a constant port-
folio basis, and by 3.6% for
office properties alone (exclud-
ing warehouses). On a current
portfolio basis, rents declined by
8.7%. Overall, lease income
decreased by €12.4 million if
divestitures completed in 2002

and 2003 are taken into
account, partially offset by the
Issy-les-Moulineaux acquisition
(+€3.5 million). Other upside
and downside factors included
renewals (+€1 million), index-
linked rent adjustments (+€1.5
million), and an increase in the
vacancy rate (-€0.6 million).
Unpaid rent at the December 31,
2003 reporting date were once
again marginal (1.1%), demon-

strating both the quality of
Klépierre’s tenant mix and the
efficiency of its collection meth-
ods. The real-estate cash flow (3)

declined 8.3% year-over-year
versus 2002, from €77.1 million
to €70.8 million, attributable to
disposals completed in 2002
and 2003. On a constant portfo-
lio basis, cash flow rose by 3.3%
(5.5% for office properties alone
(excluding warehouses).

(1) Weighted usable floor area: to calculate the global rental price per square meter, spaces 
are assigned weightings on the basis of type (office, archive, parking, restaurant).
(2) INSEE cost of construction index. (3) Real estate cash flow is a salient performance indicator.
It can be defined as the difference between lease income from real-estate holdings and the total
expenses (charges, maintenance and improvement, taxes and duties, management and lease-up
fees) that impact the operating income generated by these holdings.

+3.1%
lease income 
growth on a constant
structural basis



Quality properties concentrated
in the central and western 
core business districts of Paris

office holdings



office holdings

Paris Central
Business District
(CBD)
PARIS [2nd]
46, rue Notre-Dame-des-Victoires
Seven-story building with two
floors below ground.
Located in the heart of the financial
district, opposite the Paris Bourse.
Completed in 1991, it offers
high-quality facility management
services.
8,129 sq.m

PARIS [7th]
280/282, bd Saint-Germain
Office and residential building
located near the Assemblée
Nationale. Eight stories plus 
one basement floor.
7,884 sq.m

PARIS [8th]
5, rue de Turin
Seven-story building, with 
an additional five levels below
ground, located near the 
Saint-Lazare railway station.
Fully air-conditioned.
2,596 sq.m

PARIS [8th]
23/25, rue de Marignan/ 
38, rue Marbeuf
A prestigious complex
composed of three cut-stone
buildings. Completely
restructured in 1999.
The complex offers high-quality
amenities (air-conditioning,
elevated flooring, parking 
on two levels).
8,518 sq.m

PARIS [8th]
36, rue Marbeuf
Seven stories, plus four 
floors below ground. Built 
in the 1970s (partially air-
conditioned, two levels 
of parking).
Acquired in 2001.
3,356 sq.m

PARIS [15th]
25, rue Leblanc
A section of the Le Ponat
building erected in 1988.
A modern eight-story building
with two floors below ground, 
it is partially air-conditioned and
features a company restaurant.
3,467 sq.m

PARIS [15th]
141, rue de Javel
Completed in 1993, the complex
comprises two buildings 
of seven and five stories, 
plus two levels below ground.
Fully air-conditioned.
6,860 sq.m

PARIS [15th]
43, quai de Grenelle
Built in 1969 and renovated 
in 1995. Fully air-conditioned.
12,723 sq.m

PARIS [15th]
1, bd Victor - Le Barjac
Building with seven floors above
ground plus four floors below,
and an inter-company
restaurant. Completed in 1993,
the building offers quality facility
management service.
Acquired in 2001.
7,315 sq.m

PARIS [16th]
18/20, rue La Pérouse
New building delivered in late
1998. Located next to the Arc
de Triomphe, the building offers
outstanding amenities.
3,286 sq.m

PARIS [16th]
21, rue La Pérouse
Five-story building plus three
floors below ground.
Entirely restructured in 1999.
2,159 sq.m

PARIS [16th]
23/25, avenue Kléber
Restructured in 1999, this
building is located 150 meters
from the Etoile. Eight stories,
plus five floors below ground,
high-quality building services 
to meet the needs of the most
demanding users.
9,866 sq.m

PARIS [16th]
21, avenue Kléber
Near the Etoile, this five-story
building (plus basement)
erected in 1900 was partly
restructured in 1999.
1,914 sq.m

PARIS [16th]
52 bis, avenue d’Iéna
Cut-stone mansion house,
entirely renovated in 1991.
Four stories, plus one level 
below ground, and a subordinate
building behind the courtyard
(ground floor plus one story).
Prestigious.
772 sq.m

PARIS [16th]
43/45, avenue Kléber
Cut-stone building acquired
under undivided ownership
terms (80%). Very well located,
partially air-conditioned and
recently renovated.
3,504 sq.m

PARIS [17th]
140/144, bd Malesherbes
Near the Lycée Carnot, 
this eleven-story building 
was erected in 1963 and
renovated in 1997. It also 
has three levels below ground
and is fully air-conditioned.
6,364 sq.m

other Paris
PARIS [4th]
10 Impasse Guéménée
Five-story building adjacent 
to Place des Voges.
Acquired in 1994.
1,059 sq.m

PARIS [12th]
5 bis, bd Diderot
Erected in 1990, the building
has seven stories, plus 
two floors below ground.
Air-conditioning was installed 
in 1999.
6,872 sq.m



PARIS [12th]
8/10, avenue Ledru-Rollin
Eight story building with 
two levels below ground. Built 
in 1990, this building is located
near the Gare de Lyon railway
station.
4,145 sq.m

business centers
BOULOGNE [92]
9/9 bis, rue Henri-Martin 
- Les Jardins des Princes
Complex of two buildings 
of two and six stories, plus two
floors below ground. Built in
1996 and fully air-conditioned.
Acquired in 2001.
3,761 sq.m

ISSY-LES-MOULINEAUX [92]
16, rue Jean-Jacques-
Rousseau - Le Florentin
Five-story building with two
floors below ground. Built in
1997 and acquired in 2001.
1,898 sq.m

ISSY-LES-MOULINEAUX [92]
Rue Camille-Desmoulins 
Zac Forum Seine
Seven-story building with 
four floors below ground.
Delivered on December 16,
2002.
12,760 sq.m

LA DÉFENSE [92]
CB 20 Les Miroirs
A 16-story, fully air-conditioned
building with six elevators.
Entirely restructured in 1997.
Undivided ownership terms
(28.34%).
6,159 sq.m

LA DÉFENSE [92]
Collines de l’Arche
Undivided ownership terms
(30.44%)
Nine stories plus four floors
below ground. Built in 1990.
2,500 sq.m

LEVALLOIS [92]
Front de Paris-Ilot 5
Four buildings of eight and nine
stories. A recent complex
featuring modern design and
good quality facilities. Undivided
ownership terms (78.50%),
completed in 1989.
19,911 sq.m

LEVALLOIS [92]
11/11 bis, place du Général-
Leclerc
Located 100 meters from the
town hall, this seven-story
building with four additional
floors below ground was
completed in 1997.
5,819 sq.m

LEVALLOIS [92]
105, rue Anatole-France
Built in 1992, the building has
seven stories, plus four levels
below ground. Air-conditioned.
Under undevided ownership
terms (50%).
3,269 sq.m

NEUILLY [92]
192 Avenue Charles-de-Gaulle
Recently built luxury
condominium complex featuring
modern facilities; a corner
building facing Pont de Neuilly.
12,906 sq.m

greater 
Paris Area
MARNE-LA-VALLÉE [77]
1, rue Monge - Maille Nord 4
Part of a nine-story building built
in 1993. Near the Paris
Regional transit line (RER A)
and the A4 freeway.
Acquired in 2001.
5,588 sq.m

MONTIGNY-
LE-BRETONNEUX [78]
6, avenue J.-P.-Timbaud
Complex of four principal 
two-story building wings.
Facilities services.
2,942 sq.m

VÉLIZY [78]
8/10, rue des Frères-Caudron
Two-story building completed 
in 1984. Located near 
the shopping center. Acquired
under undivided ownership
terms (50%).
993 sq.m

CHAMPLAN [91]
16 bis, rue de Paris
Two-story building erected in
1976, partially air-conditioned.
Under undivided ownership
terms (50%).
881 sq.m

VILLEPINTE [93]
ZI Paris Nord 2 
Near the Paris Regional Transit
line (RER B), a four-story
building with two additional
floors below ground. Completed
in 1992, it is air-conditioned.
6,605 sq.m

SAINT-MAURICE [94]
3/5, avenue du Chemin-
de-Presles
Four-story building plus two
floors below ground, completed
in 1994. Offers high-quality
technical facilities.
9,852 sq.m

warehouses
MASSY-PALAISEAU [91]
12/16, rue Baudot
17,427 sq.m

STRASBOURG [67]
rue du Rheinfeld
15,600 sq.m

total offices: 196,633 sq.m
total warehouses: 33,027 sq.m
total: 229,660 sq.m



office holdings

Klépierre’s office holdings

Val-d’Oise

Yvelines

Essonne

Seine-et-Marne

Seine-Saint-Denis

Val-de-Marne

Hauts-de-Seine

Greater Paris Area

offices: 26,861 sq.m

Paris and 
Hauts-de-Seine
169,772 sq.m

TOTAL:
196,633 sq.m
at december 31, 2003
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A – Analysis of 
and commentary 
on business activity

I – Shopping centers

Consumer spending in 2003
The economic environment was
particularly gloomy in 2003
throughout Europe, especially in
France. French GDP growth fell
short of forecasts, increasing by
a mere 0.1%, making 2003 one
of the worst years on record
since the Second World War.
With the exception of the
counter-performance in personal
product sa les (-3.5%), end 
consumer spending rose by
1.6% in 2003, driving economic
growth in France.
In the rest of Europe, economic
performance was mixed: solid in
Greece (+4%), Spain (+2.3%),
S l o v a k i a a n d t h e C z e c h
Republic; above the eurozone
average in Belgium (+0.7%);
and below the eurozone average
in Italy (+0.5%). Portugal, which
took steps to reduce its budget
deficit, saw GDP decline by 0.8%
in 2003.
In 2004, the economies of
Europe should at last get a boost
from the economic recovery,
which has been particularly
notable in the United States.

Current estimates put GDP
growth for 2004 at 2% in France,
2.9% in Spain, 4.1% in Greece,
1.6% in Italy, 1.9% in Belgium
and 1.5% in Portugal. The Czech 
and Slovakian economies are
expected to expand by 2.9% and
4.2%, respectively.

Change in Klépierre’s
shopping center revenues
In spite of the generally sluggish
economic backdrop, revenues
generated by Klépierre’s shop-
ping centers in France rose by
0.6% in 2003. If the impact of the
major restructuring undertaken
on Bordeaux Saint-Christoly is
neutralized, the increase is 1.5%.
Retailers in the Health/Beauty
and Entertainment segments rep-
orted satisfactory sales growth
(+5.6% and 3.5%, respectively),
offset by the counter-perform-
ance in Personal product sales,
where retail revenues fell by
0.4%.
Downtown shopping center busi-
ness was strong in 2003 (+5.8%),
reflecting solid performances 
by Passages in Bou logne-
Billancourt, Courier in Annecy,
and Cordeliers in Poitiers, as well
as the vitality of their retail
anchors (Fnac, H & M, Zara and
Gap, among others). Regional
shopping centers (+0.7%) and

inter-municipal centers (+0.6%)
showed resilience in the face of
flat sales growth for hyper-
markets. Based on available data,
revenues increased by 5.9% for
holdings in Spain over the first 
11 months of the year, attributable
to particularly sustained growth in
the Entertainment and Personal
product retail segments (+4.8%
and +3.2%, respectively). Mid-
sized malls turned in an even
more impressive performance,
reporting revenue growth of 6.4%.
In Italy, revenue growth was less
robust (+0.6% over 10 months).
Personal product retail sales
were down by 2.5%, while
Entertainment and Health/Beauty
retailers reported increases of
1.2% and 1.3%, respectively. The
improvement in these segments
is attributed to revived interest in
culture on the part of consumers
nationwide and steadily increas-
ing shopping center footfall.
Because Klépierre’s operating
presence in other European mar-
kets remains limited to date, only
general trends can be provided.
Revenue growth reported by
Central European holdings was
mixed in 2003: +7.2% for Novy
Smichov in the Czech Republic;
down sharply for Danubia (-
12.9%) in Slovakia. The recently
launched Loures and Porto

Gondomar centers in Portugal
reported satisfactory perform-
ance. The growing popularity of
the Makédonia center in Greece
pushed revenues up by more than
20% in 2003.

Rental business
The trend in European rental
management business currently
points to the upside. Rents
amounted to €279 million, a 21%
increase versus the €230.7 mil-
lion reported in 2002. Variable
rents accounted for €12.3 million
of the total (+12%). On a con-
stant portfolio basis, rents
increased by 4.8%.

France
Lease income grew by 3.7%, to
€179.2 million (+4.8% on a com-
parable portfolio basis), of which
€9.5 million was attributable to
variable rents. The general
increase primarily reflects:
– the 2.1% rise in the Insee cost
of construction index (ICC) for
the first two quarters, impacting
72% and 25% of guaranteed
rents, respectively.
– 168 changes in tenant mix, 
205 lease renewals (+30% and
+19%, respectively, compared
with previous terms and condi-
tions), and 9 lease-ups of vacant
premises.

Executive Board’s management report
Supervisory Board meeting held on February 13, 2004 to review the Company’s business in 2003
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Unpaid rent accounted for only
1.1% of total rents invoiced. The
financial occupancy rate was
98.2%, versus 99.3% in 2002.
The slight decrease in financial
occupancy was attributable to
reconstruction projects under
way on the Bordeaux Saint-
Christoly and Noisy-le-Grand
centers.
Sources of rent remain diversi-
fied, helping to minimize the
rental portfolio’s exposure. The
retail anchor Fnac accounts for
3.0%, followed by the Auchan
group excluding hypermarkets
(3%), Etam (2.7%), Go Sport
(2.4%), Camaieu (1.8%) and
Vivarte (1.8%). Figures for Eram,
Afflelou, Celio and Carrefour
range from 1.3% to 1.6%.

Italy
Rents invoiced in 2003 totaled
€41.1 million, a 79.3% increase
over 2002. The rise reflects the
full-year contribution of the shop-
ping malls acquired in July 2002
and the acquisition of Milan-
Vignate in 2003. The average
impact of index-linked rent
adjustments for all holdings was
+2.9% in 2003.
A total of 115 changes in the
rental portfolio occurred in 2003,
including lease-ups of 11 vacant
premises that generated €0.6

million in additional lease
income. Changes in tenant mix
and lease renewals generated a
rental gain of €1 million, an
increase of 25.3% compared with
prior lease terms and conditions.
The financial occupancy rate and
the tenant default rate were
97.8% and 4.2%, respectively.
Although it decreased versus
2002, the default rate was
adversely affected by difficulties
encountered by two retail
anchors with outlets in several
shopping centers.

Spain
Lease income (net of utilities and
expenses) invoiced for Spanish
holdings totaled €39.9 million, a
32.5% increase over 2002. On a
comparable portfolio basis, the
increase was 5%.
A total of 152 leases were
renewed (an 8% increase), while
changes in tenant mix amounted
to 101 (+4.5% compared with
prior lease terms and conditions)
and lease-ups of vacant premis-
es totaled 39, generating €0.7
million in additional rent.
The impact of the change in the
IPC consumer price index, on
which the guaranteed rent
adjustments are based, was 4%.
Unpaid rent accounted for 1.3%
of total rents invoiced.

The financial occupancy rate
was 96.8% for the year.

Greece
Rents invoiced for the Makédonia
shopping mall increased by 
6% over 2002, reflecting the
impact of index-linked rent
adjustments (+ 3.9%) and lease
modifications.

Portugal
The Loures and Gondomar shop-
ping malls invoiced €4.6 million
in rents (as of mid-September for
Gondomar). Their combined
financial occupancy rate is
99.5%. Lease-ups and changes
in tenant mix on the Loures
shopping center generated a
4.1% improvement in lease
income.

Central Europe
The acquisition of Novy Smichov
(Prague) in June, with full-year
impact for 2003, contributed an
additional €8.4 million in rents.
The index-linked rent adjustment
was 1.3%. Including the Danubia
center in Bratislava, 2003 rents
amounted to €9.8 million. Lease-
ups generated a full-year rental
gain of €0.3 million.The financial
occupancy rates for Novy
Smichov and Danubia were
97.8% and 96.8%, respectively.

Belgium
Rents invoiced as of July 2003
for the movie theaters and
restaurants that comprise the
future Esplanade shopping cen-
ter in Louvain-la-Neuve totaled
€0.6 million.

Investments completed 
in 2003
Klépierre acquired 28 shopping
centers, of which 7 account for
70% of the total investment and
cover more than 10,000 square
meters of gross leasable area
(GLA).
These acquisitions have
increased the geographic diver-
sity of Klépierre’s holdings, since
22 of the 28 shopping centers
acquired in 2003 are located out-
side France. Holdings situated
abroad now account for more
than 50% of the portfolio in terms
of the number of malls, and 44%
in terms of GLA.
In line with Klépierre’s business
strategy, the primary focus of
these investments is Southern
Europe. Klépierre strengthened
its leading position in Italy last
year, attesting to that country’s
potential as a major growth mar-
ket. In Spain, the partnership
with Carrefour continues to bear
fruit. The Group also acquired
three new properties in Portugal,

strengthening the foothold gained
through the acquisition of the
Loures center in late 2002.
Several acquisitions were also
made in Greece.
In France, the Group completed
the acquisition of shopping malls
provided for under the 2000
agreement entered into with
Carrefour.
In addition to the Carrefour
agreement, which primarily per-
tains to properties in France and
Spain, Klépierre took advantage
of agreements negotiated in Italy
to acquire 3 new malls. The
Group also concluded agree-
ments to acquire projects under
development, and new shopping
centers or extensions in France,
Spain and Greece.
The Finim and Finiper groups,
both of which figure among
Klépierre partners in Italy, each
sourced one acquisition in 2003.
The Group also acquired the
Gondomar shopping center in
Porto (Portugal) from Eiffage, in
partnership with Prédica, and
also now owns the Novy
Smichov shopping center, devel-
oped by Nexity in the heart of
Prague. Finally, the agreement
signed in 2001 with Belgian
developer Wilhelm & Co. led to
the acquisition of the largest
shopping center development
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project in Belgium. Located in
Louvain-la-Neuve, it is sched-
uled to open for business in late
2005.
Based on the number of projects
currently under construction
abroad, in addition to planned
extensions for centers in opera-
tion and development projects 
in France initiated by Ségécé,
the outlook for 2004 can be
described as positive.

Also in 2003, Klépierre disposed
of the Centre International des
Arts de la Table (Paris, 10th) for
€0.2 million.

ACQUISITIONS WITH IMMEDIATE EFFECT AND SHOPPING CENTER INAUGURATIONS COMPLETED BY SÉGÉCÉ
France 48,187 89.8 3.2 86.6
Beaune (3,738 sq.m), Bourg-en-Bresse (2,293 sq.m), Le Mans (1,872 sq.m), Denain (387 sq.m), Marseille Le Merlan (7,190 sq.m), 
Noisy cinémas UGC, Sevran (14,137 sq.m), Val d’Europe-Jardinerie (5,990 sq.m), other (12,580 sq.m)
Belgium 14,663 19.5 0.0 19.5
Louvain-la-Neuve – movie theaters
Spain 70,476 178.4 56.1 122.3
Oviedo (24,693 sq.m), Lucena (781 sq.m), Meridiano (27,032 sq.m), Albacete Los Llanos (5,400 sq.m), Leon (2,500 sq.m), 
Pontevedra (1,700 sq.m), Orense (1,500 sq.m), Sevilla V (1,400 sq.m), Azabache (4,400 sq.m), Vinaroz (800 sq.m)
Italy 35.941 131.6 0.0 125.8 5.9
Acquario Vignate (17,671 sq.m), Matera (1,554 sq.m), Bari (2,833 sq.m), Collegno (6,779 sq.m), Solbiate (4,831 sq.m), other (2,273 sq.m)
Greece 10,493 16.4 0.0 16.4
Efkarpia (813 sq.m), Patras (8 ,049 sq.m), Athinon (1,631 sq.m)
Portugal 52.676 91.6 0.0 91.6
Porto Gondomar (50%) (36,349 sq.m), Lisbonne Teilheiras (11,145 sq.m), Villa Nova de Gaïa (5,182 sq.m)
Czech Republic 39.000 77.4 20.4 57.0
Novy Smichov (Prague) (39,000 sq.m)
Sub total 271,436 604.8 79.8 519.1 5.9
ACQUISITIONS WITH DELAYED EFFECT down payments
France 11,600 37.9 0.6 37.3
Quétigny (11,600 sq.m)
Belgium 37,348 107.5 21.9 85.6
Louvain-la-Neuve (37,348 sq.m)
Spain 14,507 23.4 17.5 5.9
Santader II (14,507 sq.m)
Italy 41,535 198.7 9.9 188.8
Milan Assago (25,000 sq.m), Settimo extension (2,315 sq.m), Valle Aurelia (14,220 sq.m)
Greece 20,987 74.1 0.0 74.1
City Gate (opening in 2004) (20,987 sq.m)
Other 1.6 1.6
Sub total 125,977 443.2 0.0 49.9 393.3
Expenses related to projects under assembly 
or development in 2003 16.1 16.1

Total 397,413 1,064.1 79.8 585.1 399.2
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Development business
Thanks to partnerships estab-
lished with distributors and devel-
opers, as well as to major player
positioning in the Continental
European shopping center mar-
ket, Klépierre and Ségécé have
estimated upside potential on
existing holdings of more than 
1 million square meters after two
years of sustained investment.
Operations identified to date rep-
resent investments of more than
€2.3 billion (group share) by the
end of 2009.
As the period of acquiring exist-
ing centers in France and, to a
lesser extent, in Spain comes to
a close, the first phase of the
agreement with Carrefour will
account for a much smaller per-
centage of future investments. As
a result, Klépierre’s core busi-
ness holdings will be primarily
enhanced through new projects
going forward.
Development in France will pri-
marily concern 9 new projects,
including shopping malls in
Aubervilliers, Besançon, Nancy,
Gare Saint-Lazare and Valen-
ciennes, and Ségécé-led exten-
sions involving the Caen Paul-
Doumer, Clermont-Jaude, Mars-
eille Bourse, Melun Boissénart,
Pontault-Combault and Val
d’Europe shopping centers. In

fact, the year 2003 was particu-
larly fruitful in terms of new proj-
ects: the municipalities of
Valenciennes, Angoulême and
Vannes selected Ségécé to con-
duct city center projects that will
generate approximately 45,000
square meters of gross leasable
area (GLA) by 2006-2007. The
“Cité du Meuble” project in
Cesson, which will measures
35,000 square meters (GLA), was
also selected for opening in 2007.
The Group is already working
with Carrefour to capitalize on the
potential for extension to malls
acquired from the retailer. The
first project, to be undertaken by
Carrefour will add 8,500 square
meters in GLA to the Quétigny
mall near Dijon, in France. It is
scheduled to open for business in
2005. Six additional extension
projects have already received
the required zoning and adminis-
trative approvals. In Spain, a total
150,000 square meters in GLA
will be added to malls over the
next three years. Extension proj-
ects undertaken by the Group’s 
3 partners in Italy involve less
leasable area, as the Italian port-
folio is smaller and comprised of
more recently built properties.
New shopping center develop-
ment projects account for half of
total investments, with projects in

Spain expected to account for
€320 million of the total.
Klépierre will work primarily
through its partnership with
Carrefour on new shopping cen-
ter developments.
Around 10 projects will be devel-
oped in Italy for €600 million,
most of them scheduled for 
delivery in 2005 and 2006.
Carrefour and Finiper are the
largest developers.
Finally, Klépierre will continue
development in Belgium, where
the Louvain-la-Neuve shopping
center is expected to open in late
2005, and to a lesser extent in
Greece, where the City Gate
development project committed
in 2003 is scheduled to open for
business in late 2004. The Group
also expects to make new acqui-
sitions in Central Europe and in
Portugal.

Service business
Ségécé: the leading shopping

center manager in Continental
Europe
The Group increased its stake in
Ségécé from 70.6 to 75% follow-
ing the buyout of minority inter-
ests in Klécentres. Ségécé pur-
sued its expansion in Europe
through its network of sub-
sidiaries. At the December 31,
2003 reporting date, Ségécé

managed 317 shopping centers
in Europe, 200 of which on behalf
of the Klépierre group.
Ségécé employs 592 people in 
8 countries in Continental
Europe. In 2003, it broadened 
its geographic scope with the 
establishment of Sogecaec, a
new subsidiary in Portugal.
In 2003, the parent company
Ségécé supported its sub-
sidiaries in their efforts to pool
best practices in the areas of
process, organizational efficiency
and alignment with objectives set
forth in management mandates,
and improved reporting through
IT upgrades.

Ségécé consolidates its 
position in France
Ségécé: The property manage-
ment business was stable
between 2002 and 2003, gener-
ating more than €32 million in fee
income. On July 1, 2003, the 
Le Havre René-Coty shopping
center was added to the list of
real-estate assets under man-
agement. The development busi-
ness also had an excellent year,
billing €8.2 million in fees.
The improvement over the prior
year was primarily attributable 
to advances made on projects 
initiated in earlier years, 
which include both construction

(Valenciennes, Louvain-la-Neuve)
and operation (Novy Smichov).
At the December 31, 2003
reporting date, Ségécé became
the sole owner of the subsidiary
Ségécar after the buyout of
Carrefour’s 50% stake in the
jointly owned subsidiary. The
deal strengthened its position 
as a key property manager 
in France.
Galaé was established in
January of 2001 to provide multi-
media and information technolo-
gies to the Group’s shopping
centers. By year-end 2003,
Galaé had installed more than
1,000 plasma screens in 65
French shopping centers. Galaé
extended its activities beyond
France last year with the rollout
of the website for the Gondomar
shopping center.

PSG pursues its development
PSG is a jointly owned subsidiary
of Ségécé (50%) and the Finim
group that currently provides rental
and property management servic-
es to 55 shopping centers. PSG
acquired the management infor-
mation system used by Ségécé in
France, and set up a lean structure
in Croatia (SCM - Shopping Center
Management) to manage 3 shop-
ping centers for its long-standing
partners.
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Centros Shopping Gestion 
in Spain
Founded in July of 2001, Centros
Shopping Gestion (CSG), owned
jointly by Carrefour (50%) and
Ségécé (50%), provided rental
land building management serv-
ices for 87 shopping centers (67
for Klépierre) with a combined
GLA of 1.8 million square meters.
At the December 31, 2003
reporting date, CSG employed a
workforce of 109 people.

Devimo in Belgium
Devimo, a subsidiary in which
Ségécé has a 35% equity inter-
est, is the leading shopping cen-
ter manager in Belgium. New
mandates obtained in 2003
include the City 2 shopping center
(the second largest in Belgium),
the Waasland shopping center,
and the Louvain-la-Neuve movie
theaters owned by Klépierre.
Devimo is also leasing up the
Louvain-la-Neuve shopping cen-
ter, which is scheduled to open for
business in 2005.

FMC in Central Europe
B a s e d i n P r a g u e , F i r s t
Management Company (FMC)
manages the shopping centers
Novy Smichov in Prague and
Danubia in Bratislava.

First steps in Portugal
Sogecaec is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ségécé estab-
lished in Portugal in 2003 to
round out the European man-
agement network. Last year, the
9-person subsidiary managed 
3 shopping centers, including 
1 for a third-party client. As of
2004, it also manages 2 addi-
tional shopping centers that
were recently acquired by
Klépierre.

II – Office properties

The market
Despite the difficult economic
environment that prevailed in
2003, the Paris commercial prop-
erty rental market outperformed
forecasts, while the investment
market remained very upbeat.
A total of 1,708,600 square
meters was taken up, an increase
of 11% versus 2002 that brought
the market back to around its
2001 level.This solid performance
is attributable to a fourth-quarter

pick-up in activity during which
more than 500,000 square meters
of space was leased to tenants.
Rental adjustments and the qual-
ity of available space lured tenants
back to the traditional prime 
locations in the central business 
districts.
Spaces offering more than 3,000
square meters accounted for 53%
of total take-up.
At the December 31, 2003 report-
ing date, immediately available
space totaled roughly 2,960,000
square meters, a 12% increase

over 2002. The vacancy rate was
5.5% in central and western Paris,
and an average 6.5% in the Ile-de-
France region (versus 5% at
December 31, 2002).
Conversely, future supply declined
sharply. New construction fore-
casting needs for 2004 and 2005
together barely reach the 2003
level of roughly 1 million square
meters.
Headline rents for prime office
properties declined by 7% in the
Paris central business district
(€675/sq.m) and by 10% in La

Country
France
– Ségécé 197 40.7 9.2 151 5160 75%
– Ségécar 87 8.9 0.3 - - 100%
– Galaé 12 (1) - -1.2 - - 100%
– Ségécé LT 1 0.5 0.1 - - 100%
Portugal
– Sogecaec 9 0.5 0.1 3 230 100%
Spain
– Centros Shopping Gestion 109 10.2 2,6 87 3,024 50%
Italy
– PSG 80 8.5 1.0 (2)58 1,400 50%
Czech Republic and Slovakia
– FMC 21 1.1 -0.3 2 193 75%
Belgium
– Devimo 76 6.6 1.1 (3)16 960 35%
TOTAL 592 77.0 12.9 317 10,967
(1) revenues, excluding fees = €0.3 million. • (2) including 3 centers in Croatia. • (3) excluding Louvain-la-Neuve.
Note: Number of centers managed at 12/31/2003. Does not include centers acquired as of 12/31/2003 and managed as of 01.01.2004 (5 centers).
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Défense (€450/sq.m). However,
rental and tenant improvement
concessions increased.
With transactions totaling €9.5 
billion, the investment market
remained positively oriented in
2003, reflecting abundant liquidity
as well as the decision by many
French institutional investors and
US pension funds to harvest real-
estate assets in their portfolios.
German investors once again
dominated this market.
In addition, the range of yields
expanded significantly, with a
slight decrease observed for the
most sought-after assets.
Source: CB Richard Ellis Bourdais

Arbitrage policy in 2003
In 2003, Klépierre continued to
make divestitures as planned
under its office property arbitrage
program, focusing in particular on
selling properties recently re-let at
prevailing market rental rates.

The Group sold 6 assets of this
description, which together meas-
ured a total of 44,544 square
meters in weighted usable floor
area, for €175.9 million (versus
€150.1 million in 2002). The aver-
age price on these disposals was
6% higher than their appraised
values, and an average rate per
investor was 6.9%.
In parallel, Klépierre invested
€12.9 million to extend the
Camille-Desmoulins property in
Issy-les-Moulineaux. The exten-
sion, totaling 4,665 sq.m. of
weighted usable floor area, is
scheduled for delivery in June of
2004. The property, whose cost
price is €22.3 million, should gen-
erate additional rent of €0.8 mil-
lion in 2004 and full-year rent of
€1.6 million.
Klépierre intends to continue its
arbitrage program in 2004, albeit
at a slightly slower pace.
On January 1, 2004, more than

two-thirds of Klépierre’s holdings
were less than 15 years old, and
more than 94% were located in
Paris and its immediate outlying
area.
Klépierre’s office properties attract
commercial tenants of the first
rank: Alstom, Stéria, Hachette
Livre, Linklater’s & Paines, EDF,
Lever, Société Générale, Arts &
Technique du Progrès, Juris
Classeur and the French Ministry
of Finance. These clients, the top
10 tenants of Klépierre’s office
properties, account for over 46%
of total lease income (the 5 largest
tenants alone generate 30% of
total rents).
Of the 36 properties comprising
Klépierre’s portfolio, 10 generate
more than 60% of lease income.
Six of the 10 properties are
located within the city limits of
Paris and generate more than
54% of lease income.
Given the good general state of
repair of Klépierre’s office prop-
erty holdings, work undertaken in
2003 was limited to leasehold
improvements totaling €2.1 mil-
lion, of which 72% was re-invoiced
to tenants.

Rental business
On a constant portfolio basis,
rents increased by 3.1% over
2002 (+3.6% for office properties,

excluding warehouses). On a cur-
rent basis, they decreased by
8.7%. Divestitures completed in
2002 and 2003 reduced lease
income by €12.4 million, partly
offset by the acquisition of the
property located in Issy-les-
Moulineaux, which generated an
additional €3.5 million. Other fac-
tors that impacted lease income
included leasehold renegotiations
(+€1 million), index-linked rent
adjustments (+€1.5 million) and a
higher vacancy rate (-€0.6 mil-
lion).
The default rate at December 31,
2003 remained low (1.1%), attest-
ing to the quality of Klépierre’s ten-
ant mix and effective collection
methods.
Real-estate cash flow decreased
by 8.3%, falling from €77.1 million
in 2002 to €70.8 million in 2003.
The decline reflects disposals
completed in 2002 and 2003.
On a constant portfolio basis,
cash flow rose by 3.3% (of which
5.5% for office properties, exclud-
ing warehouses).
During the year, the Group signed
38 leases (including 18 new
leases) covering 62,382 square
meters of weighted usable floor
area and generating €14.8 million
in rents. At €9.7 million on a con-
stant basis, rents increased by
13% compared with prior rates.

At the December 31, 2003 report-
ing date, the weighted average
term of new leases negotiated
over a firm letting period was 
4.1 years.
The financial occupancy rate for
Klépierre’s office properties was
once again higher than the market
as a whole. At the December 31,
2003 reporting date, it was 97.3%
(versus 99.1% in 2002), while the
average annual rate was 98% in
2003 (versus 98.9% in 2002).

Solid potential 
for rental reversion
In all, Klépierre’s portfolio of
leases reveals an enhancement
capacity of more than 5%. This
marks a decline compared with
last year, primarily attributable to
an increase in index-linked rents
pegged to the cost of construction
index (+2.5% of the total in 2003)
and a decline in prevailing market
rents (more than 4% in 2003).
A total of 83 leases, which
account for over 42% of total
lease income, are scheduled for
renewal between now and the
end of 2006 – including more
than 35% in 2004. The total
upside potential for these rents
is over 14%, which translates
into a potential increase in total
rents of more than 5%, exclud-
ing disposals.

Square meters
Boulogne-Billancourt 92 – 127, rue d’Auguesseau 4082
Saint-Denis 93 – 103, rue Charles Michels 12364
Paris 15th – 100/102, avenue de Suffren 10010
Rueil-Malmaison 92-20, rue Jacques Daguerre 3237
Levallois-Perret 92 – Le Sémaphore 11402
Paris 17th – 141, rue de Clichy 3449

Six assets sold for a total of €176 million

OFFICE PROPERTY DIVESTITURES IN 2003
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Services
An office asset and property
management specialist, Klégestion
is a wholly owned subsidiary of
Klépierre. Despite the difficult
market environment that pre-
vailed in 2003, Klégestion’s
teams worked actively to exceed
the objectives of the asset arbi-
trage program (+17%) and to
optimize rental management.
Klégestion provided revenues of
€4.6 million in 2003, a 24%
decrease versus the previous
year that is primarily attributable
to a reduction in its portfolio of
business. Building management
fees amounted to €2.6 million,
while commissions on sales and
acquisitions totaled €2 million.
Sales fees, net of commissions
paid to outside parties, equaled
the 2002 total of €1.8 million.
Total payroll was €1.2 million in
2003, for a workforce of 16 people.
Net earnings totaled €1.8 million.

III – Income and current cash
flow

Operating income 390.9 350.9 11.40% 330.7
Payroll -39.3 -32.7 20.30% -28.3
Other operating income -40.8 -38.4 6.20% -48.1
Operating cash flow 310.8 279.8 11.10% 254.4
Depreciation and amortization -96.6 -88.5 9.20% -85.3
Accrued liabilities -0.2 -2.5 -91.50% -3.6
Financial results -110.5 -98.5 12.20% -96.8
Pre-tax results from operations 103.4 90.3 14.50% 68.9
Non-recurring results 31.2 63.2 -50.70% 62.4
Amortization of goodwill -0.5 -0.7 -24.80% -3.3
Corporate income tax -26.8 -54.5 -50.70% -45.9
Share in net income of equity method investees 0.4 0.4 11.20% 0.3
Net income 107.7 98.7 9.10% 82.4

Minority interest in net income -19.4 -17.6 9.90% -17.1
Group share in net income 88.3 81.1 8.90% 65.3

Pre-tax current cash flow(1) 201.1 180.4 11.50% 161.6
Group share of pre-tax results of operations(1) 79.3 66.2 19.70% 53.4
Group share of pre-tax current cash flow(1) 164.6 143.1 15.10% 129
Group share of current cash flow after tax(1) 147.6 121.8 21.20% 108.1

Ratios per share(1)

Number of shares (millions) 44,759 ,763 44,759 ,763 44 ,759,763
Net earnings/share (€) 2 1,8 1.5
Increase versus prior period 8.90% 18.90% 13.90%
Pre-tax net current cash flow /share (€) 1.8 1,5 1.2
Increase versus prior period 19.70% 24.00% -21.00%

Pre-tax current cash flow / share (€) 3.7 3.2 2.9
Increase versus prior period 15.00% 11.10% 17.10%
Current cash flow after tax / share (€) 3.3 2.7 2.4
Increase versus prior period 23.00% 12.80% 34.40%
(1) Data for 2001 restated for impact of convertible bond redemption in 2002. in € millions 

STATEMENT OF INCOME, CASH FLOWS AND RATIOS
2001

%2002
2003
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Commentary on the
statement of income
Klépierre generated revenues of
€386.2 million in 2003, an 11.9%
increase over the previous year.

Lease income totaled €353.2
million, of which €279 million
from shopping centers and
€74.2 million from office proper-
ties. Shopping center lease
income rose by 21% over 2002
on a current basis, and by 4.8%
on a constant portfolio basis,
while office property rents
decreased by 8.7% on a current
basis (due to asset disposals),
and increased by 3.1% on a cur-
rent basis.
Properties located outside of
France generated 27.6% of total
revenues. Other operating
income includes work re-
invoiced to tenants, entry fees
received and miscellaneous
income.
Payroll expense amounted to
€39.3 million, versus €32.7 mil-
lion one year prior. The increase
primarily reflects the full-year
consolidation of PSG, recruit-
ments in 2002 and 2003, and
the general rise in wages.
Other operating expenses
include building expenses and
general operating expenses.
Building expenses increased by

21.2%, to €20.3 million. The total
reflects a decrease in the Office
property segment (-10.5%) and a
significant increase in the
Shopping center segment
(+36.9%), primarily attributable to
acquisitions and to a lesser base
effect in 2002. The expense ratio
(total operating income/total
operating expense) was 20%,
unchanged over the last two
years.

Surplus cash flow from opera-
tions totaled €310.8 million, up
11.1% over 2002.

Depreciation and amortization
expense for the period increased
by 9.2% to €96.6 million. This
change does not fully reflect the
increase in Klépierre’s holdings,
since the principal consequence
of the asset revaluation of
January 1, 2003 was to increase
the share of land, which led to a
€6.3 million reduction in the
depreciation and amortization
expense for buildings and
improvements.
Financial results were a loss of
€110.5 million, versus a loss of
€98.4 million in 2002. The global
cost of debt for 2003 was 5.5%.
Klépierre’s financing policy is
described in detail below.

Pre-tax current cash flow was
€103.4 million, up 14.5% over
2002. Non-recurring results of
€31.2 million include €11.5 mil-
lion in capital gains realized on
the sale of 6 office buildings for a
total €176 million. Compared
with 2002, the effect of revalua-
tion was to reduce the impact of
programmed real-estate dispos-
als on non-recurring results.
Absent the revaluation, capital
gains would have amounted to
€85 million. In addition, the
restructuring of Klécentres gen-
erated a capital gain of €12.9
million, mostly neutralized by
taxes. In connection with the
aforementioned restructuring, a
previously neutralized internal
gain of €7.6 million on the sale
of an 11.24% interest in Solorec
(Créteil Soleil) was recognized.
The adoption of SIIC tax status
led to significant changes in
Klépierre’s corporate income tax
situation. Specifically, the
Company’s income is now classi-
fied in one of three different ways
for tax purposes:
- The SIIC segment, which
includes Klépierre and eligible
French real-estate subsidiaries.
Some of the latter maintain
some business that is subject to
corporate income tax at the pre-
vailing rate.

- The non-SIIC segment in
France.
- non-SIIC foreign companies.

Corporate income tax
recorded in 2003
In 2003, these three segments
recorded total tax expense of:

• a €1.4 million for the SIIC seg-
ment, including:
• a €5.1 million expense related
to the adoption of SIIC tax sta-
tus (exit tax based on the differ-
ence between accounting and
tax values, business wind-up
tax, cancellation of deferred tax
reserves at the beginning of the
year, and the cost of removing
subsidiaries from the tax con-
solidation group);
– a €4 million expense related
to restructurings undertaken by
Klépierre in anticipation of SIIC
tax status election;
– a €1.9 million expense in mis-
cellaneous taxes;
– a tax receivable of €9.9 mil-
lion for two loss carry-backs:
€5.3 million recorded in 2003
for the 2002 fiscal year and
€4.6 million to cover the 2003
losses of Klépierre’s tax eligible
segment.

• €12.9 million for non-SIIC
companies in France.

• €12.5 million for foreign com-
panies, including €7.4 million in
deferred tax expense, and €4.2
million in deferred tax expense
calculated for revalued deprecia-
tion and amortization and DAC
(deferred acquisition costs).

Effective tax expense
The exit tax payable in connec-
tion with the election of SIIC tax
status was €119.8 million, 
of which €29.9 million was paid
on December 15, 2003. Overall,
effective tax expense for the
year 2003 is €130.1 million, 
of which:
– €112.8 million for the SIIC tax
segment. The total includes the
up-front exit tax (€119.8 million);
the business wind-up tax plus
corporate income taxes for the
tax eligible segment (€1.3 mil-
lion); tax payable on the sale 
of Center Villepinte securities
(€4 million) less tax loss carry-
backs recorded in 2003 (€9.9
million) and 2002 (€2.3 million);
– €12.1 million for the non-SIIC
segment in France, including
€7.3 million incurred by Ségécé
and Klécar Europe Sud prior to
their transformation into a gen-
eral partnership (Société en
Commandite Simple);
– €5.2 million for foreign sub-
sidiaries.
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Consolidated net earnings
totaled €107.7 million in 2003,
versus €98.7 million in 2002.
The change in tax status and
resulting revaluation renders dif-
ficult any comparison between
data for 2003 and 2002.
Minority share in earnings was
€19.4 million, provided exclu-
sively by the shopping center
segment, bringing the Group
share in net earnings to €88.3
million.

Change in current 
cash flow
Pre-tax current cash flow
amounted to €201.2 million in
2003, up 11.4% over 2002. Group
share of pre-tax current cash flow
was €164.7 million, or €3.7 per
share, up 14.9% over last year.
Net current cash flow was €179.2
million. Group share of this
amount was €147.6 million, or
€3.3 per share.The 21% increase
reflects the impact of the new tax
status.

Adoption of IFRS Standards
In 2002, Klépierre began prepar-
ing for the adoption of IFRS
financial reporting standards.
One of its independent auditors
was asked to take on this assign-
ment in addition to the perform-
ance of its usual audits. As a first

step in the process, the stan-
dards were presented and their
impacts on Klépierre analyzed.
This review revealed that the fol-
lowing standards were the most
relevant to the Group:
1. IAS 40 (Investment Property),

which permits businesses to
choose between a fair value
model and a cost model for
accounting purposes

2. IAS 39 (Financial Instruments)
3. IAS 17 (Leases)
4. IAS 19 (Employee Benefits).
The second phase, which
began in 2003 with an analysis
of the principal financial and
accounting impacts, revealed
that the adoption of IAS 39 and
40 would have a significant
effect on the both the balances
sheet and the statement of
income. It also revealed that
adopting IAS 17 would require
changes to information sys-
tems. A detailed analysis of 
the financial and accounting
impacts of adopting IAS 19 
will be undertaken in 2004.
Moreover, the adoption of IAS
39 could lead Klépierre to
change part of its interest rate
hedging arrangement, augment-
ing its efficiency with respect to
changes in the underlying debt
instruments and hence limiting
the impact on income.

The Audit Committee was
apprised of these projects and
their findings on a regular
basis.
In 2004, Klépierre will apply
IFRS standards, but does not
plan to disclose the outcome,
for the purpose of establishing
a basis for comparison. As an
exception to the foregoing, it
will not apply IAS 39, as IFRS
authorities have indicated that a
basis for comparison was not
required.

B – Adoption 
of the SIIC tax status

General characteristics 
of the SIIC tax status
Article 11 of the French Budget
Act for 2003 and the decree of
July 11, 2003 offer a new tax-
exempt status to real-estate
investment companies (Sociétés
d’Investissements Immobiliers
Cotées - SIIC) listed on a regu-
lated market in France, provided
that they have minimum share
capital of €15 million and that
their principal corporate purpose
is to acquire and build properties
for rental, or to directly or indi-
rectly own shares in companies
having this corporate purpose.
The option is irrevocable.
Subsidiaries subject to corpo-
rate income tax in which the
company holds at least a 95%
equity interest can also elect the
new status.
Companies that opt for the SIIC
status in turn agree to distribute
85% of rental income, 50% of
the proceeds from the sale of
real-estate assets and all of the
dividends received from tax-
exempt subsidiaries.
These companies are liable for
an immediate 16.5% exit tax on
their unrealized capital gains
derived from property and secu-

rities in tax-exempt partnerships.
The first 25% of the exit tax is
payable on December 15 of the
year in which the company opts
for the new status, and the bal-
ance is payable over the next
three years.

Klépierre’s option
At their meeting on September
26, 2003, the shareholders of
Klépierre approved the adoption
of the new tax status. The French
tax authorities were notified of the
decision on the same date.
The decision is retroactive from
January 1, 2003.

Restructuring in
connection with SIIC 
tax status
To optimize the effects of this tax
status, Klépierre began a
restructuring program in July
2003. The program primarily
concerned Klécentres, in which
Klépierre acquired full ownership
in exchange for granting exiting
minority shareholders full owner-
ship of Gonesses Usine Center
(Center Villepinte); 50% owner-
ship of Bègles Arcins, owner of
the Rives d’Arcins center; and
11.24% of Solorec, owner of the
Créteil Soleil center.
In September 2003, Klécentres
and Klébureaux, two whol ly
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owned subsidiaries of the
Klépierre group, transferred their
assets and liabilities to the hold-
ing company under the terms of
a procedure known in France as
a TUP (transmission universelle
de patrimoine).
In addition, Ségécé, Klécar
Europe Sud, Bègles Arcins, 
Le Havre-Vauban, Le Havre-
Lafayette and Poitiers-Cordeliers,
simplified corporations (sociétés
anonymes simplifiées) that were
formerly subject to corporate
income tax, were transformed
into limited partnerships in fiscal
2003, with Klépierre SA as the
general partner.

In sum, Klépierre is now divided
into three distinct tax segments:

SIIC segment: Klépierre and
its eligible subsidiaries registered
in France. In fact, all of the
Group’s office properties fall
under this segment, as do most
of its French shopping centers,
with the notable exceptions of
Noisy Arcades (Secmarne) and
Les Passages in Boulogne
(Cécobil).

Non-SIIC companies in
France: Primarily Secmarne,
Cécobil, and management com-
panies. The latter are not eligible
for SIIC status.

Non-SIIC companies abroad:

By definition, these subsidiaries
are subject to the tax laws of
their country of incorporation
and hence are not eligible for
SIIC status.

Calculation of the exit tax
for companies opting for
the SIIC tax status
The up-front exit tax is payable 
by companies formerly subject 
to corporate income tax.
Companies that opt for the new
status are liable for an exit tax.
Fiscally transparent companies
that do not opt for corporate
income tax are consolidated
through their parent companies
that have opted for SIIC status
and that are liable for the exit tax
calculated on the basis of the
capital gain on SCI or SNC part-
nership units they hold.
For each company, the exit tax is
determined on the basis of the
difference between the fair mar-
ket value excluding transfer
duties and the tax value of fixed
assets or shares in companies.
Fair market values excluding
duties were determined using
appraised values including duties
as determined on December 31,
2002 to calculate RNA, and were
adjusted as follows:
- The fair market value of proper-
ties is calculated applying a 6%

discount for expenses and duties.
- The fair market value of SCIs
and SNCs is equal to RNA, dis-
counted by 4.80% for transfer
duties.

Thirty-three companies opted for
SIIC status in 2003 and are liable
for an exit tax of €119.8 million.
Some of these companies main-
tain taxable activities. In such
cases, the corporate income tax
was calculated on the basis of
prevailing rates.

Accounting treatment of
election of SIIC tax status

Revaluation of fixed tangible
and financial assets
In line with its decision to adopt
the new SIIC tax status,
Klépierre revalued the tangible
and financial fixed assets in its
consolidated balance sheet.
Pursuant to opinion No. 2003-C
issued on June 11, 2003 by the
French National Accounting
Board (Conseil National de la
Comptabilité), Klépierre recorded
gross revaluation reserves (for
excess of restated assets over
historical cost) of €784.6 million
for eligible assets on its opening
balance sheet, subject to an exit
tax of €119.4 million. Assets not
eligible for the new status were

revalued in the consolidated bal-
ance sheet.The resulting €130.6
million in revaluation reserves,
net of deferred taxes, was also
recorded as shareholders’ equity.
The methods for calculating the
revaluation reserve and the
impact of the revaluation on fixed
assets and amortizations of fixed
assets are described in detail in
paragraph 3.1 of the notes to the
financial statements for 2003.
In the corporate financial state-
ments of companies that have
opted for the new tax status, this
revaluation was performed on a
case-by-case basis to avoid
penalizing the future distributive
capacity of the companies in
question. It should be noted, in
particular, that Klépierre SA did
not revalue its corporate balance
sheet in connection with the elec-
tion of SIIC status.

Exit tax accounting
The exit tax was recorded:
- against the revaluation reserve
recorded as shareholders’ equity,
equal to the capital gain taxed at
a rate of 16.5% calculated on the
difference between the appraised
value and the consolidated net
book value;
- under Taxes in the statement of
income, equal to the capital gain
taxed at a rate of 16.5% calcu-
lated on the difference between
the tax value and the consoli-
dated net book on the value.
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Deferred taxes recorded at
the beginning of the year
Deferred income tax provisions
that are no longer necessary
have been transferred to the
statement of income.

Impacts on the opening balance
sheet on January 1, 2003 are
summarized in the above table.

Impact on the statement 
of income
The election of SIIC status modi-
fies three income statement line
items in particular:
- Depreciation and amortization
were calculated as a result of the
revaluation. By way of compari-
son, they would have totaled
€102.9 million in the consoli-

dated statements of income for
the year ended December 31,
2003 absent the revaluation. This
decrease is primarily attributable
to the strong increase in revalued
land values following new
land/building allocations and an
extension of amortization sched-
ules.
- Taxes: The change concerns
both current tax and capital gains
tax, as well as both tax payable
and tax deferred due to the new
status and the revaluation.
- The revaluation has a significant
impact on the level of capital
gains on the sale of assets. By
way of comparison, capital gains
post revaluation for 2003 total
€11.4 million, versus €85 million
absent the revaluation.

C – Revalued net
assets

At the December 31, 2003 report-
ing date, revalued net assets
(RNA) per share excluding trans-
fer duties and after deferred taxes
increased by 12% to €46.9
(€41.9 at December 31, 2002).
Net assets including transfer
duties were €5.2 billion (total
share) and €4.6 billion (group
share). On a constant portfolio
basis, shopping center assets
increased in value by 5.9% in
2003, while office assets depreci-
ated by 0.2% over the same
period.

Valuation of holdings
For several years, Klépierre has

entrusted the task of assessing
the value of its holdings to the
same appraisers. For office and
warehouse holdings, Foncier
Expertise and Coextim jointly
perform this task. Retail
Consulting Group values shop-
ping center holdings. The terms
of appointment for these experts
comply with recommendation
issued by the COB “Barthès de
Ruyter” Workgroup.

Analysis of holdings
At the December 31, 2003
reporting date, Klépierre’s real-
estate holdings encompassed all
or part of 255 real-estate assets:
219 retail complexes, 34 office
buildings and two warehouses.
The total value (including transfer

duties) of these holdings was 
€5,225.2 million (€4,569.5 mil-
lion group share).
The value of shopping center
holdings totaled €4,214.7 million
(€3,559.4 million group share).
Twelve have a unit value that is
greater than €75 million (they
account for 36% of the total esti-
mated value); 50 have values
ranging from €15 million to €75
million; and 157 have values
below €15 million.
Office properties wholly owned
by Klépierre are valued at
€1,009.2 million. Four have an
estimated unit value that is
greater than €75 million (they
account for 33.9% of the total
estimated value for this sector).
Eighteen have values ranging
from €15 million to €75 million;
and 12 have values below €15
million. None of the warehouse
properties is valued above €10
million.

Revalued net assets up
12% in 2003
At the December 31, 2003 report-
ing date, the revalued value of
Klépierre’s net assets (RNA) inclu-
sive of property transfer duties and
prior to the dividend distribution in
respect of 2003 is €2,307.8 million
(€51.6 per share).
RNA excluding transfer duties

Fixed assets 3,559.5 969.4 4,528.9

Current assets 213.3 213.3
Cash and near cash 110.3 110.3
Deferred tax assets 53.2 -45.3 7.9
Adjustement accounts 18.4 18.4

Total assets 3,954.8 924.1 4,878.8

ASSETS
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- o/w group earnings 81.1 -6.3 74.8
Minority interests 357.7 104.6 462.3
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and losses 17.2 17.2
Deferred tax liabilities 95.6 5.3 100.9
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totals €2,123.8 million (€47.4 per
share).
RNA excluding transfer duties and
after deferred taxation amounted
to €2,101.1 million (€46.9 per
share).
In light of the adoption of the SIIC
tax status and payment of the 
up-front exit tax, the increase in
RNA excluding transfer duties on
December 31, 2003 is not compa-
rable with data for December 31,
2002. The revaluation reflected in
the consolidated financial state-
ments at January 1, 2003 on the
basis of appraised values exclud-
ing transfer duties at December
31, 2002 accompanied the record-
ing of an exit tax expense (which
corresponds to a 16.5% tax calcu-
lated on the differences between
the tax values before revaluation
and the appraised values exclud-
ing transfer duties at December
31, 2002). For this year, the
increase in RNA can only be
determined on the basis of RNA
excluding transfer duties and after
deferred taxation on unrealized
capital gains. Further, this must be
calculated on the December 31,
2002 reporting date since this was
not the case before, which was the
practice, on the basis of the open-
ing balance sheet at January 1,
2003 after revaluation.
Based on this calculation, which

yields a value of €41.9 per share,
RNA excluding transfer duties and
after deferred taxation at January
1, 2003, increased by 12% over
one year.

D – Debt 
financing

A conservative 
financing policy
In 2003, Klépierre pursued a
financing policy consistent with
the objectives pursued over the
past few years; namely, to
strengthen its financial structure
and minimize the cost of capital
while ensuring the continuity of
resources.
In 2003, the Group’s financing
requirements, in addition to the
free cash flow generated by
operations, investments and dis-
posals, were unchanged versus
2002 at approximately €330 mil-
lion.
The stronger financial structure
helped to maintain the key finan-
cial ratios well within the Group’s
targeted upper limits. At year-
end 2003, corporate debt was
equal to 44.7% of the fair market
value of real-estate holdings
(compared with an upper limit of
50%); EBITDA was 2.8 times net
interest expense (versus an
objective of between 2.5 and 3);

and net current cash flow was
7.8% of debt (compared with a
minimum of 6%).

Corporate 
debt structure
New borrowings were structured
with the aim of diversifying coun-
terparties, sources of financing
(bank, mortgage and syndicated
loans) and debt maturities.
In early 2003, the Group con-
tracted a €770 million syndicated
loan to refinance existing lines of
credit as well as to finance new
investments. Established with a
syndicate of 6 lending institutions,
it includes a €270 million back-up
facility for the commercial paper
program and a medium-term loan
of €500 million – amortizable in
two equal installments, in 2007
and 2009.
Four financing arrangements
totaling an estimated €200 million
were contracted by subsidiaries in
Italy, Portugal, and Belgium. At the
December 31, 2003 reporting
date, the most significant of these
was Klecar Italia’s 12-year, €126
million loan.
Undrawn credit lines totaled
approximately €450 million at the
December 31, 2003 reporting
date. The average due date on
outstanding debt was between
4.1 and 4.4 years.

Securities issued
and principal loans contracted
Bonds Fixed 600 July 08 (1)yes
BNP Paribas bridge loan Floating 225 Feb. 07 yes
Syndicated loan 1 Floating 670 Jan. 06 yes
Syndicated loan 2 Floating 500 March-09 yes
Mortgage loan – Italy Floating 126 June-15 yes
Back-up facility 
for commercial paper Floating 270 (2)March. 04 yes
Overdrafts Floating 68 Revolving no
(1) Fixed rate assigned in 2000 then swapped for a variable-rate instrument upon issue 
in July 2001.
(2) Renewable for one year

DESCRIPTION OF PRINCIPAL
FINANCING INSTRUMENTS
authorizations at December 31, 2003 in € millions
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A DIVERSIFIED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE
DRAWN AT 12/31/2003

� 27% Bond market
� 10% Bridge loans
� 39% Syndicated loans
� 4% Conventional bilateral borrowings
� 9% Mortgage loans
� 1% Capital leases
� 10% Commercial paper



E – Human 
resources

Klépierre’s human resources
policy is guided by three values:
creativity, commitment and
responsiveness. These values
guide employee career manage-
ment and industrial relations
within each subsidiary, as well 
as the Group’s policy on sus-
tainable development, which
includes the management of
human resources.
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Interest-rate hedging
Klépierre took advantage of the
drop in interest rates in the first
half of 2003 to optimize its debt-
hedging program. With 90% of its
fixed-rate debt hedged over an
average remaining term exceed-
ing the due date on debt, aver-
age interest on fixed-rate hedges
decreased from 4.7% to 4.4%
when the Euribor is below 6%.
The portfolio of interest-rate
swaps includes €1 294 million in
conventional swaps, €440 million
in collar swaps and €824 million
in structured products that are
automatically deactivated when
the Euribor rate exceeds 6%, at
which point Klépierre becomes
the payer of the Euribor rate less
60 basis points. These terms are
acceptable for Klépierre, since
periods during which short-term
interest rates remain durably

above 6.60% are often corre-
lated with periods of high infla-
tion, the impact of which is
mostly passed on to tenants via
leases pegged to the inflation
index.

Global cost of debt
In 2003, the global cost of debt
(ratio of interest expense to aver-
age outstanding debt) was 5.5%,
down from 5.6% in 2002.
Forecast on the basis of the
financial structure and interest
rates, the cost of debt was
around 5.25% at year-end 2003.
Interest-rate hedges reduced the
sensitivity of this cost to fluctua-
tions: a 100 basis point increase
in the Euribor would increase the
global cost of debt to 0.07%,
which translates into a decrease
of €1.6 million in pre-tax current
cash flow. The Klépierre group’s workforce

is divided among several sub-
sidiaries.

Workforce in France: Klépierre
Services is an inter-company
partnership whose employees
provide services to three compa-
nies, Ségécé, Klégestion, and
CB Pierre, each of which in turn
has its own employees. Galaé, a
jointly-owned subsidiary of
Klépierre and Ségécé, also
employs personnel in France.

Workforce abroad: Ségécé sub-
sidiaries Centros Shopping
Gestion, PSG, Devimo, FMC and
Sogecaec account for the bulk of
the workforce employed abroad.

Short term Long term Outlook
A-2 BBB+ stable

CORPORATE CREDIT RATING
Standard and Poor’s rating:

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 12/31/2003 (ADJUSTED)

NBV: net book value; UCG: Unrealized capital gains

Assets Liabilities
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UCG –Shareholders’ equity

NBV – minority interests
UCG – minority interests
Bridge loan

Bonds – July 2008

Other bank borrowings

Commercial paper
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Klépierre hired 32 new employ-
ees for its French-based opera-
tions in 2003, including 13
advanced-degree holders. In
addition, 29 Ségécar employees
previously based in Evry (near
Paris) joined Ségécé staff based
in the French capital. The Group
also introduced a program
intended to rapidly harmonize the
methods and tools used to

process rental and property man-
agement transactions involving
both Immobilière Carrefour and
Ségécé assets.
The integration of these two
shopping center networks, com-
bined with the establishment of
four regional operating depart-
ments, has led to changes in the
role and responsibilities of shop-
ping center managers. To meet

this challenge, the Company’s
geographic mobility support
measures and policies have
been supplemented.

Composition of workforce
in France by gender
The Klépierre group’s commit-
ment to gender equality extends
beyond issues such as employ-
ment, pay, professional training
and development, qualifications,
promotion and mobility to encom-
pass all facets of professional life.
While Klépierre’s workforce was
made up of a roughly equal num-
ber of men and women in 2003,
men held 64% of the Company’s
management positions.

Temporary staff
The hiring of interim employees
was moderate in 2003, with
hours worked by temporary man-
power equal to 1,326 days (ver-
sus 786 in 2002). This is the
equivalent of six full-time posi-
tions.

Training and development
In France, 224 Klépierre
employees completed 3,450
hours of training. Based on an
average workforce of 403
employees, the rate of access to
training was 56% in 2003.
Following the integration of
Eurocenter and Effe Kappa in
Italy on January 1, 2003, the
number of employees based
abroad increased from 237 to
301, with the rise primarily
attributable to higher staffing
levels at Devimo in Belgium and
the establishment of Sogecaec
in Portugal. Employees of for-
eign subsidiaries received train-
ing and support from the
Paris-based teams on the use
of rental management software.
In addition, the Group head of
human resources initiated a
program of on-site visits, and
managers from the largest
Group subsidiaries took part in
the annual Ségécé seminar.
The year 2002 was devoted to

At December 31, 2003
Ségécé - Ségécar 284
Ségécé Loisirs & Transactions 1
Galaé 12
Centros Shopping Gestion 109
PSG 80
SARL EFFE Kappa 6
Sogecaec 9
FMC 21
Devimo 76
SAS Klégestion 16
SAS CB Pierre 3
GIE - Klépierre Services 90
Klépierre Group 707

Office properties 38
Shopping centers 669
Klépierre Group 707

France 406
Abroad 301
Klépierre Group 707

WORKFORCE

COMPOSITION OF WORKFORCE IN FRANCE BY GENDER

� 44% Men 
� 56% Women

� 49% Men 
� 51% Women 

20032002
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intensive labor-management
dialogue that resulted in the
establishment of formal person-
nel representation and the
negotiation of agreements on
employee profit sharing and the
reduced workweek. In 2003, the
focus was on transition and con-
solidation: the Group introduced
guidelines on the use of IT
resources, and also harmonized
the various internal guidelines
and agreements on the reduced
workweek in place throughout
the Group. These efforts helped
to strengthen Klépierre’s corpo-
rate identity.

Compensation 
and benefits
Klépierre’s compensation and
benefits policy seeks to inspire
motivation by offering equitable
rewards based on individual
skills and level of involvement in
and contribution to the com-
pany’s business and economic
performance. Consistent with
this aim, Ségécé revised its fee
structure by including individual
employee contributions to
shopping center performance in
annual plans. This initiative
serves to unite the various
teams involved in their develop-
ment around a shared objec-
tive.

Industrial relations
Personnel representation:
– Ségécé: Works council, per-
sonnel delegation and an occu-
pational health and safety
committee
– Klépierre Service, Klégestion
and CB Pierre: single personnel
delegation and occupational
health and safety committee.

F – Outlook

Throughout 2004 and beyond,
Klépierre will remain focused on
the development of its shopping
center business in Continental
Europe. In 2002, the Group initi-
ated a 2 to 2.5 billion invest-
ment program that calls for an
average annual outlay of 500 mil-
lion. Most of the investments,
which have already been identi-
fied, involve the Group’s partner-
ship with the Carrefour group and,
to a lesser extent, with Finiper and
Finim in Italy. They are also the
fruit of development projects initi-
ated by Ségécé in France. In addi-
tion to this substantial external
growth, the Group’s existing real-
estate holdings also show signifi-
cant potential for extension. The
most advanced extension projects
involve properties located in
France and Spain. Klépierre may
also step up investments in

Central Europe going forward,
provided projects that meet its
investment criteria – notably in
terms of rental value and expo-
sure to competitive forces – are
identified. However, Klépierre’s
investments in this region will be
limited to 10% of the total value of
its holdings.
At the same time, the Group
intends to continue refining its
expertise in shopping center man-
agement. The keys to Klépierre’s
success lie in the variety of busi-
ness activities conducted via
Ségécé and its subsidiaries. They
include new project development
and lease-up; real-estate and
rental asset management; and the
continuous adaptation of these
merchandizing assets to con-
sumer needs. Extending this
expertise to all of Europe is the
locomotive of future growth.
Moreover, by successfully blend-
ing these different businesses
with a long-term investment strat-
egy, Klépierre will become a key
driver of sustainable development
that respects the environment, the
role of shopping centers in the
community, the desire of its
employees to achieve results, and
the expectations of its sharehold-
ers.
In the office property segment,
Klépierre will pursue an oppor-

tunistic strategy that is consistent
with the real-estate cycle govern-
ing this type of investment. In
recent years, this strategy has led
Klépierre to capitalize on market
orientation and dispose of a signif-
icant portion of its mature office
property assets under optimal
conditions. In 2004, the observed
decline in rental values and, to a
lesser extent, in property values,
will slow the pace of timely divesti-
tures. However, the Group does
not rule out the option of once
again becoming a buyer in this
market segment, if genuine
opportunities arise, provided that
doing so does not alter its profile
as a long-term investor in and
manager of shopping center
assets.
Klépierre also intends to maintain
its conservative financing policy,
particularly in terms of debt ratios
and interest-rate hedging. The
Group primarily funds its invest-
ments out of free cash flow, liq-
uidities generated by asset
disposals, and limited recourse to
debt. While the current growth
agenda does not suggest the
need for a new equity issue in the
near term, the aforementioned
investment volumes are not incon-
sistent with a capital increase 
over the medium-term horizon.
Klépierre may consider all financ-

ing alternatives intended to
strengthen its shareholders’
equity, depending on the require-
ments of its growth agenda and
provided that any new assets
acquired generate sufficient
returns to neutralize the dilutive
impact.

The Group remains confident in
its ability to obtain further improve-
ments in key performance indica-
tors and to once again achieve
double-digit growth in net current
cash flow per share in 2004.

The management report also
includes legal and general infor-
mation, provided on pages 149
through 170.



81

management repport

five-year financial summary

Share capital at the end of period
A) Equity capital 179039052 119359368 107068456 98700486 98678305
B) Number of outstanding common shares (1)44759763 14919921 13383557 12948655 12945745

Operations and results of fiscal year
A) Revenues (excluding taxes) 19307053 21366600 19723678 18628880 18476514
B) Income before taxes, employee profit-sharing, 

depreciation and amortization 308448916 57603109 58980051 42686711 71965087
C) Corporate income tax -5961605 -3531913 -7219508 5344860 15600704
D) Income after taxes, employee sharing, 

depreciation and amortization 305275354 51799156 64956994 28040477 46401648
E) Distributed profit 89519526 52219724 41489027 35608801 32364362

Earnings per share
A) Income after taxes, employee profit sharing 

and before depreciation and amortization (1)7.02 4.10 4.95 2.88 4.35
B) Income after taxes, employee profit-sharing, 

depreciation and amortization (1)6.82 3.47 4.85 2.17 3.58
C) Net dividend attributable per share (1)2.00 3.50 3.10 2.75 2.50

Workforce(2)

A) Average number of salaried employees during the fiscal year
B) Payroll for the fiscal year 0 0 0 15245 15245
C) Employee benefits 0 0 0 0 56

in €

(1) Oustanding shares triple throughout a 2-for-1 stock split and the allotment of one free share of stock for two shares at the date of April 24, 2003.

(2) Salaried employees of SAS Klégestion as of July 1, 1998.
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Report of the Supervisory
Board to the Annual General
Meeting of the Shareholders
called to approve the finan-
cial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2003.

To the Shareholders,

In accordance with the provisions
of Article L. 225-68 of the French
Company Code (Code de Com-
merce), we hereby submit our
opinions on the Executive Board 
report that was just presented to
you, and on the corporate and con-
solidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2003.

The Executive Board kept the
Supervisory Board informed of the
Group’s business and operations
on a regular basis throughout 
the year. In accordance with its
stated purpose, the Supervisory
Board conducted the necessary
checks and controls.

82

The Supervisory Board has set up
special sub-committees to assist
it in the performance of its duties.
They are the Investment Committee,
the Audit Committee and the
Compensation Committee.

After examining the Executive Board
report and the earnings for the year
ended December 31, 2003, we
have no particular observations to
make, and ask that you approve the
financial statements and the reso-
lutions submitted today, with the
exception of the twenty-second res-
olution.

The Supervisory Board would like
to thank the Executive Board and
all employees of the Klépierre Group
for their hard work and accom-
plishments in 2003.

The Supervisory Board

Report by the Supervisory Board
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2. Internal Control
Klépierre is governed by an Exe-
cutive Board and a Supervisory
Board, and its majority share-
holder is a leading banking
group. This legal framework was
a decisive factor in determining
the features of its system of inter-
nal control.

a) The purpose of internal con-
trol procedures are:
– to ensure that the Company’s
business transactions and oper-
ations, as well as the behavior of
its employees, comply with the
guidelines set forth by its govern-
ing boards, laws and regulations
in force, and its values, stan-
dards and internal policies and
procedures;
– to verify that accounting, finan-
cial and management information
communicated to the Company’s
governing boards accurately
reflects the Company’s business
operations and financial condition.

One of the aims of the internal con-
trol system is to detect and manage
the Company’s inherent business
risks, as well as the risk of error or
fraud, particularly in the areas of
accounting and finance. Like any
system of control, however, it can-
not offer an absolute guarantee that
such risks are totally eliminated.

The greatest potential sources of
financial and operating risk facing
the Group are described in the
Legal and General Information
section of the annual report. The
Supervisory Board is particularly
attentive to risks related to ethics
and the company’s image.

b) A key component of the
Company’s internal control sys-
tem is the separation of execu-
tive power between those who
exercise control or supervision
(the Supervisory Board), and
those who manage the business
(the Executive Board). The
Supervisory Board’s control
function and its operating proce-
dures are described in para-
graph 1 above.

Second, because its majority
shareholder is BNP Paribas,
Klépierre must comply with
banking industry regulations as
well as with the special internal
control regulations applicable to
large international banking insti-
tutions. These regulations are
based on the recommendations
of the Basel Committee and the
Banking Regulations Committee
regulation 97-02 (amended).
Klépierre has adapted these
internal control principles to suit
its particular constraints:

The indivisibility of internal
control and business responsibili-
ties. To meet this requirement,
and in accordance with its corpo-
rate purpose, the Klépierre Group
has set up its own internal control
system, placed under the respon-
sibility of its governing boards.

The principle of delegation, to
ensure that policies are imple-
mented consistently and to
maintain a clear separation of
power, in particular between
those who execute and those
who validate operations. Both of
these principles guide the
Group’s organization.

A repository of procedural
guidelines that are binding on all
of the Group’s affiliates.

The Group has enacted formal
internal audit guidelines that
define a three-tier system of con-
trol designed to ensure the over-
all security of the internal control
system:

The first level of control is per-
formed by each employee on
transactions and tasks that he or
she completes in accordance with
the operating procedures in force.

The second level of control is
exercised by management,
which is responsible for ensuring
the relevance of policies and pro-
cedures in force and compliance

Report of the Chairman of
the Supervisory Board to
the Shareholders, prepared
in compliance with Article
L. 225-68 of the French
Company Code (Code de
Commerce)

Pursuant to Article 117 of the
French Act on Financial Security
of August 1, 2003, this report
describes how the work of the
Supervisory Board is prepared
and organized, as well as the
Klépierre Group’s internal control
procedures.

1. Preparation and organization
of the work of the Supervisory
Board
The Supervisory Board’s primary
role is to exercise ongoing
supervision of the work of the
Executive Board. To fulfill this
mission, it conducts various 
verifications and controls and
requests information on an as
needed basis. The Executive
Board must provide the
Supervisory Board with a man-
agement report at least once
each quarter, and must submit
the financial statements for veri-
fication and control.

The Supervisory Board executes
its functions in accordance with

the Company’s Internal Control
Procedures. Three of the
Supervisory Board’s seven mem-
bers are independent, and three
special sub-committees assist
the Board in the performance of
its duties:
– Investment Committee
–Audit Committee
–Compensation Committee

The makeup, purview and oper-
ating procedures of these com-
mittees are described in the
Corporate Governance section
of the annual report.

The work of the Supervisory
Board and its special sub-
committees is prepared and
organized by their respective
chairmen, who are the Chairman
or Vice Chairman of the Board,
as the case may be, assisted by
the Board Secretary or the rele-
vant sub-committee secretary.

In 2003, the Board and its sub-
committees met on a regular
basis:
–Supervisory Board: 8 times
– Investment Committee: 6 times
–Audit Committee: 5 times
–Compensation Committee: once.

Report of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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therewith, as well for monitoring
business and legislative changes.

The third level is exercised by
auditors. The Klépierre Group has
its own internal audit unit, which is
fully independent from operations.
Its role is to provide the company’s
governing boards with assur-
ances that operations are proper-
ly controlled and to recommend
improvements. The internal audit
unit works in accordance with an
audit plan, the aim of which is to
ensure that periodic checks are
conducted on the main areas of
risk and to assess the effective-
ness and efficiency of the overall
systems of internal control.
Auditors also perform a number of
specialized and independent con-
trols within the Klépierre Group.
Examples include “Ethics and
Compliance” and “Operational
Risk Management.” Audit findings
are submitted directly to the
Executive Board and the Audit
Committee, and serve as the
basis for reports, recommenda-
tions and implementation plans.
In 2004, to bring the Company
into compliance with best prac-
tices in the area of internal audit,
and to support the pursuit of rapid
business development in Europe,
the Group intends to increase the
number of employees assigned to
this third level of control.

In addition, Klépierre may submit
its organization and procedures
to a review by the General
Inspection unit of the BNP
Paribas Group. The conclusions
and recommendations of an
audit of this type, performed in
the spring of 2003, were submit-
ted to the Supervisory Board.
The Board is monitoring imple-
mentation.

c)The clarity of financial informa-
tion and the relevance of account-
ing methods are the monitored by
the Audit Committee, in liaison
with the independent auditors.

Acting under the responsibility 
of the Chief Financial Officer,
Klépierre’s accounting department
and consolidation department
prepare the Group’s corporate
and consolidated financial state-
ments.

Accounting records and work for
French subsidiaries are central-
ized at Klépierre headquarters
on a shared information system.
The consolidation department is
responsible for ensuring that the
accounting data submitted by
subsidiaries in France and
abroad is correctly reused, and
analyzes all restatements and
reclassifications made for the

purposes of consolidation pur-
suant to the provisions of CRC
99-02.

An accounting committee meets
several times per year to define
Group-level rules applicable to
all subsidiaries. Klépierre also
calls on the services of external
experts, primarily for tax plan-
ning advice.

A new management role (head of
accounting procedures and con-
trols) was created in February of
2003 with the aim of implement-
ing and updating accounting con-
trol procedures. New procedures
governing the establishment of
work records and other support-
ing documents went into effect for
the first time at the 2003 year-
end cut-off date.

A second level of control ensures
that documents supporting
accounting cut-offs exist, are
complete, and are reliable. This
applies in particular to docu-
ments pertaining to items per-
taining to rental income and
expense, depreciation and amor-
tization, interest income and
expense, accrued non-matured
interest on loans, current
accounts and interest-rate hedg-
ing instruments.

A third level of control, in the
form of internal management
audits, is performed on financial
statements and intermediate bal-
ances to test for consistency and
reasonableness. In particular:

Income statement balances
are compared with those of the
prior period and with budget
forecasts.

Rental income and expenses
are examined and analyzed in
detail.

Particular attention is paid to
changes and trends in various
line items – other income, payroll
expense, general operating
costs and other expenses.
Operating departments are
asked to provide an explanation
whenever an unusual change is
detected.

d) A project for updating and/or
drafting procedures was also
launched in 2003. At the end of
the year, 53% of internal proce-
dures had been validated and
disseminated to personnel.
Finally, in compliance with appli-
cable standards, a structured
project is being carried out with
the aim of implementing a full set
of risk monitoring tools that will
improve the risk management
function. Detailed risk mapping is
part of this process, from which a

set of FSP (fundamental surveil-
lance points) is being imple-
mented. In addition, the best
tools available for analyzing
operating incidents are being
rolled out, and the recommenda-
tions that have emerged from
internal audit work are being
applied.

In conclusion, the effort made to
improve the Group’s internal
control procedures has pro-
duced tangible benefits, and will
be pursued in 2004.

March 9, 2004

Vivien Lévy-Garboua
Chairman of the 
Supervisory Board
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Financial Year Ended
December 31, 2003

Report of the statutory auditors,
prepared in accordance with the
last paragraph of Article L. 225-
235 of the French Commercial
Code, on the Report of the
Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of Klépierre, as regards
the internal control procedures
relating to the preparation and
processing of accounting and
financial information.

To the Shareholders 
of Klépierre,

In our capacity as statutory audi-
tors of Klépierre, and in accor-
dance with the last paragraph of
Article L. 225-235 of the French
Commercial Code, we report to
you on the report prepared by the
Chairman of your Company in
accordance with Article L. 225-68
of the French Commercial Code
for the financial year ended
December 31, 2003.
Under the responsibility of the
Supervisory Board, it is the man-
agement’s responsibility to deter-
mine and implement appropriate

and effective internal control pro-
cedures. It is the Chairman’s
responsibility to give an account,
in his report, in particular of the
conditions in which the work of
Supervisory Board is prepared
and organized and the internal
control procedures in place with-
in the Company.
It is our responsibility to report to
you our observations on the
information and statements set
out in the Chairman’s report on
the internal control procedures
relating to the preparation and
processing of financial and
accounting information.
In accordance with French profes-
sional standards and accounting
doctrine, we have gained an
understanding of the objectives
and general organization of the
internal control, as well as the inter-
nal control procedures relating to
the preparation and processing of
financial and accounting informa-
tion, as set out in the Chairman’s
report.
As this is the first year of appli-
cation of the provisions of Law
No. 2003-706 of August 1, 2003,
and in the absence of generally
recognized practices as to the
content of the Chairman’s report,

the report does not include an
assessment of the adequacy
and efficiency of the internal 
control procedures relating to 
the preparation and processing
of financial and accounting infor-
mation. Consequently, the same
limitation applies to the scope of
our procedures and to the con-
tent of our own report.
Apart from the limitation set out
above, and on the basis of the
procedures we have performed,
we have no comments to make
in connection with the informa-
tion and the statements made on
the internal control procedures
relating to the preparation and
processing of financial and
accounting information, con-
tained in the Chairman’s report,
prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the last paragraph
of Article L. 225-68 of the French
Commercial Code.

March 9, 2004

The Statutory Auditors
Mazars & Guérard:
Odile Coulaud
Ernst & Young Audit:
Patrice Coslin

This is a free translation into
English of the statutory auditors’
reports issued in the French lan-
guage and is provided solely for
the convenience of English speak-
ing readers.The statutory auditors’
report includes for the information
of the reader, as required under
French law in any auditor’s report,
whether qualified of not, explana-
tory paragraphs separate from and
presented below the audit opinion
discussing the auditors’ assess-
ments of certain significant
accounting and auditing matters.
These assessments were consid-
ered for the purpose of issuing an
audit opinion on the annual finan-
cial statements taken as a whole
and not to provide separate assur-
ance on individual account caption
or on information taken outside of
the annual financial statements.
Such report, together with the
statutory auditors report address-
ing financial reporting in manage-
ment’s report on internal control,
should be read in conjunction and
construed in accordance with
French law and French auditing
professional standards.

report of the statutory auditors
on the report of the chairman of the supervisory board
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consolidated financial statements

consolidated statements of income
AT DECEMBER 31

200120022003
Lease income 353193 311891 271403
Lease income from management and administration 32637 31541 32013
Proceeds from sales of projects under development 335 1529 22597
Other income from operations 4736 5961 4712
TOTAL INCOME FROM OPERATIONS (note 18) 390901 350922 330725

Cost price for projects under development - 285 - 1276 - 16895
Other operating expenses (note 19) - 39577 - 36212 - 30119
Taxes and duties - 934 - 926 - 1043
Payroll expense (note 24) - 36829 - 30670 - 26741
Employee profit-sharing and expenses - 2514 - 2025 - 1512
Depreciation and amortization (note 19) - 96598 - 88456 - 85250
Net balance of allowances to and releases of reserves - 213 - 2511 - 3552
Results of operations 213951 188846 165613

Interest income 94522 92754 81424
Interest expense - 205024 - 191269 - 178182
Financial results (note 20) - 110502 - 98515 - 96758

Pre-tax results of operations 103449 90331 68855

Non-recurring results (note 21) 31191 63248 62414
Goodwill amortization (note 21) - 539 - 717 - 3292
Corporate income tax (note 22) - 26844 - 54500 - 45888
Net earnings of consolidated companies 107257 98362 82089

Share in net income of equity method investees 396 356 312

NET EARNINGS OF CONSOLIDATED GROUP 107653 98718 82401
Share attributable to minority interests - 19358 - 17619 - 17106

NET INCOME, GROUP SHARE 88295 81099 65295
in € thousands

Earnings per share
Number of shares (undiluted basis) * 44759763 14919921 13383557
Net income, group share (in € thousands) 88295 81099 65295
Net income, group share per share 2.0 5.4 4.9
* The number of shares tripled in 2003 following the two-for-one stock split and the allocation of one free share for every two shares. in € thousands
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consolidated financial statements

consolidated balance sheets

ASSETS AT DECEMBER 31,
NetNetNetDep

re
ci

at
io

n 

an
d 

am
or

tiz
at
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n

Gro
ss

2001
Fixed assets 4968084 118417 4849667 3559486 3181795
Intangible fixed assets (notes 2.2 - 2.4) 48806 11078 37728 52278 48659
Purchase goodwill (note 2.1) 20061 6283 13778 12396 28156
Tangible fixed assets (notes 2.2 - 2.4) 4809958 100285 4709673 3416362 3041638
Land 2265912 2265912 1544316 1201506
Buildings and improvements 2541305 99401 2441904 1869897 1838105
Other tangible fixed assets 2741 884 1857 2149 2027
Long-term financial assets (note 2.5) 87357 771 86586 77808 62935
Equity securities in equity method investees (note 2.6) 1902 1902 642 411
Current assets 312903 4218 308685 323743 330578

Inventory of projects under development (note 3) 3837 3837 3302 2380
Trade notes and accounts payable (note 4) 23293 4110 19183 16827 19950
Miscellaneous receivables (note 5) 176932 108 176824 193310 177864
Marketable securities (note 6) 43191 43191 65802 80810
Cash and near cash 65650 65650 44502 49574
Deferred tax assets (note 10) 7305 7305 53178 81193
Adjustment accounts (note 7) 20695 20695 18431 20782

TOTAL ASSETS 5308987 122635 5186352 3954838 3614348
in € thousands
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Shareholders’ equity (note 8) 1839126 1124141 937517
Share capital 179040 119360 107053
Additional paid-in capital 680124 680107 545214
Legal reserve 12513 11284 10447
Consolidated reserves 879154 232291 209507
Earnings for the period 88295 81099 65296
Minority interests (note 9) 416677 357670 335850

Deferred tax credits (note 10) 110652 95566 89188

Provisions for contingencies and losses (note 11) 14705 17241 10655

Debt 2793469 2349822 2226753

Borrowings and financing debt (note 12) 2427426 2103950 1944391
Trade notes and accounts payable (note 13) 33498 34187 21302
Other debt (note 14) 332545 211685 261060
Adjustment accounts (note 15) 11723 10398 14386

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5186352 3954838 3614348
in € thousands

LIABILITIES AT DECEMBER 31,
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consolidated financial statements

consolidated statements of cash flows

AT DECEMBER 31,

20022003
Cash flow from operations
Net income of consolidated companies 107653 98718 82089
Elimination of expenses and income with no material impact on cash flow
- Amortization and depreciation 105448 101085 94759
- Capital gains and losses on sales of assets, net of taxes and deferred taxes -17350 - 55948 - 63411
Cash flow of consolidated companies 195743 143855 113437
Change in working capital requirements(1) - 58523 - 13185 146835
Cash flow from operations 137220 130670 260272

Cash flow from investment activities
Acquisitions of fixed assets - 399347 - 275342 - 1320572
Sales of fixed assets 282951 182359 144598
Impact of change in scope - 61912 - 349557 - 63466
Net cash flow from investment activities - 178308 - 442940 -1239440

Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders of the parent company - 51507 - 40858 - 35178
Dividends paid to minority interests in consolidated companies - 13107 - 17083 - 14523
Change in net financial condition 32266 147200 42551
Net borrowings and financing debt 189002 338572 1161574
Repayment of borrowings and financing debt - 379765 - 187646 - 224608
Impact of changes in scope of consolidation 249605 23375 177611
Net cash flow from financing activities 26494 263560 1107427

CHANGE IN CASH FLOW - 14594 - 48710 128259

Cash flow at the beginning of the period 46367 95077 - 33182

Cash flow at the end of the period 31773 46367 95077

(1) Working capital requirements include the first of four installments payments of the one-time exit tax of €119.8 million. in € thousands
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statements of income by business

AT DECEMBER 31,
2003

2002
2001

% 2003
2002

2001
% 2003

2002
2001

% 2003
2002

2001
%

Offices
Ownership and management activities

Shopping centers
Development activities Ownership and management activities Total shopping center business

Lease income 74198 81230 87056 - 8.7% 3333 2450 - 100.0% 278995 227328 181897 22.7% 278995 230661 184347 21.0%
Income from management 
and administration 156 1139 2005 - 86.3% 1 - 100.0% 32481 30401 30008 6.8% 32481 30402 30008 6.8%
Proceeds from sales of projects 
under development - - - - 263 654 22590 - 59.8% 72 875 7 - 91.8% 335 1529 22597 - 78.1%
Other income from operations 790 190 185 315.8% 79 10 22 690.0% 3867 5761 4514 - 32.9% 3946 5771 4536 - 31.6%
Total income from operations 75144 82559 89246 - 9.0% 342 3998 25062 - 91.4% 315415 264365 216426 19.3% 315757 268363 241488 17.7%

Cost price of projects under development - - - - - 232 - 617 - 16895 - 62.4% - 53 - 659 - - 92.0% - 285 - 1276 -16895 - 77.7%
Other operating expenses - 6068 - 6766 - 7791 - 10.3% - 908 - 1452 - 1418 - 37.5% - 32601 - 27994 - 20919 16.5% - 33509 - 29446 - 22337 13.8%
Taxes and duties - 125 -185 - 347 - 32.4% - 8 - 12 - 2 - 33.3% - 801 - 729 - 694 9.9% - 809 - 741 - 696 9.2%
Payroll expense - 2610 -3088 - 2647 - 15.5% - 23 - 27 - 100.0% - 34219 - 27559 - 24066 24.2% - 34219 - 27582 - 24093 24.1%
Employee profit-sharing and incentives - 210 -222 -325 - 5.4% - - 1 - - 100.0% - 2304 - 1802 - 1187 27.9% - 2304 - 1803 - 1187 27.8%
Depreciation and amortization - 21648 -21381 - 23871 1.2% -788 - 852 - 748 - 7.5% - 74162 - 66223 - 60631 12.0% - 74950 - 67075 - 61379 11.7%
Net balance of allowances to 
and releases of reserves 1246 2860 - 530 - -1323 457 - 1043 - 389.5% - 136 - 5828 - 1979 - 97.7% - 1459 - 5371 - 3022 - 72.8%

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 45729 53777 53735 - 15.0% - 2917 1498 4929 - 294.7% 171139 133571 106950 28.1% 168222 135069 111879 24.5%
in € thousands

Ségécé and its subsidiaries are included under Shopping Center Ownership.
Klégestion financial data is distributed based on actual activities under Offices and Management Fees and Shared Expenses.
Management Fees and Shared Expenses include expenses from Klégestion, then Klépierre Conseil, and Klépierre SA, itemized in proportion to the lease income earned for the period in the Office and Shopping Center segments.
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consolidated financial statements

1 – Significant events 
in 2003 and 
the two previous years

2003

1.1 – The new tax status
for listed real-estate
investment companies
(SIICs)

Impact of adopting SIIC 
status
Article 11 of the French Budget
Act for 2003 and the decree of
July 11, 2003 offer a new tax-
exempt status to real-estate
investment companies (Sociétés
d’Investissements Immobiliers
Cotées - SIIC) listed on a regu-
lated market in France, provided
that they have minimum share
capital of €15 million and that
their principal corporate purpose
is to acquire and build properties
for rental or to directly or indirect-
ly own shares in companies hav-
ing this corporate purpose. The
option is irrevocable. Subsidiaries
subject to corporate income tax
in which the company holds at
least a 95% equity interest can
also elect the new status.
Companies that opt for the SIIC
status in turn agree to distribute
85% of rental income, 50% of the
proceeds from the sale of real-

estate assets and all of the divi-
dends received from tax-exempt
subsidiaries.
These companies are liable for
an immediate 16.5% exit tax on
their unrealized capital gains
derived from property and secu-
rities in tax-exempt partnerships.
The first 25% of the exit tax is
payable on December 15 of the
year in which the company opts
for the new status, and the bal-
ance is payable over the next
three years.
The methods for calculating the
exit tax are described in para-
graph 3.10.

Klépierre’s option
At their meeting on September
26, 2003, the shareholders of
Klépierre approved the adoption
of the new tax status. The French
tax authorities were notified of
their decision on the same date.
The decision is retroactive from
January 1, 2003.

Accounting impacts of 
adopting the new SIIC tax status
• Revaluation of tangible and
financial assets
In line with its decision to adopt
the new SIIC tax status, Klépierre
revalued the tangible and finan-
cial fixed assets in its consolidat-
ed balance sheet. Pursuant to

opinion No. 2003-C issued on
June 11, 2003 by the French
National Accounting Board (Conseil
National de la Comptabilité),
Klépierre recorded gross revalu-
ation reserves (for excess of
restated assets over historical
cost) of €784.6 million for eligi-
ble assets on its opening bal-
ance sheet, subject to an exit tax
of €119.4 million. Assets not eli-
gible for the new status were
revalued in the consolidated bal-
ance sheets.The resulting €130.6
million in revaluation reserves,
net of deferred taxes, was also
recorded as shareholders’ equity.

The methods for calculating the
revaluation reserve and the
impact of the revaluation on fixed
assets and amortizations of fixed
assets are described in detail in
paragraph 3.1.

• Calculating the exit tax
The exit tax was recorded:
–Against the revaluation reserve
recorded as shareholders’ equity,
equal to the capital gain calcu-
lated on the difference between
the appraised value and the
consolidated net book value;
–Under taxes in the statement of
income, equal to the capital gain
calculated on the difference
between the tax value and the

consolidated net book on the
value.

• Deferred taxes recorded at the
beginning of the fiscal year
Deferred income tax provisions
that are no longer necessary
have been transferred to the
statement of income.

notes to the consolidaded financial statements
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The impact on the opening bal-
ance sheet at January 1, 2003 is
summarized in the table below:

Restructuring in connection
with the new SIIC tax status
To optimize the effects of this tax
status, Klépierre began a
restructuring program in July
2003. The program primarily
concerned Klécentres, in which
Klépierre acquired full ownership
in exchange for granting exiting
minority shareholders full owner-
ship of Gonesses Usine Center
(Center Villepinte); 50% owner-
ship of Bègles Arcins, owner of
the Rives d’Arcins center; and
11.24% of Solorec, owner of the
Créteil Soleil center.
In September 2003, Klécentres
and Klébureaux, two wholly
owned subsidiaries of the
Klépierre group, transferred their
assets and liabilities to the hold-
ing company under the terms of
a procedure in France known as
a TUP (transmission universelle
de patrimoine).

1.2 – Change in scale 
of the group’s holdings
In 2003, the Group acquired 28
additional shopping malls in oper-
ation, of which 21 are located
abroad:

France
Six shopping malls plus three
retail outlets in Mérignac were
acquired in France for €71.1 mil-
lion:
–Beaune, Bourg en Bresse, Le
Mans, Denain and Sevran
acquired by Klécar France and
SNC KC20 under the Carrefour
agreement.
–Marseille le Merlan acquired by
SAS Marseille Le Merlan in late
December.

Italy
The Group acquired four malls:
– Klépierre acquired an 85%
equity interest in the Vignate
property in Milan through
Novate.
– The Italian company CG
Collegno Srl acquired the
Collegno mall in Turin.
–Bari and Matera were acquired
by Kléfin Italia and Novate,
respectively.
The value of the acquired prop-
erties is €117.1 million.
In addition, a down payment was
made for Solbiate in connection
with a contingent bilateral prom-
ise to buy securities.

Spain
–Klécar Foncier España acquired
the Tenerife shopping mall,
which opened for business in
June 2003, as well as the
Oviedo, Azabache, Albacete and
Leon malls.
–Klécar Foncier Iberica acquired
the Lucena, Pontevedra, Orense
and Sevilla V malls.
–The Spanish company Vinaza
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Klépierre) acquired the Vinaroz
center.
The 10 malls in Spain represent
a total investment of €113.2 mil-
lion.

Portugal
Three shopping malls were
acquired in Portugal for a total of
€91.6 million:
– Gondomar: Inaugurated in
Porto in September of 2003, the
center includes a shopping mall
and a Leroy-Merlin home impro-
vement store.
–Villa Nova de Gaïa and Lisbonne
Telheiras, acquired in connection
with the Carrefour agreement.

Greece
In December 2003, Klépierre
acquired three shopping malls,
EfKarpia, Patras and Athinon, for
a total acquisition price of €14.6
million.

Fixed 3559.5 969.4 4528.9

Current 213.3 213.3
Cash and marketable securities 110.3 110.3
Impot differe actif 53.2 - 45.3 7.9
Adjustment accounts 18.4 18.4

Total assets 3954.8 924.1 4878.8
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Shareholders’ equity 1124.1 694.4 1818.5
- including group 81.1 - 6.3 74.8
Minority interests 357.7 104.6 462.3

Provisions for contingincies
and losses 17.2 17.2
Deferred tax liabilities 95.6 5.3 100.9
Debt 2349.8 119.8 2469.5

Adjustment accounts 10.4 10.4
Total liabilities 3954.8 924.1 4 878.8
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Shopping malls acquired 
in Spain
In 2002, Klécar Europe Sud and
its two Spanish subsidiaries
completed the acquisition of four
shopping malls for a total of
€18.6 million and made a down
payment of €52.1 million toward
the acquisition of the Oviedo
shopping center.

First acquisition in Portugal
In December 2002, Klépierre
Portugal (a wholly-owned sub-
sidiary of Klépierre) acquired the
Lourès shopping center, located
in the suburbs of Lisbon, for
€37.5 million.

Bond conversion
On July 23, 2002, Klépierre
elected to exercise its option of
early retirement on all outstand-
ing 3% convertible bonds issued
in 1998 and due in 2006. A total
745,763 bonds were presented
for conversion in 2002, resulting
in the issue of 1,536,364 new
shares and raising equity capital
by €147.2 million.

Other transactions
Eleven office and warehouse
properties were sold, generating
a pre-tax capital gain of €67.5
million.
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Eastern Europe
Capucines BV, a wholly owned
Klépierre SA subsidiary, acquired
a 99% equity interest in Delcis
CR, the Czech company that
owns the Novy Smichov shop-
ping mall inaugurated in Prague
in September 2001. The mall is
valued at €77.4 million.

Projects under development
–Louvain-la Neuve in Belgium:
The project, completed by the
Belgian company Wilhem & Co
and valued at €130 million, was
acquired by the Belgian compa-
ny Coimbra, a wholly owned
Klépierre subsidiary. The mall,
which is scheduled to open in
2005, includes a multi-screen
movie theater complex that is
already in operation.
–Valenciennes: the €50 million
project completed by Ségécé,
was acquired by Sodevac. It
includes a shopping mall in the
heart of the City of Valenciennes,
which is scheduled to open in
2006.

Office property disposals
Six office properties in Paris and
its Première Couronne were
sold, generating a pre-tax capital
gain of €11.4 million.

1.3 – Klépierre triples 
its stock float
At their meeting on April 4, 2003,
the shareholders ratified two
extraordinary resolutions that con-
tributed to multiplying Klépierre’s
stock float threefold.

–Par value halved: The par value
of 14,919,921 shares represent-
ing the share capital was
reduced from €8 to €4 per
share. Par value was reduced by
issuing two new shares with a
par value of €4 each, earning
dividends as from January 1,
2003, in exchange for each exist-
ing share with a par value of €8,
earning dividends as from
January 1, 2003.
–Two-for-one stock split: Stated
equity capital was increased by
capitalizing reserves totaling
€59,79,684 and issuing 14,919,921
new shares, freely allotting one
new share for every two shares
issued with a par value of €4.

Klépierre’s stated capital of
€179,039,052 represents
44,759,763 fully paid-up shares,
each with a par value of €4.

2002 Fiscal year

Acquisition of nine malls 
in France
In February and July of 2002,
Klécar France and its subsidiary
KC5 integrated nine shopping
malls, including Montpellier Lattes.
All were included in the memo-
randum of agreement with
Carrefour.

Shopping malls acquired 
in Italy
– In late June, Klépierre acquired
11 Italian shopping malls from
Carrefour with a net book value
of €224 million. Klécar Italia, 
a wholly owned subsidiary of
Klécar Participations in Italy,
owns the malls. Klépierre owns
83% of Klécar Participations,
while CNP Assurances and
Ecureuil Vie own the remaining
17%.
– On July 18, 2002, Klépierre
entered into an agreement with
the Italian group Finiper, under
the terms of which Klépierre
acquired a 40% equity interest in
IGC, a subsidiary of Finiper that
owns nine shopping centers,
most of which are located in
northern Italy. The nine malls
were acquired for a total of
€59.4 million.

2001

Carrefour mall acquisitions
pursue, in line with the 
agreement signed in July 2000
Seventy shopping centers in
France, three shopping malls in
Spain and one in Greece were
acquired in 2001 pursuant to the
original Carrefour agreement,
bringing the total number of
acquisitions to 121 out of a
planned total of 160.
One of the highlights of 2001
was the launch in Spain of the
second phase of the memoran-
dum of agreement involving new
projects. Klépierre thus acquired
two additional new shopping
malls, which opened for busi-
ness in 2001 and 2002, and
acquired two development proj-
ects in Alicante and Tenerife on a
future-as-is basis (i.e. before
completion based on drafted
plans). A seller’s promise on a
project located in Ovideo was
also signed in 2001. It is carried
as an off-balance sheet commit-
ment of €70.4 million.
As of December 31, 2001,
Klépierre had invested €939.4
million to acquire shopping malls
in France and €543.8 million to
acquire malls located abroad.
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Other transactions
– In February 2001, Klépierre
acquired full ownership of Arcol,
the owner of the Danubia shop-
ping center in Bratislava.
– In July 2001, Klépierre acquired
an additional 51% of securities in
Cienneo, the owner of the Metropoli
Center in Novate, increasing its
total equity stake to 85%.
–Three shopping centers devel-
oped by the group opened for
business in 2001: Annecy in
March, Boulogne-Billancourt in
June and Poitiers in October.

2 – Principles and methods
of consolidation

2.1 – Regulatory framework
Since January 1, 2002, the
Klépierre group’s consolidated
financial statements are prepared
in compliance with the provisions
of CRC Regulation No. 99-02.

2.2 –Basis and methods 
of consolidation
All companies in which Klépierre
exercises direct or indirect con-
trolling influence, as well as
those in which it exercises signif-
icant influence, are consolidated.
All exclusively controlled compa-
nies are fully consolidated,
regardless of their business pur-
pose or legal form.

Portfolio management firms are
also fully consolidated.
Exclusive control is presumed
when Klépierre directly or indi-
rectly owns 40% of the voting
rights and when no other share-
holder owns more than 40% of
such rights.
Companies in which Klépierre
and other shareholders have
agreed to exercise joint control-
ling influence are proportionately
consolidated.

2.3 –Fiscal year reporting
date
The accounting cut-off date for all
of Klépierre’s consolidated sub-
sidiaries is December 31, 2003.

2.4 –Reciprocal 
accounts and related 
party transactions
Reciprocal accounts and gains
from inter-company transactions
are eliminated in consolidation.
However, development sales
fees are not eliminated in cases
where the purchasing company
has included this income in the
cost price of long-term assets or
inventory. Interest that is payable
by development companies and
recorded as inventory in their
accounts is not eliminated.

2.5 – Purchase goodwill
The difference between the
acquisition price and the share in
net assets of newly acquired
companies is analyzed and allo-
cated to the carrying values of
various line items of the consoli-
dated entity’s long-term assets.
For each type of asset, the cor-
responding valuation method is
used.
For acquired companies that own
real-estate complexes, all related
differences are allocated to land
and buildings. Any remaining dif-
ferences are recorded as good-
will.
Goodwill is subject to amortiza-
tion over 15 years.

2.6 – Methods 
for converting foreign 
companies
Monetary and non-monetary
assets and liabilities of foreign
companies stated in non-euro
currencies are converted in
accordance with the applicable
exchange rate on the balance
sheet closing date. The variance
resulting from the difference
between the valuation of earn-
ings items according to the aver-
age exchange rate during the
period and earnings stated
according to the closing rate is
classified as forex exchange and

is carried as consolidated share-
holders’ equity.

2.7 – Treasury shares held
by the company
Shares of common stock that
Klépierre issues and holds for
subsequent grants to its employ-
ees are classified as marketable
securities and carried at their
acquisition price. An impairment
allowance is established as
needed to reflect the difference
between the acquisition price
and the exercise price on the
corresponding option to pur-
chase granted to employees.
Shares held to stabilize the stock
price are classified as mar-
ketable securities and are car-
ried at their acquisition price. An
impairment allowance is estab-
lished whenever their market
value is lower than their acquisi-
tion value.

3 – Significant accounting
and valuation policies

3.1 – Tangible 
and financial assets

Revaluation of tangible 
and financial assets 
at January 1, 2003
• Revaluation methods
The accounting impacts of opt-
ing for the new SIIC status are
defined in Opinion No. 2003-C
issued on June 11, 2003 follow-
ing an emergency meeting of
the Conseil National de la
Comptabilité. Using the provi-
sions available to companies
opting for the new tax status,
Klépierre conducted a revalua-
tion of its tangible and financial
assets in its consolidated bal-
ance sheet and recorded the
resulting revaluation reserve net
of the exit tax under sharehold-
ers’ equity.
Klépierre revalued each of its
holdings recorded in the consoli-
dated balance sheet on the basis
of appraised value, excluding
rights, on January 1, 2003.
The appraised values are the
values, inclusive of duties, com-
municated by the appraisers for
the calculation of revalued net
assets. Duties primarily include
transfer and notary duties and
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fees. Differences from one coun-
try to the next were taken into
account to determine values
exclusive of duties.
The resulting values were then
allocated between land and
buildings based on the appraisal
methods used, namely:
–Land rates for office properties;
– The cost of construction for
shopping centers.
A depreciation rate was applied
to the cost of replacement plus
replacement expenses. Then the
amortization schedules for build-
ings were recalculated based on
the adjusted values. The new
amortization schedules were
fixed by the appraisers based on
the type of building and remain-
ing useful life, approximately 40
years for office properties and 20
to 30 years for shopping centers.
Building leases are intangibles.
For this reason, this portion of
the corresponding asset value
was not revalued.

•Adjusting the revalued values
at the close of the first period
following the adoption of the
new status
Pursuant to Opinion No. 2003-C,
the decreases in the values of
eligible assets can be charged
against the revaluation reserve
that was initially recorded until

the close the first full year follow-
ing election of SIIC status.

• Fixed assets acquired after
January 1, 2003
Fixed assets acquired after
January 1, 2003 and extensions
and renovation of revalued fixed
assets are recorded on the bal-
ance sheet at their acquisition
cost and amortized over periods
ranging from 25 to 40 years.

•Valuation allowances for real-
estate assets
Valuation allowances are estab-
lished for real-estate assets
whenever a material, other-
than- temporary difference exists
between the appraised value
(transfer duties included) and the
net book value. Such differences
are deemed material when they
exceed 10% of the net book
value.
In addition, the appraised value
does not include transfer duties
when the real-estate asset in
question is being held for sale in
the near term.

3.2 – Significant changes
in accounting policies and
regulations

CRC 2002.10 relative 
to impaired assets
The set of transitional measures
set forth in Regulation 2002.10
of the French Accounting
Regulations Committee (Comité
de la Réglementation Comptable)
stipulates that businesses are
required to set up reserves for
major repairs or use the so-
called “components” method to
determine amortization sched-
ules and bases for major repairs
and various types of long-term
assets for periods that begin
after January 1, 2003 and
through December 31, 2004.

Following the publication of
Regulation CRC 2003.07 issued
on December 12, 2003, these
transition measures provide:
– With respect to primary
expenses, or expenses incurred
to replace all or part of assets,
companies that have not yet
established reserves for major
repairs and revisions should not
do so. In any case, they can opt
for the components method.
– With respect to secondary
expenses, or expenses that 
concern multi-year programs 

for major repairs, companies
must (as of fiscal periods which
begin after January 1, 2003)
either establish reserves for
major repairs and revisions or
use the components method.

At the January 1, 2003 reporting
date, Klépierre revalued the
assets in its financial statements
on the basis of appraised values
at December 31, 2002, taking
into account the degree of
depreciation for each property.
Consequently, no additional
reserves are required. In addi-
tion, shopping center leases
generally include clauses that
transfer maintenance and repair
costs to tenants. The balance of
such expenses borne by the
owner is not material.

Avis No. 2004.A: accounting
changes that affect the amount
of end-of-career indemnities
The opinion issued on January
21, 2004 by the CNC following
an emergency meeting defines
the methods for handling the
accounting impact of Act 
no. 2003-775 of August 21, 2003
on the reform of retirement obli-
gations, amending retirement
regulations. As a result, retire-
ment before the age of 65 must
be at the initiative of the employ-

ee. Any end-of-career indemni-
ties paid at this time are subject
to social charges. These
changes have led to the revision
of certain accounting assump-
tions and the provision of an
additional €0.8 million in
reserves under non-recurring
results for the fiscal year.

3.3 – Inventory of projects
under development
These inventories reflect the
incurred cost of projects under
development at the financial
statement reporting date.
This cost includes the purchase
price and related costs of acquir-
ing land, as well as construction
costs, interest expense and fees.
It does not, however, include
fees incurred to initially lease up
rental premises. Such fees are
expensed over the first three
years of the corresponding leas-
es (see paragraph 3.8).
Items comprising this inventory
may be sold to third parties prior
to completion of the projects
under development. In such
cases, related selling costs are –
net of advances received –
recorded under miscellaneous
debtors, offset by an entry in a
prepaid income account. Margins
are recognized as income only
when the project is delivered.
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3.4 – Start-up and 
contribution costs 
and acquisition costs for
securities and property
The start-up and contribution
costs capitalized in subsidiary
balance sheets are recorded in
the consolidated financial state-
ments.
Costs incurred by Klépierre in
connection with mergers and
business combinations are charg-
ed against additional paid-in
capital.
Acquisition costs relative to
securities and property pur-
chased are recoded as assets.
Property acquisition costs are
spread over the amortization
period for the related asset.
Bond issue costs are carried as
expenses to amortize on a pro-
rated basis over the scheduled
maturity of the bond.

3.5 – Accrued retirement
liabilities and other
employer commitments

• France
The retirement obligations of
Klépierre primarily include end-
of-career indemnities, comple-
mentary retirement plans, early
retirement plans, and health
insurance plans for both active
and retired employees.

Recommendation CNC 2003 R 01
dated April 1, 2003 sets forth the
methods to be used to calculate
retirement obligations. This rec-
ommendation went into effect on
January 1, 2004, although it may
be applied as of 2003. The
Klépierre Group did not opt for
early application, and consequent-
ly maintained earlier accounting
practices: i.e. the projected unit
credit method; annual income
statement recording of all changes
in employer obligations, includ-
ing those related to actuarial
variances; accounting of accrued
retirement obligations net of
hedging results.
In addition, Act 2003-775 dated
August 21, 2003 (the so-called
“Fillon Act”) changed the condi-
tions governing employee retire-
ment, such that separation at the
option of the employer before an
employee has reached the age
of 65 is considered to be either a
voluntary departure or dismissal.
As such, the related end-of-
career indemnity is subject to
social contributions.

• Abroad
– Italy
In Italy, the company records a
retirement liability for each
employee, increased by 1/13.5 of
the gross annual salary. This lia-

bility is certain, as it is payable
upon termination of the employ-
ment contract regardless of the
reason.

– Spain
In Spain, retirement liabilities are
established on the basis of col-
lective agreements in force. The
Group’s Spanish affiliates are
not concerned by these agree-
ments.

3.6 – Convertible bond
Following Klépierre’s offer of
early redemption in July of 2002,
the convertible bonds issued by
Klépierre in November 1998
were converted into new shares
earning dividends as from
January 1, 2002.

3.7 – Entry fees 
and indemnities
Entry fees received are consid-
ered as additional lease income
and recorded as prepaid income,
spread over the term of the relat-
ed lease.
Eviction indemnities paid to ten-
ants are recorded as deferred
expenses and amortized over
three years.
Termination indemnities collect-
ed from tenants are immediately
recognized as income.

3.8 – Sales fees
Sales and lease-up fees related
to the opening of new shopping
centers and extensions to exist-
ing ones are recorded as expens-
es to be amortized over three
years on a pro-rated basis, as of
the date on which the shopping
center or extension opens for
business.
Fees earned in connection with
changes in tenant or renegotia-
tions of leases are recorded as
expenses to amortize on a pro-
rated basis over the first firm
period of the lease as of the date
on which the lease goes into
effect. The period of amortization
may not exceed three years.

3.9 – Non-recurring items
Non-recurring income and losses
result from events that are unre-
lated to Klépierre’s business.
Consequently, their inclusion
would have an adverse impact on
the comparability of financial
statements and operations.
Klépierre records as non-recur-
ring items:
–Capital gains on the sale of
property, net of disposal fees
–Capital gains on the sale of
equity interests and treasury
sales.

3.10 – Corporate income tax

Tax status for listed real
estate investment companies
“Sociétés d’Investissements
Immobiliers Cotées” 
•Calculating the exit tax for com-
panies that opt for SIIC status
Companies that opt for the new
status are liable for an exit tax.
Fiscally transparent companies
that do not opt for corporate
income tax are consolidated
through their parent companies
that have opted for SIIC status
and that are liable for the exit tax
calculated on the basis of the
capital gain on SCI or SNC part-
nership units they hold.
For each company, the exit tax is
determined on the basis of the
difference between the fair mar-
ket value excluding transfer
duties and the tax value of fixed
assets or shares in companies.
Fair market values excluding
duties were determined using
appraised values including duties
as determined on December 31,
2002 to calculate RNA, and were
adjusted as follows:
–The fair market value of proper-
ties is calculated applying a 6%
discount for expenses and duties.
–The fair market value of SCIs and
SNCs is equal to RNA, discount-
ed by 4.80% for transfer duties.
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Thirty-three companies opted for
SIIC status in 2003 and are liable
for an exit tax of €119.7 million.
Some of these companies main-
tain taxable activities. In such
cases, the corporate income tax
was calculated on the basis of
prevailing rates.

Corporate income tax appli-
cable to companies not 
eligible for SIIC tax status
The corporate income tax for
companies that are not eligible
for SIIC tax status is calculated
on the basis of prevailing rates.

Tax consolidation
Three tax consolidation agree-
ments were signed on December
31, 2002:
– Between Klépierre and sub-
sidiaries in which its ownership
was 95% or more
– Between Klécentres and its
subsidiaries in which its owner-
ship was 95% or more
–Between Ségécé and its sub-
sidiary Ségécé Loisirs et Transac-
tions.

As a result of the new SIIC tax
status, the Klépierre and
Klécentres tax consolidation
groups were dissolved.
The Ségécé tax consolidation
group was dissolved during the

year after Ségécé was trans-
formed into a simple partnership
(Société en Commandite Simple).

Deferred taxes
• SIIC status
Pursuant to Opinion No. 2003-C
of the Conseil National de 
la Comptabilité, deferred tax
reserves recorded at the
December 31, 2002 reporting
date for eligible assets were
released to income.

• Non-SIIC status
Observed differences between
the values used in consolidation
and the taxable values of assets
and liabilities, as well as the dif-
ferences resulting from timing
differences and losses carried
forward, are recorded as deferred
tax assets or liabilities using the
accrual method.
Deferred tax assets are general-
ly recognized when the earnings
forecasts available at the bal-
ance sheet closing date indicate
that recovery is likely.

Deferred taxes are calculated
using local rates in force as of
the balance sheet closing date.
The rates applied are as follows:
35.43% in France, 35% in Spain
and 33% in Italy.
Deferred tax liabilities for real-

estate holdings are calculated
based on the differences between
the values as obtained for tax
purposes and the values used in
consolidation for office proper-
ties and shopping centers.
Klépierre applies the tax rate
applicable to building sales.

Klépierre does not calculate
taxes for three companies:
– IGC and Vignate in Italy, since
it is probable that the sale will
involve equity interests rather
than real property;
–SGM Gondomar in Portugal,
since the Group intends to main-
tain its holding to three years.
Tax-exempt status is allowed if
the sale occurs after this time.

3.11 – Risk management
instruments
As the holding company of a
group of companies, Klépierre
centralizes the management of
group financing needs and inter-
est and exchange rate expo-
sures. Under the terms of this
financing policy, Klépierre makes
available the financial resources
needed to fund group activity
and sets up the related hedging
programs.
Gains and losses related to inter-
est or exchange rate swaps are
prorated over the period and

reflected in the income state-
ment.
Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from the difference
between the estimated fair mar-
ket value of such contracts at
year-end and their nominal value
are not recorded.
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4 – Scope of consolidation

NOTE 1
2002
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SA Klépierre 780152914 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

OFFICES
SAS Baudot Massy 398963850 FC 100.00% 82.50% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS 192 avenue Charles de Gaulle 392654505 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS 5 Turin 398969014 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Concorde Puteaux 400098364 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Espace Dumont d’Urville 419057922 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Espace Kléber 419057823 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Issy Desmoulins 398968677 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Kléber Levallois 400098356 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Klépierre Finance 433613312 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Leblanc Paris 15 400110235 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Louis David 350288643 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS LP7 428782486 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Oise Cergy 398965111 FC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
SAS 43 Grenelle 393438742 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS 43 Kléber 398966812 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS 46 Notre Dame des Victoires 392655395 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Suffren Paris 15 400098448 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS 21 Kléber 582017273 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS 21 La Pérouse 389519158 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS 23 avenue Marignan 392663670 FC 100.00% 100.00% 99.99% 99.99%
SCI Antin Vendôme 313781668 PC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
SCI Chaptal Alun 428295521 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SCI 8 rue du Sentier 352503403 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC Barjac Victor 390123057 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC CB Pierre 343146932 FC 100.00% 100.00% 99.00% 99.00%
SNC Général Leclerc n° 11 et 11 bis Levallois 381986363 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC Jardins des Princes 391237716 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC Maille Nord 349572891 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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NOTE 1 (cont’d)

% control% ownershipCompanies
2002

2003
2002

2003
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SHOPPING CENTERS - FRANCE
SAS Bègles Arcins 404357535 PC 50.00% 82.50% 50.00% 100.00%
SAS Brescia 419297163 FC 100.00% 82.50% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Candé 423012376 FC 99.99% 99.99% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Cécobil 408175966 PC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
SAS Cécoville 409547015 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Doumer Caen 398969113 FC 99.96% 82.47% 99.96% 99.96%
SAS Espace Cordeliers 421101882 PC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
SAS Flandre 423012004 FC 100.00% 99.99% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Jaude Clermont 398960963 FC 99.99% 82.49% 99.99% 99.99%
SAS Le Havre Capelet 410336564 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Le Havre Lafayette 420292047 PC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
SAS Le Havre Tourneville 407799493 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Le Havre Vauban 420307704 PC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
SAS Klécar Europe Sud 428864268 FC 83.00% 83.00% 83.00% 83.00%
SAS Klécar Participations Italie 442229175 FC 83.00% 83.00% 83.00% 83.00%
Holding Gondomar 1 438568545 FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
Holding Gondomar 3 438570129 FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
SAS Klémurs 419711833 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Klépierre Transactions 389217746 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Melun Saints-Pères 402668792 FC 99.98% 82.48% 99.98% 99.98%
SAS Odysseum Place de France 428788525 FC 70.00% 70.00% 70.00% 70.00%
SAS Opale 398968735 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Poitiers Aliénor 410245757 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Saint André Pey Berland 377563978 FC 100.00% 82.50% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Secmarne 309660504 FC 61.67% 55.68% 61.67% 61.67%
SAS Soaval 419620075 PC 37.50% 35.31% 50.00% 49.92%
SAS Socoseine 389287871 FC 93.75% 92.65% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Strasbourg La Vigie 399181635 FC 99.85% 82.38% 99.85% 99.85%
SAS Tours Nationale 393439062 FC 100.00% 82.50% 100.00% 100.00%
SC Centre Bourse 300985462 FC 100.00% 85.12% 100.00% 100.00%
SC Solorec 320217391 FC 88.76% 87.87% 88.76% 100.00%
SCI du Bassin Nord 422733402 PC 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
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SCI Sécovalde 405362682 FC 40.00% 40.00% 40.00% 40.00%
SNC Soccendre 319814075 FC 75.25% 70.74% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC Foncière Saint-Germain 378668875 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC1 433816501 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC2 433816444 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC3 433816725 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC4 433816774 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC5 433817269 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC6 433842549 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC7 433842515 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC8 433842564 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC9 433816246 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC10 433816220 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC11 433894243 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC12 433894102 FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC KC20 449054949 FC 83.00% - 100.00% -
SNC Kléber La Pérouse 388724361 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SNC Klécar France 433496965 FC 83.00% 83.00% 83.00% 83.00%
SNC Sodevac 388233298 FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
SCI Tour Marcel Brot 428810287 FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
SAS Marseille Le Merlan 451355861 FC 100.00% - 100.00% -

SERVICES - FRANCE
GIE Klépierre Services 435194725 FC 87.75% 87.75% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Klégestion 398058149 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Klépierre Conseil 398967000 FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
SAS Ségécar 434290599 FC 75.00% 35.31% 100.00% 50.00%
SCS Ségécé 562100214 FC 75.00% 70.62% 75.00% 74.99%
SAS Ségécé Loisirs et Transactions 421220252 FC 75.00% 67.23% 100.00% 95.12%
SNC Galaé 433909165 FC 87.25% 85.02% 100.00% 100.00%

SHOPPING CENTERS - ABROAD
Arcol Slovakia FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Belarcol Belgium FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Capucines BV Netherlands FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Cienneo SRL Italy FC 85.00% 85.00% 85.00% 85.00%
Coimbra Belgium FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
Foncière Louvain-la-Neuve Belgium FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
Delcis Cr Czech Republic FC 99.00% - 99.00% -
Cinéma de l’Esplanade Louvain Belgium FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
I.C.D. SPA Italy FC 85.00% 70.12% 85.00% 85.00%
IGC Italy PC 40.00% 40.00% 40.00% 40.00%
Immobiliare Magnolia SRL Italy FC 85.00% 85.00% 85.00% 85.00%
KFM Makédonia Greece FC 83.01% 83.01% 100.00% 100.00%
Klécar Foncier Iberica Spain FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Klécar Foncier España Spain FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Klecar Italia Spa Italy FC 83.00% 83.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Klefin Italia Italy FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Klelou SA Portugal FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Klépierre Portugal SA SGPS Portugal FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Novate SRL Italy FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Vignate Italy FC 85.00% - 85.00% -
Zobel Investment BV Netherlands FC 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Klépierre Vinaza Spain FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
Klépierre Peribola Patras AE Greece FC 83.00% - 100.00% -
Klépierre Nea Efkarpia Greece FC 83.00% - 100.00% -
Klépierre Athinon AE Greece FC 83.00% - 100.00% -
CG Collegno Italy FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
Klénord Imobiliaria Portugal FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
Klétel-Imobiliaria Portugal FC 100.00% - 100.00% -
SGM Gondomar Portugal PC 50.00% - 50.00% -
SGS Gondomar Portugal PC 50.00% - 50.00% -

SERVICES - ABROAD
Centros Shopping Gestion Spain PC 37.50% 35.31% 50.00% 50.00%
Devimo Consult Belgium EM 26.25% 24.72% 35.00% 35.00%
FMC Czech Republic FC 56.25% 52.96% 75.00% 75.00%
PSG Italy PC 37.50% 35.31% 50.00% 50.00%
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At year-end 2002, 124 Group
companies were consolidated,
compared with 118 as of
December 31, 2002.

21 companies were 
consolidated for the first time 
in 2003
•9 were consolidated following
the acquisition of equity interests
–Delcis Cr, owner of the Novy
Smichov shopping mall in Prague,
99% owned by Capucines BV.
–Vignate, owner of the Vignate

shopping mall in Milan, 85%
owned by Novate Srl.
–Foncière de Louvain-la-Neuve,
100% owned by Klépierre and
100% owner of equity in Coimbra
and Cinéma de L’Esplanade.
–Klépierre acquired a 50% equity
interest in SGM Gondomar and
SGS Gondomar, two Portuguese
companies that own, respectively,
a shopping mall and a DIY retail
outlet. Ownership is exercised via
two wholly owned French holding
companies: Holding Gondomar 1

owns a 50% interest in SGM, and
Holding Gondomar 3 owns a 50%
interest in SGS.

Purchase goodwill recorded in
connection with the aforemen-
tioned transactions is indicated
below:
–Delcis Cr: €8.5 million (€12.4
million allocated to the property
complex and €3.8 million record-
ed as a deferred tax liability)
–Vignate: €23.6 million fully allo-
cated to the property complex.

No deferred tax was calculated
since it is probable that the sale
will involve not real property but
equity securities, which do not
generate taxable capital gains.
–Coimbra: €7.2 million (€10.9
million allocated to fixed assets in
progress and €3.7 million record-
ed as a deferred tax liability).
– Gondomar: €8.5 million fully
allocated to the property complex.

•12 companies were formed by
the Klépierre Group
–Sas Marseille Le Merlan (Le
Merlan mall in Marseille), SCI
Tour Marcel Brot (office building
in Nancy) and SNC Sodevac
(downtown mall in Valenciennes).
All are directly and wholly owned
subsidiaries of Klépierre.
–Klépierre Vinaza, a company
formed under and governed by
the laws of Spain, owner of the
Vinaroz mall and wholly owned
by Klépierre.

% control% ownershipCompanies
2002

2003
2002

2003

Con
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Sogecaec Portugal FC 75.00% - 100.00% -

COMPANIES NO LONGER CONSOLIDATED AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2003
Belga Sept SA Belgium NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SC Cecocord 417522485 NC - 99.97% - 100.00%
SCI Boulogne d’Aguesseau 394798375 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SCI Étoile Quinzième 350455481 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SCI Les Ellipses 381199975 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SCI Levallois Anatole France 394383376 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SCI Rueil Hermès 394798482 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SCI Villepinte le Tropical 394797872 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SNC Couperin Foncière 349263400 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SNC Godefroy n° 8 Puteaux 377548052 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SNC 86 rue Anatole France 380728261 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SAS Klécentres 400392793 NC - 82.50% - 82.50%
SAS Klébureaux 410244024 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
SAS Center Villepinte 398961235 NC - 82.47% - 99.97%
SAS Daumesnil Reuilly 403085574 NC - 100.00% - 100.00%
(1) FC: Fully consolidaded • PC: Partially consolidaded • EM: Equity method • NC: No longer consolidaded as of december 31, 2003.
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– SNC KC20, owner of the
Sevran mall and 83% owned by
its parent Klécar France.
– Imobiliaria Klenord and Imobi-
liaria Kletel, wholly owned sub-
sidiaries of Klépierre Portugal
and owners of the Villa Nova de
Gaîa and Telheiras shopping
malls.
–Klépierre Nea Efkarpia, Klépierre
Peribola Patras AE and Klépierre
Athinon AE, companies formed
under and governed by the laws
of Greece, wholly owned by
Klépierre Europe Sud.
–CG Collegno, a wholly owned
Italian subsidiary of Klefin Italia.
–Sogecaec, a Portuguese man-
agement firm in which Ségécé
has a 100% equity interest.

SGM Gondomar and SGS Gondo-
mar are proportionally consoli-
dated. The 19 other newly con-
solidated subsidiaries are fully
consolidated.

Companies removed 
from consolidation
Ten companies, including Klécen-
tres and Klébureaux have been
wound up or dissolved after their
assets and liabilities were trans-
ferred to their holding company, a
procedure known in France as
TUP (transmission universelle de

patrimoine). In addition, 4 compa-
nies that have ceased doing busi-
ness since their assets were sold
are no longer consolidated.
Center Villepinte (Gonesses Usine
Center) has been sold to an out-
side party and hence is no longer
owned by the Group.

Other changes 
in percentage of ownership
In September 2003, Klépierre
increased its ownership of 
Klécentres from 82.5% to 100%
in exchange for granting out-
going minority interests 100% of
Center Villepinte (Gonesses
Usine Center), 50% of Bègles
Arcins (Centres Rives d’Arcins 
in Bordeaux), and 11.24% of
Solorec (Créteil Soleil). In light of
the property asset revaluation
completed in connection with 
the change to SIIC status, this
unequal reduction of ownership
interest did not generate signifi-
cant goodwill or after-tax capital
gains. However, the partial sale
to an outside party of Créteil
Soleil interests reactivated a
€7.6 million euro capital gain
that was cancelled in 1995.
In December 2003, Ségécé
acquired a 50% equity interest in
Ségécar, bringing its level of
ownership from 50% to 100%.

Change in method 
of consolidation
After 50% of the equity securities
held in Bègles Arcins were sold,
the company is no longer fully
consolidated as of July 31, 2003.
As of this date, it is proportional-
ly consolidated.

5 – Additional information
relative to balance sheet
and off-balance sheet 
commitments

5.1 – Notes on consolidated
balance sheet assets

Note 2.1 – Goodwill
Accumulated amortization of good-
will was €20.1 million, compared

with €19.9 million recorded for
the year ended December 31,
2002. This difference reflects
goodwill of €2.5 million recorded
in connection with the buyback of
50% of Ségécar by Ségécé and
the cancellation of goodwill on
Klécentres.

Gross goodwill 19942 2478 - - 2359 20061
Ségécé 11334 11334
ICD (Brescia) 1137 1137
Klécentres 2312 - 2312 0
Devimo 2169 2169
Arcol 993 993
PSG 1002 1002
Ségécar 2478 2478
Other goodwill 996 - 47 949

Amortization - 7546 - 1096 - 2359 - 6283
Ségécé - 3943 - 756 - 4699
ICD (Brescia) - 152 - 76 - 228
Klécentres - 2312 2312 0
Devimo - 435 - 145 - 580
Arcol - 406 - 406
PSG - 33 - 67 - 100
Other goodwill - 265 - 52 47 - 270
NET GOODWILL 12396 1382 - - 13778

in € thousands
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Note 2.2 – Net tangible and intangible fixed assets

Net tangible and intangible fixed
assets totaled €1,278.8 million,
primarily attributable to the fol-
lowing:

€954.1 million: revaluation 
of tangible fixed assets
The impact of the revaluation of
fixed assets at the start of the
fiscal year is €969.5 million;

adjustments to book values
deducted from the excess of
restated eligible assets over his-
torical values was €15.4 million.

€187.2 million (net) change
in the scope of consolidation
– Inclusions: the Novy Smichov
mall (€85.8 million), the Vignate
mall (€61.1 million), the Louvain

La Neuve shopping center and
Cinéma de l’Esplanade (€59.6
million) and the Gondomar retail
mall (€50.8 million).
– Removals and changes in
method: Gonesses Usines Center
(€31.4 million) and Rives d’Arcins
(€39.8 million).

€397.4 million (gross):
direct acquisitions of shopping
malls and projects under way
• In France: the Sevran (€25.1
million), Marseille Le Merlan
(€26.2 million) and Valenciennes
(€38.1 million) malls; the Marcel
Brot tower (€6.8 million); and the
extension to Camille Desmoulins
(€12.9 million).

• In Italy: the Bari, Matera and
Collegno malls for a total of
€55.9 million.

• In Portugal: the Villa Nova de
Gaia and Telheiras malls for
€12.4 million and €28.5 million,
respectively.

• In Spain:
– the Lucena, Pontevedra, Orense
and Sevilla V malls acquired by
Klécar Foncier Iberica for an
aggregate amount of €10.5 mil-
lion;

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Building lease 47959 - 6 - 29040 18913
Goodwill 1037 11307 12344
Software 7188 134 577 7899
Other intangible fixed assets 5792 2135 2114 - 10 - 381 9650
Total 61976 - 2135 13555 -16 -28844 48806

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Land
– Financial leasing 303 303
– Lease purchase 1544013 712096 - 13328 3966 88517 - 79953 10298 2265609
Building and improvements -
– Financial leasing 2730 - 327 2403
– Lease purchase 2004927 30188 - 2039 137720 188418 - 85954 81104 2354364
Installations 95638 - 51319 6288 21327 - 216 - 18679 53039
Buildings in progress 45391 43530 84994 - 264 - 44606 129045
Furnishings and equipment 5332 - 3182 39 614 - 135 7 2675
Total 3698335 687456 -15367 191543 383870 -166522 28124 4807438

TOTAL GROSS FIXED ASSETS 3760311 687456 -15367 193678 397425 -166538 -720 4856244
in € thousands
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– the Azabache, Albacete, Leon
and Tenerife malls, taken over by
Klécar Foncier Espana for an
aggregate total of €79.7 million;
– down payment on the San-
tander mall of €17.5 million.

• In Greece: the Efkarpia, Patras
and Athinon malls for a total
amount of €16.4 million.

• Payment of acquisition and
additional acquisition costs for

several malls owned by Klécar
France, for a total of €24.2 mil-
lion (gross).

€164.4 million:
office property disposals
Disposals involved the following
office properties:
–127, rue d’Aguesseau 
in Boulogne
–103, rue Charles Michel 
in Saint-Denis
–100/102, avenue de Suffren 
in Paris (15th arrondissement)
–20, rue Jacques Daguerre 
in Reuil-Malmaison
–Le Sémaphore 
in Levallois-Perret
–141, rue de Clichy 
in Paris (17th arrondissement)

€97.2 million: depreciation
and amortization allowances

INTANGIGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Building lease 3868 257 - 2908 1217
Software 2874 1303 55 4232
Other intangible fixed assets 2959 387 2212 71 5629
Total 9701 387 3772 -2782 11078

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Buildings and improvements 227471 - 227471 5573 83506 - 1592 87487
Installations 51319 - 51319 525 9078 - 143 9460
Furnishings and equipment 3183 - 3182 33 850 - 66 818
Total 281973 - 281972 - 6131 93434 -1801 97765
TOTAL AMORTIZATIONS 291674 - 281972 - 6518 97206 -4583 108843

NET TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 3468639 969428 -15367 187160 300219 -162675 4747401
Net goodwill (see note 2.1) 12396 1382 13778
Financial assets (see note 2.5) 77808 14068 16805 - 22095 86586
Securities in equity method investees (see note 2.6) 642 1291 11 - 42 1902

FIXED ASSETS 3559486 4849667
in € thousands
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Note 2.3 – Change in tangible and intangible 
fixed assets by business segment

Offices 813706 306077 - 11886 13087 - 166198 - 2 954783
Shopping centers 2936264 383351 - 3481 193678 382859 - 297 - 901 3891473
Service activities 10341 - 1972 1479 - 43 183 9988
Total gross fixed assets 3760311 687456 -15367 193678 397425 -166538 -720 4856244

in € thousands
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Offices 87296 - 87291 21237 - 1801 - 19441
Shopping centers 199740 - 192709 6518 74282 - 10 - 2827 84994
Service activities 4638 - 1972 1687 - 55 4408
Total amortization 291674 -281972 - 6518 97206 -1811 -2772 108843

NET FIXED ASSETS 3468637 969428 -15367 187160 300219 -164727 2052 4747401
in € thousands
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Note 2.5 – Financial assets
Long-term financial assets prima-
rily include advances and loans to
non-consolidated subsidiaries
(€8.5 million) and proportionately
consolidated subsidiaries (€60.9
million).
The increase in other financial
assets primarily reflects a down
payment made on the purchase
of an equity interest in the hold-
ing company that owns the
Solbiate mall in Italy.

Offices 22 489836 431056 33300 569 954783
Shopping centers 40493 1776076 1925711 148707 486 3891473
Service activities 8291 77 1620 9988
GROSS FIXED ASSETS 48806 2265912 2356767 182084 2675 4856244

Offices 15677 3662 102 19441
Shopping centers 7261 71810 5790 132 84993
Service activities 3817 8 584 4409
Amortizations 11078 - 87487 9460 818 108843

NET FIXED ASSETS 37728 2265912 2269280 172624 1857 4747401
in € thousands
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Equity investment securities (A) 1789 62 612 - 238 2225
Advances to non-consolidated or partially consolidated companies (B) 49928 14004 5127 - 18404 50655
Loans 20512 1360 - 3348 18524
Other long-term securities 179 179
Security deposits 3845 2 1701 - 125 5423
Other financial assets 2126 8225 10351
GROSS VALUES 78379 14068 17025 - 22115 87357

Allowances for impairment 571 220 - 20 771
NET TOTAL 77808 14068 16805 - 22095 86586

in € thousands
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Note 2.4 – Tangible 
and intangible fixed assets 
by business segment
The table below shows the distri-
bution of tangible and intangible
fixed assets for the office, shop-
ping center and service divi-
sions:



Securities in equity method investees at december 31, 2002 642
Differences due to changes in the scope of consolidation 1291
Share of 2003 income of companies accounted for by the equity method 396
Dividends received from equity method investees - 385
Other changes - 42
Securities in equity method investees at december 31, 2003 1902

in € thousands

NOTE 2.6
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The largest advances were
granted to the companies listed
in Note 2.5 (B).

Non-consolidated equity interest
securities are listed in Note 2.5 (A).

Note 2.6 – Change 
in investments in equity 
method investees
The removal from consolidation
of companies no longer in ope-
ration increased securities in
equity method investees by 
€1.2 million.

SCI Antin Vendôme 6622 523 - 850 6295
SCI du Bassin Nord 2922 237 - 38 3121
SAS Cecobil 17625 - 1393 16232
SGM Gondomar 12991 1338 14329
SGS Gondomar 1622 1622
Other advances 22759 -609 3029 - 16123 9056
TOTAL 49928 14004 5127 -18404 50655

in € thousands
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Principal values 1700 1353
GC Assago 2000 - 30,00% 600 600
SAS Sovaly 383 - 32 100,00% 572 429
SKF Spa En liquidation 50,00% 246 42
SAS Kléfi Participations 123 - 2 100,00% 130 130
SAS Nancy Bonsecours - 347 - 39 99,96% 76 76
SAS Pasteur - 20 - 16 99,96% 76 76
Other equity investment securities 525 464
TOTAL 2225 1817

in € thousands
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Note 3 – Inventory of projects
under development
At the December 31, 2003 report-
ing date, development inventory
primarily included expenditures
related to projects under consid-
eration and retail space intended
for resale.

Note 4 – Analysis of accounts receivable/accrued 
liabilities by business segment

Note 5 – Miscellaneous 
receivables
Income of €4.6 million relating to
2003 tax loss carrybacks is
recorded under corporate taxes.

VAT includes recoverable VAT on
the acquisition of shopping malls
in Portugal (€7.2 million), Italy
(€5.7 million), Spain (€13.8 mil-
lion) and Valenciennes (€7.8 mil-
lion).

Miscellaneous debtors primarily
include the following receivables:
– €66.8 million in receivables
relating to real-estate manage-

ment activities (calls for funds to
owners);
– €26.7 million in accrued inter-
est on interest rate swaps;
– €7.9 million in prepaids on
extensions to malls and build-
ings.

Note 6 – Marketable securities
Marketable securities include
503,865 treasury shares with an
acquisition value of €16.5 mil-
lion, equal to 1.13% of total
equity issued.

These shares of treasury stock
are allocated as follows:
–300,000 shares to the stock option
plan established for Klépierre
Group employees, approved by
the Executive Board on June 14,
1999, of which 211,800 have
been granted;
–203 865 shares which may be
used to stabilize the stock price.

364,241 shares were sold in
2003, generating a gross capital
gain of €1.1 million.

Other marketable securities
include:
–Money market funds:
€23.4 million
–Spanish treasury bills:
€3.2 million.

Group share 3053 2555 2004
Share of external partners 784 747 376
Total 3837 3302 2380

in € thousands

NOTE 3
2001

2002
2003

Government
– Corporate income tax 9882 18221 485
– VAT 51049 32722 54180
Miscellaneous debtors 115893 142367 123199
Total 176824 193310 177864

in € thousands

NOTE 5
2001

2002
2003

Accounts receivable 3187 16 763 3344 23293 19517
Accrued liabilities - 1166 - 2885 - 59 - 4110 - 2690
Total 2021 13 877 3285 19183 16827

in € thousands
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Note 7 – Adjustment accounts
(assets)
Expenses to be amortized are
lease-up fees.

5.2 – Notes on consolidated
balance sheet liabilities

Note 8 – Change in group
shareholders’ equity
Acting on a vote taken by the
shareholders at their annual
meeting of April 4, 2003,
Klépierre completed a two-for-
one split of the stock comprising
its capital and then allotted one
free share for every two existing
shares on this basis. As a result,
equity was raised by €59.7 mil-
lion through the capitalization of
reserves, bringing the total to
€179 million. This increase
resulted in the issuance of
14,919,921 new shares, each
with a par value of €4, distrib-
uted freely.
The impact on shareholders’
equity of the revaluation of long-
term fixed assets is €840.9 mil-
lion. The related tax payable is
€155.5 million.

Convertible bond redemption premium - 2097
Bond ssue premium 2073 2531 2989
Bond issue costs and fees 5931 4112 7898
Expenses to ammortize 10353 10308 6924
Pre-paid expenses 2338 1480 874
Total 20695 18431 20782

in € thousands

NOTE 7
2001

2002
2003

December 2001 107053 555661 172160 65296 39457 -2109 37348 937517
Change in share capital of consolidating company 12307 134893 - 147200
Sale/acquisition of treasury shares - -
Impact of revaluations - -
Consolidated earnings for the period 81099 - 81099
Dividends paid by the consolidating company 837 23601 - 65296 - - 40858
Change in unrealized forex translation gains and losses 136 - 136
Changes in accounting methods - -
Change in scope of consolidation and% interest - 953 - - 953
Other changes - -
December 2002 119360 691391 194944 81099 39457 -2109 37348 1124141
Change in share capital of consolidating company 59680 - 59680 - -
Sale/acquisition of treasury shares - -
Impact of revaluations - -
Consolidated earnings for the period 88295 - 88295
Dividends paid by the consolidating company 1246 28346 - 81099 - - 51507
Change in unrealized forex translation gains and losses - 174 - - 174
2003 revaluation net of tax 685404 685404
Changes in accounting methods - -
Change in scope of consolidation and% interest - 7 597 - - 7 597
Other changes 564 - 564
December 2003 179040 692637 841807 88295 39457 -2109 37348 1839126

in € thousands
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Note 10 – Deferred taxes
Previously, deferred taxes were
allocated on the basis of tax
groups. Companies are now
grouped on the following basis
and deferred taxes allocated
accordingly:
–Companies with SIIC status
–Companies without SIIC status
operating in France
–Companies without SIIC status
operating abroad.
Offsetting entries are not made
for deferred tax assets and liabil-
ities.

Companies that opted 
for SIIC status
The adoption of SIIC status led
to the release of €45.3 million in
deferred tax assets and of €48.9
million in deferred tax liabilities.
These provisions concerned real
built property.

Other companies in France
and abroad
Deferred tax liabilities increased
by €54.2 million, reflecting taxa-
tion of the increase in restated
assets over historical cost after
revaluation. Other changes in
deferred tax liabilities relate pri-
marily to the consolidation of
Delcis (€3.8 million) and
Coimbra (€3.7 million).
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Note 9 – Change 
in minority interests
The impact of the asset revalua-
tion on minority reserves is

€113.2 million. The related tax
payable is €8.5 million.

December 2001 335850
Advances on dividends and dividends paid to minority interests - 17083
Impact of change in scope of consolidation on minority interests
– Klecar France 6681
– Klecar Participations Italie 16694
– SC Centre Bourse - 2382
– Other changes in scope of consolidation 115
Impact of regulatory changes
Other restatements 176
Earnings for the period 17619
December 2002 357670
Advances on dividends and dividends paid to minority interests - 13107
Impact of change in scope of consolidation on minority interests
– Klecar Europe Sud 22015
– Delcis 269
– Vignate 4774
– Restructuring of Klécentres and others - 78927
2003 revaluation net of taxes 104626
Impact of regulatory changes
Earnings for the period 19357
December 2003 416677

in € thousands

NOTE 9

Buildings - 97281 48866 - 54170 - 2019 - 6335 - 110939
Debt - -
Other items 1715 - 3273 1845 287
Total deferred tax liabilities -95566 48866 -54170 -5292 -4490 -110652
o/w
- SIIC status - 51892 48866 3026 -
- non-SIIC status, France - 16376 - 30689 598 - 46467
- non-SIIC status, abroad - 27298 - 23481 - 5892 - 7514 - 64185

Buildings 43410 - 45302 1892 1808 1808
Debt 14 - 14 -
Other items 9754 - 4273 16 5497
Total deferred tax assets 53178 -45302 - -2395 1824 7305
o/w
- SIIC status 48263 - 45302 - 2020 1824 2765 
- non-SIIC status, France 4708 - 1254 3454 
- non-SIIC status, abroad 207 879 1086

NET POSITION -42388 3564 -54170 -7687 -2666 -103347
in € thousands
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Note 11 – Provisions for 
contingencies and losses
Other provisions for contingen-
cies and losses mainly provide
for litigation risk (€1.4 million).

Note 12 – Borrowings 
and financing debt
In 2003, borrowings and financ-
ing debt increased by €323 mil-
lion, bringing the total to €2,427
million at the December 31, 2003
reporting date. The principal
financing arrangements are indi-
cated below:
–A €600 million bond issued in
July 2001, with 6.125% gross
yield to maturity;
–Two syndicated loans arranged
in 2001 and 2003, respectively,
of which the first has been totally
drawn down (€670 million at
year-end 2003 versus €500 mil-
lion one year earlier) and the
second for €180 million out of a
possible €500 million;
–A bridge loan of €225 million,
formerly in lieu of an equity issue,
which was transformed in early
2003 into a loan with the same
rank as the Group’s other debt;
– Smaller loans contracted by
subsidiaries in Italy (€194 million
including €126 million for Klecar
Italy), Belgium (€14 million) and
Portugal (€61 million);

–Commercial paper issued for
€220 million, versus €171 mil-
lion at the year-end reporting
date in 2002.

Maintenance of Standard and
Poor’s rating of BBB+ with stable
outlook is subject to compliance
with the following ratios:
–EBITDA/Net interest expense:
between 2.5 and 3
–Net corporate debt/Fair market
value of holdings (Loan to
Value): £ 50%
–Net current cash flow/Net cor-
porate debt: ≥ 6%.

In addition, the principal loans
extended to Klépierre carry the
following provisos. Failure to
comply would result in early pay-
ment of the financing in question:
Bond issue:
–Early redemption in the event
that one-third of the voting rights

Accrued retirement liabilities 7050 1459 - 628 - 22 7859
Building management expenses 806 337 - 600 543
Commitments granted to clients 337 - 337 
Other provisions for contingencies and losses 8463 789 - 2661 - 627 - 246 5718
Net goodwill liabilities 585 585
Total 17241 2585 - 3889 - 649 - 583 14705

in € thousands
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Convertible bond - - 157561
- Principal amount 153080
- Accrued interest 4481
Other bonds and notes 617620 617620 617619
- Principal amount 600000 600000 600000
- Accrued interest 17620 17620 17619
Bank borrowings 1626893 1139591 857738
- Principal amounts 1344602 923409 637185
- Commercial paper 220000 171000 170000
- Accrued interest 1754 1467 15246
- Bank overdraft facilities 60537 43715 35307
Miscellaneous borrowings and financing debt 182913 346739 311473
- Equity loans 153298 167596
- Other borrowings 40634 44609 
- Advances from group and partners 142279 148832 143877
Total 2427426 2103950 1944391

in € thousands

NOTE 12
2001

2002
2003

change hands, resulting in a
downgrade of Standard and
Poor’s rating to below BBB -
–Ceiling on assets pledged to

third parties, set at 50% of reval-
ued net assets.



Note 14 – Other liabilities
Other liabilities increased steadily
between the December 31, 2002
and December 31, 2003 reporting
dates, primarily due to the
increase in government income
tax payables, namely the exit tax
payable in installments over a
period of four years (December
15 of the year in which SIIC status
is elected and the three following
years). The remaining unpaid bal-
ance totaled €89.8 million on
December 31, 2003.
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Syndicated loans:
–EBITDA/Interest expense 
> or = 2.5
– Net corporate debt/Consolidated
shareholders’ equity (Gearing):
< or = 125%
–Net corporate debt (excluding
the bridge loan in lieu of equity
issue)/Fair market value of hold-
ings (Loan to Value): < or = 52%.

The table below analyzes financ-
ing debt by due date:

Note 13 – Trade notes 
and accounts payable
Trade notes and accounts payable
totaled €33.5 million, versus
€34.2 million at December 31,
2002.

Other bonds and notes 617620 17620 600000 -
- Principal amount 600000 600000 
- Accrued interest 17620 17620 
Bank borrowings 1626893 298676 949908 378309
- Principal amount 1344602 16385 949908 378309
- Commercial paper 220000 220000 
- Accrued interest 1754 1754 
- Bank overdrafts 60537 60537 
Miscellaneous borrowings and financing debt 182913 - - 182913
- Equity loans - 
- Other borrowings 40634 40634
- Advances from group and partners 142279 142279
Total 2427426 316296 1549908 561222

in € thousands
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Payroll and sub-accounts 7209 6966 7673
Social security and other 3655 2371 1037
Government
- Corporate income tax 98483 5458 20295
- VAT 8980 4722 14637
Other taxes and duties 787 1223 1184
Creditor clients 120699 116136 85747
Payables to fixed asset suppliers 48515 41027 88784
Other liabilities 44217 33782 41703
Total 332545 211685 261060

in € thousands

NOTE 14
2001

2002
2003

Prepaid income 5904 4901 9217
Other pre-paid expenses 
and expenses to amortize 5819 5497 5169
Total 11723 10398 14386

in € thousands

NOTE 15
2001

2002
2003

In addition, due to the growing
volume of shopping-center busi-
ness, security deposits and guar-
antees received increased from
€57 million at the December 31,
2002 reporting date to € 60.7
million at year-end 2003.
Other liabilities also include
€24.4 million in accrued interest
on interest-rate swaps.

Note 15 – Adjustment accounts
(liabilities)
Prepaid income primarily con-
sists of an additional cash pay-
ment on swaps of €3.3 million.
Accrued liabilities and other pre-
paid income consist exclusively
of entry fees spread over the
terms of the corresponding
leases.
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5.3 – Off-balance sheet
commitments

Note 16 – Reciprocal obligations
on interest-rate hedging 
instruments
Klépierre’s portfolio of interest-
rate hedging instruments at the
December 31, 2003 reporting
date is detailed below. This port-
folio was set up for the purpose
of covering the interest-rate risk
on a portion of the current and
future corporate debt based on
estimates of Klépierre’s global
needs and the due dates of 
various financing arrangements.
At the December 31, 2003 report-
ing date, the portfolio’s net unreal-
ized gains totaled €66.7 million.
As a reminder, reserves are not
established for unrealized gains
and losses, since the portfolio is
used to manage the Klépierre
group’s interest-rate risk.

Fixed rate payer Klépierre - Variable rate payer BNP Paribass 1968 1768 944
Fixed rate payer BNP-Paribas - Variable rate payer Klépierre 600 600 752
Fixed rate payer Klécar Italia Spa- Variable rate payer BNP Paribas 90 90 -

in € million

NOTE 16 – BINDING TRANSACTIONS
2001

2002
2003

Fixed rate payer Klépierre 46 100 524 252 1136
Variable rate payer Klépierre 600

in € million

NOTE 16 – DECEMBER 2003 BY DUE DATE
2010

2009
2008

2007
2006

2005
2004

Fixed rate payer Klépierre - Variable rate payer BNP-Paribas 44 84
Fixed rate payer BNP-Paribas - Variable rate payer Klépierre 37 22
Fixed rate payer Klécar Italia Spa - Variable rate payer BNP-Paribas 2 2

in € million

NOTE 16 – IMPACT ON RESULTS (reference capital of 1 to 10 years) Exp
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Note 17 – Commitments
granted and received

Agreement between 
the shareholders of Klécar
France and Klécar Europe Sud
The agreement provides for the
usual protections of minority
interests: pre-emptive rights,
joint exit rights and decision-
making processes that must be
complied with when investments
or divestments are considered.
The agreement also provides for
the following two protections:

Commitments granted
- Guarantees on loans granted to employees 4854 4683 NC
- Redemption premium on convertible bond - - 7255
- Surety, guarantees and mortgages 655759 229338 166722
- Purchase commitments 336734 412661 513087
Total 997347 646682 687064
Commitments received
- Bank guarantees received in connection with real estate 
management and transactions 198114 89206 52473
- Security deposits received from tenants 23194 18332 NC
- Commitments to finance received from credit institutions 412133 439134 573851
- Guarantees received to cover amounts paid - -
Total 633441 546672 626324

in € thousands

NOTE 17
2001

2002
2003
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Pledge of assets
As a rule, the group finances its
acquisitions through equity or via
debt contracted by the holding
company, without pledging assets.
A portion of the financing debt is
subject to certain limitations,
which are described in Note 12.

On intangible fixed assets nil 37828 
On tangible fixed assets 278 428 4709673 5,9%
Cienneo April 16, 1999 15-dec-13 25116 
Immobiliare Magnolia Sept. 8, 1999 15-juil-11 

Oct. 18, 2002 15-juil-11 13463 
ICD June 30, 1996 May 11, 2011 23977 
Klecar Italia June 25, 1996 June 25, 2015 212686 
IGC Aprl 3, 1997 Dec. 31, 2006 795 
Coimbra July 17, 2003 May 31, 2006 2391 
On long-term financial assets nil 86586 
TOTAL BALANCE SHEET ITEM 278428 5186352 5,4%

in € thousands
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–At the option of minority inter-
ests: exits from Klécar France
and Klécar Europe Sud in the
tenth and fifteenth years, with a
seller’s credit
–At the option of Klépierre: joint
mandatory exit of minority inter-
ests at the demand of Klépierre.

Agreement concluded with
AXA France Vie in the event 
of sale of units comprising 
the share capital of Ségécé
The following provisions apply in
cases where the sale of such
units is not considered to be a
free sale, and grant AXA France
Vie the following:
–Klépierre is obliged to repur-
chase from AXA France Vie all
units held in Ségécé whenever a
sale at the behest of AXA France
Vie is not in conformity with
Article 8 of Ségécé’s bylaws.
–Compensation for the 4.80%
registration tax that AXA France
Vie may be liable for in the event
of such sale.

Options relating 
to IGC shares
These options, defined in July
2002 with Finiper, IGC’s majority
shareholder, provide for the fol-
lowing:
– For Klépierre: the right to
acquire an additional 10% equity
stake in IGC throughout the third
year following acquisition, which
would increase ownership in the
company to 50%
–For Finiper: the right to sell a
10% equity stake in IGC to
Klépierre during the first two
years.

Commitments received 
and granted
–Commitments to purchase con-
cern the acquisition of shopping
malls in connection with the
agreement signed with Carrefour
agreement (€38 million), pay-
ment on the Valenciennes mall
(€36 million) and the Créteil
Soleil multi-plex movie theater
(€22 million).
Finally, the Group agreed to pur-
chase a 70% equity interest in
GC Assago, a company carrying
a development project in the out-
skirts of Milan valued at €142
million. The actual purchase of
the securities is expected to take
place when the project is com-
pleted at year-end 2004.

– The increase in guarantees,
deposits, pledges and collateral
reflects collateral of €331.5 mil-
lion given by Klécar Italia on a
€128 million loan it contracted.
In Italy, collateral generally
amounts to around three times
the bank loan for which it is pro-
vided.
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6 – Notes relative 
to the consolidated
statements of income

Note 18 – Operating income
Group revenues include the fol-
lowing:
–Lease income, which includes
rents from properties and shop-
ping centers, and related or
equivalent income such as park-
ing rental fees and eviction
indemnities
–Management and administra-
tive fees earned by its service
companies
–Proceeds from the sale of proj-
ects under development.

Other operating income includes
work re-invoiced to tenants,
entry fees received and miscella-
neous income.

At December 31, 2003, revenues
totaled €386.2 million, an
increase of 11.9% over the cor-
responding prior period.

Lease income totaled €353.2
million, of which €279 million
from shopping centers and
€74.2 million from office proper-
ties. Shopping center rents
increased 21% versus the corre-
sponding period in 2002. On a
constant structural basis, the
increase with respect to the cor-
responding period in 2002 was
4.8% for shopping centers and
3.1% for offices.

All businesses combined, Klé-
pierre generated 27.6% of its total
revenues abroad at the December
31, 2003 reporting date.

France 253765 25988 279753
Southern Europe 89436 6375 95811
- Other 8398 337 8735
- Italy 41100 2610 43710
- Spain 39938 3428 43366
Central Europe 10327 274 10601
Total 353528 32637 386165

in € thousands

NOTE 18 – ANALYSIS OF REVENUE 
BY GEOGRAPHIC REGION
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Notes 19 – Other operating
expenses and depreciation 
and amortization
Building expenses are shown net
of re-invoicing to tenants, and
include only expenses for which
the owner is liable and expenses
on unleased premises.

Other operating expenses include
the general expenses of manage-
ment companies and amortiza-
tion of capitalized expenses, with
the exception of fixed asset acqui-
sition costs, which are recorded
as allowances for building amorti-
zation.

Depreciation and amortization
expense increased by €8.1 mil-
lion.

The change primarily reflects:
–Asset revaluation and the over-
haul of amortization schedules
reduced depreciation and amor-
tization expense by €6.3 million.
This situation is attributable to
the extension of amortization
periods.
–Changes in scope via business
acquisitions and the direct pur-
chase of malls by existing com-
panies, resulting in an increase
of €18.0 million.

–As a result of property sales
completed in 2002 and 2003,
depreciation expense decreased
by €3.6 million.

Building expenses 22544 16752 13163
- Offices 4986 5572 5055
- Shopping centers 17558 11180 8108
General expenses 17033 19460 16956
- Offices 1082 1194 - 406
- Shopping centers 15951 18266 17362
Total 39577 36212 30119

in € thousands

NOTE 19 – OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
2001

2002
2003

Intangible fixed assets 3770 4149 2984
Real-estate leasing 255 109 103
Tangible fixed assets 87508 80038 78684
- Offices 20750 20758 23784
- Shopping centers 66758 59280 54900
Fixed asset acquisition costs 5065 4160 3625
Total 96598 88456 85396

in € thousands

2001
2002

2003
NOTE 19 – DEPRECIATION 
AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE



Note 21 – Non-recurring results
and amortization of goodwill
Non-recurring results include
total income or loss on the sale
of consolidated assets, as well
as one-off items recorded in the
period.

Six office buildings were sold. In
the absence of revaluation, capi-
tal gains would have amounted
to €84.6 million.

Capital gains on the sale of
equity interests in connection
with the unequal reduction trans-
action involving Klécentres in

September of 2003. It includes:
–A capital gain of €12.9 million
on the sale of equity interests in
Gonesse Usine Center, Bègles
Rives d’Arcins and Créteil Soleil.
This gross capital gain was fully
neutralized by taxes on the sale
recorded under corporate
income tax.
–A capital gain of €7.6 million in
interests in Créteil Soleil, which
had been cancelled in 1995.

Amortization of goodwill totaled
€0.6 million.
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Note 20 – Financial results
Financial and investment results
for the year ended December 31,
2003 were a loss of €110.5
million, compared with a loss of
€98.5 million for the corres-
ponding prior period.

Financial and investment gains
are summarized below:

This €12 million increase net 
of interest expense primarily
reflects the following:

•Change in interest rates
– Interest on bank borrowings
and other banking interest
decreased by €10.2 million,
reflecting a significant decrease
in interest rates.

–This decrease had the opposite
impact on the carrying cost of
the interest-rate hedge, corre-
sponding to the charge net of
interest on swaps: as Klépierre
was the floating rate receiver on
most of its hedges, the cost rose
by €15.9 million. The increase
was greater than the decrease 
in interest on borrowings since
Klépierre took advantage of 
historically low rates in 2003 to
contract additional swaps.

•The decrease in the volume of
advances reduced the amount of
interest on advances to €2.3 mil-
lion.

•The €4.1 million in other inter-
est expense is attributable to
expenses related to the setup
and non-use of the bridge loan,
which was partially drawn at the
December 31, 2003 reporting
date, and by fees and issue
expenses related to the mort-
gage loans of subsidiaries.

Gains on the sale 
of marketable securities 611 1729 2231
Gains on interest-rate swaps 83666 80822 65618
Interest on advances to Group and partners 4057 3013 2770
Miscellaneous interest earned 3912 6515 4793
Other interest income 1010 489 762
Forex gains 1246 186 20
Release of interest expense allowance 20 - 
Total interest income 94522 92754 76194

Interest on bonds 36750 36789 22100
Interest on bank borrowings 37466 41781 59714
Other bank interest 3770 9656 11066
Interest expense on swaps 108496 89326 70283
Interest expense on Group 
and partner advances 11927 8561 5877
Other interest expense 6839 2758 6124
Transfer of interest expense - 3924 - 77 - 5230
Forex losses 1712 22 
Allowance to fund convertible 
bond redemption premium 1310 1822 2133
Interest expense allowance 678 631 885
Total interest expense 205024 191269 172952

in € thousands

2001
2002

2003NOTE 20

Capital gains/losses on sale 
of tangible fixed assets 11666 67523 57664
Capital gains/losses on sale 
of equity securities 20486 99 5357
Other non-recurring items - 115 - 273 - 476
Allowances net of releases - 846 - 4100 - 131
Total 31191 63249 62414

in € thousands

2001
2002

2003NOTE 21
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Note 22 – Corporate income tax

The adoption of SIIC tax status
led to significant changes in line
items relative to corporate
income tax. Klépierre now differ-
entiates between three different
tax segments:
–The SIIC segment that includes
Klépierre and eligible French
real-estate subsidiaries. Some of
the latter maintain business that
is subject to income tax at the
prevailing rate.
–The non-SIIC segment in France.
–Non-SIIC foreign companies.

In 2003, these three segments
had a total tax expense of €26.8
million, which included:

€1.4 million for SIICs, 
broken down as follows:
– €5.1 million related to the
adoption of SIIC tax status (exit
tax, tax on the discontinuance of
business activities, cancellation
of deferred tax reserves at the

beginning of the year and the
cost of discontinuing the tax 
consolidation).
– €4 million related to restructur-
ings previously undertaken by
Klépierre for the adoption of the
SIIC tax status.
– €1.9 million in miscellaneous
taxes.
–A tax receivable of €9.9 million
for two loss carry-backs: €5.3
million recorded in 2003 for the
2002 fiscal year, and €4.6 million
to cover the 2003 losses of
Klépierre SA’s businesses sub-
ject to corporate income tax.

€25.4 million for the non-
SIIC segment, including:
– €12.9 million for non-SIIC
companies in France, including
€7 million incurred by Ségécé
and Klécar Europe Sud prior to
their transformation into simple
general partnerships (Société
en Commandite Simple).

– €12.5 million for foreign com-
panies, including €4.2 million in
deferred tax expense calculated
for revalued depreciation and
amortization and DAC (deferred
acquisition costs).

Effective tax expense for 2003 is
€130.1 million, including:
– €112.8 million for the SIIC 
segment. The total includes the
up-front exit tax (€119.8 million),
business discontinuation in the
taxable segment (€1.3 million),
plus taxes on the sale of Center
Villepinte securities (€4 million)
and less receivables from tax
loss carry-backs recorded in
2003 (€9.9 million) and 2002
(€2.3 million).
– €12.1 million for the non-SIIC
segment in France.
– €5.2 million for foreign compa-
nies.

Income tax payable 12631 30718 45903
Deferred income tax 14213 23782 - 15
Total 26844 54500 45888

in € thousands

2001
2002

2003NOTE 22

Income tax payable 14201 - 1574 12627
Deferred income tax 7469 6748 14217
Total 21670 5174 26844

in € thousands
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Total tax expense, broken down
into deferred and current taxes,
is presented below:

The current tax expense for non-
SIIC segments in France and
abroad is €24.5 million. The SIIC
segment recorded a tax savings
of €5.1 million. The non-recur-
ring deferred tax expense
includes €3 million due to the
cancellation of reserves for the
SIIC segment.

An explanation of the transition
from the theoretical corporate
income tax (at a rate of 35.43%)
to the actual tax expense is pro-
vided on the following page.
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TAX EXPENSE VERIFICATION To
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Earnings integrated before tax 101439 - 34569 66870 35380 31851 134101
Theoretical tax expense (35.43%) -35940 12248 -23692 -12535 -11285 -47512

Exempt
Exit tax and cancellation of deferred tax liabilities - 5147 - 5147 - 5147
Impact of permanent lags 35940 35940 35940
Other 5066 5066 5066

Taxable
Impact of permanent lags - 3541 - 3541 - 386 - 3927
Untaxed consolidation reclassifications - 2975 - 2975 - 268 - 3243
Impact of non-capitalized tax losses - 2788 - 2788 - 1030 - 3818
Taxes paid by general partners 1854 1854
Other - 150 - 150 - 573 - 1257 - 1980
Effective tax expense (35.43%) - 81 2794 2713 -12938 -12542 -22729
Tax expense at reduced rate 4075 - 4075 - 4075
Total tax expense - 81 - 1281 - 1362 -12938 -12542 -26844

in € thousands



123

Note 24 – Workforce 
and payroll expense
The average workforce of pro-
portionately consolidated com-
panies – Centros Shopping
Gestion – is calculated on the
basis of percentage consolida-
tion. The workforce of companies
accounted for by the equity
method is not included in the
total.

Note 23 – Transition table: corporate earnings 
to consolidated earnings

Note 25 – Compensation paid 
to senior officers and directors
The following table summarizes
the amount of directors’ fees paid
to members of the supervisory
board and compensation paid to
members of the executive board
in 2003:

Note 26 – Consolidating 
company
At December 31, 2003, Klépierre
was fully consolidated by the
BNP Paribas group, which owns
a 53.1% interest in Klépierre.

Note 27 – Capital and 
stock market
Klépierre’s shares are listed on
the Deferred Settlement Service
(SRD) of the Euronext Premier
Marché.

Corporate statutory earnings 337948 97068 13410 448426
Reversal of released depreciation allowances - 5243 2326 - 2917
Revaluations -
- Sale - 3537 - 3537
- Amortization - 407 11521 11114
Deferred taxes (withholding at source) 19528 25406 - 64 44870
Capital gains on the sale of securities and TUP transfers - 194677 - 1029 - 195706
Group dividends - 182082 - 27861 - 354 - 210297
Goodwill amortization 284 - 791 - 507
Restructuring of Klécentres 1755 - 1755
Other eliminations/restatements - 2481 16449 88 14056
Net earnings of consolidated companies - 29196 124164 12289 107257
Income of companies accounted for under the equity method 396 396
Net earnings of consolidated group - 29196 124164 12685 107653
o/w Group share - 29259 107540 10014 88295

o/w minority share 63 16624 2671 19358

in € thousands

NOTE 23
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Offices 33 40 51
Shopping centers 497 455 356
Total 530 495 407

2001
2002

2003NOTE 24 – WORKFORCE

Offices 2610 3088 3806
Shopping centers 34219 27582 22935
Total 36829 30670 26741

in € thousands

2001
2002

2003NOTE 24 – PAYROLL EXPENSE

Corporate Governance Boards
Executive Board 1277000 12200 1289200
Michel CLAIR 367990 3050 371040
Claude LOBJOIE 244440 3050 247490
Éric RANJARD 349580 3050 352630
Jean-Paul SABET 314990 3050 318040

Supervisory Board 85371 85371
Vivien LÉVY-GARBOUA 13377 13377
Bertrand de FEYDEAU 13377 13377
Philippe DULAC 3294 3294
Bertrand JACQUILLAT 11488 11488
Bertrand LETAMENDIA 11365 11365
Christian MANSET 12519 12519
Jean NUNEZ 9476 9476
Laurent TRECA 10475 10475

in €
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on the consolidated financial statements

Financial Year Ended
December 31, 2003

To the Shareholders 
of Klépierre,

In our capacity as statutory audi-
tors appointed by your share-
holders’ meeting, we have audited
the accompanying consolidated
accounts of Klépierre as of
December 31, 2003.

These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared
by the Executive Board. Our
responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial state-
ments based on our audit.

Opinion 
on the consolidated 
financial statements
We conducted our audit in accor-
dance with French professional
standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examin-
ing, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and dis-
closures in these financial state-
ments. An audit also includes

assessing the accounting princi-
ples used and significant esti-
mates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit pro-
vides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the finan-
cial position and assets and liabil-
ities of the Group as of December
31, 2003 and the results of the
Group’s operations included in
the consolidation for the year then
ended, in accordance with French
accounting principles and stan-
dards.

Observations 
and justification 
of our assessments
In accordance with the provisions
of Article L. 225-235 of the French
Commercial Code relating to the
justification of our assessments,
which apply for the first time this
year, we bring to your attention
the following matters, which con-
tribute to the opinion expressed
above relating to the financial
statements taken as a whole:

As stated in Notes 1.1 and 3.1
of the Notes to the financial state-

ments, within the scope of its
election for the new tax status
applying to Public Real Estate
Investment Companies (Sociétés
d’Investissements Immobiliers
Cotées), Klépierre carried out a
voluntary revaluation of its prop-
erty, plant and equipment and
financial fixed assets in its consol-
idated financial statements. We
ensured that the accounting treat-
ment of these transactions was
appropriate based on generally
accepted accounting principles in
France, the specific provisions
laid down by the Emergency
Committee meeting of the French
National Institute of Accountants
(Conseil national de la comptabil-
ité) held on June 11, 2003, the
valuations carried out by inde-
pendent experts and the tax posi-
tions adopted by the Company.

Valuation procedures were
carried out by independent real
estate appraisers with respect to
real estate assets. We ensured
that sufficient provisions were set
aside using the Group’s account-
ing principles based on the exter-
nal expert appraisals.

Within the scope of the applica-
tion of the transitional provisions 
of Regulation No. 2002-10 of the
French Accounting Regulations

Committee (Comité de la Régle-
mentation Comptable) relating to
the amortization, depreciation and
impairment of assets, the Group
chose not to apply in advance the
component method and did not
set aside provisions for major
maintenance for the reasons set
out in Note 3.2 to the financial
statements. We have ensured that
the reasons presented in such
Note are pertinent.

Specific procedure and 
disclosure prescribed by law
We have also reviewed the
information relating to the Group
contained in the Executive
Board Report in accordance
with French professional stan-
dards.

We have nothing to report with
respect to the fairness of this
information and its consistency
with the consolidated state-
ments.

March 9, 2004

The Statutory Auditors
Mazars & Guérard:
Odile Coulaud
Ernst & Young Audit:
Patrice Coslin

report of the statutory auditors
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This is a free translation into English
of the statutory auditors’ reports
issued in the French language 
and is provided solely for the 
convenience of English speaking
readers. The statutory auditors’
report includes for the information
of the reader, as required under
French law in any auditor’s report,
whether qualified of not, explana-
tory paragraphs separate from
and presented below the audit
opinion discussing the auditors’
assessments of certain signifi-
cant accounting and auditing
matters. These assessments
were considered for the purpose
of issuing an audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole and not to 
provide separate assurance on
individual account caption or on
information taken outside of the
consolidated financial statements.
Such report should be read in
conjunction and construed in
accordance with French law and
French auditing professional
standards.
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Statement of income at December 31, 2003 – p. 127
Balance sheet at December 31, 2003 – p. 128

Simplified notes to corporate financial state-
ments – p. 130

General report of the statutory auditors on
the annual financial statements – p. 136

Statutory auditors’ special report
– p. 137

Report of the statutory audi-
tors on the proposed reduction in

capital – p. 138
Report of the statutory auditors on

the issuing of securities – p. 138
Report of the statutory auditors on the

proposed increase in capital – p. 139
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statement of income
AT DECEMBER 31

200120022003
Operating income
Lease income 19124 21367 19724
- Rents 17861 19921 18505
- Reimbursement of expenses 1258 1446 1111
- Other 5 - 108
Other services provided 188 320 869
Release of reserves 4369 4154 9821
Expense transfers 1282 102 3613
TOTAL I 24963 25943 34027
Operating expenses
External purchases and expenses - 11781 - 8828 - 9677
Taxes, duties and equivalent - 1190 - 1402 - 1646
Payroll expense - - -
Depreciation and amortization of intangible fixed assets, acquisition costs and expenses to amortize - 1458 - 968 - 1490
Depreciation and amortization of intangible fixed assets - 5796 - 6520 - 7031
Allowance for doubtful accounts - 2 - 1 - 138
Provisions for contingencies and losses - 113 - 101 - 41
Other expenses - 115 - 600 - 93
TOTAL II - 20455 - 18420 - 20116
OPERATING EARNINGS (I-II) 4508 7523 13911
Net results of joint operations
INCOME ATTRIBUTED OR LOSSES TRANSFERRED – TOTAL III 41750 32722 32456
LOSSES BORNE OR INCOME TRANSFERRED – TOTAL IV - 3282 - 1507 - 417
Interest and dividends – TOTAL V (note 13) 226305 174832 173505
Interest expense – TOTAL VI (note 14) - 197519 -179001 -162372
FINANCIAL RESULTS (V-VI) 28786 -4169 11133
PRE-TAX OPERATING EARNINGS (I - II + III-IV + V - VI) 71762 34569 57083
Non-recurring gains
On operations 377 374 852
On capital transactions 242376 35686 6806
Release of reserves 894 309 407
Expense transfers - - -
TOTAL VII 243647 36369 8065
Non-recurring losses
On operations - 782 - 610 - 1325
On capital transactions - 15161 - 21039 - 5468
Depreciation and amortization - 152 - 1021 - 618
TOTAL VIII - 16095 - 22670 - 7411
Non-recurring results (VII-VIII) (note 15) 227552 13699 654
EMPLOYEE PROFIT-SHARING – TOTAL IX - - -
CORPORATE INCOME TAX – TOTAL X (note 16) 5961 3531 7220
TOTAL INCOME (I + III + V + VII) 536665 269866 248053
TOTAL EXPENSE (II + IV + VI + VIII + IX + X) - 231390 - 218067 - 183096
NET EARNINGS FOR THE YEAR 305275 51799 64957

in € thousands
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balance sheet

20022003

ASSETS AT DECEMBER 31 NetNetNetDep
re
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2001
Fixed assets
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (note 1) 20 - 20 2 479
TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS (note 1) 178030 72826 105204 119666 135528
Land 47124 47124 52618 56333
Buildings and improvements 130760 72727 58033 67000 78649
Installations in progress 4 4 508
Other tangible fixed assets 142 99 43 48 38
LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS 3470443 18075 3452368 2755733 2470427
Equity investment securities (note 4 and 5) 2337415 17896 2319519 2083173 1952088
Receivables from equity interests (note 6) 1095790 1095790 631526 480192
Other long-term securities 179 179 - - -
Loans 37050 37050 41025 38138
Security deposits 9 9 9 9
TOTAL I 3648493 90901 3557592 2875401 2606434
Current assets
DOWN PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS 13 - 13 23251 21763
TRADE NOTES AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 942 47 895 1358 2055
Ordinary accounts 884 884 1338 1673
Doubtful accounts 58 47 11 20 382
MISCELLANEOUS RECEIVABLES 29722 - 29722 53296 47582
Government 229 229 16918 3468
Other receivables (note 7) 29493 29493 36378 44114
MARKETABLE SECURITIES 27744 - 27744 26379 25225
Treasury stock 16529 16529 18525 23707
Other securities 11215 11215 7854 1518
CASH AND NEAR CASH - - 1528 235
Adjustment accounts
PRE-PAID EXPENSES (note 8) 275 275 960 232
TOTAL II 58696 47 58649 106772 97092
Expenses to amortize over several periods – TOTAL III (note 8) 7211 7211 5620 10038
Bond redemption premiums – TOTAL IV (note 8) 2072 2072 2531 5086
TOTAL ASSETS (I + II + III + IV) 3716472 90948 3625524 2990324 2718650

in € thousands
OFF BALANCE-SHEET COMMITMENTS –COMMITMENTS RECEIVED
Security deposits received from tenants 798 798 1422 689
Commitments to finance received from lending institutions 411601 411601 307487 550000
Commitments to purchase securities - - 23000 23000
Commitments for the sale of buildings - - 236 -
TOTAL 412399 - 412399 332145 573689

in € thousands
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LIABILITIES AT DECEMBER 31
20012002

Shareholders’ equity (note 9)
Share capital 179039 119359 107068
Additional paid-in capital 566389 566389 431480
Gains on cancelled shares in acquired companies 113736 113736 113736
Legal reserve 11936 10707 9870
Other reserves 161629 221309 221309
Retained earnings 29369 30308 7047
Earnings for the year 305275 51799 64957
Investment provisions 26 64 73
TOTAL I 1367399 1113671 955540
PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES AND LOSSES – TOTAL II (note 10) 3879 39530 27793
Debt (note 11)
CONVERTIBLE BONDS - - 157561
OTHER BONDS AND NOTES 617620 617620 617620
BANK BORROWINGS 1105192 860117 613536
MISCELLANEOUS BORROWINGS AND FINANCING DEBT 325137 219439 297631
TRADE NOTES AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 203 312 383
Prepaids 41 - -
Accrued expenses 162 312 383
TRADE NOTES AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 4582 2004 20803
Other liabilities 2957 1134 834
Accrued liabilities 1625 870 19969
TAX AND SOCIAL LIABILITIES 56980 145 4840
Government, taxes and duties 56980 145 4840
Accrued liabilities - -
PAYABLES TO FIXED ASSET SUPPLIERS AND SUB-ACCOUNTS 111 281 875
OTHER LIABILITIES (note 12) 141084 133113 17290
Adjustment accounts
PRE-PAID INCOME 3337 4092 4778
TOTAL III 2254246 1837123 1735317
TOTAL LIABILITIES (I + II + III) 3625524 2990324 2718650

in € thousands
OFF BALANCE-SHEET COMMITMENTS – COMMITMENTS GRANTED
Commitments on the purchase of securities and shopping malls 63377 292532 
Commitments to finance granted to lending institutions 163002 24913 
Other commitments granted - 21 51
Interest rate hedging instruments 2467918 2367918 1696367
TOTAL 2694297 2685384 1696418

in € thousands
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1 – Significant 
events in 2003

Klépierre triples its stock float
On April 4, 2003, the sharehold-
ers ratified two extraordinary
resolutions, the combined result
of which was to triple Klépierre’s
stock float.
•Par value halved: The par value
of the 14,919,921 shares that
make up equity capital was
halved from €8 to €4.
•Allotment of one free share for
every two shares: Stated capital
was increased by capitalizing
reserves totaling €59,79,684
and issuing 14,919,921 new
shares, freely allotting one new
share for every two shares with
a par value of €4.
Consequently, Klépierre’s stated
capital is €179,039,052, divided
into 44,759,763 fully paid-up
shares, each with a par value 
of €4.

SIIC tax status
On September 26, 2003, Klépierre
SA elected to adopt SIIC tax status,
for which listed real-estate compa-
nies (Sociétés d’Investissements
Immobiliers Cotées) are eligible
under Article 11 of the French
Budget Act of December 30,
2002. The decision is retroactive
as from January 1, 2003.

The new tax status grants
Klépierre tax exemption on rele-
vant income, provided that it
complies with applicable divi-
dend distribution requirements.
In opting for SIIC tax status,
Klépierre agrees to pay a 16.5%
exit tax on the unrealized capital
gains in its portfolio on December
31, 2002. Since the company did
not opt to revalue these assets,
the exit tax was charged against
the year’s income.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
a portion of Klépierre SA’s busi-
ness remains subject to corpo-
rate income tax; namely, that
involving equity interests held in
foreign subsidiaries and sub-
sidiaries that are not eligible for
SIIC tax status.

Dissolution of the tax 
consolidation group
Adopting the new SIIC tax status
also led to the removal of subsi-
diaries from the tax consolidation
group established by Klépierre in
1995, and the dissolution of the
group. Among the consequences
of this change, the elimination of
certain intra-company transac-
tions in consolidation is no
longer allowed.
The remaining balance of the
suspense account in which

Klépierre previously recorded tax
savings attributable to loss-mak-
ing subsidiaries was transferred
to the Klépierre statement of
income.

Simplified dissolution without
liquidation (TUP)
Using a process in France known
as Transmission Universelle de
patrimoine (TUP), under which
all of the assets and liabilities of
a company can be transferred to
the company holding all the
securities representing its capi-
tal, Klépierre SA decided to 
dissolve without liquidating the
following companies:
• Klécentres SAS, a shopping
center holding company (deci-
sion ratified on September 29,
2003)
• Klébureaux SAS, an office
property holding company (deci-
sion ratified on October 30,
2003), which on October 29,
2003 had decided to dissolve
Daumesnil Reuilly SAS
•Cécotoul SAS (decision ratified
on November 14, 2003)
•LP3 SCI (decision ratified on
November 14, 2003)
•Klécar Europe Est SAS (deci-
sion ratified on November 14,
2003).
These transactions quality for
the preferential tax status pro-

vided for under Article 210 of the
French General Tax Vode (CGI).
Prior to the TUP transactions,
Klécentres SAS and Klébureaux
SAS elected for SIIC tax status
with retroactive effect from
January 1, 2003. At that time,
Klécentres SAS revalued its tan-
gible and financial assets.

2 – Significant accounting
and valuation policies

The annual financial statements
for the year ended December 31,
2003 were established in accor-
dance with the generally
accepted accounting principles
in France.
The accounting policies applica-
ble to the 2003 fiscal year are the
same as in previous years, with
the exception of the following:

Expenses to amortize
Eviction indemnities and lease-
up fees are now spread over sev-
eral periods whenever they
exceed €15,000.

Income tax
Klépierre adopted the tax status
provided for in Article 11 of the
French Budget Act of December 30,
2002, which exempts Klépierre
from French corporate income
tax, provided that it complies

simplified appendix
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with the following distribution
requirements:
•The distribution of 85% of earn-
ings derived from property rental
business before the end of the
fiscal year that follows the year in
which they are earned;
•The distribution of 50% of capi-
tal gains realized on the sale of
(i) real-estate assets, (ii) equity
interests in companies referred
to in Article 8 that have the same
corporate purpose as SIICs, and
(iii) securities held in subsidiaries
previously subject to corporate
income tax that opted for SIIC
status, before the end of the sec-
ond fiscal year following the year
in which they are realized;
•The distribution of all of the 
dividends received from sub-
sidiaries that have opted for SIIC
status, before the end of the fiscal
year in which these dividends
are received.

For the tax-exempt sector and
the tax-liable sector, income and
expenses are recorded in accor-
dance with regulations in force:
•Income and expenses are directly
allocated whenever possible
•General expenses are prorated on
the basis of income for each sector
•Net interest expense is prorated
on the basis of gross fixed
assets for each sector.

Klépierre also calculates taxable
income for the sector that is sub-
ject to corporate income tax.

Provisions for major repairs
The transitional measures of
CRC Regulation 2002.10 stipu-
late that businesses are required
to either (i) set up provisions for
major repairs, or (ii) use the so-
called “components” method for
major repair and replacement
expenses for accounting periods
that began after January 1, 2003
and that end before December
31, 2004.

According to CRC Regulation
2003.07 issued on December 12,
2003, these transitional meas-
ures provide that:
–With respect to expenses of the
first type (i.e. those incurred to
replace all or some part of an
asset), businesses that have not
already set up provisions for
major maintenance or overhauls
must not do so now; in any case,
they may opt for the components
method.
–With respect to expenses of the
second type (i.e. expenses that
are incurred in connection with
multi-year major maintenance or
overhaul programs), businesses
must either set up provisions or
begin using the components

methods, for all accounting peri-
ods beginning with January 1,
2003.

For the year ended December
31, 2003, no provisions of the
second type were set up, due to
the insignificant level of expenses
relating to major repairs in con-
nection with major maintenance
or overhaul programs.



132

corporate financial statements

Financial information - subsidiaries 
and equity interests
1. Subsidiaries (more than 50% owned)
192 Charles de Gaulle SAS 30566 44971 100 3929 5426 50665 50665
21 Kléber SAS 305 7485 100 336 751 6146 6146 2348
21 La Pérouse SAS 3011 9060 100 942 1497 7411 7411 3604
23 Marignan SAS 21190 26073 100 2474 5898 37629 37629 32111
43 Grenelle SAS 17722 41039 100 2 033 4433 41229 41229
43 Kléber SAS 6822 13325 100 857 1440 17527 17527
46 Notre Dame des Victoires SAS 25993 25840 100 - 4 031 3315 36578 36578
5 Turin SAS 3468 7841 100 310 799 6936 6936 305
8 rue du Sentier SCI 33132 - 35865 100 - 152 0 9147 0 2885
Baudot Massy SAS 3891 5295 100 - 452 1109 7612 7612
Brescia SAS 9033 7253 100 1021 0 39741 39741
Capucine BV 2400 4739 100 - 2071 0 7200 7200 91533
CB Pierre SAS 48000 1820 100 23990 15413 22389 22389 16534
Cécoville SAS 38 11293 100 746 3657 143 143 27678
Chaptal Alun SCI 16577 16463 100 1192 0 33153 33039
Clermont Jaude SAS 21686 9585 100 - 1480 6772 83804 83804
Concorde Puteaux SAS 8292 8197 100 359 1420 10856 10856
Doumer Caen SAS 4993 9024 100 524 1225 15110 15110
Espace Dumont d’Urville SAS 1138 2742 100 163 1584 2076 2076 18730
Espace Kléber SAS 2716 8010 100 435 5443 6076 6076 70568
H1 SAS 37 - 101 100 - 1 165 0 8766 8766 40322
H3 SAS 37 - 18 100 - 175 0 0 0 5090
Immobiliare Magnolia SRL 520 311 85 255 1595 4904 4904 2741 160
Issy Desmoulins SAS 2020 - 17 100 - 1483 3806 4040 4040 77312
Kléber La Pérouse SNC 4118 15 100 - 2013 0 11471 11471 86849 3511
Kléber La Pérouse Bis SNC 2 - 2 100 - 1 0 2 2 5
Kléber Levallois SAS 8409 8426 100 529 896 13020 13020
Klécar Europe Sud SCS 301960 303413 83 3158 0 501169 501169 55247 5522
Klécar France SNC 500881 469380 83 42890 43300 831462 831462 9972
Klécar Participations Italie SAS 49100 48689 83 - 760 0 81506 81506 1063
Kléfi Participations SAS 65 65 100 - 2 0 130 130
Kléfin Italia SPA 4250 8399 100 - 1785 0 13625 13625 98945

3.1 – LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS
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3.1 – LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS (cont’d)
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Financial information - subsidiaries 
and equity interests
Klégestion SAS 640 84 100 1767 4666 876 876 1593
Klépierre Conseil SAS 38 31 100 40 7207 1391 109 4411
Klépierre Finance SAS 38 4 100 124 0 38 38 440
Klépierre Portugal SA 250 5858 100 - 105 0 6250 6250 61300 12369
Klépierre Transactions SAS 38 42 100 - 3312 185 76 76 63061 1208
Le Havre Capelet SAS 229 - 18 100 - 18 0 267 267 43
Le Havre Tourneville SAS 229 - 115 100 - 477 0 267 267 1347
Leblanc Paris 15 SAS 2324 2348 100 197 294 3824 3824
Louis David SAS 11586 - 1701 100 306 0 6098 6098
LP 7 SAS 38 - 53 100 - 46 0 38 0 53
Marseille Le Merlan SAS 37 37 100 - 38 0 74 74 28012
Melun Saint Pères SAS 8080 14615 100 1565 1978 23102 23102
Nancy Bonsecours SAS 38 - 346 100 - 39 0 76 76 415
Novate SRL 4264 7586 100 - 1702 0 13644 13644 65573
Odysseum Place de Venise SAS 38 - 46 70 - 14 0 27 27 28
Odysseum Place de France SAS 38 - 154 70 - 43 56 27 27 4218 849
Odysseum Place d’Alexandrie SAS 38 - 114 100 - 41 0 74 74 584
Pasteur SAS 38 - 42 100 - 16 0 76 76 17
Poitiers Aliénor SAS 229 9 100 - 5 0 267 267
Saint André Pey Berland SAS 10671 7365 100 663 1609 19491 15804 2725
Secmarne SAS 2594 - 3040 67 4599 10334 45478 45478 10091 1210
Ségécé SCS 1600 7377 75 10826 52053 28428 28428 5250
Solorec SC 4869 2768 58 14744 21657 146161 146161 15460
Sovaly SAS 448 - 33 100 - 35 0 571 383 443
Strasbourg La Vigie SAS 1309 2527 100 278 542 4467 4467
Suffren Paris XV SAS 6075 4191 100 1149 265 7790 7790
Tours Nationale SAS 6728 10890 100 576 1567 18325 18325
Zobel Investments B.V. 305 - 4796 100 5095 0 315 0 4397
Other 8044 0 6433 13179 53369 51052 36002 174081
TOTAL I 103169 225371 2292410 2275322 101520 1023099 23595

in € thousands



3.2 – Marketable securities

Marketable securities include
503,865 shares of treasury stock
with a purchase value of €16.5
million, equal to 1.125% of the
total equity capital.

These shares include:
•300,000 shares set aside for
the Klépierre group employee
stock option plan, approved by
the Executive Board on June 14,
1999;
•203,865 shares acquired to sta-
bilize the stock price.

A total of 145,688 shares were
sold in 2003, generating a gross
capital gain of €1.1 million.
Other shares are short-term
investments of €11.2 million.

4 – Notes on Balance 
Sheet Liabilities

4.1 – Provisions 
for contingencies and losses

The decrease in provisions for
contingencies and losses is pri-
marily attributable to the dissolu-
tion of the tax consolidation
group, pursuant to the adoption 
of the new SIIC tax status. As a
result, the tax consolidation sus-
pense account set up for tax post-
ponement purposes and for tax
savings attributable to loss-mak-

ing subsidiaries was recorded as
a tax consolidation gain of €40.6
million.

4.2 – Miscellaneous borrowings
and financing debt

The €110 million bank borrowing
was repaid during the first half of
2003. The bridge loan was con-
tracted on behalf of the Group’s
subsidiary, Klécar Italia.
In 2003, Klépierre contracted a
syndicated loan, of which €180
million was drawn (maximum
authorized contract €500 million).

4.3 – Tax and social liabilities

Corporate income tax liabilities
amounted to €55 million, broken
down as follows:
•A €55.7 million exit tax expense
•A €4 million tax expense payable
in 2003
• A €4.6 million credit arising
from a loss carry-back for 2003.
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Financial information - subsidiaries 
and equity interests
2. Equity interests (10 - 50% owned)
Bègles d’Arcins SCS 26678 21479 50 1449 2746 41837 41837 1178
Effe Kappa SRL 12 4 50 30 677 6 6 -
Galaé SNC 330 1 49 - 1181 320 490 162 - 491
Oise Cergy SAS 2170 1915 50 125 0 2320 2043
Socoseine SAS 38 203 25 -93 0 99 99 - 258
Sviluppo Klépierre Finim SPA 104 -50 50 -92 0 245 42 -
Other 17 0 - 1441 3115 8 8 - 18831
TOTAL II - 1203 6858 45005 44197 0 19580 1178

3. Other 86
TOTAL III 0 0 0 0 0 86 0

TOTAL I + II + III 101966 232229 2337415 2319519 101520 1042765 24773
in € thousands

3.1 – LONG-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS
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4.4 – Other liabilities

Other liabilities primarily reflects
the €87.4 million in cash
advances granted by Klépierre
subsidiaries, €26.1 million in
advances paid by Klécar France
SNC on Klépierre’s share in its
earnings and €24.4 million in
accrued interest on interest rate
swaps.

5 – Commentary on 
the statement of income

5.1 – Non-recurring results

Non-recurring results of €227.5
million primarily include surplus
gains from TUP transactions,
broken down as follows:
• €197 million for Klécentres
SAS
• €23.7 million for Klébureaux
SAS.

5.2 – Corporate income tax

Klépierre SA’s earnings for the
period ended December 31, 2003
totaled €305,275,354. Taxable
income from the rental business
amounted to €23,089,054 to
which is added €19,431,394, the
net capital gains from the sale 
of assets.
The minimum distribution obliga-
tion amounted to €19,625,696
for  the renta l  business and
€9,715,697 for capital gains.
No “avoir fiscaux” or tax credits
are attached to distributions from
the tax-exempt segment.
Corporate income tax amounted
to €6 million, broken down as
follows:
•A - €34.8 million exit tax
• - €0.5 million tax on the discon-
tinuation of business activities

• -€4 million in reduced-rate
income tax on long-term capital
gains realized on the sale of
equity interests in Villepinte and
from the TUP transaction on
Klécentres SAS
• €35.4 million in net tax consoli-
dation gains
• €9.9 million in loss carry-backs,
of which €5.3 million arising
from fiscal year 2002.

6 – Information 
on consolidation

Klépierre’s corporate financial
statements are fully consolidated
by Klépierre SA, whose financial
statements are fully consolidated
by BNP Paribas.

The complete corporate financial
statements are available on the
Klépierre corporate website, 
under Publications/Reports.
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on the annual financial statements

Financial Year Ended
December 31, 2003

To the Shareholders 
of Klépierre,

In our capacity as statutory audi-
tors appointed by your share-
holders’ meeting, we present
below our report for the financial
year ended December 31, 2003,
on:

the audit of the accompanying
statutory financial statements of
Klépierre, and,

the specific procedures and
disclosures prescribed by law.

These financial statements have
been prepared by the Executive
Board. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these
financial statements based on
our audit.

Opinion on the financial
statements
We conducted our audit in accor-
dance with French professional
standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the
financial statements are free
from material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a

test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluat-
ing the overall financial state-
ment presentation. We believe
that our audit provides a reason-
able basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial state-
ments present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position
and assets and liabilities of the
Company as of December 31,
2003 and the results of its opera-
tions for the year then ended, in
accordance with French account-
ing principles and standards.

Observations 
and justification 
of our assessments
In accordance with the provi-
sions of Article L. 225-235 of the
French Commercial Code relat-
ing to the justification of our
assessments, which applied for
the first time this year, we bring
to your attention the following
matters, which contribute to the
opinion expressed above relating
to the financial statements taken
as a whole:

As stated in Note 1 and 5.4 of the
Notes to the Financial Statements,

in connection with the new tax
regime applicable to “SIIC” (French
listed property investment compa-
nies), Klépierre reorganized the
Group from a legal standpoint.
Pursuant to these transactions,
Klépierre carried out the dissolu-
tion via the intermingling of assets,
for some of its subsidiaries. We
ensured that the accounting treat-
ment of these transactions was
appropriate.

Valuation procedures were
carried out by independent real
estate appraisers with respect to
real estate assets. We ensured
that sufficient provisions were
set aside using the Group’s
accounting principles based on
the external expert appraisals.

Within the scope of the appli-
cation of the transitional provi-
sions of Regulation No. 2002-10
of the French Accounting Regu-
lations Committee (Comité de la
Réglementation Comptable) relat-
ing to the amortization, deprecia-
tion and impairment of assets,
the Group chose not to apply in
advance the component method
and did not set aside provisions
for major maintenance for the
reasons set out in Note 2.9 to the
financial statements. We have
ensured that the reasons pre-
sented in such Note are perti-
nent.

Specific procedures 
and disclosures prescribed
by law
We also carried out, in accor-
dance with French professional
standards, the specific proce-
dures prescribed by French law.
We have nothing to report with
respect to the fairness of informa-
tion contained in the Executive
Board report and its consistency
with the financial statements and
other information presented to
shareholders concerning the
financial position and statutory
financial statements.
Pursuant to French law, we have
ensured that the various informa-
tion relating to the acquisition of
shares and controlling interests,
and the list of holders of shares
in the capital and voting rights
were provided to you in the
Executive Board report.

March, 9 2004

The Statutory Auditors
Mazars & Guérard:
Odile Coulaud
Ernst & Young Audit:
Patrice Coslin

Translation of the French original
for information purposes only.

general report of the statutory auditors
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on regulated agreements with related parties

Financial Year Ended
December 31, 2003

To the Shareholders 
of Klépierre,

In our capacity of statutory audi-
tors of your Company, we hereby
present to you our report on the
regulated agreements with cer-
tain related parties.

1. Pursuant to Article 
L. 225-88 of the French
Commercial Code, we have
been advised of agreements
that were previously
approved by your
Supervisory Board.
We are not required to search for
the existence of such agree-
ments but to inform you, on the
basis of the information provided
to us, of the essential terms and
conditions of those agreements
brought to our attention, without
having to express an opinion on
their usefulness or appropriate-
ness. Pursuant to Article 117 of
the French Decree of March 23,
1967, it is your responsibility to
assess the company’s interest in
entering into these agreements
in view of their approval.
We conducted our audit in accor-
dance with French professional

standards.Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit
to verify that the information provid-
ed to us is consistent with the
source documents from which it is
taken.

1. With SAS Klécentres, 
a company in which Klépierre
owns more than 10% 
of the voting rights

Nature and purpose
Your Supervisory Board meeting
held on July 4, 2003 authorized the
signing of a share purchase agree-
ment between your Company and
Klécentres SAS.

Terms and conditions
Acquisition by your Company of
one share in SAS Bègles Arcins
at a price of €53.75.

2. With members 
of the Executive Board

Members of the Executive
Board concerned
Mr. Michel Clair, Mr. Jean-Paul
Sabet, Mr. Claude Lobjoie and
Mr. Éric Ranjard.

Nature and purpose
Your Supervisory Board meeting
held on September 26, 2003
authorized the signing of six
share purchase agreements.

Terms and conditions
Acquisition of four shares in SAS
Ségécé from Mr. Michel Clair,
Mr. Jean-Paul Sabet, Mr. Claude
Lobjoie and Mr. Éric Ranjard at a
price of €558.60 per share.
Acquisition of two shares in SAS
Klécentres from Mr. Michel Clair
and Mr. Éric Ranjard at a price of
€60.14 per share.

3. With SAS Poitiers Aliénor, 
a company in which Klépierre
owns more than 10% 
of the voting rights

Nature, purpose, 
and terms and conditions
Your Supervisory Board meeting
held on November 12, 2003
authorized the signing of a subsidy
agreement by Klépierre in favor of
its subsidiary SAS Poitiers Aliénor
for an amount of €245,000. The
subsidy granted by your Company
is final and binding. As such, your
Company may not ask for the
reimbursement or offsetting of this
subsidy in any form and way what-
soever. This subsidy was paid on
December 5, 2003.

4. With SCS Ségécé, 
a company in which Klépierre
owns more than 10% 
of the voting rights
Nature, purpose, 
and terms and conditions
Your Supervisory Board meeting
held on December 18, 2003,
authorized the signing of a guar-
antee given by Ségécé to your
Company. This guarantee relates
to the expenses for the initial pro-
motional project in Aubervilliers
incurred by SCI Bassin Nord,
which is 50%-owned by Klépierre.
Following the cancellation of this
initial project, these expenses
constitute an expense of €1,313,486
for Klépierre SA. In accordance
with the guarantee, 25% of this
expense is borne by Ségécé.
Klépierre called under Ségécé’s
guarantee during the period.

2. We also present 
to you our report on 
the agreement covered 
by Article L. 225-90 
of the French Commercial
Code.
Pursuant to Article L. 225-240 of
the French Commercial Code,
we inform you that this agree-
ment was not subject to prior
approval by your Supervisory
Board.
We are required, on the basis of

the information provided to us, to
inform you of the essential terms
and conditions of this agree-
ment, as well as the reasons for
which the authorization proce-
dure was not followed.

With Klépierre Conseil, 
a company in which Klépierre
owns more than 10% 
of the voting rights

Nature, purpose, 
and terms and conditions
The service agreement signed
on January 2, 2002 between
Klépierre and Klépierre Conseil
remained in effect during the
2003 financial year. Invoicing
under this agreement amounts
to €4,179,950 in 2003.
It was not possible to submit this
agreement to your Supervisory
Board for prior approval within
the time period required.

March 9, 2004

The Statutory Auditors
Mazars & Guérard:
Odile Coulaud
Ernst & Young Audit:
Patrice Coslin

Translation of the French original
for information purposes only.

statutory auditors’ special report
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on the proposed reduction in capital by cancellation of own shares purchased

on the issuing of securities

Ordinary and Extraordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting 
of April 8, 2004

To the Shareholders 
of Klépierre,

In our capacity as statutory audi-
tors of Klépierre, S.A. and in com-
pliance with Article L.225-209,
paragraph 4 of French Company
Law (Code de Commerce), we
hereby report on the proposed

Extraordinary and ordinary
general meeting of share-
holders of April 8, 2004

To the Shareholders 
of Klépierre,

In our capacity as statutory audi-
tors of your Company and in
accordance with the assignment
provided for under Articles L. 225-
135, L. 228-92 and L. 228-95 of
the French Commercial Code,
we hereby report to you on the

plan to issue securities, with or
without preferential subscription
rights; you are being asked to
vote respectively on these trans-
actions in respect of the twentieth
and twenty-first resolutions.
Your Executive Board has pro-
posed, based on its report, that
you delegate to it, for a period of
twenty-six months, the responsi-
bility for determining the terms
and conditions of these transac-
tions, and where applicable, to
waive your preferential subscrip-

tion right pursuant to the twentieth
and the twenty-first resolutions.
These authorizations would can-
cel and supersede any previous
authorization of the same type.
The maximum increase in capital
that would result from these
issues would amount to €60 mil-
lion. If receivables were issued,
the debt resulting therefrom would
amount to a maximum par
amount of €950 million.
We conducted our audit in accor-
dance with the professional stan-

dards applied in France. Those
standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to verify
the terms and conditions for set-
ting the issue price.
Subject to the subsequent audit
of the conditions of the proposed
issue, we do not have any obser-
vations to make as regards the
terms and conditions for setting
the issue price in the report of
the Executive Board.
As the issue price for the shares
to be issued has not been set, we

are not issuing an opinion as
regards the final conditions under
which the shares would be
issued, and as such, we are not
issuing an opinion as regards the
proposals to eliminate the prefer-
ential subscription right that may
be made to you; however, the
principle of such waiver falls with-
in the logic of the transactions
submitted for your approval.
In accordance with Article 155-2
of the French Decree dated
March 23, 1967, we will draft an

reduction in capital by the cancel-
lation of own shares purchased
by the Company and on the con-
ditions of this operation under
resolution 19.
We have reviewed the proposed
reduction in capital in accor-
dance with French professional
standards. These standards
require that we perform a review
to determine the fairness of 
the conditions of the proposed
operation.

This operation involves the
repurchase by your Company of
its own shares, representing an
amount not in excess of 10% of
its total capital, in accordance
with Article L. 225-209, para-
graph 4 of French Company Law
(Code de Commerce). You are
requested to approve this opera-
tion under resolution 18 for a
period of eighteen months.
Your Executive Board proposes
that it be empowered for a period

of 24 months to proceed with 
the cancellation of shares the
Company was authorized to pur-
chase, representing an amount
not exceeding 10% of its total
capital for a period of 24 months.
We have nothing to report on 
the conditions of the proposed
reduction in capital, which will be
performed after you have given
prior approval for the Company
to repurchase its own shares as
described in resolution 18.

March 9, 2004

The statutory Auditors
Mazars & Guérard:
Odile Coulaud
Ernst & Young Audit:
Patrice Coslin

Translation of the French original
for information purposes only.

report of the statutory auditors

report of the statutory auditors
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on the proposed increase in capital

Ordinary and Extraordinary
Shareholders’ Meeting of
April 8, 2004

Report of the Statutory Auditors
on the proposed increase in
capital with cancellation of pref-
erential rights reserved for
employees under a company
savings scheme or associated
employee saving scheme

To the Shareholders 
of Klépierre,

In our capacity as statutory audi-
tors of Klépierre, S.A. and in com-
pliance with Article L. 225-135
and of L. 225-138 of French
Company Law (Code de
Commerce), we hereby report on
the proposed reserved increase
in capital of € 2,800,000 maxi-
mum and the issue of free shares
and other securities, upon which
you are called to vote.

This increase in capital, which is
submitted for your approval in
accordance with Article L. 225-
129 VII of French Company Law
(Code de Commerce) and of 
L. 443-5 of the French Labor Law
(Code du Travail), is reserved for
the employees of Klépierre and
both French and foreign legally

affiliated entities, under a com-
pany savings scheme or an
associated employee saving
scheme to be implemented.

Your Executive Board proposes,
on the basis of its report, that it
be empowered to determine the
conditions of this operation and
requests that you waive your
preferential subscription rights.

We have reviewed the proposed
increase in capital in accordance
with French professional stan-
dards. These standards require
that we perform a review of the
methods used to determine the
amount of exercise price.

Under Article L. 443-5 of French
Labor Law (Code du travail), the
exercise price of the new issue
will be equal to the average
share price taken over 20 trading
days of the regulated market on
which the Company shares are
listed, preceding the date the
Executive Board meet to deter-
mine the opening date for sub-
scriptions, and may not be
reduced by more than 20% for
members of the company sav-
ings scheme or 30% for the
members of a voluntary associ-
ated employee scheme imple-
mented under Article L. 443-1-2

of French Labor Law (Code du
travail).

Subject to a subsequent review
of the conditions for the pro-
posed increase in capital, we
have nothing to report on the
methods used to determine the
amount of exercise price provided
in the Executive Board Report.

As the exercise price has not yet
been determined, we do not
express an opinion on the final
conditions for the increase in
capital and, consequently, on the
proposed cancellation of prefer-
ential subscription rights, the
principal of which is, however,
inherent to the operation submit-
ted for your approval.

In accordance with Article 155-2
of the law of March 23, 1967, we
will issue a supplementary report
when the increase in capital has
been performed by your
Executive Board.

March 9, 2004

The statutory Auditors
Mazars & Guérard:
Odile Coulaud
Ernst & Young Audit:
Patrice Coslin

Free translation of the French
original.

additional report once your
Executive Board carries out the
share issues.

March 9, 2004

The statutory Auditors
Mazars & Guérard:
Odile Coulaud
Ernst & Young Audit:
Patrice Coslin

Translation of the French original
for information purposes only.

report of the statutory auditors
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Ordinary resolutions

1st resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to approve the 2003 financial
statements.
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary meet-
ings of shareholders, and having
read the Executive Board Report,
the Supervisory Board Report and
the Report of the Auditors on the
annual financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2003,
hereby approve said financial
statements as presented in the
aforementioned documents, show-
ing a profit for the period of
€305,275,353.54.
The shareholders also approve
the transactions reflected in the
financial statements or summa-
rized in the aforementioned
reports.

2nd resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to approve the 2003 consoli-
dated financial statements.
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to ordi-
nary meetings of shareholders,
and having read the Executive
Board Report, the Supervisory
Board Report and the Report of

the Auditors on the consolidated
financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2003,
hereby approve said financial
statements as presented in the
aforementioned documents, show-
ing a profit for the period of
€107,653,000.
The shareholders also approve the
transactions reflected in the finan-
cial statements or summarized in
the aforementioned reports.

3rd resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to approve the transactions and
agreements referred to in Article
L. 225-86 of the French Company
Code.
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary
meetings of shareholders, and
having duly noted the terms of the
Independent Auditors’ Special
Report on the agreements
referred to in Article L. 225-86 of
the French Company Code,
hereby approve each of the
agreements presented in the
aforementioned document in
accordance with the provisions of
Article L. 225-88 of the said Code.

4th resolution
The purpose of this resolution is to
determine the appropriation of

2003 earnings and a net dividend
per share of €2 (of the total, €1.40
with a €0.70 tax credit and €0.60
without, due to SIIC tax status).
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary
meetings of shareholders, hereby
resolve to appropriate the year’s
earnings of €305,275,353.54 as
follows:

Earnings for the period
€305 275 353.54

Appropriation to legal
reserves €5 967 968.40
Appropriation to the long-
term capital gains reserve

€17 769 088.80
------------------------

Balance €281 538 296.34
To which is added prior
retained earnings of

€29 368 875.36
Available for dividend 
distribution to shareholders

€310 907 171.70
For distributable 
earnings of €89 519 526.00

(i.e. a €2 dividend per share, of
which €1.40 with a €0.70 tax
credit and €0.60 without, due to
SIIC tax status).

Total retained earnings
€221 387 645.70

The shareholders resolve that,
pursuant to the provisions of
Article L. 225-210 of the French
Company Code, the dividend
distributable in respect of treas-
ury shares owned on the date of
payment, and any amounts that
the shareholders have agreed to
waive, shall be appropriated to
retained earnings.
As a reminder, the following divi-
dends were paid out per share in
respect of the three prior fiscal
periods (before the two-for-one
stock split and the free allotment
of one share for two old shares in
April 2003):

In respect of 2000:
€2.75, plus a 50% tax credit of
€1.37, a total of €4.12

In respect of 2001:
€3.10, plus a 50% tax credit of
€1.55, a total of €4.65

In respect of 2002:
€3.50, plus a 50% tax credit of
€1.75, a total of €5.25

5th resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to offer shareholders the option
of receiving a cash dividend or a
stock dividend.
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary
meetings of shareholders, hereby
resolve that the dividend shall be

draft resolutions
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declared on April 16, 2004.
Pursuant to the provisions of
Article L. 232-18 of the French
Company Code and the power
granted under Article 31-4 of the
bylaws, the shareholders resolve
that the dividend of €2 per share
shall be payable in cash or in
shares, at the option of the
shareholder.
Hence, each shareholder may,
during the period commencing
on April 16, 2004, and ending
April 30, 2004, inclusive, exer-
cise the option of receiving
shares for the full amount of the
dividend due by notifying the
establishment paying the divi-
dend.
Cash dividends shall be paid out
on May 6, 2004, after the close
of the period during which share-
holders may elect to reinvest the
dividend in stock.
In accordance with the provi-
sions of Article L. 232-19 of the
French Company Code, the
shareholders resolve that the
price of the shares that are dis-
tributed as dividends shall be
equal to 90% of the average of
the opening prices on the
Euronext Paris SA Premier
Marché for the twenty trading
days preceding the decision to
distribute the dividend, less the
net dividend amount.

In the event that the amount of
the dividends for which the
option is exercised does not cor-
respond to a whole number of
shares, shareholders may opt to
receive the next highest number
of shares, by paying the differ-
ence in cash on the date they
exercise their option, or the next
lowest number of shares and
cash, in lieu of fractional shares.
Shares distributed as dividends
shall earn dividends as from
January 1, 2004.

The shareholders duly empower
the Executive Board to take any
and all measures required to
enforce and carry out this resolu-
tion, record the increase in capi-
tal resulting from this decision,
and amend the Company bylaws
accordingly.

6th and 7th resolutions
The purpose of these resolutions
is to re-elect two members of the
Supervisory Board for a one-
year term.

6th resolution
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to ordi-
nary meetings of shareholders,
duly note that the term of
Mr. Jean NUNEZ, Supervisory
Board member, expires on this
day. Subject to their ratification of
extraordinary resolution number
23 below, the shareholders
hereby re-elect Mr. Jean NUNEZ
for a term of one year expiring at
the close of the annual share-
holders’ meeting called in 2005
to approve the financial state-
ments for the year ending
December 31, 2004. In the event
that extraordinary resolution
number 23 is not ratified,
Mr. Jean NUNEZ shall be re-
elected for a term of three years
expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2007 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2006.

Mr. Jean NUNEZ has signaled
his acceptance of re-election,
and has indicated that he is not
barred, by a court of law or
because of other positions or
offices held, from serving on the
Board.

7th resolution
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to ordi-
nary meetings of shareholders,
duly note that the term of
Mr. Laurent TRECA, Supervisory
Board member, expires on this
day. Subject to their ratification of
extraordinary resolution number
23 below, the shareholders
hereby re-elect Mr. Laurent
TRECA for a term of one year
expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2005 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2004. In
the event that extraordinary res-
olution number 23 is not ratified,
Mr. Laurent TRECA shall be re-
elected for a term of three years
expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2007 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2006.

Mr. Laurent TRECA has signaled
his acceptance of re-election,
and has indicated that he is not
barred, by a court of law or
because of other positions or
offices held, from serving on the
Board.

8th to 10th resolutions
The purpose of these resolutions
is to re-elect three members of
the Supervisory Board for a two-
year term.

8th resolution
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary meet-
ings of shareholders, duly note
that the term of Mr. Bertrand
LETAMENDIA, Supervisory Board
member, expires on this day.
Subject to their ratification of
extraordinary resolution number
23 below, the shareholders
hereby re-elect Mr. Bertrand
LETAMENDIA for a term of two
years expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2006 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2005. In
the event that extraordinary res-
olution number 23 is not ratified,
Mr. Bertrand LETAMENDIA shall
be re-elected for a term of three
years expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2007 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2006.

Mr. Bertrand LETAMENDIA has
signaled his acceptance of re-
election, and has indicated that
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he is not barred, by a court of law
or because of other positions or
offices held, from serving on the
Board.

9th resolution
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary
meetings of shareholders, duly
note that the term of Mr. Bertrand
JACQUILLAT, Supervisory Board
member, expires on this day.
Subject to their ratification of
extraordinary resolution number
23 below, the shareholders
hereby re-elect Mr. Bertrand
JACQUILLAT for a term of two
years expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2006 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2005. In
the event that extraordinary reso-
lution number 23 is not ratified,
Mr. Bertrand JACQUILLAT shall
be re-elected for a term of three
years expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2007 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2006.

Mr. Bertrand JACQUILLAT has
signaled his acceptance of re-
election, and has indicated that
he is not barred, by a court of law

or because of other positions or
offices held, from serving on the
Board.

10th resolution
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to ordi-
nary meetings of shareholders,
duly note that the term of
Mr.Christian MANSET, Supervisory
Board member, expires on this
day. Subject to their ratification of
extraordinary resolution number
23 below, the shareholders
hereby re-elect Mr. Christian
MANSET for a term of two years
expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2006 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2005. In
the event that extraordinary res-
olution number 23 is not ratified,
Mr. Christian MANSET shall be
re-elected for a term of three
years expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2007 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2006.

Mr. Christian MANSET has sig-
naled his acceptance of re-elec-
tion, and has indicated that he is
not barred, by a court of law or
because of other positions or

offices held, from serving on the
Board.

11th and 12th resolution
The purpose of these resolutions
is to re-elect two members of the
Supervisory Board for a three-
year term.

11th resolution
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary
meetings of shareholders, duly
note that the term of Mr. Vivien
LÉVY-GARBOUA, Supervisory
Board member, expires on this
day and hereby re-elect him for a
term of three years expiring at
the close of the annual share-
holders’ meeting called in 2007 to
approve the financial statements
for the year ending December 31,
2006.

Mr. Vivien LÉVY-GARBOUA has
signaled his acceptance of re-
election, and has indicated that
he is not barred, by a court of law
or because of other positions or
offices held, from serving on the
Board.

12th resolution
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary

meetings of shareholders, duly
note that the term of Mr. Bertrand
de FEYDEAU, Supervisory Board
member, expires on this day and
hereby re-elect him for a term of
three years expiring at the close
of the annual shareholders’ meet-
ing called in 2007 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2006.

Mr. Bertrand de FEYDEAU has
signaled his acceptance of re-
election, and has indicated that
he is not barred, by a court of law
or because of other positions or
offices held, from serving on the
Board.

13th resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to appoint an additional member
of the Supervisory Board for a
one-year term.
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to ordi-
nary meetings of shareholders,
duly note that the term of
Mr. Jérôme BÉDIER, Supervisory
Board member, expires on this
day. Subject to their ratification of
extraordinary resolution number
23 below, the shareholders
hereby re-elect Mr. Jérôme
BÉDIER for a term of one year
expiring at the close of the

annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2005 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2004. In
the event that extraordinary res-
olution number 23 is not ratified,
Mr. Jérôme BÉDIER shall be re-
elected for a term of three years
expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2007 to approve the
financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2006.

Mr. Jérôme BÉDIER has sig-
naled his acceptance of re-elec-
tion, and has indicated that he is
not barred, by a court of law or
because of other positions or
offices held, from serving on the
Board.

14th resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to appoint an additional member
of the Supervisory Board for a
three-year term.
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to ordi-
nary meetings of shareholders,
hereby appoint Mr. Dominique
HOENN to the Supervisory
Board for a term of three years
expiring at the close of the
annual shareholders’ meeting
called in 2007 to approve the
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financial statements for the year
ending December 31, 2006.

Mr. Dominique HOENN has sig-
naled his acceptance of re-elec-
tion, and has indicated that he is
not barred, by a court of law or
because of other positions or
offices held, from serving on the
Board.

15th and 16th resolution
The purpose of these resolutions
is to re-elect the incumbent inde-
pendent auditors and appoint
new alternate auditors.

15th resolution
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary
meetings of shareholders, and
acting upon a recommendation 
of the Supervisory Board, hereby
re-elect the firm Mazars et
Guérard as incumbent independ-
ent auditor and appoint Mr. Patrick
de CAMBOURG as alternate
independent auditor, replacing
Mr. José MARETTE, for a term of
six years.

These terms shall expire at the
close of the annual shareholders’
meeting called in 2010 to approve
the financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2009.

The independent auditors com-
municated their acceptance to the
Company prior to this meeting.

16th resolution
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary
meetings of shareholders, and
acting upon a recommendation
from the Supervisory Board,
hereby re-elect the firm Ernst &
Young Audit as incumbent inde-
pendent auditor and appoint
Mr. Christian MOUILLON as alter-
nate independent auditor, replac-
ing Mr. Jean-Marc MONTSERRAT,
for a term of six years.

These terms shall expire at the
close of the annual sharehold-
ers’ meeting called in 2010 to
approve the financial statements
for the year ended December 31,
2009.

The independent auditors com-
municated their acceptance to the
Company prior to this meeting.

17th resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to determine the amount of
directors’ fees allocated to mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board.
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to ordi-
nary meetings of shareholders,
determine that the total annual
amount of directors’ fees allo-
cated to the Supervisory Board
for one fiscal year is €150,000.

This total annual amount shall
prevail in future years until other-
wise decided.

18th resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to authorize the Executive Board
to trade in the Company’s
shares.
The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to ordinary
meetings of shareholders, and
having reviewed the Executive
Board Report and the information
contained in the condensed reg-
istration statement that received
the visa of the Autorité des
Marchés Financiers (AMF),

duly note that the Company
acquired 78 044 of its own
shares in 2003, and

authorize the Executive Board

to purchase shares of the
Company, as permitted under
Article L. 225-209 of the French
Company Code.

The purpose of this authorization
is to enable the Company to
trade in its own shares as pro-
vided for by law for the purpose
of:

buying and selling shares on
the basis of prevailing market
conditions;

stabilizing the market price of
its shares by buying and selling
on the stock market (these trans-
actions would be made to
counter adverse price trends);

implementing a policy aimed
at maximizing earnings per
share;

making shares of stock avail-
able to employees and directors
and officers of the Company and
group as provided for by law (stock
options, employee bonuses, stock
selling programs reserved for
employees);

using them as tender in acqui-
sitions;

remitting shares during the
exercise of rights attached to
securities with a claim to shares
of the Company at maturity,
through conversion, exchange or
redemption, upon presentation
of a warrant, whether at any

time, on a determined date or
during defined periods;

reducing equity by canceling
some or all of these shares, by
virtue of the nineteenth resolu-
tion hereinafter.

The acquisition, sale or transfer
of these shares of stock may be
completed at any time (including
during the period of public offer-
ing) and by all appropriate
means, either through public
stock market transactions or pri-
vate contracts, including acquisi-
tion or sale of stock in blocks
(with no limit to the number of
shares that are repurchased by
this means), the use of options
or other financial futures traded
in public or private markets, or
the issuance of securities with a
claim to shares of the Company
at maturity through conversion,
exchange or redemption, upon
presentation of a warrant, or by
any other means.
The shareholders hereby resolve
to set the par value at €4, the
maximum purchase price per
share at €65 and the minimum
selling price per share at €38.
The shareholders further resolve
to limit the total number of
shares that may be acquired to
ten percent of the Company’s
equity capital (4,475,976 shares
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for a maximum amount of
€290,938,440).

In the event of a capital increase
through the capitalization of
reserves and a free allotment of
shares, as well as in the event of
either a stock split or a bundling
of shares, the aforementioned
prices shall be adjusted by a fac-
tor equal to the number of shares
that make up the Company’s
equity capital before the transac-
tion divided by the number of
shares after the transaction.

This authorization is valid for a
maximum period of eighteen
months. It cancels and replaces
the unused portion of the author-
ization granted by the sharehold-
ers under the fifth resolution,
ratified at the April 4, 2003
annual meeting. The Executive
Board is granted all necessary
powers to implement this author-
ization and the option of delegat-
ing such powers to its Chairman.

Extraordinary resolutions

19th resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to authorize the Executive Board
to reduce share capital by can-
celing shares.
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to
extraordinary meetings of share-
holders, and having reviewed the
Executive Board Report and the
Report of the Auditors, authorize
the Executive Board for a period
of twenty-four months to:

cancel, in one or more trans-
actions, Company shares pur-
chased by virtue of the
authorization granted above by
the shareholders under the ordi-
nary resolution number eigh-
teenth, up to a maximum of ten
percent of the equity capital per
24-month period, and reduce
equity capital accordingly by
charging the difference between
the purchase value of the can-
celled securities and their par
value to additional paid-in capital
and reserves;

amend the bylaws accordingly
and accomplish all required for-
malities.

20th resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to authorize the Executive Board,
subject to the prior approval of the
Supervisory Board, to increase
capital by a maximum principal
amount of 60,000,000, with pre-
emptive subscription rights main-
tained, through the issue of
shares, with or without stock pur-
chase warrants; through the capi-
talization of earnings, reserves
and additional paid-in capital and
the free allotment of shares or an
increase in the par value of
shares; through the issue of stock
purchase warrants or other secu-
rities giving access to share capi-
tal. These securities can be
issued up to a maximum principal
amount of €950,000,000 or its
equivalent in another currency or
monetary unit.

The shareholders, having fulfilled
the quorum and majority require-
ments pertaining to extraordinary
meetings of shareholders, having
read the Executive Board Report
and the Special Report of the
Independent Auditors, pursuant
to the provisions of Article L. 225-
129 of the French Company
Code, and subject to the prior
approval of the Supervisory
Board pursuant to Article 16-3 of
the bylaws:

1. Hereby authorize the Executive
Board to increase equity capi-
tal in one or more offerings by a
maximum principal amount of
€60,000,000, it being under-
stood that any direct or indirect
capital increases effected by
virtue of the twenty-first resolu-
tion hereinafter shall be
included in this total:

a) through the issue of new
shares, with or without stock
warrants, payable in cash or to
offset a debt, with or without
an issue premium;

b) through the capitalization of
earnings, reserves, or addi-
tional paid-in capital, or through
the free allotment of shares or
an increase in the par value of
outstanding shares;

c) through the issue of securities
other than shares of stock, in
accordance with the legislation
in force, with a direct or indi-
rect claim to shares of the
Company at maturity through
conversion, exchange or
redemption, or upon presenta-
tion of a warrant, whether at
any time, on a determined
date or during defined periods.
These securities may take
any form allowed by law and,
in particular, any one of the
forms indicated in Articles 
L. 225-150 to L. 225-176 or in

Article L. 228-91 of the French
Company Code.
These securities may be issued
in euros or any other currency
or in monetary units established
with reference to several cur-
rencies, up to a maximum prin-
cipal amount of €950,000,000
or the equivalent amount in
another currency or monetary
unit established with reference
to several currencies, deter-
mined on the date the decision
is made to issue them, it being
understood that (i) this amount
is independent of amounts
related to bonds or other debt
securities or instruments issued
by virtue of the fifth resolution
approved by the Shareholders
at their ordinary and extraordi-
nary meeting held on April 11,
2002, and that (ii) this amount is
inclusive of amounts related 
to direct or indirect capital
increases effected by virtue of
the twenty-first resolution here-
inafter.
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d) through the issue of stock pur-
chase warrants payable in
cash or freely allotted, with the
understanding that these war-
rants can be issued separately
or attached to other mar-
ketable securities mentioned
in paragraph (c) above and
issued concurrently;

e) through the simultaneous
implementation of one or more
of these procedures.

2. Hereby resolve that the hold-
ers of outstanding stock at the
time of the issuance of securi-
ties and warrants mentioned
in paragraph 1) above may, in
proportion to the number of
shares held, exercise their
pre-emptive subscriptions as
of right to new securities.
The authorization given in
paragraph 1) above includes,
for the benefit of owners of
securities and stock warrants,
a waiver by the shareholders
of their pre-emptive subscrip-
tion rights with respect to the
aforementioned securities and
stock warrants to which these
securities entitle them now or
in the future.
For each issue, the Executive
Board will set the terms and
conditions under which the
shareholders may exercise

their pre-emptive subscription
as of right for new shares, in
compliance with legislation in
force. Furthermore, the Execu-
tive Board may grant share-
holders the right to purchase
fewer shares than the number
to which they are entitled as of
right, in proportion to their sub-
scription rights and limited to
the number of shares requested.

If the pre-emptive subscription
of new rights, whether as of
right or not, does not fully
absorb the issue of stocks and
securities, the Executive Board
may, at its option:
• limit the issuance to the num-
ber of subscriptions received,
as provided by law;
• freely allot non-subscribed
shares or marketable securi-
ties and stock warrants, sub-
scribed as of right or not; or
• offer all or a portion thereof
for sale to the public.

3. Resolve:
• that to the amount of
€60,000,000 set forth in the
first line of paragraph 1) shall
be added the amount of any
additional capital increases
effected to protect the holders
of securities and/or warrants
which entitle the bearer to a

portion of the equity capital of
the company;
• that in the event of capitaliza-
tion of earnings or additional
paid-in capital, the amount of
€60,000,000 fixed in the first
line of paragraph 1) shall be
increased in such a way as to
equal, after the capitalization,
the same percentage of equity
capital as before the increase;
• that in the event of free allot-
ment of shares, fractional
shares shall not be negotiable
and that the corresponding
shares shall be sold. The
Executive Board shall be
granted all powers required to
ensure the execution of this
sale as provided by law.

4. Authorize the Executive Board,
which may delegate this
authorization to its Chairman
pursuant to applicable law:

a) to use, on one or more occa-
sions, the authorization given
in paragraph 1) above to:
•determine the dates, terms
and conditions of the issue;
• set applicable prices and
interest rates;
•decide on the issue amounts
and types of securities to be
issued, the date as of which
they shall earn dividends,
even retroactively, and the

conditions under which they
may be converted, exchanged,
redeemed and/or sold;
• make all required adjust-
ments;
•amend the bylaws to reflect
any changes resulting from the
use of this authorization;
•and more generally, take all
measures, conclude all agree-
ments and undertake all forma-
lities necessary in furtherance
of such issues, in compliance
with the laws and regulations in
force;

b) in the event of issuance of
securities that entitle the bearer
to shares upon presentation of
a warrant, to buy these stock
warrants on the market or to
cancel them, in compliance
with the laws in force;

c) to use additional paid-in capi-
tal from capital increases to
pay any fees incurred in
respect of these transactions
and to bring the legal reserve
to the required one-tenth of
the new total equity capital.

5. Resolve that this authorization,
which cancels and replaces
the unused portions of all prior
authorizations of the same
nature, is valid for a period of
twenty-six months from the
date of this meeting.

21st resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to authorize the Executive Board,
subject to the prior approval of the
Supervisory Board, to increase
capital by a maximum principal
amount of €60,000,000, with 
pre-emptive subscription rights
waived, through the issue of
shares, with or without a stock
purchase warrants, and through
the issuance of warrants and
other securities with a claim to
the equity of the company. These
securities can be issued for up to
a maximum principal amount of
€950,000,000, or its equivalent in
another currency or monetary
unit. A pre-emptive right may be
granted to shareholders for issue
in the French market.

The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements of extraordinary
meetings of shareholders, and
having read the Executive Board
Report and the Special Report of
the Independent Auditors, and in
accordance with Article L. 225-
129 of the French Company
Code, subject to the prior
approval of the Supervisory
Board in accordance with Article
16-3 of the bylaws:
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1.Hereby authorize the Executive
Board to increase equity capital
by up to €60,000,000, it being
understood that any direct or
indirect capital increases
effected by virtue of the twenti-
eth resolution hereinabove
shall be included in this total:

a) through the issue of new
shares, with or without stock
purchase warrants, payable in
cash or to redeem a debt, with
or without additional paid-in
capital;

b) through the issue of securities
other than shares of stock, in
accordance with legislation in
force, with a direct or indirect
claim to shares of the Company
at maturity through conversion,
exchange or redemption, or
upon presentation of a warrant,
whether at any time, on a deter-
mined date or during defined
periods. These securities may
be of any type allowable by law
and, in particular, may take any
one of the forms indicated in
Articles L. 225-150 to L. 225-
176 or in Article L. 228-91 of the
French Company Code.
These securities may be
issued in euros or any other
currency or in monetary units
established with reference to
several currencies, up to a
maximum principal amount of

€950,000,000 or the equiva-
lent amount in another cur-
rency or monetary unit
established with reference to
several currencies, determined
at the time the decision is
made to issue them, it being
understood that (i) this amount
is independent of amounts of
bonds and other debt securi-
ties or instruments issued by
virtue of the fifth resolution
approved by the Shareholders
at their ordinary and extraordi-
nary meeting on April 11,
2002, and that (ii) this amount
is inclusive of amounts related
to direct or indirect capital
increases effected by virtue of
the twentieth resolution herein-
above.

c) through the issue of stock pur-
chase warrants payable in
cash, with the understanding
that these warrants may be
attached to securities men-
tioned in paragraph (b) above,
issued simultaneously, or not;

d) through the simultaneous exe-
cution of one or more of the
aforementioned procedures.

2. Resolve to suspend the exer-
cise of pre-emptive subscrip-
tion rights of shareholders
attached to securities issued
by virtue of the authorization
given in paragraph 1) above.
It is understood that the issues
mentioned in paragraph 1)
may, where applicable, be fully
or partially carried out abroad.
For issues in the French market,
the Executive Board may grant
shareholders a pre-emptive
right to acquire shares, securi-
ties and stock warrants issued,
during a defined period and in
accordance with procedures
that it shall determine, without
giving rise to the creation of
negotiable and assignable
rights. The non-subscribed por-
tion of such shares, securities
and stock warrants shall be sold
in the public market at the close
of the aforementioned period of
restricted subscription.
The authorization granted in
paragraph 1) includes, for the
benefit of owners of securities
and stock warrants, a waiver
by Shareholders of their pre-
emptive subscription rights to
shares with respect to the
securities and stock warrants
to which they are entitled
immediately or upon maturity.

3. Resolve that any sum paid or

to be paid to the company in
consideration for each share,
security or warrant issued by
virtue of the authorization
given by paragraph 1) above,
shall be at least equal to the
average of the opening stock
market price for the company
shares for a consecutive
period of ten days chosen
from among the twenty trading
days preceding the issue of
said stock, securities or war-
rants. This average may be
adjusted to take into account
differences in the date from
which dividends are earned. It
is understood that the unit
issue price of unattached war-
rants shall be such that the
sum total of this price and the
exercise price of each warrant
shall be at least equal to 105
percent of this average.

4. Authorize the Executive Board,
with the option of delegating
this authority to its Chairman
pursuant to legislation in force:

a) to fully or partially exercise the
authorization granted in para-
graph 1), in particular for the
purpose of:
•determining the dates, terms
and conditions of issues,
•setting the price and interest
rates,

•deciding the issue amounts
and the types of marketable
securities to be issued, the
date from which dividends
shall be earned, even retroac-
tively, and the conditions under
which they may be converted,
exchanged, redeemed and/or
sold,
•making all necessary adjust-
ments,
•amending the bylaws to reflect
any changes resulting form the
use of this authorization;
•and more generally, taking all
measures, concluding all
agreements and undertaking
all formalities required in the
furtherance of such issues, in
compliance with the laws in
force.

b) in the event of the issue of
securities that entitle the
bearer to the allotment of
shares upon presentation of a
warrant, to purchase these
warrants on the stock market
for the purpose of canceling
them or not, in accordance
with the laws in force;

c) to use additional paid-in capi-
tal from capital increases to
pay any fees incurred in
respect of these transactions
and to bring the legal reserve
to the required one-tenth of the
new total equity capital.
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5. Authorize the Executive Board
to fully or partially exercise the
powers granted in paragraph
1) above and within the limits
of applicable law, in the event
that securities are tendered in
a public offering on the securi-
ties mentioned in Article 
L. 225-148 of the French
Company Code.

6. Resolve that to the amount of
€60,000,000 indicated in the
first line of paragraph 1) shall
be added the amount of any
additional capital increases
which may be necessary to
protect the rights of holders of
securities and/or warrants with
a claim to a portion of the
equity capital of the Company.

7. Resolve that this authorization
also applies in the event that 
a company in which your
Company directly or indirectly
owns more than half of the
equity capital issues equity
securities.

8. Resolve that this authoriza-
tion, which cancels and
replaces the unused portions
of all prior authorizations of
the same nature, is valid for a
period of twenty-six months
from the date of this meeting.

22nd resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to authorize the Executive
Board, subject to the prior
approval of the Supervisory
Board, to increase capital by up
to €2,800,000, with pre-emptive
subscription rights waived, for
the purpose of issuing shares of
stock to employees.
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to extra-
ordinary meetings of sharehold-
ers, having read the Executive
Board Report and the Special
Report of the Independent
Auditors, in accordance with the
provisions of Articles L. 225-129-
VII and L. 225-138 of the French
Company Code and Articles 
L. 443-1 and following of the
French Labor Code, and subject
to the prior approval of the
Supervisory Board pursuant to
Article 16-3 of the bylaws:

1. Hereby authorize the Executive
Board to increase Company
share capital by a maximum
principal amount of €2,800,000,
in one or offerings, at its sole
discretion, through the issue
of shares reserved for employ-
ees of the Company, or of
companies which are affiliated
to as defined by law, provided

that these employees are
enrolled in an employer-spon-
sored company savings plan
that meets the requirements of
Article L. 443-1-2 of the
French Labor Code;

2. Resolve that this authorization
shall be valid for a period of
twenty-six months starting
from the close of this meeting;

3. Resolve that the issue price of
such new shares shall not
exceed the average of the
opening price for Company
shares on the stock market
during the twenty trading days
preceding the date on which
the Executive Board decides
on the opening date of the
subscription period, nor shall it
fall below the aforementioned
average by more than 20 per-
cent for those enrolled in an
employer-sponsored company
savings plan and by more than
30 percent for employees
enrolled in a voluntary employee
savings plan;

4. Hereby authorize the Executive
Board to use the powers
granted by this resolution to
make free share allotments, or
otherwise grant securities that
give employees of the Company

a claim to its equity capital, in
addition to stock made avail-
able and payable in cash. In
this case, the total considera-
tion resulting from this grant,
and from the difference
between the subscription price
and the aforesaid average
stock market price, shall not
exceed the consideration to
which employees enrolled in a
savings plan would have been
entitled if this difference had
been 20 percent (for the
employer-sponsored company
savings plan) and 30 percent
(for the voluntary employee
savings plan);

5. Resolve to suspend the exer-
cise of pre-emptive subscrip-
tion rights of shareholders to
the securities issued by virtue
of this authorization in favor of
the beneficiaries mentioned
hereinabove, and to also
waive all rights to shares
freely allotted by virtue of this
resolution;

6.Resolve that the Executive
Board shall be granted all
powers required to give effect
to this authorization, including
the option of delegating such
powers to its Chairman pur-
suant to applicable law. Within

applicable legal limits, these
powers include the right to:
• designate the companies
whose employees are eligible
to acquire shares;
•decide whether or not eligible
employees will acquire shares
directly or via a mutual fund;
• determine the principal
amounts of equity issues
made by virtue of this agree-
ment; issue prices; opening
and closing dates of subscrip-
tion periods; and the terms
and conditions of subscription,
payment, delivery and divi-
dend entitlement;
• in the event of free allotment
of shares or other securities
with a claim to the Company’s
equity capital, determine the
number of shares to be issued
or freely allotted; the number
to which each beneficiary is
entitled; and the dates, times,
terms and conditions of issue;
•duly note the number of new
shares issued by virtue of this
authorization and the new total
equity capital, and amend the
bylaws accordingly;
•where applicable, use addi-
tional paid-in capital from cap-
ital increases to pay any fees
incurred in respect of these
transactions and bring the
legal reserve to the required
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one-tenth of the new total
equity capital;
• make the adjustments
required to accurately reflect
the impact of these operations
on the Company’s equity capi-
tal, including but not limited to
the par value of its shares, the
capitalization of its reserves,
the free allotment of shares or
grouping of shares, the distri-
bution of reserves or any other
assets, and the amortization of
equity capital, and to deter-
mine the means by which the
rights of holders of securities
with a claim to the Company’s
equity capital will be protected
and maintained;
•more generally, take all meas-
ures, conclude all agreements
and undertake all formalities
required in furtherance of
issues undertaken by virtue of
this authorization and the exer-
cise of rights attached to them.

23rd resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to amend Article 11 of the
bylaws in order to allow the stag-
gered re-election of members of
the Supervisory Board.
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to
extraordinary meetings of share-
holders, and having read the
Executive Board Report, hereby
resolve, in order to allow the
staggered re-election of mem-
bers of the Supervisory Board, to
amend Article 11 of the bylaws
as follows:

Article 11
Terms of office of members 
of the Supervisory Board 

– Re-election – 
Cooptation

Line 1 shall be amended to
read as follows:
The term of office of a member
of the Supervisory Board is three
years, subject to the require-
ments of annual rotation.

Line 3 shall be amended to
read as follows:
Some members of the Board
shall stand for re-election at
each annual shareholders’ meet-
ing. The exact number shall be

determined on the basis of the
total number of seats on the
Board, such that re-elections are
staggered as evenly as possible
and that, at the end of a three-
year period, all seats on the
Board will have been subject to
re-election. The transition to
staggered terms of office shall
be made by drawing lots among
Board members to determine
who shall hold office for less
than three years. Once a stag-
gered re-election process has
been established, the longest-
serving Board members shall
stand for re-election first, and the
term of each member shall be
that set forth in line 1 herein-
above.

24th resolution
The purpose of this resolution is
to amend the Company bylaws
to comply with the provisions of
Act No. 2003-706 dated August
1, 2003, pertaining to financial
security.
The shareholders, having ful-
filled the quorum and majority
requirements pertaining to
extraordinary meetings of share-
holders, and having read the
Executive Board Report, hereby
resolve to amend the Company
bylaws to comply with the provi-
sions of Act No. 2003-706 dated

August 1, 2003, pertaining to
financial security and to approve
the new wording that follows,
which cancels and replaces prior
wording:

Article 7
Type and transmisison of shares

Line 5 shall be amended to
read as follows:
All individuals or legal entities,
acting alone or in concert, which
hold at least two (2) percent of
the equity capital of the
Company or some multiple of
this percentage, are required to
inform the company of the num-
ber of shares held, by certified
mail, return receipt requested,
within five trading days of the
date on which this threshold was
surpassed.

Article 23
Agreements between 

the company and members 
of the Supervisory Board, 
members of the Executive

Board, or shareholders

All agreements, concluded
directly or via an intermediary,
by and between the Company
and a member of the Executive
Board, the Supervisory Board or
a shareholder with more than ten

percent of the voting rights (or,
in the event that the shareholder
is a legal entity, the controlling
company), as well as other
agreements mentioned in Article
L. 225-86 of the French Company
Code, are subject to the require-
ments of said Article and of
Articles L. 225-87 to L. 225-90 of
the French Company Code.

25th resolution
The Shareholders hereby grant
full authority to the bearer of an
original, an excerpt or copy of
these minutes for the purpose of
complying with all formal publica-
tion, filing and other require-
ments as the case may be.
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History
Klépierre was formed at the end
of 1990 from the breakup of
Locabail-Immobilier, whose ordi-
nary rental properties it main-
tained.
Since that time, Klépierre has
exercised two core businesses:
the holding and management of
high-quality office buildings in
Paris and the Greater Paris
Area, and the holding and man-
agement of shopping centers in
France and Continental Europe.
In 1998, Klépierre made a strate-
gic bid to become a major player
in the development of new shop-
ping centers in Europe, through
its subsidiary Ségécé. The
Group develops its own projects
in France.
Historically, Klépierre’s major
shareholder was Compagnie
Bancaire. The merger of this
group with and into Paribas in
May of 1998 provided an oppor-
tunity for Klépierre to align cer-
tain business activities in the
same year:

the merger by absorption of
Compagnie Foncière,

the contribution of all of the
business and assets of Foncière
Chaptal,

the contribution of 13.6% of
equity interests in Klécentres.
These acquisitions radically

changed the size of the Company,
strengthening its position in its
core investment sectors.
On July 17, 2000, Klépierre and
the Carrefour group entered into
an agreement whereby Klépierre
would acquire 160 shopping
malls adjacent to Carrefour
hypermarkets. Under the terms
of this agreement, Klépierre and
Carrefour, leading retail distri-
butor, also became partners in
management and development.
The estimated total investment
exceeds €1.6 billion. In addition
to the 47 Spanish shopping
malls acquired in late 2000,
Klépierre purchased another 74
malls, mainly located in France,
in 2001. With the addition of 11
malls in France and 4 in Spain in
2002, then 5 malls in France, 5 in
Spain, 2 in Greece and 2 in
Portugal in 2003, over 95% of
the acquisitions called for under
the agreement were completed
as of December 31, 2003.
In late 2001, Klépierre began
implementing the second phase
of the agreement with Carrefour,
which gave Klépierre priority
right on the purchase of new
projects developed by Carrefour
in Continental Europe, acquiring
5 new malls in Spain (late 
2001) and the Loures mall in
Portugal (2002).

In 2002, Klépierre secured its
position in Italy through:

the acquisition of 11 Carrefour
shopping malls,

the formation, in partnership
with Finim, of PSG, the leading
shopping center manager in
Italy,

a strategic agreement sealed
with the Finiper group to acquire
a 40% stake in IGC, which owns
9 of Finiper’s shopping centers.
The deal also lays the foundation
for Klépierre and Finiper to
develop new shopping centers 
in Italy.

In 2003, Klépierre increased its
shopping center holdings in
France (6 acquisitions), Spain 
(9 acquisitions), Italy (5 acquisi-
tions), Greece (2 acquisitions)
and Portugal (3 acquisitions, of
which the Gondomar city center
mall in Porto, a 50/50 joint pur-
chase from Eiffage with Prédica).
With 4 malls owned, Klépierre
has thus reached critical mass in
Portugal. In 2003, Klépierre also
began investing in the Czech
Republic, acquiring the Novy
Smichov mall in Prague.
Klépierre extended its network of
management subsidiaries with
the creation of Sogecaec in
Portugal.
A market leader in France, Spain,

Italy and Belgium, Klépierre is
now the second largest owner
and leading manager of shop-
ping centers in Continental
Europe, with 208 shopping malls
owned and 316 under manage-
ment at December 31, 2003.

General information

Corporate name
Klépierre

Principal office
21 Avenue Kléber – 75116 Paris

Legal form
Klépierre was formed as a
société anonyme à conseil d’ad-
ministration (French corporation
or public limited company gov-
erned by a board of directors)
under the terms of a private writing
executed in Paris on October 4,
1968.
The Company’s shareholders sub-
sequently agreed to change the
form of corporate governance by
replacing the board of directors
with an Executive Board and a
Supervisory Board. The decision
was formally approved at an
extraordinary meeting of the share-
holders held on July 21, 1998.
The Company is governed by
French laws applicable to
sociétés anonymes, in particular

Articles L. 225-57 to L. 225-93 of
the French Company Code, and
by its own bylaws and articles of
incorporation.

Life of the Company
99 years, beginning on October
4, 1968.

Corporate purpose
The Company’s purpose is:

to acquire any lands, real-
estate rights and buildings, locat-
ed in France or abroad, as well
as all goods and rights that might
constitute an addition or annex
to said buildings;

to construct buildings and
engage in all operations directly
or indirectly related to the con-
struction of these buildings;

to operate and enhance prop-
erty value by leasing such prop-
erties or otherwise;

to enter into any lease agree-
ment, in France or abroad;

to acquire direct or indirect
equity interests in the persons
indicated in Article 8 and in para-
graphs 1, 2 and 3 of Article 206
of the French General Tax Code
and, more generally, to acquire
equity interests in any company
whose purpose is to operate
rental properties;

to acquire equity interests in
any company or enterprise exer-



cising any type of activity in the
real-estate sector;

more generally, to engage in
all types of civil, commercial,
financial, investment and real-
estate transactions directly related
to the aforementioned purpose
or in the furtherance thereof, in
particular, borrowing and the
constitution of any guarantees or
pledges required in relation
thereto.

Trade and Company Register
780152914 RCS PARIS
NAF 702 C

Documents pertaining 
to the Company are available 
for consultation at
21 Avenue Kléber 
75116 Paris
Phone: 01 40 67 30 01

Fiscal year
The fiscal year begins on January
1 and ends on December 31.

Statutory distribution of profits
At least 5% of profits for the fis-
cal year, less any prior losses,
are set aside to establish the
legally required reserve fund,
until such fund equals one-tenth
of the capital stock. The balance
and any retained earnings con-
stitute distributable profit, from

which is deducted any amounts
that the shareholders, acting 
on the recommendation of the 
Executive Board and subject to
the approval of the Supervisory
Board, decide to appropriate to
one or more optional, ordinary or
extraordinary funds, with or with-
out special appropriation, or to
carry forward as retained earn-
ings.
The remaining balance is appor-
tioned among the shares.
The annual meeting of share-
holders called to approve the
financial statements may grant
each shareholder the option of
receiving the dividend in cash or
in shares, for all or a portion of
the distributed dividend. This
option may also be granted for
advances on dividends.

General meetings 
of the shareholders
General meetings of the share-
holders are called by the Execu-
tive Board or the Supervisory
Board, and conduct business in
accordance with the legislative
and regulatory provisions in
force.
Shareholders may attend a gen-
eral shareholders’ meeting pro-
vided that they have held their
registered share(s) for at least
five days prior to such meeting,

without having to complete any
preliminary formalities.
At least five days before the
scheduled meeting date and at
the venue indicated in the notice
of meeting, holders of bearer
shares wishing to attend a gen-
eral meeting of the shareholders
must file a certificate issued 
by an authorized intermediary
attesting to the non-assignability
of their shares until the date of
such meeting.
The Executive Board may, at its
option, adopt a general measure
that shortens the time require-
ments set forth in the preceding
paragraph.
Shareholders may vote at all
shareholders’ meetings by mail
as provided for by law. To be
counted, votes must be received
by the Company at least three
days before the meeting.

Statutory disclosure 
of thresholds
Any natural or legal person, act-
ing alone or in concert, who
directly or indirectly acquires
more than 2% of the share capi-
tal or any multiple thereof, is
required to notify the Company
of the total number of shares
held, within five trading days of
having surpassed one of the
aforementioned thresholds, by

certified letter return receipt
requested (AGM of April 11,
2002).
For the portion of share owner-
ship which exceeds the percent-
age for which such notification
should have been made, failure
to comply with this requirement
as indicated above shall entail
the forfeiture of voting rights at all
meetings of shareholders, if such
failure to comply is noted at the
time of such meeting and if one
or more shareholders together
holding at least 2% of the share
capital so request, and this for a
period of two years from the date
on which the shareholder in
question has made such notifica-
tion.
Such persons are also required
to inform the Company, as per
the aforementioned procedures
and within the stated deadlines,
when their share ownership falls
below any of the thresholds
referred to hereinabove.

Tax status
Pursuant to the second extraor-
dinary resolution of the meeting
of the shareholders held on
September 26, 2003, Klépierre
has opted for the SIIC (Sociétés
d’Investissements Immobiliers
Cotées) tax status for which real-
estate investment companies
are eligible under Article 208-C
of the French General Tax Code.
Consequently, and as of January
1, 2003, Klépierre is exempt from
corporate income tax on:

Rental income, provided that
85% of said income is distributed
to shareholders prior to the end
of the fiscal year following that in
which the income was earned;

Capital gains from the dispos-
al of real estate, equity interests
in real-estate partnerships
(sociétés de personnes) or in
subsidiaries that have opted for
the new SIIC status, provided
that 50% of these capital gains
are distributed to shareholders
prior to the end of the second fis-
cal year following that in which
the capital gains were realized;

Dividends distributed by sub-
sidiaries that have opted for SIIC
status and paid out from the
income and capital gains that are
tax-exempt by virtue of this sta-
tus, provided that said dividends
are distributed in the fiscal year
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following that in which they were
earned.

Litigation
To the best of the Company’s
knowledge, no exceptional event
or litigation of which it is aware to
date is likely to have a material
impact on its business, assets,
financial condition or earnings.

General information 
on equity capital

Share capital – Type of shares
At December 31, 2003, equity
capital totaled 179,039,052 euros,
divided into 44,759,763 fully paid-
up shares with a par value of €4.
These shares may be in regis-
tered or bearer form, at the
option of the shareholder.

Authorization 
to issue new equity
By virtue of the resolutions
approved by the extraordinary
general meeting of shareholders,
the Executive Board is currently
granted the following authoriza-
tions to raise new equity:

The annual meeting of share-
holders held on April 11, 2002
authorized the Executive Board,
subject to the prior approval of the
Supervisory Board, to increase

equity capital by a maximum prin-
cipal amount of €56,000,000,
with pre-emptive subscription
rights maintained, (I) through the
issue of new shares, with or with-
out stock purchase warrants,
payable in cash or to redeem a
debt, with or without an issue 
premium, (II) through the capital-
ization of earnings, reserves or
additional paid-in capital and 
the free allotment of shares or an
increase in the par value of
shares, (III) through the issue of
securities other than shares of
stock, in accordance with legis-
lation in force, with a direct or 
indirect claim to the shares of 
the Company at maturity through
conversion, exchange or redemp-
tion, or upon presentation of a
warrant, whether at any time, or 

a determined date or during
defined periods. These securities
may be issued in euros or in any
other currency or monetary unit
established by reference to 
several currencies, up to a total
amount of €945,000,000 or its
equivalent in any other currency
or monetary unit established by
reference to several currencies
determined at the date the deci-
sion was made to issue them,
(IV) through the issue of stock
purchase warrants payable in
cash, with the understanding
that these warrants may be
attached to securities mentioned
in paragraph II above, issued
simultaneously, or (V) through
the simultaneous execution of
one or more of the aforemen-
tioned procedures.

This authorization was granted for
a period of 26 months.

The annual meeting of share-
holders held on April 11, 2002
authorized the Executive Board,
subject to the prior approval of the
Supervisory Board, to increase
equity capital by a maximum prin-
cipal amount of €56,000,000, with
pre-emptive subscription rights
waived, (I) through the issue of
new shares, with or without stock
purchase warrants, payable in
cash or to redeem a debt, with or
without an issue premium, (II)
through the issue of securities
other than shares of stock, in
accordance with legislation in
force, with a direct or indirect claim
to the shares of the Company at
maturity through conversion,

exchange or redemption, or upon
presentation of a warrant, whether
at any time, or a determined date
or during defined periods. These
securities may be issued in euros
or in any other currency or mone-
tary unit established by reference
to several currencies, up to a total
amount of €945,000,000 or its
equivalent in any other currency
or monetary unit established by
reference to several currencies
determined at the date the deci-
sion was made to issue them, (III)
through the issue of stock pur-
chase warrants payable in cash,
with the understanding that these
warrants may be attached to
securities mentioned in paragraph
II above, issued simultaneously, or
(IV) through the simultaneous
execution of one or more of the
aforementioned procedures.
This authorization was granted for
a period of 26 months.

Dividends
The table opposite lists dividend
payouts made in the last five years.
No advances were granted dur-
ing this period and, to date, no
dividend has been distributed in
the form of new shares.
Dividends that are unclaimed
five years after the original date
of payment are turned over to the
French government.

Authorization
To issue shares of common stock, with or 
without warrants, and other MS with a claim €56,000,000 EGM Apr. 11, 2002(1) 26 months
to the Company’s capital, with PSR
To issue shares of common stock, with or 
without warrants, and other MS with a claim €56,000,000 EGM Apr. 11, 2002(1) 26 months
to the Company’s capital, without PSR
Abbreviations: EGM: Extraordinary general meeting of shareholders; MS – Marketable securities; PSR – Pre-emptive subscription rights

(1) For these authorizations, the maximum increase in equity capital is €56,000,000, and the maximum increase in corporate
debt is €945,000,000. These authorizations cancel and replace the unused portions of all prior authorizations of the same nature.
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At the annual meeting of the
shareholders held on April 8,
2004, the Executive Board will
recommend that the sharehold-
ers approve payment of the divi-
dend in shares or in cash.
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Dates
January 19, 1999 Bond conversion(2) 3 124 647 276 800 F

COB Visa no. 98-850
January 24, 2000 Bond conversion(2) 209 - 647 287 250 F

COB Visa no. 98-850
January 30, 2001 Bond conversion(2) 2 910 - 647 432 750 F

COB Visa no. 98-850
June 5, 2001 Conversion of equity capital into euros - - 103 589 240 €

COB Visa no. 98-850
January 15, 2002 Bond conversion(2) 434 902 - 107 068 456 €

COB Visa no. 98-850
December 3, 2002 Bond conversion(2) 1 536 364 119 359 368 €

COB Visa no. 98-850
April 4, 2003 Reduction in par value per share from €8 to €4 14 919 921 119 359 368 €
April 4, 2003 Capital increase 14 919 921 179 039 052 €

through the capitalization of reserves
(2) November 1998 convertible bond – initially evidenced by 970,681 bonds with a face value of FF 1,295.

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY 
OF CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL
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Year of distribution
Number of shares 12 945 536 12 945 745 12 948 655 13 383 557 14 919 921
Net dividend 15.00 F 2.50 € 2.75 € 3.10 € 3.50 €
Tax credit 7.50 F(1) 1.25 €(1) 1.37 €(1) 1.55 €(1) 1.75 €(1)

6.75 F(2) 1 €(3) 0.69 €(4) 0.46 €(5) 0.35 €(6)

Total distribution 22.50 F(1) 3.75 €(1) 4.12 €(1) 4.65 €(1) 5.25 €(1)

21.75 F(2) 3.50 €(3) 3.44 €(4) 3.56 €(5) 3.85 €(6)

Net dividend payout 194 183 040 F 32 364 362.50 € 35 608 801.25 € 41 489 026.70 € 52 219 723.50 €
(1) 50% tax credit. • (2) 45% tax credit. • (3) 40% tax credit.

(4) 25% tax credit. • (5) 15% tax credit. • (6) 10% tax credit.

DIVIDENDS
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Capital and voting rights

Analysis of capital 
and voting rights
Share capital consists of
44,759,763 fully paid-up shares
with a par value of €4.
Shareholders or their designated
proxies are entitled to two votes
for each share held at ordinary or
extraordinary meetings of share-
holders, provided that their shares
are fully paid up and have been
registered in their name as owner
of record for at least two years, or
come from a pool of fully paid-up
shares, all of which have been
registered in the name of their
owners for at least two years.
All shares converted to bearer
shares (or whose ownership is
transferred) forfeit the right to a
double vote. However, assignment
through inheritance, liquidation of
community property between
spouses, or donations inter vivos
to a spouse or relative entitled to
inherit do not lead to the loss of
acquired voting rights.
As of December 31, 2003, there
were 67,977,387 voting rights,
including 23,721,489 double vot-
ing rights.
The table on the following page
shows the principal shareholders
of 44,759,763 shares (as of
December 31, 2003).
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Votes
OGDI 5938074 11876148 0 5938074 13.27% 17.47%
FONCIÈRE 
DE LA COMPAGNIE BANCAIRE 8014344 16028688 0 8014344 17.91% 23.58%
SAS KLÉFINANCES 3047094 6094188 0 3047094 6.81% 8.97%
BNP PARIBAS 3780969 7561269 669 3780300 8.45% 11.12%
CARDIF 102 204 0 102 NS NS
FINANCIÈRE MARCHÉ 
ST HONORÉ 1884 3768 0 1884 NS 0.01%
COMPAGNIE FINANCIÈRE 
OTTOMANE 2850000 5700000 0 2850000 6.37% 8.39%
SETIC 99594 99594 99594 0 0.22% 0.15%
UCB BAIL 420 840 0 420 NS NS
CEIC 6 12 0 6 NS NS
SGCF 22854 23022 22686 168 0.05% 0.03%
Total BNP Paribas Group 23755341 47387733 122949 23632392 53.07% 69.71%
Float 20500557 20589654 20411460 89097 45.80% 30.29%
- of which FFB 76806 153612 - 76806 0.17% 0.23%
- of which ABP 2200413 2200413 2200413 - 4.92% 3.24%
Treasury shares 503865 - - - 1.13% 0.00%
Total 44759763 67977387 20534409 23721489 100% 100%
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As of December 31, 2003, the
Company owned 503,865 treas-
ury shares, representing 1.1% of
total equity capital.
To the best of the Company’s
knowledge, the members of the
supervisory board hold, either
directly or through the group to
which they belong, 53.1% of the
capital and 69.7% of the voting
rights.
To the best of the Company’s
knowledge, there are no share-
holders’, private or group agree-
ments involving persons who
exercise or could exercise control
over the Company.

Authorization to trade 
in shares and, if necessary, 
to cancel such shares
In accordance with the provi-
sions of Article L. 225-209 of 
the French Company Code, the
ordinary meeting of sharehold-
ers of April 4, 2003, authorized
the Executive Board to purchase
the Company’s shares. This
authorization allows the Company
to lawfully trade in its own shares
for the purpose of:

December 31, 2001 December 31, 2002Shareholder
Total BNP Paribas group 7918447 61.15% 75.52% 7918447 53.07% 69.78%
Float 4781641 36.93% 24.48% 6810971 45.65% 30.22%
Treasury shares 248567 1.92% - 190503 1.28% -

TWO-YEAR ANALYSIS 
OF EQUITY CAPITAL %
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buying and selling shares on
the basis of prevailing market
conditions;

stabilizing the market price of
its shares by buying and selling
on the stock market (these trans-
actions would be made to count-
er adverse price trends);

implementing a policy aimed
at maximizing earnings per
share;

making shares of stock avail-
able to employees and directors
and officers of the Company and
group, as provided for by law
(stock options, employee profit-
sharing bonuses, stock-selling
programs reserved for employ-
ees);

using them as tender in
acquisitions;

remitting shares during the
exercise of rights attached to
securities with a claim to shares
of the Company at maturity,
through conversion, exchange or
redemption, upon presentation of
a warrant, or in any other manner;

reducing equity capital by
canceling some or all of these
shares.

Klépierre’s decision in July 2002
to exercise its early retirement
option on the convertible bonds

it issued in November 1998 led
to the conversion of 78% of the
outstanding bonds that same

year. Consequently, the equity
interest of BNP Paribas fell from
61.1% to 53.1%.



The maximum number of shares
that may be acquired is limited to
10% of the Company’s equity
capital.
The maximum purchase price
per share is €60 and the mini-
mum selling price is €33 per
share.
This authorization is valid for a
period of 18 months.
The Executive Board may also
cancel treasury shares held in
connection with stock purchase
authorizations, for a period of two
years and up to a maximum of
10% of the equity capital per 24-
month period, for the purchase of
reducing share capital by charg-
ing the difference between the
purchase value of the cancelled
securities and their par value to
available premiums and reserves.
This authorization was the sub-
ject of information memorandum
number 03-170, which obtained
a visa from the COB on March
18, 2003.
As of December 31, 2003, the
Company had repurchased
503,865 shares, representing
1.13% of share capital. Of this
total, 300,000 shares were set
aside for the stock subscription
option program.

At the annual shareholders’
meeting held on April 8, 2004,
the Executive Board will recom-
mend that the shareholders
renew this authorization for a
period of 18 months. The terms
and conditions will be substan-
tially the same, except that the
maximum purchase price will be
€65 and the minimum selling
price will be €38 euros for each
share with a par value of €4.
This authorization will be the
subject of a new information
memorandum to be filed with the
Autorité des Marchés Financiers
(AMF).

Share subscription 
and purchase options
At their meeting on April 28,
1999, the shareholders granted
a four-year authorization to the

Executive Board to grant options,
in one or more grants, to sub-
scribe to new Company shares
or to purchase existing Company
shares from purchases made by
the Company pursuant to appli-
cable law.
The total number of shares that
are subscribed to or purchased
by virtue of the options granted
may not exceed 3% of the share
capital.
Such options have a vesting
period of five to 10 years.
At the year-end 2003 reporting
date, 70,600 options for less than
3% of the share capital had been
granted pursuant to the Executive
Board and the Compensation
Committee decisions of June 24,
1999.Taking into account the two-
for-one stock split and the free
allotment of one share for two old

shares in April 2003, these
options involve 211,800 shares.
No share subscription or pur-
chase option was granted or
exercised in 2003.
The authorization granted to the
Executive Board expired on April
28, 2003.
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Date of the extraordinary shareholders’ meeting
April 28, 1999 70600 0 29400
of which the Executive Board 24000 0
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Capital and stock market

The Company’s shares are listed
on the Deferred Settlement
Service (SRD) of the Euronext
Premier Marché.

Trading volume over the last 12
months (in number of shares and
amount of equity traded).

July 2008 
convertible bonds

A prospectus dated July 9, 2001
is available from the Company.

Market capitalization (in € millions)(1) 1243 1297 1436 1927 2135
Number of securities traded

- Daily average volume 21213 24153 24444 35187 44853
Share price - High 34.0 34.7 37.0 44.9 48.9

- Low 26.0 30.0 31.7 36.1 38.3
- Close 32.0 33.4 35.8 43.0 47.7

(1) Last quotation of the year.

SHARES
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Principal amount of the issue €600 million
Issue price 99.557% for a principal amount of €500 million

99.006% for a principal amount of €100 million
Due date July 10, 2008
Coupon 6.125%
Sicovam code 48651
Quotation Luxembourg Stock Exchange

DESCRIPTION

Month
January 44.10 40.03 771264 32.5
February 41.33 38.33 709632 28.6
March 41.30 39.00 573744 22.9
April 42.73 39.00 3419746 139.0
May 43.64 40.51 875242 37.3
June 44.00 41.90 882657 37.7
July 44.28 42.50 794743 34.6
August 45.25 44.00 526464 23.4
September 46.90 44.02 978362 45.0
October 48.00 45.30 795990 37.4
November 48.40 46.15 599299 28.4
December 48.90 46.50 544414 26.1

TRADING VOLUME OVER THE LAST 12 MONTHS VOLUME 
(in number of shares and amount of equity traded)
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Klépierre’s principal competitors

Market capitalization as of December 31, 2003 (EUR mn) 2135 3391 2065 4139 610
Value of consolidated portfolio (EUR mn) 5225 7513 3703 6628 1110
EPRA free float band 40% 100% 100% 70% 100%
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France 253 537 69 76 32
Spain 40 - 22 75 -
Italy 41 - 24 - 34
Netherlands - - 177 183 8
Other 19 - 1 142 5
Total consolidated rents 353 537 292 476 80
Non-rental income 33 9 - - -
Total consolidated turnover 386 546 292 476 80

in € million

BREAKDOWN OF CONSOLIDATED REPORTED RENTS BY COUNTRY 
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Shopping centres and retail 279 176 198 372 67
Offices 74 266 94 78 9
Other - 95 - 26 4
Total 353 537 292 476 80
Non-rental income 33 9 - - -
Total consolidated turnover 386 546 292 476 80
(1) Value of portfolio as of December 31, 2003.• (2) Value of porfolio as of September 30, 2003. • (3) Value of porfolio as of June 30, 2003. in € million

(4) 2003 figures. • (5) 2002 figures. • (6) 2003 figures (year-end June 30).

Source: Goldman Sachs, February 2004.

BREAKDOWN OF CONSOLIDATED REPORTED RENTS BY ASSETS
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supervisory board

Vivien LÉVY-GARBOUA
Chairman of the Supervisory Board (1)(2)(3) – Shares held: 600
Proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting on April 8,
2004.
End of term: annual meeting of shareholders called to approve
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Christian MANSET (1)(3)(4)

Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board – Shares held: 412
Proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting on April 8,
2004.
End of term: annual meeting of shareholders called to approve
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Bertrand de FEYDEAU (2)(3)

Member of the Supervisory Board – Shares held: 300
Proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting on April 8,
2004.
End of term: annual meeting of shareholders called to approve
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Bertrand JACQUILLAT (1)(4)

Member of the Supervisory Board – Shares held: 600
Proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting on April 8,
2004.
End of term: annual meeting of shareholders called to approve
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Bertrand LETAMENDIA (1)(4)

Member of the Supervisory Board – Shares held: 300
Proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting on April 8,
2004.
End of term: annual meeting of shareholders called to approve
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Jean NUNEZ (1)(4)

Member of the Supervisory Board – Shares held: 346
Proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting on April 8,
2004.
End of term: annual meeting of shareholders called to approve
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004.

Laurent TRECA (4)

Member of the Supervisory Board – Shares held: 60
Proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting on April 8,
2004.
End of term: annual meeting of shareholders called to approve
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004.

At the shareholders’ meeting on April 8, 2004, the
Executive Board will recommend that the shareholders
appoint two additional Board members: Jérôme
BÉDIER(4), Chairman of the Fédération des Entreprises
du Commerce et de la Distribution, for a term of one year,
and Dominique HOENN, Senior Adviser to BNP Paribas,
for a term of three years.

Compensation paid to members of the Supervisory Board
The amount of directors’ fees paid to supervisory board
members in 2003 totaled to €85,371.

Supervisory Board meetings
The supervisory board met eight times in 2003.

Executive Board

Chairman: Michel CLAIR(4) – Shares held: 9,141
Vice Chairman: Éric RANJARD(4) – Shares held: 621
Member: Claude LOBJOIE(4) – Shares held: 600

Executive Board meetings
The Executive Board meets weekly.

Loans and guarantees granted to members 
of the Executive and Supervisory Board
None.

Pursuant to COB regulation 2002-01, the members of the
Company’s Supervisory and Executive Boards are
required to disclose their dealings in the Company’s
securities, and are prohibited from making any personal
transactions during the following periods:
– from the first day of each calendar quarter to the date
of publication of Klépierre’s consolidated results, occur-
ring during the quarter in question;
– from the first day of each calendar quarter to the date
of publication of Klépierre’s annual or half-year consoli-
dated financial statements, occurring during the half-year
in question;
– from the date on which Klépierre acquires information
that, if publicly disclosed, could significantly affect the
value of the securities of the company, to the date on
which this information is made public.

Klépierre requires the same conduct from any employee
considered to be a permanent insider.

The terms under which these rules are to be applied are
set forth in an internal practice notice, which is regularly
updated by the professional ethics team of the Klépierre
group.

(1) Member of the Audit Committee. • (2) Member of the Compensation Committee. • (3) Member of the Investment Committee.
(4) In the event that the shareholders do not pass resolution 23, this term shall expire at the close of the annual general meeting called in 2007 to approve the annual financial statements for 2006.
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methodology for revaluing net assets

On December 31st and June 30th
of each year, Klépierre revalues
its net assets per share. The val-
uation method entails adding
unrealized capital gains to the
book value of consolidated
shareholders’ equity.These unre-
alized gains reflect the difference
between estimated market val-
ues and net values recorded in
the consolidated financial state-
ments, excluding any deferred
taxes on such capital gains.
Building values include transfer
duties. Buildings scheduled for
sale on the date of calculation
are revalued at their probable
selling price less related fees
and taxes.
Klépierre does not revise valua-
tions of shopping centers under
development, even in cases
where building permits have
been granted. Until these shop-
ping centers open, they are car-
ried in the consolidated financial
statements at cost, and this
amount is used to calculate
revalued net assets.

In 2003, following the exit of the
minority shareholders in Klécen-
tres, it became necessary to
revalue Ségécé. Revaluation
was conducted using the same
method as that employed when
the company was acquired. This

method is based on the applica-
tion of multiples to recorded
results for the last two fiscal
years and the revenue forecast
for the current and two upcoming
years. In 2003, the value obtained
using this method was used to
calculate revalued net assets.
Equity interests of Ségécé and
Klégestion in subsidiaries were
not revalued. For these interests,
the historical acquisition cost,
less amortization of goodwill,
was used to calculate revalued
net assets.
The consolidated debt of the
Group and interest rate hedging
instruments were not revalued.
This initial calculation provides
revalued net assets “including
transfer duties and before taxa-
tion on unrealized capital gains.”

RNA excluding transfer duties
A second operation is used to cal-
culate revalued net assets exclud-
ing transfer duties. Regarding
these duties, for office properties,
calculation is carried out individu-
ally for each property using the
rates defined below. Duties on
shopping centers are calculated
property by property for compa-
nies that own several assets, or by
revaluing securities if the compa-
ny holds only one property. This
approach was selected as the

most relevant approach, in light of
the fact that it is more likely that
investors will acquire shares in
companies owning shopping cen-
ters or that Klépierre will seek
financing of its operations, than it
is that Klépierre will fully sell off
shopping centers. Naturally, trans-
fer duties are calculated in compli-
ance with the tax regulations for
each country.

RNA excluding transfer duties
and after taxation on unrealized
capital gains
A third operation finally calculates
revalued net assets excluding
transfer duties and after taxation
on unrealized capital gains. It
consists of calculating the deferred
tax on differences between
appraised values excluding trans-
fer duties and net book values,
using the same methods employed
to determine value excluding trans-
fer duties and according to the tax
rates for each country.

Valuation of holdings
For several years, Klépierre has
entrusted the task of assessing
the value of its holdings to the
same appraisers. For office and
warehouse holdings, Foncier
Expertise and Coextim jointly
perform this task. The Retail
Consulting Group values shop-
ping center holdings. All of these
experts are appointed in compli-
ance with the recommendation
by the COB (French stock
exchange regulatory authority)
“Barthès de Ruyter Work Group”.

Offices
The appraisers combined two
approaches: the first entails a
direct comparison with similar
transactions completed in the
market during the period, while
the second involves capitalizing
individual yields.
An analysis of these yields reveals
that one of three situations pre-
vails: lease income is substantial-
ly equal to, higher than, or lower
than market value.
If lease income and market value
are substantially equal, the lease
income used in the valuation is the
actual lease income earned on the
property. If lease income is higher
than market value, the valuation
uses market value and takes into
account a capital gain calculated

from the discounted value of the
difference between actual lease
income and market value, until the
next possible date of termination
offered to the lessee.
If lease income is lower than mar-
ket value, the valuation takes into
account the scheduled term of the
corresponding lease, at which time
the rental price will be aligned with
going rates. Pursuant to the
French decree of September 30,
1953, the rental prices of proper-
ties that are used solely as 
office premises are automatically
aligned with market rates when
the leases in question come up 
for renewal. The office property
market undergoes significant fluc-
tuations. Klépierre’s valuation spe-
cialists have estimated that the
horizon of visibility in this market 
is approximately three years.
Consequently, they drew a dis-
tinction between leases sched-
uled for renewal after December
31, 2006, and those renewed
prior. Leases that expire after
December 31, 2006, were val-
ued at the current rents, while
leases scheduled for renewal
prior were valued at their market
rental value. In the latter case, a
capital loss was deducted from
the derived value, equal to the
discounted value (at the rate of
5.5%) of the difference between
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actual lease income and market
price until the lease expires.
The capitalization rate was
derived by observing transactions
completed by actual investors on
the market. After applying this
rate to the yield (determined as
explained above), the appraisers
decided to exclude transfer duties
from their valuation of office prop-
erties.The valuation of Klépierre’s
holdings is presented inclusive of
property transfer duties, i.e. the
cost of replacing or reconstituting
all the assets of the Company or
the price that an informed arm’s
length buyer would be willing to
pay, all fees included, to acquire
them. This approach provides a
more accurate estimate of the
value of the Company’s holdings,
since it assumes going concern.
Transfer duties were appraised
on the basis of Afrexim recom-
mendations - 6% in cases where
the transaction is subject to reg-
istration fees and 1.5% when the
building is subject to VAT.

Shopping centers
To determine the fair market
value of a shopping center,
appraisers apply a capitalization
rate to net annual lease income
for leased-up premises, and to
net market price for vacant prop-
erties. The capitalization rate is

applied after deduction of the net
present value of all reductions or
rebates on leases with minimum
guaranteed rents and the net
present value of all expenses on
vacant premises. The discount
rate used is equal to the capital-
ization rate applied to determine
fair market value.
Gross lease income is equal to
minimum guaranteed rent plus
variable rent plus market price of
vacant properties. Net annual
lease income is derived by
deducting all expenses from
gross lease income, including
management fees, charges borne
by the owner and not re-invoiced
and expenses paid on empty
premises. The appraiser deter-
mines the capitalization rate on
the basis of many factors, includ-
ing retail sales area, configura-
tion, competition, ownership char-
acteristics and percentage own-
ership, rental reversion and
extension potential, and recent
transactions.
The appraisers also calculate an
internal yield using a method
based on a series of discounted
cash flows, generally over ten
years. The estimated resale value
at the end of this period is calcu-
lated by capitalization at the same
rate as the rate initially applied to
the net annual lease income.

In sum, the appraiser deter-
mines:

the capitalization rate that
applies to prevailing market con-
ditions;

the current value of annual
lease income, from which a pres-
ent value will be derived. The
internal yield, which is obtained
by calculating the internal rate of
return, is then tested for consis-
tency.
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Offices and warehouses 932777 22.63% 1009172 22.08% 76395 17.10%
Paris CBD 493426 11.97% 532844 11.66% 39418 8.82%
Other Paris 60418 1.47% 67098 1.47% 6680 1.50%
1st outlying area 328137 7.96% 353759 7.74% 25622 5.73%
2nd outlying area 40559 0.98% 44361 0.97% 3802 0.85%
Total Provinces 23 0.00% 23 0.00% - 0.00%
Total warehouses 10214 0.25% 11088 0.24% 874 0.20%
Shopping centers 3188930 77.37% 3559345 77.89% 370415 82.90%
France 1846411 44.80% 2108868 46.15% 262457 58.74%
Italy 497431 12.07% 525892 11.51% 28462 6.37%
Spain 522157 12.67% 585939 12.82% 63783 14.28%
Other 322932 7.83% 338645 7.41% 15713 3.52%
Total Klépierre holdings 4121707 100.00% 4568517 99.98% 446811 100.00%
Services business 1017 1017 0.02% 0
Total Klépierre assets 4122723 4569534 100.00% 446811 

in € thousands

GROUP SHARE 
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Offices and warehouses 932777 19.93% 1009172 19.31% 76395 14.05%
Paris CBD 493426 10.54% 532844 10.20% 39418 7.25%
Other Paris 60418 1.29% 67098 1.28% 6680 1.23%
1st outlying area 328137 7.01% 353759 6.77% 25622 4.71%
2nd outlying area 40559 0.87% 44361 0.85% 3802 0.70%
Total Provinces 23 0.00% 23 0.00% - 0.00%
Total warehouses 10214 0.22% 11088 0.21% 874 0.16%
Shopping centers 3747218 80.07% 4214666 80.66% 467448 85.95%
France 2216364 47.36% 2556847 48.93% 340483 62.61%
Italy 569405 12.17% 602499 11.53% 33094 6.09%
Spain 628718 13.43% 705565 13.50% 76847 14;13%
Other 332732 7.11% 349756 6.69% 17025 3.13%
Total Klépierre holdings 4679995 100.00% 5223838 99.97% 543843 100.00%
Services business 1311 1311 0.03% 0
Total Klépierre assets 4681306 5225150 100.00% 543843 

in € thousands

TOTAL SHARE 
AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 

appraised values and unrealized capital gains
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risk management

Klépierre has identified the
greatest potential sources of risk
facing its operating environment
and its core businesses.

Real-estate market risks
At year-end 2003, shopping cen-
ter properties made up nearly
80% of Klépierre’s real-estate
portfolio, with offices comprising
the remaining portion. Active in
the highly cyclical Paris office
property market, where real
estate and rental prices tend to
fluctuate, Klépierre has high-
quality office property holdings
located in prime real-estate
areas, which makes them less
vulnerable to market downturns.
In the past, shopping center
properties have proven highly
resistant to real-estate market
downturns.

Risk related to changes 
in consumption patterns
European consumption trends
are one of the main drivers of
shopping center performance.
Consumer spending has risen
steadily for more than 50 years in
Europe, and market downturns
are generally short-lived. Klépierre
protects itself from temporary
downturns in consumer spend-
ing by negotiating longer terms
on its leases.

Real-estate 
development risk
Klépierre does not engage in
office real-estate development
activities. Its shopping center
development activity is restricted
to France.
Two major development risks
have been identified:

Cost of construction. Where
possible, Klépierre gives prefer-
ence to development contracts
that call for the use of specialized
contractors working for a pre-
defined price;

Commercial risk. The success
of shopping centers and the reg-
ulatory and zoning restrictions
placed on building new complexes
make them highly attractive to
large retailers. Most large and
mid-sized development projects
are fully leased up when con-
struction work commences.

Tenant insolvency risk
In the office sector, Klépierre has
corporate tenants of the first
rank, operating in the more tradi-
tional business sectors. Its ten
largest tenants only account for
roughly 45% of full-year rents,
and its leading tenant for less
than 10%, which improves the
risk profile of Klépierre’s hold-
ings. The default rate for 2003
remains low (1.1%). Tenants are
required to provide a security
deposit, either in cash or via 
a bank guarantee, equal to 
3 months’ rent.
In the shopping center sector, the
insolvency risk is also adequately
spread. The largest tenant only
represents 5% of full-year rents.
While the default rate has risen in
light of the significant increase in
the volume of leases, it was only
1.7% of invoiced rents at the
December 31, 2003, reporting
date. All tenants have provided a
security deposit equal to at least 
3 months of rent, or, as is the case
for certain major international
retailers, an equivalent bank guar-
antee.

Risk related to foreign
development projects
Klépierre limits its foreign devel-
opment projects to Continental
Europe.
Within the eurozone, Klépierre
has established a network of
local partners, and has secured
the resources needed to identify,
insofar as possible, local market
trends and practices. In Central
Europe, Klépierre has a selective
development policy, and limits its
investments in these countries to
no more than 10% of its total
portfolio.

Interest-rate risk
As Klépierre’s corporate debt has
increased significantly in recent
years, the Company has also
taken measures intended to
hedge interest-rate exposure,
with the aim of transforming 60 to
70% of its total debt into fixed-rate
debt, a level that is appropriate
given the Group’s asset profile. A
rate increase of 100 basis points
would lead to a 0.07% rise in the
global cost of debt and a negative
impact on the pre-tax cash-flow of
€1.6 million. As a reminder, lease
income earned by the group is
indexed to the cost of construc-
tion index (ICC), which protects
its revenues during prolonged
inflationary periods.

Insurance
Klépierre has contracted insur-
ance coverage designed to pro-
tect the capital and income of
each of its core business seg-
ments.

Shopping centers
Klépierre’s facilities in France
and abroad are protected by
comprehensive insurance poli-
cies that include optional loss
settlement clauses covering the
gross replacement cost of
related assets. These policies
also include business interrup-
tion coverage, of one or two
years depending on the shop-
ping center, in the event of an
insured accident.
To optimize this coverage, Klé-
pierre has its property holdings
in France and abroad appraised
on a regular basis by real-estate
valuation experts.
When these policies came up for
renewal in late 2003, we observed
that premium rates had remained
stable. Insurance premiums for
comprehensive property insur-
ance coverage – losses (excluding
loss of lease income) and liability –
are re-billed to tenants as an oper-
ating expense.
Klépierre has taken out Assurpol
third-party liability insurance for
its facilities with significant pollu-

general and legal information
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tion and environmental liability
exposure (such as service sta-
tions and auto repair shops).
Ségécé has third-party liability
insurance cover for its manage-
ment and sales and marketing
business.

Offices
Klépierre’s office holdings are
protected by a fleet policy that
features an optional loss settle-
ment clause and three-year 
business interruption coverage.
Co-operative properties are pro-
tected by a contract that supple-
ments other insurance coverage
acquired by co-owners.
At year-end 2003, insurance pre-
miums increased by 20% for
office holdings and by 24% for
warehouses. These sums are re-
billed to tenants as operating
expenses.
Klépierre occasionally contracts
property-casualty and construc-
tion coverage for major renova-
tion work it carries out.
Klégestion has contracted third-
party liability coverage for its
management business.

Legal intelligence
Klépierre’s legal department and
supporting departments work in
partnership with external con-
sultants to ensure that informa-
tion on new laws and regulations
that could have a material impact
on the Group’s situation and its
business development is cap-
tured, processed and dissemi-
nated throughout the Group. This
intelligence gathering extends to
legislation and regulations in
every country in which the Group
has equity interests.

Compensation and incentives 
of board members

Senior officers and directors
Executive Board 1277000 12200 1289200
Michel CLAIR 367990 3050 371040
Claude LOBJOIE 244440 3050 247490
Éric RANJARD 349580 3050 352630
Jean-Paul SABET 314990 3050 318040

Supervisory Board 85371 85371
Vivien LÉVY-GARBOUA 13377 13377
Bertrand de FEYDEAU 13377 13377
Philippe DULAC 3294 3294
Bertrand JACQUILLAT 11488 11488
Bertrand LETAMENDIA 11365 11365
Christian MANSET 12519 12519
Jean NUNEZ 9476 9476
Laurent TRECA 10475 10475

in €
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Fees paid to independent auditors

PAID IN 2002 AND 2003

PAID IN 2003
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2003 2002
Ernst & Young Mazars & Guérard Ernst & Young Mazars & GuérardAudit(1)

- Independent audit and certification of 
corporate and consolidated financial statements 402 42.41% 404 36.56% 315 56.60% 322 35.10%
- Related services 546 57.59% 701 63.44% 242 43.40% 595 64.90%
Subtotal 948 100.00% 1105 100.00% 557 100.00% 917 100.00%

Other services 
Subtotal
TOTAL 948 100.00% 1105 100.00% 557 100.00% 917 100.00%
(1) Includes services provided by independent experts or members of the audit network, at the request of the independent auditors and in relation to the performance of their audits. in € thousands
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EXECUTIVE BOARD
Michel CLAIR

Chairman of the Klépierre Executive board
Member of the SCS Ségécé Supervisory Board
Chairman of SAS Valéry Développement

Board member:
Régie Immobilière de la Ville de Paris
SA HLM
Les Trois Vallées

Trustee:
SNC Kléber la Pérouse
SARL Société de Recherches 
et de Développement Immobilier

Éric RANJARD
Vice Chairman of the Klépierre Executive Board
Trustee of SCS Ségécé
Chairman of Conseil National des Centres Commerciaux
Chairman of SAS Ségécar
Chairman of SAS Soaval
Member of the SCS Ségécé Supervisory Board
Chairman of the Board of Directors of SA Les Cinémas de
l’Esplanade (Belgium)
Chairman of the Board of Directors of SA Coimbra (Belgium)
Chairman of Klépierre Société Anonyme Foncière
d’Exploitation du Centre Commercial Athinon (Greece)
Chairman of Klépierre Société Anonyme Foncière
d’Exploitation du Centre Commercial Nea Efkarpia (Greece)
Chairman of Klépierre Société Anonyme Foncière
d’Exploitation du Centre Commercial Perivola Patras (Greece)
Chairman of Klépierre Makédonia Société Anonyme
Foncière (Greece)
Chairman of Klecar Italia SPA (Italy)
Chairman of Klefin Italia SPA (Italy)
Chairman of Belarcol (Belgium)
Chairman of Novate SRL (Italy)

Chairman of Klélou-Imobiliaria SA (Portugal)
Chairman of Klénord Imobiliaria SA (Portugal)
Chairman of Klépierre Portugal SGPS SA (Portugal)
Chairman of Klétel-Imobiliaria SA (Portugal)
Chairman of Sogecaec SA (Portugal)
Chairman of Galeria Parque Nascente - Exploraçao de
Espaços Comerciais SA (Portugal)
Chairman of Gondobrico-SA Klélou-Imobiliaria, SA (Portugal)
Chairman of Klépierre Makédonia Société Anonyme
Foncière (Greece)
Vice Chairman Centros Shopping Gestion SL (Spain)
Vice Chairman of Cienneo SRL (Italy)
Vice Chairman of Immobiliare Gallerie Commerciali SPA (Italy)
Vice Chairman of Immobiliare Commerciale Dodicesima
SPA (Italy)
Vice Chairman of SKF SPA (Italy)
Vice Chairman of Immobiliare Magnolia SRL (Italy)
Vice Chairman of Vignate SRL (Italy)
Member of the Arcol Supervisory Board (Slovakia)
Member of the Amac Sro Supervisory Board (Slovakia)
Member of the AMC Prague Sro Supervisory Board
(Czech Republic)
Member of the Delcis CR Supervisory Board (Czech Republic)
Member of the FMC Central Europe Sro Supervisory
Board (Czech Republic)

Board member:
SID ETP
SAS Ségécar
SA Belarcol (Belgium)
SA Belga Sept (Belgium)
SA Les Cinémas de l’Esplanade (Belgium)
SA Coimbra (Belgium)
SA Foncière Cinéma de Louvain-la-Neuve (Belgium)
SA Foncière de Louvain-la-Neuve (Belgium)
Klépierre Makédonia Société Anonyme Foncière (Greece)

Klépierre Société Anonyme Foncière d’Exploitation 
du Centre Commercial Athinon (Greece)
Klépierre Société Anonyme Foncière d’Exploitation 
du Centre Commercial Nea Efkarpia (Greece)
Klépierre Société Anonyme Foncière d’Exploitation 
du Centre Commercial Perivola Patras (Greece)
Immobiliare Commerciale Dodicesima SPA (Italy)
Immobiliare Gallerie Commerciali SPA (Italy)
Klecar Italia SPA (Italy)
Klefin Italia SPA (Italy)
SKF SPA (Italy)
Cienneo SRL (Italy)
Novate SRL (Italy)
Immobiliare Magnolia SRL (Italy)
Effe Kappa SRL (Italy)
GFK SRL (Italy)
PSG SRL (Italy)
Centros Shopping Gestion SL (Spain)
Zobel Investment BV (Netherlands)
SA Klélou-Imobiliaria (Portugal)
SA Klépierre Portugal SGPS (Portugal)
SA de Klétel Imobiliaria (Portugal)
SA Klénord Imobiliaria (Portugal)
SA Sogecaec (Portugal)

Trustee:
SC Centre Bourse
SC Solorec

Claude LOBJOIE
Member of the Klépierre Executive Board
Trustee of SNC Klégestion
Sole director of GIE Klépierre Services
Chairman of SAS CB Pierre
Member of the SCS Ségécé Supervisory Board

Non-voting Board member:
SAS Comadim

list of positions and offices held

general and legal information

by Klépierre’s senior officers at December 31, 2003
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Jean-Paul SABET
Member of the Klépierre Executive Board
Member of the SCS Ségécé Supervisory Board
Member of the SA EPRA Supervisory Board (Netherlands)
Chairman of SASU Société Parisienne du Marais
Chairman of SASU Parisienne des Capucines
Chairman of the Board of Directors of SA Foncière
Cinéma de Louvain-la-Neuve (Belgium)
Chairman of the Board of Directors of SA Foncière 
de Louvain-la-Neuve (Belgium)
Chairman of SA Belga 7 (Belgium)
Chairman of SAS Marais Participations
Vice-Chairman the Board of Directors of Klépierre
Makédonia Société Anonyme Foncière (Greece)
Vice-Chairman the Board of Directors of Novate SRL (Italy)
Member of the Supervisory Board of SA LDC
Member of the Supervisory Board of Arcol (Slovakia)
Member of the Supervisory Board of Delcis CR 
(Czech Republic)
Senior Executive Officer of SA Société Centrale
d’Investissements
Senior Executive Officer of SA Société de Participations
Mobilières

Board member:
SA RIVP
SA Belarcol (Belgium)
SA Belga Sept (Belgium)
SA Les Cinémas de l’Esplanade (Belgium)
SA Coimbra (Belgium)
Klépierre Société Anonyme Foncière d’Exploitation 
du Centre Commercial Athinon (Greece)
Klépierre Société Anonyme Foncière d’Exploitation 
du Centre Commercial Nea Efkarpia (Greece)
Klépierre Société Anonyme Foncière d’Exploitation 
du Centre Commercial Perivola Patras (Greece)

Senior offices, positions and offices held Senior offices, positions and offices held Senior offices, positions and offices held

Immobiliare Commerciale Dodicesima SPA (Italy)
SA Foncière Cinéma de Louvain-la-Neuve (Belgium)
SA Foncière de Louvain-la-Neuve (Belgium)
Immobiliare Gallerie Commerciali SPA (Italy)
Klefin Italia SPA (Italy)
SKF SPA (Italy)
Cienneo SRL (Italy)
Immobiliare Magnolia SRL (Italy)
Vignate SRL (Italy)
Zobel Investment BV(Netherlands)
SA Klélou-Imobiliaria SA (Portugal)
SA Klénord Imobiliaria (Portugal)
SA Klépierre Portugal SGPS (Portugal)
SA Klétel-Imobiliaria (Portugal)
Southern Star (USA)
Klépierre Makédonia Société Anonyme Foncière (Greece)
Novate SRL (Italy)

Trustee:
SNC KLP Bis

Vivien LÉVY-GARBOUA
Chairman of the Klépierre Supervisory Board
Member of the BNP Paribas Executive Committee
Head of Banque Privée Gestion d’Actifs, BNP Paribas
Chairman of BNP Paribas Bank, Paris
Chairman of the Supervisory Board of SAS Meunier Promotion
Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board of BNP Paribas
Securities Services
Member of the Supervisory Board of Presses
Universitaires de France
Member of the Board of Directors of Coficem
Chairman of BNP Paribas (Luxembourg) SA
Chairman of UEB (Switzerland) Genève

Board member:
Cortal Consors
BNP Paribas (UK) (London)

BNP Paribas (Switzerland) SA
Fischer Francis Trees & Watts (New York)

Non-voting Board member:
Cardif
Natio Vie

Christian MANSET
Vice Chairman of the Klépierre Supervisory Board
Chairman of Compagnie Ottomane Financière
(Luxembourg)

Board member:
Finaxa
Compagnie Financière de Paris
ERBE SA (Belgium)

Bertrand LETAMENDIA
Member of the Klépierre Supervisory Board
Chief Real Estate Officer, AGF Group
Chairman of SAS AGF Saint-Marc
Chairman of SAS Établissements Painvoine
Chairman of SAS Étoile Foncière et Immobilière
Chairman of Financière Cogedim Laennec
Chairman of SAS Kléber Lamartine
Chairman of SAS Madeleine Opéra
Chairman of SAS Kléber Passy
Chairman of SAS 48 Notre Dame des Victoires
Chairman of SAS Société Commerciale Vernet
Chairman of SAS Société Foncière Européenne
Chairman of SAS Société de Négociations Immobilières 
et Mobilières Maleville (SONIMM)
Chairman of Vernon SAS

Board member:
Gecina
Sophia
Sogeprom

Trustee:
SNC AIP
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SNC Kléber Mirabeau
SNC Allianz Bercy
Allianz France SARL
Allianz Immo 3 EURL
EURL 20-22, rue Le Pelletier
SCI Centre et Paris
SCI Civilassur
SCI 25, rue Clapeyron
SCI Clichassur
SCI Corepassur
SCI 40, avenue Duquesne
SCI 16-18, avenue George V
SCCV 48-50, Henri Barbusse
SCI Ingrassur
SCCV 33, rue La Fayette
SCI 2, rue Largillière
SCI Martinassur
Société de Construction et de Gestion Immobilière 
des Mesoyers
SCI Mozartassur
SCI 30, rue Pergolèse
SCI 12, rue de Rambouillet
SCI Remaupin
SCI 10, rue de Richelieu
SCI 3, route de la Wantzenau « Les Portes de l’Europe »
SCI Sogefo
SC Prelloyd Immobilier
SCI Via Jaurès
SCI Via Pierre I
SCI du 18, rue Vivienne

Bertrand de FEYDEAU
Member of the Klépierre Supervisory Board
Senior Executive Vice Chairman of Economic Affairs
for the Paris Archdiocese
Chairman and CEO of AXA Aedificandi “Cœur Défense” (sicav)

Senior offices, positions and offices held Senior offices, positions and offices held Senior offices, positions and offices held

Chairman and CEO of AXA Immobilier SAS
Chairman and CEO of Immoconcept (subsidiary of AXA
Immobilier SA)
Chairman of the Association pour la Formation Supérieure
aux Métiers de l’Immobilier (AFSMI)
Member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (UK)
Vieilles Maisons Françaises Delegate for the Vienne
French Department

Board member:
Bail Investissement
Gecina
Fondation du Patrimoine
SIMCO
Société Beaujon
Affine-Sefri-Cime
SITC
Ahorro Familiar

Permanent representative of:
AXA Immobilier SAS
AXA Conseil Vie Assurance Mutuelle
AXA Conseil Vie Logement Français
SNC Transacxim

Jean NUNEZ
Member of the Klépierre Supervisory Board
Head of Finance and Control for the Banque de
Financement et d’Investissements BNP Paribas

Board member:
AXA Re Finance

Laurent TRECA
Member of the Klépierre Supervisory Board
Member of the Steering Committee of the SFDI
Division of the BNP Paribas Group
Member of the Cetelem SA Supervisory Board
Chairman and CEO of Arval Service Lease SA
Chairman of Arius SA

Chairman of Truck Management Artegy SA
Chairman of Gestion et Location Holding SAS
Chairman of Arval PHH Holding SAS
Chairman of BNP Paribas Fleet Holdings Ltd (UK)
Chairman of Arval PHH Holdings (UK) Ltd (UK)
Chairman of Arval PHH Holdings Limited (UK)
Chairman of Arval PHH Ltd (UK)
Chairman of PHH Holdings Ltd (UK)
Chairman of Arval PHH Business Solutions Ltd (UK)
Vice Chairman of Arval Service Lease Italia SPA (Italy)

Board member:
Cortal Consors SA
UCI SA (Union de Creditos Immobiliarios) (Spain)
Consors Discount Broker AG (Germany)
Arval Belgium (Belgium)

Bertrand JACQUILLIAT
Member of the Klépierre Supervisory Board
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Associés 
en Finance

Board member:
Total Fina ELF

Stock options

No stock options were granted in 2003.
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organization chart

SA Ségécar*

PSG

SA Centros Shopping
Gestion

Klécar España

SA Devimo Consult

FMC*

Key

Klépierre
SA’s direct
ownership
percentage.

* property management only

I Business support services

%

FRANCE

Klecar Italia

Special purpose 
real-estate companies

PORTUGAL

SPAIN

GREECE

BELGIUM

OTHER

FRANCE

ITALY

Development

Klécar Iberica

100

* Slovakia * Czech Republic

Services
I Property and rental management I Multimedia

Direct
ownership
percentage 
of one group
subsidiary 
by another
subsidiary.

100

Foncière 
Louvain-la-Neuve 100

Arcol* 100

SAS CB Pierre 100 SAS Klégestion 100
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Real estate

Klécar
Participations Italie 83 IGC 40

SNC Klécar France 83 SNC Kléber La Pérouse 100 SA Ségécé 75

SAS Klécar
Europe Sud 83

Klépierre Services 34
100 100

100

100

50

50

50

35

33

33

Sogecaec100

75

Note: Klépierre SA directly owns 
a portfolio of office properties.

Special purpose 
real-estate companies

Special purpose 
real-estate companies

Special purpose 
real-estate companies
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analysis of intra-group services
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Klépierre GIE Ségécé Ségécar Klécar Galaé CSG -Klécar Effe PSG Klecar IGC Klécar Sogecaec Klépierre FMC Arcol Devimo Coimbra Klégestion CB Pierre other/
Klépierre France and Europe Kappa* Italia Europe Portugal external
Services subsidiaires Sud Sud

-Klécar
Foncier
Iberica

-Klécar
Foncier
España

Klépierre Financing Financing Financing Financing Financing Financing Financing Financing Financing Financing Financing

GIE SF HRM HRM CAM HRM CAM CAM CAM CAM HRM CAM
Klépierre CAM AM SF FM AM FM FM FM FM AM FM
Services FM SF AM SF SF AM

AM SF

Ségécé DVPT Financing LM Financing Financing GLI Financing CAA CAA Financing CAA Financing Financing LPM
CAA LOP CAA LOP CAA LOP LOP MADP DVPT
LPM CAA

Ségécar PM PM

Klécar Property Property
France

Galaé Multimédia Multimédia WSD
Multimédia

CSG LPM LPM
CAA CAA

- Klécar Property Property
Europe
Sud

- Klécar
Foncier
Iberica
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Foncier
España

Effe CAM
Kappa* FM

AM

PSG LPM LPM LPM
CAA CAA CAA

- Klecar Italia Property Property
- IGC

Klécar Property
Europe Sud

Sogecaec LPM LPM
CAA CAA

Klépierre Property
Portugal

FMC LPM LPM

Arcol Property

Devimo CAA LPM
CAA

Coimbra Property

Klégestion LPM LPM PM
CAA CAA

CB Pierre Property
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WSD: Web site design
PM: Property management
DVPT: Development 
LM: Lease management
SF: Support functions 
LPM: Lease and property

management
CAM: Company administra-

tive management
HRM: Human resources

management
AM: Accounting manage-

ment 
LOP: Leasing of personnel
FM: Financial management
CAA: Consultancy and assis-

tance on acquisitions

*Effe Kappa is jointly owned
by Klépierre and Finim.
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general and legal information

of the assets, business, financial
condition, earnings and outlook of
the issuer and its group.

March 9, 2004
Michel Clair

Chairman of the Executive Board

person responsible for this document

persons responsible for audits

Statement of the officer
responsible for the 2003
shelf registration document

To the best of our knowledge, the
facts stated in this document are
true and accurate in all material

respects, and there are no facts
the omission of which would make
misleading any statement of fact
or opinion. The document pro-
vides investors with all the infor-
mation they require to make an
investment decision on the basis

Persons responsible for audits

Incumbent auditors
ERNST & YOUNG AUDIT
Tour Ernst & Young – 92037 Paris La Défense Cedex
Patrice COSLIN
First appointed: AGM Nov. 4, 1968 – Re-elected: AGM March 20, 1998
End of term: Fiscal year 2003
Proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting held on April 8,
2004.

MAZARS & GUÉRARD
Le Vinci – 4, allée de l’Arche – 92075 Paris La Défense Cedex
Odile COULAUD
First appointed: AGM Nov. 4, 1968 – Re-elected: AGM March 20, 1998
End of term: Fiscal year 2003
Proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting held on April 8,
2004.

Alternate auditors
Jean-Marc MONTSERRAT
Member of the Ernst & Young network
Tour Ernst & Young – 92037 Paris La Défense Cedex
First appointed: AGM Nov. 4, 1968 – Re-elected: AGM March 20, 1998
End of term: Fiscal year 2003
Christian MOUILLON, member of the Ernst & Young network, pro-
posed for appointment at the annual general meeting held on April 8,
2004, replacing Jean-Marc MONTSERRAT.

José MARETTE
Member of the Mazars & Guérard network
Le Vinci – 4 Allée de l’Arche – 92075 Paris La Défense Cedex
First appointed: AGM Nov. 4, 1968 – Re-elected: AGM March 20, 1998
End of term: Fiscal year 2003
Patrick de CAMBOURG, member of the Mazars & Guérard network,
proposed for appointment at the annual general meeting held on
April 8, 2004, replacing José MARETTE.

Person responsible 
for financial disclosures

Jean-Michel GAULT
Chief Financial Officer
Tel.: 33 1 40 67 35 05

and financial disclosures
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on the shelf-registration document (document de référence)

above relating to the financial
statements taken as a whole:

As regards the annual
financial statements:

As stated in Note 1 and 5.4 of
the Notes to the Financial State-
ments, in connection with the new
tax regime applicable to “SIIC”
(French listed property investment
companies), Klépierre reorganized
the Group from a legal standpoint.
Pursuant to these transactions,
Klépierre carried out the dissolu-
tion via the intermingling of assets,
for some of its subsidiaries. We
ensured that the accounting treat-
ment of these transactions was
appropriate.

Valuation procedures were
carried out by independent real
estate appraisers with respect to
real estate assets. We ensured
that sufficient provisions were
set aside using the Group’s
accounting principles based on
the external expert appraisals.

Within the scope of the appli-
cation of the transitional provi-
sions of Regulation No. 2002-10
of the French Accounting Regula-
tions Committee (Comité de la
Réglementation Comptable) rela-
ting to the amortization, depreci-
ation and impairment of assets,
the Group chose not to apply in
advance the component method

and did not set aside provisions
for major maintenance for the rea-
sons set out in Note 2.9 to the
financial statements. We have
ensured that the reasons present-
ed in such Note are pertinent.

As regards the
consolidated financial
statements:

As stated in Notes 1.1 and 3.1
of the Notes to the financial state-
ments, within the scope of its elec-
tion for the new tax status applying
to Public Real Estate Investment
Companies (Sociétés d’Investis-
sements Immobiliers Cotées),
Klépierre carried out a voluntary
revaluation of its property, plant
and equipment and financial fixed
assets in its consolidated financial
statements. We ensured that the
accounting treatment of these
transactions was appropriate
based on generally accepted
accounting principles in France,
the specific provisions laid down by
the Emergency Committee meet-
ing of the French National Institute
of Accountants (Conseil national
de la comptabilité) held on June
11, 2003, the valuations carried out
by independent experts and the tax
positions adopted by the company.

Valuation procedures were
carried out by independent real
estate appraisers with respect to

real estate assets. We ensured
that sufficient provisions were
set aside using the Group’s
accounting principles based on
the external expert appraisals.

Within the scope of the appli-
cation of the transitional provi-
sions of Regulation No. 2002-10
of the French Accounting Regu-
lations Committee (Comité de la
Réglementation Comptable) rela-
ting to the amortization, deprecia-
tion and impairment of assets, the
Group chose not to apply in
advance the component method
and did not set aside provisions
for major maintenance for the rea-
sons set out in Note 3.2 to the
financial statements. We have
ensured that the reasons present-
ed in such Note are pertinent.
We have nothing to report with
respect to the fairness of the infor-
mation on the financial position
and financial statements contained
in the Shelf Registration Document
(Document de Référence).

March 9, 2004

The Statutory Auditors
Mazars & Guérard:
Odile Coulaud
Ernst & Young Audit:
Patrice Coslin

Translation of the French original
for information purposes only.

statutory auditors’ opinion 

Financial Year Ended
December 31, 2003

In our capacity as statutory audi-
tors of Klépierre and in compliance
with Regulation No. 98-01 of the
Commission des opérations de
Bourse (the former French equi-
valent of the Securities and
Exchange Commission), we have
verified, in accordance with French
professional standards, the infor-
mation in respect of the financial
position and historical financial
statements included in the accom-
panying shelf-registration docu-
ment (document de reference).
This shelf-registration document
was drawn up under the respon-
sibility the Chairman of the
Executive Board. Our responsi-
bility is to issue an opinion on the
fairness of the information con-
tained therein with respect to the
financial position and financial
statements.
We conducted our review in accor-
dance with French professional
standards. This review consisted in
assessing the fairness of the infor-
mation on the financial position and
financial statements and verifying
their consistency with the audited
financial statements. We also
reviewed other financial information
contained in the shelf-registration
document in order to identify any

material inconsistency with the
information in respect of the finan-
cial position and financial state-
ments and to bring to your attention
any obvious misstatements we
noted based on our general knowl-
edge of the company gained
through our audit. The prospective
information is based on manage-
ment’s expectations and intentions
and not on properly projections on
individual components of the
prospective information.
We issued an unqualified opinion
on the annual and consolidated
financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and
December 31, 2002, as approved
by the Executive Board, in accor-
dance with French professional
standards.
We audited the annual and con-
solidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31,
2003, approved by the Executive
Board, in accordance with French
professional standards. We issued
an unqualified opinion on these
financial statements. In accor-
dance with the provisions of Article
L. 225-235 of the French Commer-
cial Code, which apply for the first
time this year, we mentioned in our
report the observations in respect
of and the justification for the fol-
lowing assessments, which con-
tribute to the opinion expressed



“Pursuant to COB 
regulation 98-01, 

this shelf registration document
was registered with the Autorité

des Marchés Financiers 
on March 9, 2004.

It may be used in connection 
with a financial transaction 

only if accompanied 
by a transaction memorandum

registered with the Autorité 
des Marchés Financiers.”
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shelf registration document
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